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GROUP STRUCTURE
SREZRIE

As at the date of this report, the shareholders and the principal subsidiaries of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited were as

follows:

RARER - AR ERAXEEROARARZERLEIEMBARNT

Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary
Food Company I
LRHRBEAREAR R NRRER

40.61%

SRRAN

3y Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited
TRREEFAREE

100.00% 55.66% 79.85% 100.00%

Beijing Jingkelong Beijing Xinyang Tongli
Shouchao Commercial Facilities

Beijing Chaopi
Trading Company.
Limited

Beijing Jingkelong
(Langfang)

Company Limited Company Limited Company Limited
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Other domestic shareholders

15.20%

100.00%

Beijing Jingkelong
Supermarket Chain
Company Limited
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100.00%

Beijing Chaoyang
Jingkelong Vocational
Skills Training School

44.19%

100.00%

Beijing Jingkelong Live
and Fresh Convenience
Store Company Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Beijing Jingkelong
Company Limited (the “Company” or “Jingkelong”), | am delighted
to present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the
“Reporting Period”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2017, China’s economy was stable and improved, and Chinese
economy has shifted from high-speed growth stage to the stage of
high-quality development. Under the current obvious rising of New
Retail against the mixture of the rapid development and growth
bottleneck of traditional e-commerce, the Group adapted to changes
in consumption demand and habits, focusing on the two aspects
of “product & service”, taking advantage in the off-line resources
of the stores and prioritized the two aspects, improved operation
and management as well as services competition ability to improve
visuality, accessibility, perceptivity of consumer experience, as well
as the affinity and trust brought by face-to-face communication. At
the same time, the Group actively used Internet and mobile Internet
technology and sought online and off-line integrated development
through combining off-line resources to stably advance transformation

and upgrading.

During the Reporting Period, the Group achieved the following results:

° Revenue from principle business was RMB10,786,227,182,

representing an decrease of approximately 0.6% as compared to

2016;

° Gross profit was RMB1,534,872,095, representing an increase of
approximately 13.4% as compared to 2016;

° Gross profit margin was approximately 14.2%, representing a

increase of approximately 12.5% as compared to 1.7p.p in 2016;
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERWME

° Total profit was RMB148,189,130, representing a increase of
approximately 10.2% as compared to 2016;

° Profit attributable to shareholders of parent company was
RMB47,485,004, representing a increase of approximately 77.9%

as compared to 2016;

o Basic earnings per share was RMB0.12 (2016: RMBO0.06); and

. The proposed final dividend per share was RMB0.06 (2016:
RMBO0.05).

OUTLOOK

In 2018, along with the advancement of the coordinated development
for the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region and the coordinated development
in urban and rural areas, along with the progress of relieving Beijing of
its non-capital functions, the Group will embrace new opportunities for
satisfying the convenient consumption demand through making best
use of recovered space. The Group will continue to tap its advantage
in physical stores and focus on category planning, upgrading live and
fresh produce operation and innovating operation segment; improve
and enrich functions of APP, expand third-party e-commerce platform
business, introduce more online marketing activities, and achieve
online and off-line integrated development; adhere to service concepts,
enrich service contents, improve service quality, and increase
customers’ satisfaction and experience. As for wholesale business,
the Group will strengthen strategic cooperation with upstream
manufacturers and online and off-line distribution channels, expand
the third-party logistics business and co-logistics warehouses, further
strengthen the wholesale advantage, and enhance market competition
of wholesale business supported by the competitive supply chain
resources, modern logistics support, diversified marketing channels,

and integrated product and brand service.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere gratitude to
our shareholders for their trust and support; to all business partners,
suppliers and customers for their support and assistance, and our
appreciation to all staff and the management team for their hard work

and contribution to the Group during the Reporting Period.

Li Jianwen

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
21 March 2018
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I\/IANAGEI\/IENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Reporting Period, with the rising momentum at a stable
pace in the domestic macro economy, the Group geared up to monitor
the changes in consumption structure resulting from the changes
in consumer’s age and family lifestyle, as well as the accompanying
changes relating to consumption such as habits, patterns and demand.
The consumption mode of domestic consumers has shifted from
the consumption with impulsion, random selection and inducement
into the rational and constructive personalized consumption, which
presented the Group with opportunities and challenges. Insisting on
transformation upgrading, the Group was dedicated to studying and
assessing the changes in consumer expectation for products including
quality, price, deliver and related services, while closely focusing on
the “product+service” policy to optimize the standardization system of
business operations management. By leveraging on various information
analysis in customer flow, category, connective sales, update rate,
price zone and pin rate, the Group continued to make adjustments
of commodity mix, and enlarge the products range for the needs of
consumption upgrading, accelerate the pace of the business mode
innovation of live and fresh produce stores in the communities, and
promote the integration of online and offline development, with an aim

to enhance the competitiveness for the Group.

RETAIL BUSINESS

Adjustment of store developing strategy and expansion of

Live and Fresh Produce Convenience Stores

During the Reporting Period, the Group took the opportunity of relieving
Beijing of functions non-essential to its role as the capital, and the
coordinated development of Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei, and sped up
expanding its own brand “Jingjie” Live and Fresh Produce Convenience
Store and “Love Home” Convenience Store, to give full play to its
supplementary function to the market. In particular, the Group focused
on satisfying the daily necessities of community residents such as meat,
eggs, fruits, vegetables and milk, etc. During the Reporting Period, 13
traditional convenience stores mature communities were transformed

into “Jingjie” Live and Fresh Produce Convenience Stores or “Love

#10
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Home” Convenience Stores. By the end of 2017, 27 “Jingjie” Live and
Fresh Produce Convenience Stores and “Love Home” Convenience
Stores had been established, and a more mature operation model had

been formed.

During the Reporting Period, the Group renovated and upgraded
10 convenience stores. Throughout the year, the Group opened 13
convenience stores (including 5 directly-operated convenienced stores
and 8 franchised convenience stores). Due to reasons such as the
expiration of the terms of leasing, the closure of loss-making outlets
and government demolition, during the Reporting Period, the Group
closed down 1 hypermarket, 5 supermarkets, 11 directly-operated

convenience stores, and 24 franchised convenience stores.

The total number of the Group’s retail outlets was 220 as at 31
December 2017. The following table sets out the number and net

operating area of the Group’s retail outlets as at 31 December 2017:

BT Mo

BUERI R AHENELERIEAE - &
E-TEER [RREIEHEMNERIERIE
MECBERE27ME - O T BAKARKLEEN

REHARTK TI0BEMENREIEETIE - 2
FHFAERE13ME(E5ME S E R /5 R mE
EFE) - AEROTE - ARSEERRFESR
RS EARIRARI T 1A ES - SRIARAET -
11 E A E RIS R24R B EFE -

BE-T—tFT-A=T—0  AEETEE
FBBB200M - FRIEMBIIFEMA =T+
F+ A=+ ROTEFIEHE WFLBEE

Department Convenience
Stores  Hypermarkets ~ Supermarkets stores Total
BE®ES XES ZERm ERE &t
Number of retail outlets: TEMEHE
Directly-operated B 2 11 61 98 172
Franchise-operated IR IE - - 1 47 48
Total &3 2 11 62 145 220
Net operating area
(square metres): FEEER(TAK):
Directly-operated ERE 39,742 78,817 137,687 19,257 275,503
Franchise-operated R mEE - - 830 10,834 11,714
Total =il 39,742 78,817 138,567 30,091 287,217
Improvement of product profitability RAEMEBFIEE

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to strengthen
product contribution analysis and create different standards and
catalogues according to different grades and types of stores;
accelerate introduction and renewed of products, with a focus of
introducing healthy, green and distinctive products with geographical
features to adapt to consumption upgrade; pay attention to

consumption demands of young customers, and introduce innovative,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

trendy and imported products to increase the stores’ attractiveness
to young customers; reduce cost and improve profitability of key

products through bulk buyout or customization.

Continuous improvement of operation of live and fresh

produce operation

Based on version 2.0 of live and fresh produce operation, the Group
improved standard of live and fresh food operation and upgraded into
version 3.0 of Jingkelong live and fresh produce operation: put forward
processing of fruit and vegetables into planting bases from the stores,
cooperate with suppliers to determine style, specification and cost of
packaging, make operation instructions of all processing links, integrate
packaging and labeling, resulting the resolving different problems
such as high labor cost, high consumption, lack of unified processing
standards and pricing policy for store individual; make Jingkelong
Store Fruit and Vegetable Operation Instruction, to control the
standard procedure relating to the operation of fruits and vegetables in
eight aspects such as order management, acceptance management,
storage management, stock launching, display of goods, tallying and
replenishing of goods, processing and clearance, and convert from a
result management approach to a process management approach so
as to improve standards; adjust the structure of live and fresh produce
by way of introducing high-end beef and mutton such as Angus
beef sirloins, high-end rib-eye steaks, New Zealand mutton product
series into large-scale or mid-scale stores; and sales experts were
invited to participate in designing operation zones of beef and mutton,
making processing standards, environmental and high hygiene control,
marketing plans, diversify beef and mutton product grades through
transforming the original single variety to diversity with medium to

high-end and popular products.

Continuous promotion of online business development

The Group improved the functions of the self-owned online shopping
platform, Jingkelong APP, and updated eight versions within the
year, introduced new functions such as recommendation gift, value-

added redemption, voucher gift and electronic invoice and others, and

4’0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

optimised the visual effects and user-friendliness. During the Reporting
Period, 20,600 items of products were listed in the Jingkelong APP.
In addition, the quantitative packaging jointly developed with base
suppliers enriched online fruit and vegetable products with a variety
of more than 400 and increased the product selection efficiency of
stores. During the Reporting Period, the Group cooperated with four
third-party platforms such as Jingdong Daojia, Meituan Waimai, Eleme
and Baidu Waimai to provide customers with more convenient 1-hour-
delivery shopping experience, which expanded new sales channels,
increased sales of stores and attracted customers. Through using new
media platforms such as WeChat, Alipay, websites and Microblog, the
Group continuously publicized the brands, and significantly increased
online orders and sales, which consolidated the goal of online and off-

line integrated development.

Exploration of innovative marketing mode

The Group made use of a mechanism that evaluates the mode of
marketing, so as to conduct a comparative data analysis on the
status, promotion effects, product selection and promotional efforts
of various aspects of marketing plans such as promotion periods,
sales promotion areas and promotional items, and provided a timely
and accurate reflection of marketing results, promoting a shift from a
broad-brushed approach to a more delicate approach in respect of
marketing mode; conducted questionnaire surveys on shopping habits,
poster contents, promotion modes, product demand and online
shopping methods, identifying the focus of promotional activities;
adopted a new series of marketing mode towards members through
increasing member promotions, increasing members’ privileges,
enriching members’ experience, unifying online and off-line methods,
securing member customers; conducted unified online and offline
marketing activities through allowing the use of APP gift vouchers
obtained from offline shopping in online shopping and the use of
gift vouchers from online shopping in offline shopping, allowing the
interaction between and integrating the development of online and
offline shopping. Besides traditional festivals and international days, a
number of festivals were held, including the Jingkelong Spring Festival

Gift Day, Spring Outing Travel Festival, Summer Cold Drink Festival,
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Beer Festival, Cold Vegetable Dish Festival, Fruit and Vegetable
Festival, Winter Hot Pot Festival and Imported Food Festival. In
addition, based on the 24 solar terms, the Group launched different
forms of promotions, which stimulated on-site sales atmosphere and

increased sales.

Strengthening of logistics network

The normal-temperature distribution center reorganised the positioning
and batches of store deliveries and adjusted the positioning of the
points according to different operation segments of hypermarkets,
supermarkets and convenience stores and the time points of all
operation links in the distribution center were accordingly adjusted,
which avoided the overlapping time between order picking and
acceptance. After the adjustment and planning of operation procedure,
the products ordered by the stores could be delivered the next day,
which reducing the time of delivery, solved the problem of inventory
difference of goods in transit, and alleviates out-of-stock situations
on APP and third party e-commerce platforms due to goods being
in transit. The Group made best use of efficient automatic picking
equipments, strengthened management of replenishment, storage and
allocation of goods, and improved logistics quality and efficiency. The
Group have set up a unified goods replenishment team, increased
turnover rate and sales rate of goods raised the accuracy rate and
delivery rate of goods replenishment in stores. Live and fresh produce
logistics center has strength product quality acceptance and detection,
improved operation of all links such as quality control, workshop
and transportation to ensure quality of distributed goods; provided
convenience stores with processing and delivery service of fruit and
vegetables, helping the convenience stores could sell packaged live-
fresh produce instead of in bulk; implemented the combined delivery
of poultry, eggs, frozen products, fruit and vegetables, and daily
distributed goods to reduced the number of times of delivery to stores,

and increase operation efficiency of stores.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Attention to food safety management

During the Reporting Period, the Group perfected food safety
management system, made timely updates to documents relating to
suppliers’ licenses and qualifications and related inspections, imposed
restrictions over product management, strictly controlled product
access, strengthened self-inspection and submission for inspection of
goods, and conducted on-site inspections against high-risk factories
to ensure all products satisfy relevant quality and safety requirements,
monitored the quality of products; in particular, strengthened the
daily management of live and fresh produce, created processing
standards and established multi-point quality sampling inspection
systems of bases, workshops and stores during the development
of version 3.0 of live and fresh produce, strengthened inventory
monitoring of stores, and conducted timely rectification once a
problem is identified, providing a systemic guarantee in respect of live
and fresh produce quality; enhanced employees’ awareness towards
food safety, compiled and created a set of training materials on food
safety according to the Operation Standardization of Food Sellers
and the Third-party Check and Inspection Guide for Large-scale Food
Sale and Operation Enterprise published by the State Food and Drug
Administration, conducted self-inspection on food safety and made
timely rectification to problems identified; strictly enforced the Group’s
responsibility regarding food safety by way of strengthening the quality
and safety management of agriculture products such as meat and
vegetables, and has actively participated in the “Quality-assured Meat
and Vegetable Demonstration Supermarket” activity in accordance
with the relevant requirements of the Beijing Food and Drug Safety
Committee, so as to provide consumers with quality and safe meat

and vegetables, creating a safe shopping environment.

BT Mo

EEERRMEEER
BEHN - AEE

TELERMELEEEGE
EEEHHEFEREDRARERRRIERS
Xt REEmgE
AR EXRE - BREROBREIETELRER
BRIIENERNAEEREER BEEER
mEE: LEHAHEMMBATEER  LEE
AEEES.OEEBIZS - BIEN TR - B M
HfE - FEZHNEEMRKESE - NRFME
EEFEE  BRABERSULE  AEHEREE
RERHEERE  MEBEEIMNRALEEH -
NBERREARKRBIHEELERH) (RER
mEERECERFE = NERREER)A/KE
ERWHEETRARDIHIIME - EFIINEH
F - ETRRLEEE  HEDWMEREME
REBEREEEEARRRLEIRBEL

RAREMEELZZERE  HRILR
TREERLZE2ZESMRAIZIROAIREE
mUEBMERESR - BE2M T L RH KL A

18RS - REBERHEEREN

el

>

0l

7

2017 &R 15”
I RRREEEEERNERAF]




.

I\/IANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEJI nTuFFH& *ﬁ

Operation results of retail business

An analysis of the retail principal operating income contributed by the
Group’s directly-operated hypermarkets, supermarkets, convenience
stores, department stores and online retail business and the gross

profit margin is set out as follows:

TREINAKHEEZAES K4

Bm - EA
& BERSRBLTENTETERNARER
KD HER -

Increase/
2017 2016 (Decrease)
—E—+F —ZT—RF #i,08d)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT
Retail business BEEK:
Hypermarkets N 1,251,443 1,231,707 1.6%
Supermarkets oy i) 2,826,421 2,819,204 0.3%
Convenience stores EFE 349,287 321,456 8.7%
Department stores BE®S 41,469 41,531 (0.1%)
(including commissions) Hep - falA 35,063 35,381 (0.9%)
Online retail business BmLZTE 44,635 56,377 (20.8%)
Total retail principal operating income BEFEERBASH 4,513,255 4,470,275 1.0%
Gross profit margin of directly-operated HEAES  GABMR
hypermarkets, supermarkets and 158 Il 5 E 2 (%)
convenience stores (%) 16.3% 16.1% 0.2p.p
During the Reporting Period, the retail principal operating income {4 EIAAEETE T L LKA _FFA41.0% -
of the Group increased by approximately 1.0%. This was mainly  FEEER () E L RHBENEE RN EREF
attributable to () the pickup of consumer traffic through sustainable — R (i)3REHIA - BIRAPPISEREIA=FEFEA
improvement of live and fresh produce operation; and (i) the increased — #5KAYHHEFIZ 1 -

sales in online APP sales and the introduction of third party e-commerce

platforms during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the sales growth in the same store was

2.98%, as compared to a decrease in 3.38% the year of 2016.

The gross profit margin generated from the directly-operated retail
business (excluding department stores) increased slightly from
approximately 16.1% in 2016 to approximately 16.3% in the Reporting
Period, this was mainly due to (i) reducing the purchasing cost
constantly by the means of buy-out and custom-made; (i) adjusting
commodity mix according to the change of the consumption; and (iii)
the loss and wastage reduction as a result of improvement of live and
fresh produce operation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

WHOLESALE BUSINESS

Continuing promotion of in-depth cooperation with upstream

and downstream firms and expanding channel resources

Besides maintaining connection and cooperation with traditional
channels such as major supermarkets and hypermarkets during
the Reporting Period, the Group also expanded new e-commerce
channels and new retail business models as well as small channels
such as convenience stores, suburbs and catering under the
influence of the new retail market trend; continued to promote in-
depth cooperation with major e-commerce platforms, and established
separate warehouses in Guangzhou, Shanghai and Chengdu
during the Reporting Period to satisfy logistics needs of nationwide
e-commerce platforms, and expanded its logistics business to other
regions outside Beijing such as Shanghai, Wuhan, Guangzhou and
Chengdu, and promoted online and off-line integrated development;
accelerated nationwide brand operation, especially the imported goods
and self-owned brands, by expanding marketing scale on nationwide
e-commerce platforms while establishing outline sales network
channels in other regions outside Beijing; expending the scale of

marketing sales.

Further strengthening brand development strategy

During the Reporting Period, the Group continuously enriched brand
resources, introduced traditional famous brands, developed self-
owned brands and expanded overseas directly-sourced international
brands. The Group kept enriching the commodity varieties such as
nut series, imported pre-packaged food series, alcohol products
and live and fresh produce series, and improving sales network of
self-owned brands which have covered 12 provinces municipalities
and regions such as North China, Central China, South China and
Northwest China; The Group paid more attention on importing and
introducing more international brands in wine and alcohol, drinks,
healthcare products, daily products cosmetics, pet food, condiments,
pre-packaged food, live and fresh produce and other internationally
renowned brands, and expanded the domestic market through using

both online and off-line channel resources.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

Scoring new development in logistics business

During the Reporting Period, the Group provided new-style chain
convenience stores, on the base of third-party distribution experience,
the logistics services for normal temperature, cold storage and
refrigeration services to mode in chain convenience stores, and
low-temperature logistics operation effectively satisfying the market
demand for cold chain services; expanded new third-party logistics
service customers base by relying on current advantage, which
significantly increased revenue from third-party logistics. The Group
continued to upgrade logistics system, completing multi- and single-
warehouse docking, optimizing supply and distribution systems,
adding new functions such as multi-warehouse management,
transferring order processing flow, and QR code printing, simplified
the logistics, towered manual intervention and improved accuracy of

logistics operation.

Operation results of wholesale business

The wholesale principal operating income and gross profit margin are

analyzed as follows:

20

BHBE

EHR > AEEBEREHENEET
BB - RFELE
B ORE  RREENEL RS
MR T TS E L ERIEFTI
2 BHRMHNE=

YIRS FE

TE=7
EREMNEREALH LT
ERREBHER
KERBENERE
TYORBRBERE - =731
MBAR LB NEE - BEREVRESTRT

B TRERFMEERFMUE T - B(H
B4  EMZe TR  PEATEEREERE - =
HISITENSER AL - BLRIE BEALITE -
BRI -

HBEEXR
AREBRHBE T EEBRARENKNDTNT

Increase/
2017 2016 (Decrease)
—E—+F ZZT—RF EiISCRD)

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETT

Wholesale principal operating income Eﬂﬁt‘il B

recognized by Chaopi Group* %i‘%uﬂz)\ 6,691,314 6,822,481 (1.9%)
Less: Intersegment Sales 5)@% DEPFEH S (467,011) (495,624) (5.8%)
Sales to franchises HETINBEME 2,837 3,815 (25.6%)
Total wholesale principal operating income ~ #t8¢ F &2 EIL A &5 6,227,140 6,330,672 (1.6%)
Gross profit margin **(%) EME(%) 11.4% 8.8% 2.6p.p

*

Chaopi Group represents Beijing Chaopi Trading Company Limited (the
“Chaopi Trading”) and its subsidiaries.
** This represents gross profit margin recognized by Chaopi Group including

intersegment sales.
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During the Reporting Period, the wholesale principal operating income
recognized by Chaopi Group decreased by approximately 1.6% and

was mainly due to (i) adjusting the sales structure; and (i) the sales

-

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

HERA - PUEELETEEBRARL TR
#1.6% @ TEZHN: (\HBBEEER ()15
ERHEREHHEBRRIRE -

from new E-commerce suppliers tend to be stable.

During the Reporting Period, gross profit margin of wholesale business
recognized by Chaopi Group increased by approximately 2.6 percent

mainly due to (i) continuing optimization of the commodity mix;

HEHRE - AREERBRXBOENE L7142.6
BB TERAN  ()HEABEMERE ()
ELWRE - BIEHEIDNANEEN

(i) adjusting the marketing strategies, and paid more attention on the

profitability of marketing campaigns.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Principal operating income

Gross profit

Gross profit margin (%)

Earnings before interest and tax

Net profit

Net profit margin (%)

Net profit attributable to shareholders
of the parent company

Net profit margin attributable to shareholders
of the parent company (%)

PRINCIPAL OPERATING INCOME

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s principal operating income
decreased by approximately 0.6%, of which retail principal operating

income increased by approximately 1.0%, and wholesale principal

B &
Increase/
2017 2016 (Decrease)
—E—+F T RF #BiS0R)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
FEEBRA 10,786,227 10,847,005 (0.6%)
EF 1,534,872 1,353,179 13.4%
EFIZE (%) 14.2 12.5 1.7p.p
BEHRTFE 311,341 283,504 9.8%
HFI 94,842 75,321 25.9%
FFEE(%) 0.9 0.7 0.2p.p
SRENEREFEFE
47,485 26,686 77.9%
BN R ANEFIE R (%)
0.4 0.2 0.2p.p
FEEKWRA

MEHR  AEBMELEBKBRATIEL0.6%
HEhTET SR ALRLN1.0% » #BTLE
TEUWA T FEAI1.6% ©

operating income decreased by approximately 1.6%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit of the Group increased
by approximately 13.4% compared with the last corresponding period.
During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin was 14.2% (2016:
12.5%).

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Other operating income mainly comprises income from promotional
activities, rental income from leasing and sub-leasing of properties and

counters.

The Group’s other operating income increased from RMB1,034,569,272
in 2016 to RMB1,169,510,105 by approximately 13.0% during
the Reporting Period, mainly due to the increase of income from
promotional activities, which were in line with the increase in revenue,
and the increase of rental income and the third-party logistics revenue

from stores.

SELLING EXPENSES

Selling expenses mainly comprise of salary and welfare, depreciation
and amortization, energy fee, rental expenses, repair and maintenance
expenses, transportation expenses, service expenses, packing

expenses, advertising and promotion expenses.

The Group’s selling expenses were RMB2,049,163,192 during the
Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately 14.4%
compared to the corresponding period in 2016. The increase was
primarily due to (i) the increased in advertisement fees and promotional
fees targeted at the customers of the wholesale business in 2017;
(i) the increase in transportation expenses, especially the cost on the
logistics of distribution in the wholesale business; and (iii) an increase
in the spending on leased assets soared accordingly during the

Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses mainly comprise salary and welfare, social
security costs (including retirement benefit contribution), entertainment

expense.

The Group’s administrative expenses were RMB298,938,999 during
the Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately 5.8%
compared to the corresponding period in 2016. The increase was
mainly because of the increased costs involving retirement benefit
contribution, housing reserves and other social insurance relating to

the wages.

FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Financial expenses include interests on bank loans and debentures,

interest income, bank charges and exchange gains or losses.

The Group’s financial expenses increased from RMB146,270,584
in 2016 to RMB163,457,153 during the Reporting Period. The main
reason for the increasement is due to: (i) the storage of capital in
domestic financial market which caused the market interest rate
increased during the reporting period, so the financing cost of the
Group increased accordingly; (i) the increased of fees charged by
bank, Wechat and Alipay according to popularized use of bank cards,

Wechat payment and Alipay.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group’s subsidiary Chaopi Maolisheng (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (the “Maolisheng (Hong Kong)”) and Hong Kong Asia Company
Limited (the “Chaopi Hong Kong”) was registered and established in
Hong Kong. In accordance with Hong Kong taxation law, the relevant

corporate income tax rate was 16.5%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

Except for Maolisheng (Hong Kong) and Chaopi Hong Kong, other
members of the Group were subject to corporate income tax at a rate
of 25% during the Reporting Period on their respective taxable profit

pursuant to the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations.

Income tax expense decreased from RMB59,129,332 in 2016 to
RMB53,346,663 in 2017, primarily due to the decrease in 2017

taxable profits.

NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
OF THE PARENT COMPANY

The net profit attributable to shareholders of the parent company
increased by approximately 77.9% from RMB26,685,806 in 2016 to
RMB47,485,004 in 2017. This was mainly attributable to the increase

of gross profit and other income, which lead to higher operating profit.

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Group recorded basic earnings per share of approximately
RMBO0.12 in 2017, which was calculated on the basis of the number
of 412,220,000 shares. The basic earnings per share in 2016 was
RMBO0.06. The increase in earning per share was main due to the

increase of net profit attributable to shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the Reporting Period, the Group mainly financed its operations
through internally generated cash flows, bank borrowings and

debentures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 31 December 2017, the Group had non-current assets of
RMB2,433,597,208 (comprising of fixed assets, investment properties
and land use rights of RMB1,513,330,633), and non-current liabilities
of RMB62,204,970.

On 31 December 2017, the Group had current assets of
RMB5,266,654,564. Current assets mainly comprised of cash
and cash equivalents of RMB929,508,884, inventories of
RMB1,789,719,995, Accounts receivable of RMB1,359,421,297
and prepayments and other receivables of RMB832,091,344. The
Group had current liabilities of RMB5,486,420,553. Current liabilities
mainly comprised of accounts payable and notes payables of
RMB1,335,455,767, short-term borrowings of RMB2,716,210,442 and
advance from customers and other payables of RMB550,784,776.

INDEBTEDNESS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

On 31 December 2017, the Group had bank loans of RMB2,716,210,442,
which consisted of accounts receivable factored bank loans of
RMB117,179,353, unsecured bank loans of RMB2,599,031,089. All
the Group’s bank loans bear interest rates ranging from 1.15% to

5.39%.

Certain of the Group’s margin deposits of RMB122,714,742 were
pledged for notes payable of RMB264,839,684 on 31 December
2017.

On 31 December 2017, the Group’s gearing ratio* is approximately
72.1%, which is slightly lower than that of 74.7% on 31 December
2016.

* Represented by: Total Debt/Total Asset
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s operating revenues and expenses are principally

denominated in RMB.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not encounter any material
effect on its operation or liquidity as a result of fluctuation in currency

exchange rates.

EMPLOYEES AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed 6,842 employees
in the PRC (2016: 7,608). The total staff costs (including directors’
and supervisors’

Period amounted to approximately RMB730,286,237 (2016:

remunerations) of the Group for the Reporting

RMB719,809,741). The staff emolument (including directors and
supervisors) of the Group are based on position, duty, experience,
performance, and market rates, in order to maintain their

remunerations at a competitive level.

As required by the PRC laws and regulations, the Group participates in
the defined contribution retirement benefits scheme for its employees
operated by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC. The
Group is required to make contributions for those employees who are
registered as permanent residents in the PRC at a rate of 20% (2016:
20%) of the employees’ salaries, bonuses and certain allowances.
The Group has no further obligation associated with the said defined
contribution retirement benefits scheme beyond the above mentioned
annual contributions. The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement benefits schemes amounted to approximately

RMB69,056,508 for the Reporting Period (2016: RMB71,109,628).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Reporting Period, the Group hosted trainings with various
format and topics for its employees to improve their skills and
professional knowledge. The Group held 59 seminars during the year,

and 6,900 employees have benefited from them.

CHANGES OF EQUITY INTEREST IN THE ONE
SUBSIDIARY

On 16 February 2017, pursuant to three agreements entered into
between Chaopi Trading and three independent third parties, the
said three independent third parties in aggregate disposed of 22.25%
of the equity interest in Beijing Chaopi Huilong Trading Company
Limited (the “Chaopi Huilong”) to Chaopi Trading for a consideration
of RMB4,077,636. After the completion of the transfer, the Company
held an indirect interest of approximately 79.85% in Chaopi Huilong.

ESTABLISHMENT OF TWO SUBSIDIARIES

On 14 July 2017, the Group, through its non-wholly owned subsidiary
Chaopi Trading established a subsidiary, Beijing Chaopi Huansheng
International Trading Company Limited (the “Chaopi Huansheng”),
to mainly engage in wholesaling and retailing food and health food;
import and export of goods; import and export agents. The registered
capital of Chaopi Huansheng was RMB15,000,000, which has been
fully paid by Chaopi Trading and the existing investors. The Company
held an indirect equity interest of approximately 40.72% in Chaopi

Huansheng.
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On 27 July 2017, the Group established a subsidiary, Beijing
Jingkelong Fresh Convenience Store Company Limited (the “Jingkelong
Fresh”), to engage in selling food. The registered capital of Jingkelong
Fresh was RMB10,000,000, which, as at date of this announcement,
has not been fully paid by the Company. The Company held an equity
interest of 100% in Jingkelong Fresh.

ACQUISITION OF 85% EQUITY INTEREST IN LIAN
CHAO

On 8 August 2017, the Company entered into the equity transfer
agreement with the Vendor, Beijing Shoulian Company Limited (the
“Shoulian”) for the acquisition of the 85% interest of Beijing Lianchao
Company Limited (the “Lian Chao”) at a total consideration of
RMB244,020,502. Details of this acquisition have been disclosed in
the Company’s announcements and notices dated 8 August 2017 and

the Company’s circulars dated 13 September 2017.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no material contingent

liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2017, the Group had the following

significant event:

On 27 February 2018, Chaopi Trading contributed an additional
capital injection of RMB4,800,000, which has been fully paid up, into
a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Chaopi International
Trading (Shanghai) Company (the “Chaopi International Trading”),
increasing the registered capital of Chaopi International Trading from
RMB5,000,000 to RMB9,800,000. After the increase of registered
capital, the Company will become a holder of an indirect equity

interest of approximately 79.85% in Chaopi International Trading.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

STRATEGIES AND PLANS

In 2018, the Group, in respect of retail and wholesale industry in which
it operates, will upgrade the procurement, marketing and logistics
of products by taking advanced technologies including big data and
artificial intelligence, together with the transformation and upgrading in

the integration of online and offline development:

Speeding up the construction of community live and fresh

produce store

The demand of community residents to purchase fresh, safe and
affordable fresh produce nearby is ever-increasing with the relief
of Beijing’s non-capital functions of Beijing. Firmly upholding this
opportunity, the Group will speed up its pace in operation segment
upgrading and the transformation of the traditional convenience stores,
the proportion of fresh produce will be improved, and the quantitative
packaged products will be also constantly increased to meet the
needs of consumers’ convenience. While strengthening operating
capacity of live and fresh produce, the version “3.0” live and fresh
produce operation will be promoted steadily with implementation of
the version “2.0” to further catering for the consumer demand for
home cooking besides the basic demands for purchasing fresh, safe,

affordable produce.
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Utilizing mobile internet technologies for the integration of

online and offline development

In terms of online, the Group will transform the current operation
mode of “Jingkelong app” by virtue of continuous optimisation and
improvement, in management functions, marketing and promotion
capabilities and user experience, in order to heighten customer
stickiness; constantly provide more social logistics for providing
customers with a faster shopping experience of one-hour delivery
with the third-party e-commerce platform. With the aid of leveraging
the resources in stores, the Group will keep on accelerating the
adjustment of the operation segment and commodity mix and develop
value-added services for the convenience of the citizens, also will
enhance the operations of live and fresh produce to offer various
healthy, green and functional products for customers, so as to
accomplish the integration of online and offline development through

customer flow interaction both online and offline.

Steadily development the sustainable development of

wholesale business

The Group will further strengthen the strategic cooperation with
upstream manufacturers and online & offline distribution channels,
expand the in-depth cooperation with international enterprises,
consolidate its leading position in wholesale business, and enhance
market competitiveness in reliance upon its superior supply chain
resources, modernized logistics support, diversified sales channels,

comprehensive commodities varieties, and brand service capability.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group recognises the importance of a robust governance
framework to drive the strategy for sustainable development of the
Company and long-term sustainable value for the shareholders. The
Group has adopted the principles of the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Corporate Governance Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) with
the objective of enhancing the quality of corporate governance of
the Group and the conduct of its business in a fair, transparent, and
ethical way. This corporate governance report describes the corporate
governance practices of the Group and explains the applications of

the principles of the Corporate Governance Code.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has applied the principles
of and complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”) during the Reporting Period, save for the directors’

retirement by rotation as set out below.

Provision A4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code requires that every
director (including those appointed for a specific term) of a listed issuer
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The Articles of Association of the Company stipulates that each
director shall be elected by the general meeting of the Company for a
term of not more than three years, and be eligible for re-election upon
the expiry of the term. Having taken into account of the continuity
of the Group’s operation and management policies, the Company’s
Articles of Association contains no express provision for the directors’
retirement by rotation and thus deviate from the aforementioned

provision of the Corporate Governance Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiries with all directors, all the directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard of dealings as set out
in the Model Code and code of conduct regarding their securities

transactions throughout the Reporting Period.

THE BOARD

The board of directors (the “Board”) takes the responsibility for
leadership and control of the Group and is collectively responsible
for safeguarding the best interest of the Group and accountable
to the shareholders. Matters that are required to be determined
or considered by the Board include overall group strategies of the
Group, substantial acquisitions and disposals, capital transactions,
annual, interim and quarterly results, distribution of dividends and
other substantial operating and financial matters. Major corporate
matters that are specifically delegated by the Board to the Group’s
management include the preparation of financial accounts for the
Board’s approval, execution of business strategies and initiatives
approved by the Board, implementation of adequate system of internal
controls and risk management procedures, and compliance with the

relevant statutory requirements, rules and regulations.
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Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at the 2015 annual general
meeting (the “2015 Annual General Meeting”) held on 27 May 2016,
each of Mr. Li Jianwen, Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li Chunyan, Mr. Liu
Yuejin, Mr. Wang Weilin, Mr. Li Shunxiang, Mr. Wang Liping, Mr. Chen
Liping and Mr. Choi Onward has been re-elected as a director for a
three-year term, and such term will expire upon the end of the annual
general meeting (the “2018 Annual General Meeting”) for the year
ended 31 December 2018. Accordingly, the Board currently consists
of four executive directors (Mr. Li Jianwen, Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li
Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin), two non-executive directors (Mr. Wang
Weilin and Mr. Li Shunxiang) and three independent non-executive
directors (Mr. Wang Liping, Mr. Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward),
with Mr. Li Jianwen, serving as the chairman of the Board. All of the
directors have fulfilled their responsibilities as directors throughout the

Reporting Period.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationships) among members of the Board.

Each of Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin will
not receive a director’s fee, but is entitled to remuneration based
on his/her executive duties and responsibilities (other than being
a director) in the Company. Each of them is entitled to a fixed
annual basic salary, a performance based bonus (to be determined
by reference to the Company’s annual financial results) and other
allowance and benefits in kind under applicable PRC law and
regulations. Their respective fixed annual basic salary for each of the
forthcoming three-year term shall be reviewed by the remuneration
committee of the Company and subject to the Board’s approval.
The chairman of the Board is entitled to remuneration (including an
annual basic salary and a performance based bonus to be determined
by reference to the Company’s annual financial results) granted and
approved by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the Beijing Chaoyang District Government, and
other allowance and benefits in kind under the applicable PRC laws
and regulations. The non-executive directors will not receive any

remuneration. Mr. Choi Onward, an independent non-executive
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director is entitled to receive a fixed director’s fee of RMB154,758
per annum (tax inclusive). Each of the other two independent non-
executive directors is entitled to receive a fixed director’s fee of
RMB41,850 per annum (tax inclusive). The aforesaid remunerations of
the directors of the Company have been considered and approved by

an ordinary resolution passed at the 2015 Annual General Meeting.

During the Reporting Period, the Board fulfilled the requirement of
having at least three independent non-executive directors (Mr. Wang
Liping, Mr. Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward) and having appointed
independent non-executive directors representing at least one-third
of the Board as required by the Listing Rules. The Company also met
the requirement of having at least one independent non-executive
director (Mr. Choi Onward) who has the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Company has received from each of the three independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation in respect of their
independence. The Company is of the opinion that all the independent
non-executive directors are independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.

Reasonable notice period and sufficient relevant information have
been given to all directors so as to enable them to attend the Board
meetings and make appropriate decision in relation to matters to be
discussed. All directors are entitled to include matters of their concern
in the agenda of all Board meetings. All directors are entitled to

inspect all relevant corporate information.

The biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 73 to 75

of this annual report.

Mr. Li Jianwen, acting as the chairman and executive director of the

Company is responsible for operation of the Board.

Mr. Shang Yongtian acting as the general manager and executive
director of the Company is responsible for daily business development

and management of the Company.
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The other two executive directors, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin
are responsible for the financial affairs and retail operation of the

Group, respectively.

Each executive director has sufficient experience to hold the position

so as to accomplish his/her duties effectively and efficiently.

Pursuant to the code provision A.1.8 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the Company should arrange appropriate insurance to cover
potential legal actions against its directors. To comply with such code
provision, the Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
for the directors to indemnify their liabilities arising from their corporate

activities.

During the Reporting Period, 5 Board meetings (not including written
Board resolutions) were held and the attendance records of the

directors attending such meetings in person are set out below:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman) FRENGE(EEFER)
Mr. Shang Yongtian 35K H 5 A

Ms. Li Chunyan TEHERZT

Mr. Liu Yuejin 2R A
Non-executive Directors FHTES

Mr. Wang Weilin FEMREE

Mr. Li Shunxiang 2 IERE S A
Independent Non-executive Directors BAKHITES
Mr. Choi Onward BRESEE

Mr. Chen Liping PR F A

Mr. Wang Liping FAFEAE
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Attendance of director at the general meeting

During the Reporting Period, two general meetings, which were
an annual general meeting and an extraordinary general meeting,
respectively, were held and the attendance records of the directors

attending such meeting in person are set out below:

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman) TENEE(EER)
Mr. Shang Yongtian oK E A

Ms. Li Chunyan BN

Mr. Liu Yuejin ZIE SR
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Wang Weilin FEMREAE

Mr. Li Shunxiang FER S
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHITES
Mr. Choi Onward BRERA

Mr. Chen Liping R oA

Mr. Wang Liping FAF A

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the directors are
updated with the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time to ensure
compliance of the same by all directors. All directors are encouraged
to attend external forum or training courses on relevant topics which

may count towards continuous professional development training.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code, all directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This
is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. During the Reporting Period, all directors have participated
in in-house training courses and workshops in respect of corporate
governance and regulations organized by the Company or, by perusing
materials relevant to the Company’s business or to their duties and
responsibilities, the relevant directors have participated in appropriate
continuous development activities. All the directors have provided a
record of the training they received to the Company.
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Pursuant to the code provision C.1.2 of Corporate Governance Code,
the management of the Company also provides all members of the
Board with monthly updates which presents information in respect of
the Company’s performance and financial position, and changes and
developments in laws, regulations, business and the market, to assist

each director in the discharge of their duties.

The participation by individual directors in the professional development

program in 2017 is recorded in the table below.

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman) TENEE(EER)
Mr. Shang Yongtian K E S

Ms. Li Chunyan FEHERIT

Mr. Liu Yuejin PR A
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Wang Weilin FEMEE
Mr. Li Shunxiang ZFBrEL A
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHITES
Mr. Choi Onward BEREEE

Mr. Chen Liping PR

Mr. Wang Liping FAFEA

CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. Li Jianwen and Mr. Shang Yongtian are the chairman of the
Board and the general manager of the Company respectively, which
are two clearly defined positions. The chairman is responsible for the
effective operation of the Board while the general manager is in charge
of the Group’s daily business development and management. The
Company’s Articles of Association sets out the respective duties and

power of the chairman and the general manager in detail.

Board committees

There are currently 3 Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, to assist

the Board in carrying out its responsibilities.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board Meeting held on 27
May 2016, the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the fifth
session of the Board was established. The Audit Committee wholly
consists of independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Choi
Onward who was appointed as the chairman, and Mr. Wang Liping

and Mr. Chen Liping who were both appointed as members.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are set in line
with the provisions of the Code. The Audit Committee provides an
important link between the Board and the external auditors in matters
falling within the scope of the audit of the Group, and is responsible
for the review of financial information of the Company, the oversight
of the Company’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures, and exercises the corporate governance functions
delegated by the Board. It reviews the effectiveness of the external
audit, internal controls and risk evaluation and, provides comments

and suggestions to the Board.

Pursuant to the code provision D.3.1 of Corporate Governance Code,
the Audit Committee performed the corporate governance functions
delegated by the Board during the Reporting Period, including, to
develop and review the policies and practices of the Company on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;
to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; to review and
monitor the policies and practices of the Company on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
the directors and employees; and to review the compliance by the
Company with the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the

Corporate Governance Report.
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The Audit Committee held 5 meetings during the Reporting Period
for reviewing the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, discussing internal controls, financial reporting matters and
corporate governance functions including a review of the 2015 annual
report and the 2016 quarterly and interim results, and discussing
relevant matters including matters relating to annual auditing plans
of 2016 and corporate governance. The attendance records of the
members of the Audit Committee attending such meetings in person

are set out below:

Mr. Choi Onward (chairman) BB AE(EE)
Mr. Chen Liping BRIP4
Mr. Wang Liping F A A

As at 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee had performed the

following work:

1. reviewed annual and interim financial statements and the related
results announcements, documents and other matters or issues

raised by external auditors;

2. reviewed the findings of external auditors; Ruihua Certified Public
Accountants LLP has been the auditor of the Company during
the Reporting Period, the Board approved the appointment of

Audit Committee;

3. reviewed the independence of the external auditors and

engagement of external auditors for annual audit;

4.  reviewed and supervised financial report and internal control

system of the Group;

5. reviewed annual audit plan of the Group;

1 . 7
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6. reviewed Corporate Governance Report of the Group;

7. other governance functions granted by the Board of Directors.

Minutes of meetings of Audit Committee shall be kept by Secretary to

the Board of Directors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s 2017 audited annual
results and discussed with the management and the external auditors
on the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,

internal control and financial reporting matters.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on
27 May 2016, the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) of the fourth session of the Board was established, in
which Mr. Wang Liping (an independent non-executive director) was
appointed as the chairman, and Mr. Li Jianwen (an executive director)
and Mr. Chen Liping (an independent non-executive director) were

both appointed as members.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
inline with the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. The main
duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations
to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure for
the Directors’ and senior management of the Company, and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for determining
remuneration policy; to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives. In accordance with the code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of
the Corporate Governance Code, the Remuneration Committee have
been delegated with responsibilities by the Board, and is responsible
for determining the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management and making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of non-executive directors, and to
ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding

his own remuneration.
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During the Reporting Period, one meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held for discussing and considering the performance
based bonus of the Company’s directors and senior management for
2016. The attendance records of the members of the Remuneration

Committee attending such meetings in person are set out below:

Mr. Wang Liping (chairman) TRIFRE(EE)
Mr. Chen Liping PR S AE
Mr. Li Jianwen* RN A

*

Mr. Li Jianwen was not involved in deciding his performance-based bonus

during the meeting.

As at 31 December 2017, the Remuneration Committee had

performed the following work:

1. Reviewed remuneration policy and structures of directors and

senior executives in 2017, and propose suggestions and advice;

2. Reviewed whether remuneration policy and structures are

appropriate.

3. Evaluate the performance of Executive Directors and make sure
that all executive directors perform their duties following the

service contract of Director.

In accordance with code provision B.1.5 of Corporate Governance
Code, by 31 December 2017, the remuneration list of senior

executives classified by remuneration bands is as follows:

Remuneration band FEN A8 B

0 to 1,000,000 0%1,000,000

Minutes of meetings of Remuneration Committee shall be kept by

Secretary to the Board of Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on 27
May 2016, the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
of the fourth session of the Board was established, in which Mr. Chen
Liping (an independent non-executive director) was appointed as the
chairman, and Mr. Li Jianwen (an executive director) and Mr. Wang
Liping (an independent non-executive director) were both appointed as

members.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
in line with the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for nominating potential
candidates for directorships, reviewing the nomination of directors
and making recommendations to the Board on such appointments,
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy, and assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive directors, and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning (in particular the chairman of the
Board and the chief executive) for directors. The Diversity Policy of
the Members of the Board was adopted at the board meeting on 23
August 2013, pursuant to which all the nominations of any member
of the board should be made in accordance with the Diversity Policy
by taking into account certain objective criterion (including without
limitation, the gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) and

having due regards for the benefits of a diversified Board.
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During the Reporting Period, one meetings of the Nomination
Committee were held for reviewing relevant matters including
the structure and composition of the Board of the Company, the
assessment of independence of the independent non-executive
directors and other matters related. The attendance records of the
members of the Nomination Committee attending such meetings in

person are set out below:

Mr. Chen Liping (chairman) PR T (/)
Mr. Wang Liping FAIF A
Mr. Li Jianwen FRNES

As at 31 December 2017, the Nomination Committee had performed

the following work:

1. Reviewed structure, number and composition of the Board of
Directors, and proposed suggestions on changes of the Board
of Directors according to development strategy of the Group;
The Nomination Committee assesses the current structure of the
Board of Directors from diversification policies on the number and
composition, skills, knowledge, experience and other respects of
its members and compare it with listed companies in the same
industry. As for current structure of the board, the composition
conforms to the Company’s business development and each
director has properly required skills and experience, diversified
opinions and perspectives; the executive directors, non-executive
directors, and independent directors are also kept in balance.
Among the three independent non-executive directors, one is a
professional accountant with accounting management experience.
Each director has sufficient experience and ability necessary to
fulfill his duties, regularly checks the Company’s business and
financial position, and participates in the training on directors’

continuing professional development.
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2. Reviewed and audited the independence of independent non-

executive director; Each independent director should sign written
documents and to confirm with the Company that none of the
above condition existed pursuant to paragraph 3.03 of the Listing
Rules. If there are any questions, the independent director should

promptly inform the Company.

3. Diversification policy of the Board of Directors. Nomination
Committee take various factors into consideration, including
educational background, age, knowledge, skills and etc, when

making the nominations.

Minutes of meetings of Nomination Committee shall be kept by

Secretary to the Board of Directors.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

During the Reporting Period, the supervisory committee (the
“Supervisory Committee”) of the Company consists of four
shareholders appointed supervisors (Ms. Liu Wenyu, Mr. Yang
Baoqun, Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Fu Yanjun) and two staff-appointed
supervisors (Ms. Niu Hongyan and Ms. Li Chunyi). Ms. Liu Wenyu

serves as the chairman of the Supervisory Committee.

The supervisors have performed their work in a dedicated and diligent
manner and carried out effectively the functions of supervising the legal
and regulatory compliance relating to financial matters and overseeing

the directors and senior management of the Group during their offices.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and monitoring
the auditor’s independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the
auditing process. It receives letter from the auditor confirming their
independence and objectivity and holds meetings with representatives
of the auditor to consider the scope of its audit, approve its fees, and
the scope and appropriateness of non-audit services, if any, to be
provided by it. The Audit Committee also makes recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and retention of the independent

auditor.
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Ruihua Certified Public Accountants (3t Z & 51 E 45 Fr (5 5k & @
4 %)) has been appointed as the auditor of the Company for the
period from the conclusion of the 2016 Annual General Meeting to
the conclusion of the 2017 Annual General Meeting of the Company.
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company agreed to pay
Ruihua Certified Public Accountants (& 5t B E4 P (R EBERE))
RMB1,100,000 as 2017 auditing fees and RMB200,000 for non-audit
services in respect of reviewing the Group’s 2017 interim financial

statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARATION OF ACCOUNTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements in compliance with the relevant regulations and applicable

accounting standards.

The responsibility of the auditors with respect to the financial reporting

are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 90 to 98.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Owing to clear-cut governance structure, policy and procedure, and
report mechanism, the risk management and internal control system of

the Group is good for risk management of the Group.

Responsibility

Responsible for risk management and internal control system, The
Board of Directors should review the effectiveness of the system.
The management is responsible for designing and executing internal
control system to recognize and management risks to minimize,
relieve, transfer or avoid these risks. The Board of Directors elaborates
the above risk management and internal control system to make clear
that it aims to manage risks rather than eliminate the risks leading to
failure of achieving business objectives. Thus, the system can only
make reasonable, rather than absolute, guarantee for major unrealistic

statement or loss.
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Risk management structure

Risk management structure composed of the Board of Directors, Audit

Committee, and Internal Audit has been set up.

The Board of Directors undertakes the responsibility of continuous
supervision of risk management and internal control system of the
Group. It will annually review the effectiveness of the system through

the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in performing the
supervision of finance, operation, risk management, internal control,

and finance and internal audit of the Group.

The Internal Audit Department, established in 2009, assists the Board
of Directors and the Audit Committee in continuously reviewing the
adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and internal control
of the Group, recognizing shortcomings of the design and operation
of internal control and proposing suitable improvement suggestions.
Maijor risk or serious internal control absence discovered, the Internal
Audit Department should timely report to the Audit Committee and the
Board of Directors, and it should make correction plan and clarify the
persons responsible for the things, and follow the things to ensure the

improvement.

All functional departments take responsibilities for executing risk
management procedure and internal control measures in daily
operation and management, and report the risks within their operation

and functions to the management.

The management assists the Board of Directors in implementing
policies and procedures related to risks and control to determine and
evaluate risks. In addition, it participates in the design, operation and
supervise suitable internal control measures to minimize and control

those risks.
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The Group has formulated and adopted corporate risk management
system, so it can provide the policy procedure of effectively
recognizing, evaluating and managing major risks. Risk Management
Group should at least annually recognize the risks that affecting the
business objectives, and make risk mitigation plan and designate
certain persons to address these risks through standard evaluation

and ranking mechanism.

Risk management procedure

All functional departments should clarify their business process, and
recognize and evaluate the risks within their business. They should
propose and implement risk management solutions and annually report

recognized major risks to the management.

The Audit Committee should annually check and discuss possible
risks that affect future development or major strategies of the Group,
and review the effectiveness of risk management and internal control

system.

All functional departments should recognize and evaluate risks in
finance and other fields from such aspects as investment examination
and approval, financial management, laws and regulations, and form
regular risk evaluation mechanism. They should recognize, evaluate
and analyze all risks in the operation and development, and timely

follow the risk change trend and their control and improvement.

Conduct comprehensive risk evaluation and audit on major events
such as stock acquisition and major asset sales to effectively control

business risks.

Conduct annual risk review to institutionalize and standardize internal

audit.
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Internal control

The Internal Audit Department annually evaluate and review internal
control and risk management system, and evaluate the effectiveness
and adequacy of internal control and risk management system
from control environment, risk assessment, internal control activity,

monitoring measure as well as information and communication.

Control environment

The Group focuses on institution and standardization building, regularly
clarifies, revises and optimizes business procedure and regulations.
In particular, it timely improves relevant systems to address new
problems emerging in risk management, strengthens training and
education of relevant procedures, and achieve management objectives

through implementing all procedures and systems.

Risk assessment

The Internal Audit Department regularly clarifies and recognizes
systematic risks; relevant functional departments should recognize and
evaluate business risks within their responsibilities, and they should
recognize, evaluate and analyze risks in finance and other fields
from such aspects as investment examination and approval, financial
management, laws and regulations, and form regular risk evaluation
mechanism. They should recognize, evaluate and analyze all risks in

the operation and development.
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Internal control

Boasting an organizational structure with clear-cut responsibilities and
specific report procedures, the Group defines clearly the rights and
liabilities of all business and operation departments, and ensures the

effective check and balance through approval and review procedures.

The Company also conducts the internal control through
comprehensive budget management, management of new and
additional budget, financial reporting and analysis, business and
operation analysis meeting. In particular, it can recognize risks, and
monitor implementation of correction measures through data mining,

collection and comparison.

Supervision measure

Conduct regular internal compliance inspection, risk management and

internal control review;

Securities and legal department and Company Secretary ensure
observation of the Listing Rules and supervise compliance of

applicable laws and regulations;

The Internal Audit Department independently reviews risk management

and internal control.

Information and communication

Continuously develop and maintain information management system,
including Store MIS System, Logistics Management System, Human
Resources Management System, Financial Management System, Fixed
Assets Management System, Capital Management System, to support
business, operation, financial reporting and information disclosure of

the Group.
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Timely communicate and exchange with each other through internal

network, OA Office System and Email System.

Ensure shareholders can acquire information of relevant enterprises

through official website and Investor Relations Department.

Internal audit

The Internal Audit Department annually makes internal audit priorities
and internal audit plan according corporate strategy, operation and
management needs and annual work plan of the Group. Matters of

internal audit include as follow:

Audit types audit contents
#itma A&

Audit during corporate operation
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the assessment and improvement of important links in corporate operation

EELIREET HEELLRETHNEZIREHTERNE
economic responsibility audit auditing over the performance of outgoing heads of business units
KOERFET XBEBETATAETREETEASET

post-evaluation audit
completion of projects
e EE

Review effectiveness of risk management and internal control

system

According to above risk management and internal control system,
the Internal Audit Department conducts regular review (one to three
months)and report from three aspects such as risk management,
internal control and internal audit. After discovering shortcomings
of internal control, the Internal Audit Department should timely
communicate with relevant functional departments, and propose
correction measures and improve regulations and procedures after
discussion with the management. The Internal Audit Department
regularly (one to three months) reports the effectiveness of risk

management and internal control system to the Audit Committee.

48 ANNUAL REPORT 2017
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

comprehensive post evaluation on investment and economic benefits after

REBRBTKE  HEREREEYSSETEENRTE

BHYEREERAMEZRAGHBE R

ARARNBBIRE - REARERRAEES - BE
BREE - NEMEE - NBBH =BT EETES
(17318 A )RS ERIER o %530 a0 A 3632 4
BRBE - POTE DR BS 45 R0 R S AR BA ML AL SR P 4T 8
A mEEEENREREEREE 200
MR SRR - NEBTH(1E3EA)RE
BEBERAREIER AL RANERIEE
TR -




i

| & -
L1 _=1

Y e

O R | 1T —— NS “i “i'iﬂ N
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERMSE

In 2017, the Audit Committee and the Internal Audit Department
reviewed risk management and internal control system, including
finance, operation and compliance control, especially upgrading
management, inventory management, cost accounting, fixed assets
management, intangible assets management, taxation management,
budget management, and large-amount capital expenditure of
information management system; all functional departments clarified
and optimized business procedure, discovered and assessed
risks within their business scope, and controlled risks through
standardization building. Annual review included resources of the
Group in accounting internal audit and financial reporting, employees’
qualifications and experience, and budget related to training courses.
The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors discovered no major
shortcoming that could pose serious impact on finance and operation
of the Group. The Board of Directors hold that the risk management
and internal control is adequate and effective by 31 December 2017
and the issuance date of the annual report and financial report of this
year, and it can fully guarantee rights and interests of shareholders

and employees as well as the Group.

Procedure and internal control measure of treatment and

issuance of inside information

The Group complies with requirements of Securities & Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”) and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses inside
information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless the
information falls within any of the Safe Harbours as provided in the

SFO.
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The Board of Directors manages inside information of the Group.
Chairman of the Board is the principal of inside information
management. Chairman of the Board and other directors are
responsible for management and disclosure of inside information.
The Group requires that all departments and individuals should keep
secrete of all inside information, and no one is allowed to disclose and
report any content related to inside information without permission of
the Board of Directors. If the Board of Directors decides to disclose
inside information (if necessary), the information disclosure of inside

information should be undertaken by Securities and legal department.

GOING CONCERN

There were no uncertain events or conditions of material nature that
would affect the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern during

the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.

Liability insurance

The Group has bought liability insurance for directors and senior

executives to ensure they take no any legal liability.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr Li Bo, who was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on 18 March 2011, fulfills the requirement under Rules 3.28
and 3.29 of the Listing Rules. As an employee of the Company, the
company secretary supports the Board, ensures good information
flow within the Board and Board policy and procedures are followed;
advises the Board on corporate governance matters, facilitates
induction of the Directors and, monitors the training and continuous
professional development of Directors. He has attained not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the Reporting Period.
His biography is set out in the “Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and

Senior Management” section of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
where shareholder(s) holding 10% (including 10%) or more of the
Company’s issued and outstanding shares carrying the right to vote
request(s) in writing for the convening of an extraordinary general
meeting, the board of directors shall convene an extraordinary general

meeting within two (2) months.

Pursuant to Article 60 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
whenever the Company convenes a general meeting, shareholder(s)
individually or collectively holding 3% or more of the shares carrying
the right to vote of the Company shall have the right to propose
new motions to the general meeting by submitting the same to the
convener in writing. The Company shall include in the agenda for the
meeting the matters in the motions that fall within the scope of duties

of the shareholders’ general meeting.
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Pursuant to Article 78 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
shareholders shall comply with the following procedures when they
propose to convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class
meeting: (1) shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or more
(including 10%) of the shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting
proposed to be held for 90 consecutive days or more may sign one
or more written request(s), the form and substance of which are the
same, to propose to the Board for holding of an extraordinary general
meeting or a class meeting, and shall list out clearly the agenda of the
meeting in the request. The Board shall, upon receipt of the aforesaid
written request, convene the extraordinary general meeting or the class
general meeting as soon as possible. The shareholdings mentioned
above shall be calculated on the date when the shareholders make
such written request. (2) If the Board does not serve a notice of
such meeting within 30 days upon receipt of the aforesaid written
request, shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or more
(including 10%) of the Company’s shares carrying the right to vote
at the meeting proposed for 90 consecutive days or more may sign
one or more written request(s), the form and substance of which are
the same, to propose to the Supervisory Committee for holding of an
extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting, and shall list out
clearly at the agenda of the meeting in the request. The Supervisory
Committee shall, upon receipt of the aforesaid written request,
convene and preside the extraordinary general meeting or the class
meeting in a timely manner. (3) If the Supervisory Committee does
not serve a notice of such meeting within 30 days upon receipt of the
aforesaid written request, the shareholders making such request may
convene the meeting by themselves within two months upon receipt
of the request by the Supervisory Committee, and the procedures for
convening such meeting shall be as similar to those for convening
a general meeting by the Board as possible. Any reasonable cost
incurred in connection with the convening and holding of the meeting
by the shareholders themselves as result of the failure on the part of
the Board and the Supervisory Committee to hold such meeting as
required above shall be borne by the Company, and shall be deducted
from the amount due to the Directors and supervisors of the Company

who are in default.
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RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS REEBR

The Group is committed to establish a stable and constructive — ZAN&EEU) BARR RI% & & ERFHERE R EZEM
communication with shareholders, adhere to the principles of integrity, ~ B1E® - BREHEE - BHELSFAEORWER
regularity and high transparency, and disclose the required information — #& LR BIE Ek BB E R - AEE BRI
in compliance with the Listing Rules. Information of the Group is N &EAXAEKRRIEHER

disseminated to its shareholders in the following manners:

- delivery of results and reports to shareholders; — [ERERFRZEEERE

- publication of announcements and shareholders’ circulars on the — MWRBELWRAUEREEELIGREEMER
websites of The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and NGIEENEY S N/NS F Nl i /Ny Yy R
the Company in accordance with the Listing Rules; in the Group’s B RAEER  KEEBENERASE
website, investors can query the fundamental information, public EMENFR EAELE - EWAKRTIED
announcements and other the information since the company FW o PHRE  FTEREERE - REG
getting listed, including annual reports, interim reports, quarterly BE K REHFNBUIIREEBER]
results, price-sensitive information, circulars, announcements WA o

and notices, all the information above is available in the “Investor

Relations” section on the company website.

—  arrange general and extraordinary meetings with its shareholders — BHBRRAERBREFIAE  EAEFE
as an effective communication channel between the Board and B R BABUBRAERE -
shareholders.

—  the Department of Investor Relations of the Company is — ZAREEREEHRLEEELEENSITE
responsible for liaison with investors and analysts by answering BE4% - RIEHBHMME  ZHMMELAS
their questions, organizing field trips to the stores and the E R PE RELEPOEITTEMER - I RE
distribution centers of the Group, and gathering, in a timely WEASITEHKEEFUAEELCENER
manner, opinions and comments from analysts and investors on NEZE  UTRASENZLEFBEELMT
the operation of the Group, and selectively adopting them in the LABH - &

Group’s operation; and

- communicating actively with various parties, in particular, — FBEHEFATER @ FHE @ RAMESE
convening briefing sessions, press conferences and one-on-one REAEER  BTHENE - HBEEHER
meeting with institutional investors upon the announcement of BAEREEN —H g% -

results and making decisions on material investments.
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The number of the share-holdings of the senior executives of the

Group as follow:

Y

Total number

Approximate
percentage of

AEBESREBRASHREENT

Approximate
percentage of

of domestic total issued total issued

shares hold domestic shares shares

HERT HERT

ik A& BB FEY N

Name HE Capacity 54 NE R E HEDL HEDL
(%) (%)

Li Shenlin ZEA Personal &A 430,100 0.19 0.10
Zhang Hongbo  SRALK Personal @A 100,000 0.04 0.02
Wang Hong T4r Personal A 186,696 0.08 0.05
Zhang Liwei RIIE Personal BA 150,000 0.07 0.04
Li Bo B Personal BA 0 0 0
Pan Xuemin EEE Personal BA 0 0 0

The details of the classified shareholder and the number of total equity

as follow:

The Group issued a total of 412,220,000 shares, the number of
domestic shares and H shares respectively:

Domestic Shares: 230,060,000
H Shares: 182,160,000

On 26 May 2017, the Company held the 2016 Annual General Meeting
to consider the election of the supervisor, issued shares, repurchase
shares, issue short term debentures, amendment to the articles of
association and other resolutions (details of the contents have been
disclosed in the Company’s annual general circulars dated 11 April

2017), all the resolutions as described above have been adopted.

On 28 September 2017, the Company held an Extraordinary General
Meeting to consider the acquisition of 85% entire interest in Lian
Chao (details of the contents have been disclosed in the Company’s
announcement and notices dated 8 August 2017 and the Company’s
circulars dated 11 April 2017), which has been adopted.

The Board always welcomes shareholders’ view and input sincerely.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Investor Relations Department of
the Company by letter, telephone, fax or email. Details of the contact

information can be found at page 5 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors hereby presents their annual report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the

Reporting Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the retail and wholesale distribution
of daily consumer products in the region covering the Beijing city and
certain parts of its periphery. There were no significant changes in the

nature of the Group’s principal activities during the Reporting Period.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the Reporting Period and the state of affairs of
the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2017 are set out in

the financial statements on pages 99 to 303.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.06
(2016: RMBO0.05) per share (tax inclusive) in respect of the Reporting
Period to shareholders on the register of members on 7 June 2018.
This recommendation has been incorporated in the financial statements
as an allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the
statement of financial position. The arrangement of the closure of the
register of shareholders of H shares of the Company (the “H Shares”)
regarding shareholders’ dividends will be announced in the notice the
2017 Annual General Meeting of the Company to be dispatched to
the shareholders. The above dividend distribution proposal is subject
to the approval by the shareholders at 2017 Annual General Meeting
of the Company. The dividends to be distributed will be denominated
and declared in Renminbi. Distribution of the cash dividends for
domestic shareholders will be paid in Renminbi, while cash dividends
for H shareholders will be declared in Renminbi but paid in Hong Kong
dollars (based on the average of the exchange rates for Renminbi to
Hong Kong dollars as announced by the People’s Bank of China for
the five working days prior to the date of convening the 2017 Annual
General Meeting at which the final dividends is approved by the
Shareholders).
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Pursuant to the “Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC” and the
“Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the Enterprise Income Tax
Law of the PRC”, commencing from 1 January 2008, any Chinese
domestic enterprise which pays dividends to a non-resident enterprise
shareholder (i.e. legal person shareholder) in respect of accounting
periods beginning from 1 January 2008 shall withhold and pay
enterprise income tax for such shareholder. Since the Company is
a H share listed company in Hong Kong, the proposed 2017 final
dividend will be subject to the aforesaid Enterprise Tax Laws. In order
to properly carry out the withholding and payment of income tax
on dividends to non-resident enterprise shareholders, the Company
will strictly abide by the law and identify those shareholders who
are subject to the withholding and payment of income tax based on
the register of its H shareholders as on Thursday, 7 June 2018. In
respect of all shareholders whose names appear in the register of H
shareholders kept at Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, the Company’s H-Shares Registrar and Transfer Office in
Hong Kong as on Thursday, 7 June 2018 who are not individuals
(including HKSCC Nominees Limited, corporate nominees or trustees,
and other entities or organizations that are all considered as non-
resident enterprise shareholders), the Company will distribute the 2017

final dividends after deducting income tax of 10%.

Pursuant to the State Administration of Taxation Notice on Matters
Concerning the Levy and Administration of Individual Income Tax After
the Repeal of Guo Shui Fa [1993] No. 45 (Guo Shui Han [2011] No.
348) (CBIRMLH 48 5 RE 7 BB 3 1993045 5% S % L 18 A BAELA PR
SREE BB @A) (B K[2011]13485%)) (the “SAT Notice”) dated
28 June 2011, and the letter titled “Tax Arrangements on Dividends
Paid to Hong Kong Residents by Mainland companies” issued by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange Letter”)
dated 4 July 2011, the Company is required to withhold and pay the
individual income tax in respect of the 2017 Final Dividends paid to
the individual H shareholders whose names appear in the register
of H-Shares Registrar of the Company (“Individual H Shareholders”)
when distributing the 2017 final dividends in accordance with the

law, as a withholding agent on behalf of the same. However, the
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Individual H Shareholders may be entitled to certain tax preferential
treatments pursuant to the tax treaties between the PRC and the
countries in which the Individual H Shareholders are domiciled and the
tax arrangements between Mainland China and Hong Kong (Macau).
The Company will finally withhold and arrange for the payment of the
withholding tax pursuant to the above the SAT Notice and the Stock
Exchange Letter and other relevant laws and regulation, including
the “Notice of the State Administration of Taxation in relation to
the Administrative Measures on Preferential Treatment Entitled by
Non-residents under Tax Treaties (Tentative)” (Guo Shui Fa [2009]
No.124) ((BEIRMBERBENRHESEERZXIRV R EFBEEIE
(FIT)>R03BA) (B E4[2009]1245%) (the “Tax Treaties Notice”)). The
Company will determine the residency of the Individual H Shareholders
based on the registered addresses as recorded in the register of
members of the Company on Thursday, 7 June 2018 (the “Registered
Address(es)”). The Company assumes no responsibility and disclaims
all liabilities whatsoever in relation to the tax status or tax treatment
of the Individual H Shareholders and for any claims arising from any
delay in or inaccurate determination of the tax status or tax treatment
of the Individual H Shareholders or any disputes over the withholding
mechanism or arrangements. Details of arrangements are as follows: (i)
For Individual H Shareholders who are Hong Kong or Macau residents
and those whose country of domicile is a country which has entered
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of 10%,
the Company will ultimately withhold and pay individual income tax
at the rate of 10% on behalf of the Individual H Shareholder; (i) For
Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend
tax rate of less than 10%, the Company will ultimately withhold and
pay individual income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of the Individual

H Shareholders. If the relevant Individual H Shareholders would like
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to apply for a refund of the additional amount of tax withheld and
paid, the Company can assist the relevant shareholder to handle the
application for the underlying preferential tax benefits pursuant to the
tax treaties, provided that the relevant shareholder shall submit to the
Company the information required under the Tax Treaties Notice on or
before 31 July 2018. Upon examination and approval by competent
tax authorities, the Company will assist in refunding the additional
amount of tax withheld and paid. (i) For Individual H Shareholders
whose country of domicile is a country which has entered into a tax
treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of more than 10%
but less than 20%, the Company will ultimately withhold and pay
individual income tax at the actual tax rate stipulated in the relevant
tax treaty. and (iv) For Individual H Shareholders whose country of
domicile is a country which has entered into a tax treaty with the
PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of 20%, or a country which
has not entered into any tax treaties with the PRC, or under any
other circumstances, the Company will ultimately withhold and pay
individual income tax at the rate of 20% on behalf of the Individual H
Shareholders. If the domicile of an Individual H Shareholder is not the
same as the Registered Address or if the Individual H Shareholder
would like to apply for a refund of the additional amount of tax
ultimately withheld and paid, the Individual H Shareholder shall notify
and provide relevant supporting documents to the Company on or
before 31 July 2018. Upon examination of the supporting documents
by the relevant tax authorities, the Company will follow the guidance
given by the tax authorities to implement relevant tax withholding
provisions and arrangements. Individual H Shareholders may either
personally or appoint a representative to attend to the procedures
in accordance with the requirements under the Tax Treaties Notices
if they do not provide the relevant supporting documents to the

Company within the time period stated above.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their tax advisers regarding
PRC, Hong Kong and other tax implications arising from their holding

and disposal of H Shares of the Company.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and equity
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
Company’s annual reports, is set out on page 304 of this annual

report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the Reporting Period are set

out in note (VI) 9, 10 and 11 to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the

Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the PRC which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing

shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting

Period and up to the date of this report.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves (including surplus reserve and
undistributed profits) of the Group during the Reporting Period are
set out in note (VI) 35, 36 to the financial statements and in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

UNDISTRIBUTED PROFITS

Details of undistributed profits are set out in note (VI) 36 to the

financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS AND BONDS

Details of the Group’s bank borrowings at the reporting date are set

out in note (VI) 18, 26, 27 and 28 to the financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s interest capitalized amounted

to RMBO (2016: RMB22,437).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, operating income to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for approximately 28% (2016: 26%)
of the total operating income for the year and operating income
to the largest customer accounted for approximately 11% (2016:
9%). Purchase from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 19% (2016: 18%) of the total purchases for the year
and purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately 5%

(2016: 5%) during the Reporting Period.

None of the directors or supervisors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the
directors and supervisors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five

largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the Reporting

Period and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman)
Mr. Shang Yongtian

Ms. Li Chunyan

Mr. Liu Yuejin

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Weilin
Mr. Li Shunxiang

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Choi Onward
Mr. Wang Liping
Mr. Chen Liping

Supervisors:

Ms. Liu Wenyu (Chairman)

Ms. Wang Hong (ceased to be a supervisor of the Company since
27 October 2017)

Ms. Yao Jie (ceased to be a supervisor of the Company since
25 August 2017)

Mr. Chen Zhong

Ms. Cheng Xianghong (ceased to be a supervisor of the Company
since 26 May 2017)

Mr. Yang Baoqun

Ms. Fu Yanjun (appointed as a supervisor of the Company since
26 May 2017)

Ms. Niu Hongyan (appointed as a supervisor of the Company since
25 August 2017)

Ms. Li Chunyi (appointed as a supervisor of the Company since
27 October 2017)

The Company has received the annual confirmations of independence
from each of independent non-executive directors and is of the view

that they are independent.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Profile details of the directors, supervisors and senior management of

the Company are set out on pages 73 to 80 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Company has entered into service contracts with the directors,
including Mr. Li Jianwen, Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li Chunyan, Mr. Liu
Yuejin, Mr. Wang Weilin, Mr. Li Shunxiang, Mr. Wang Liping, Mr.Chen
Liping, Mr. Choi Onward, each of the directors pursuant to which
they have agreed to act as directors for a three-year term with effect
from 2015 Annual General Meeting and will expire at the end of 2018
Annual General Meeting. Mr. Li Jianwen, Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li
Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin were appointed as the executive directors
from 27 May 2016 and have entered into service contracts with the
Company. Each of the executive directors, Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms.
Li Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin (other than the chairman of the Board,
Mr. Li Jianwen) will not receive a director’s fee, but is entitled to
remuneration based on his/her executive duties and responsibilities
(other than being a director) in the Company which comprises a
fixed annual basic salary, a performance based bonus which is
determined by reference to the Company’s annual financial results and
other allowance and benefits in kind under applicable PRC law and
regulations. Their respective fixed annual basic salary and performance
based bonus for each of their term shall be approved by the Board
and the remuneration committee of the Company. The Chairman of
the Board is entitled to remuneration (including an annual basic salary
and a performance based bonus to be determined by reference to the
Company’s annual financial results) which granted an approved by the
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of
the Beijing Chaoyang District Government, and other allowance and

benefits in kind under the applicable PRC law and regulations.
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Each of the non-executive directors, Mr. Wang Weilin and Mr. Li
Shunxiang, has entered into service contract with the Company
pursuant to which Mr. Wang Weilin have agreed to act as a non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 2015 Annual
General Meeting, an Mr. Li Shunxiang have agreed to act as a non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 27 May 2016, both
of which will expire at the end of 2018 Annual General Meeting. They

will not receive any remuneration.

Each of the independent non-executive directors, Mr. Choi Onward,
Mr. Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping, has entered into a service
contract with the Company pursuant to which they have agreed to
act as independent non-executive directors for a three-year term with
effect from the 2015 Annual General Meeting, which will expire at
the end of 2018 Annual General Meeting. The terms of their service
contracts are identical in all material respects and they are entitled to
receive fixed directors’ fees. The director’s fee for Mr. Choi Onward is
RMB154,758 per annum (tax inclusive) and is RMB41,850 per annum
(tax inclusive) for each of Mr. Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping.
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Pursuant to the 2015 annual general meeting was held at 27 May
2016, Ms. Liu Wenyu, Mr. Yang Baogun, Mr. Chen Zhong and
Ms. Cheng Xianghong have entered into a service contract or an
appointment letter with the Company, and other staff-appointed
supervisors, including Ms. Wang Hong and Ms. Yao Jie, pursuant
to the meeting of representative of employees held in 2016, have
also entered into service contract or an appointment letter with the
Company, which they all have agreed to act as supervisor for a three-
year term with effect from 2015 Annual General Meeting and will expire
at the end of 2018 Annual General Meeting. Pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed at the 2016 Annual General Meeting held on 26
May 2017, Ms. Cheng Xianghong has ceased to be supervisor of the
Company, whereas Ms. Fu Yanjun has been elected as supervisor with
such term expiring upon the end of the 2018 Annual General Meeting.
Ms. Fu has entered into service contract with the Company. Pursuant
to a resolution passed at the meeting of representative of employees
of the Company held on 25 August 2017, Ms. Yao Jie has ceased to
be supervisor of the Company, whereas MS. Niu Hongyan has been
elected as supervisor with such term expiring upon the end of the
meeting of representatives of employees of 2019. Ms. Niu has entered
into service contract with the Company. Pursuant to a resolution
passed at the meeting of representative of employees of the Company
held on 27 October 2017, Ms. Wang Hong has ceased to be
supervisor of the Company, whereas MS. Li Chunyi has been elected
as supervisor with such term expiring upon the end of the meeting of
representatives of employees of 2019. Ms. Li has entered into service
contract with the Company. The terms of the service contracts or

appointment letter are identical in all material respects save that:

i Mr. Yang Baoqun does not receive any supervisor’s fee;

i. each of Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Cheng Xianghong receives a

fixed supervisor’s fee of RMB35,100 per annum (tax inclusive);

ii. each of Ms. Liu Wenyu, Ms. Wang Hong and Ms. Yao Jie is
entitled to remuneration based on her executive duties and
responsibilities (other than being a supervisor) in the Company
which comprises of a fixed basic salary, a performance based
bonus which is determined by reference to the Company’s annual
financial results and other allowance and benefits in kind under

applicable PRC law and regulations.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

None of the directors or supervisors had entered into or proposed
to enter into, any service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The directors’ and supervisors’ fees are subject to shareholders’
approval at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined
by the Board with reference to directors’ and supervisors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.
The Company has established a remuneration committee to
formulate compensation policies and to determine and manage the
compensation of the Company’s senior management. Details of the
directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration are disclosed in note (X1)3(2)

to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS

None of the directors and supervisors had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company, its controlling shareholder, or any of

their subsidiaries was a party during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS IN
ACQUIRING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or its subsidiaries granted to any directors and supervisors
or their respective associates, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors and supervisors and other body

corporate to acquire such rights.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and positions of the directors,
supervisors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out

in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the domestic shares of the Company

Name Capacity
®E 514
Li Jianwen Personal
FEX fEA
Shang Yongtian Personal
5k A (VN
Li Chunyan Personal
FEK A
Liu Yuejin Personal
Eilliz31:3 fELA
Li Shunxiang Personal
gk & A
Yang Baoqun Personal
HER B A
Liu Wenyu Personal
23 EA
Yao Jie Personal
ki &l A
Wang Hong Personal
FiT 1A
Niu Hongyan Personal
4T 8 EA
Li Chunyi Personal
FER fEA
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Total number percentage of
of domestic total issued
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Approximate
percentage

of total
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(%) (%)

2,022,579 0.88 0.49
989,451 0.43 0.24
505,992 0.22 0.12
375,151 0.16 0.09
5,210,428 2.26 1.26
1,042,086 0.45 0.25
365,151 0.16 0.09
125,051 0.05 0.03
186,696 0.08 0.05
70,000 0.03 0.02
50,000 0.02 0.01
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
directors, supervisors or chief executives of the Company nor any of
their associates and any interest and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within he meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they ere taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2017 so far as is known to the directors,
supervisors or chief executive of the Company, the persons (other than
a director, supervisor or chief executive of the Company) had, or were
deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the domestic shares of the Company

Name Capacity

A &4

Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Beneficial owner

Food Company

RS EIRBART] BmBBAA
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Positions in the H shares of the Company KARHBRZ TR
Approximate Approximate
Total percentage of percentage
number of total issued of total
Name H shares held H shares issued shares
=t B ERT HERTHR HEBTH
HER R & BEH BRAEEN
BHAED BHESE
(%) (%)
China Galaxy International Asset Management (Hong Kong) Co.,
Limited (note 1) (FfizE1) 18,080,000 (L) 9.92 4.39
China Galaxy International SPC (acting for and on behalf of
China Galaxy Value Fund | SP) (note 2) (Kf&2) 16,690,000 (L) 9.16 4.05
Citigroup Inc. (note 3) (Ff{5E3) 16,364,000 (L) 8.98 3.97
ICBC International Asset Management Limited (note 4)(F{3£4) 14,599,000 (L) 8.01 3.54
(L) - Long Position L —5e
Notes: MIaE -

1. These 18,080,000 H shares were held by China Galaxy International Asset 1. 1t1%18,080,000%Hf% Fa China Galaxy International
Management (Hong Kong) Co., Limited in its capacity as an investment Asset Management (Hong Kong) Co., LimitedA#%
manager. BELEBENEHEEER °

2. These 16,690,000 H shares were held by China Galaxy International SPC 2.  1t1%16,690,000%H% F China Galaxy International
(acting for and on behalf of China Galaxy Value Fund | SP) in its capacity SPC (acting for and on behalf of China Galaxy
as an investment manager. Value Fund | SP)LAR B LCIER B O B R ©

3.  These 16,364,000 H shares were held by Citigroup Inc. in its capacity as 3.  11t%16,364,000f&HAZ FJ Citigroup Inc. LATR & £

an investment manager. BRI EDEAREZ -

4.  These 14,599,000 H shares were held by ICBC International Asset 4, 1% 14,599,000/%HA% FICBC International Asset

Management Limited in its capacity as an investment manager. Management Limited A% B4 IZ M) F (D15 B #Ezs o

Save as disclosed above, as far as is known to the directors, BREXFIIEZREN  BARRES - EERETE
supervisors or chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December {THRAERMM R-_Z—+F+_A=+—H "
2017, no other persons (not being a director, supervisor or chief EETMAL(AQARESE  EZREBITHAE
executive of the Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have KRIMNRARARMAG  BEKRMNSESFT - HE
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or iR AHE A RIEGEHFENE S IEH)EXVERE2 K
debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the 37 EFBMEAN A MEZFTAEZR SRR » iR
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions — 1E{FEAHI S 140 )E3361EBC AR A A1 A ER
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register VR AR -

required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on public information and within the knowledge of the directors,
the Company’s public float complied with the applicable requirements
of the Listing Rules from 1 January 2017 and up to the date of this

report.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None of the directors, supervisors, the controlling shareholder or the
substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates had engaged in any business that competed or might
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group,
or had any other conflict of interests with the Group during the

Reporting Period.

AUDITORS

The financial statements in this annual report for the year ended
31 December 2017 have been audited by Ruihua Certified Public
Accountants LLP Um#E& 5T (R EBE %)) (‘Ruihua CPA),
whose term of appointment will expire at the conclusion of the

forthcoming 2017 annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Li Jianwen

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
21 March 2018
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To the shareholders,

Since the incorporation of the Company, the supervisory committee
of the Company (the “Supervisory Committee”) adheres to principles
of honesty and integrity in discharging its supervisory duties and
obligations loyally and diligently in accordance with the Listing Rules
of the Stock Exchange, the requirements under the relevant laws
and regulations of the PRC and Company’s Articles of Association to

safeguard the interests of the shareholders and the Company.

All the supervisors were re- election as supervisors at the 2015 Annual
General Meeting or the worker’s congress (as case may be) for a
three-year term, with effect from 2015 Annual General Meeting or the
worker’s congress and will expire at the end of 2018 Annual General

Meeting or the worker’s congress.

During the Reporting Period, four meeting of the Supervisory Committee
were held for reviewing the 2016 annual report, the report of the
Supervisory Committee for 2016, and the 2017 quarterly and interim

results. The attendance records of the Supervisors are set out below:

Ms. Liu Wenyu (Chairman) ()

Ms. Wang Hong T 22+
Ms. Yao Jie hiEL 4
Mr. Chen Zhong PeR 68 4t £
Ms. Cheng Xianghong Rzt
Mr. Yang Baogun HEETE
Ms. Fu Yanjun NFEIELZT
Ms. Niu Hongyan 44T+
Ms. Li Chunyi TEHERZT
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The major work performed by the Supervisory Committee included the
attendance of Board meetings and general meetings; inspection of
resolutions made by the Board, review of internal control system, strict
and effective monitoring of whether the policies and decisions made
by the management of the Company had confirmed with the relevant
laws and regulations and the Company’s Articles of Association,
safeguarding the interest of the Company and shareholders. The
Supervisory Committee has also reviewed the performance of the
directors and senior management in their daily operation activities
by various means, and examined the Group’s financial affairs and
connected transactions. As a result of our work, the Supervisory

Committee concluded that:

1. The decision-making process of the Company is in compliance
with the Company’s Article of Association. Proper and adequate
internal control system has been established. The directors and
senior management observed their fiduciary duties and worked
diligently, loyally and legally. The Supervisory Committee is not
aware of any breach of the relevant laws and regulations and the
Company’s Articles of Association or actions against the interests
of shareholders by the directors and senior management of the

Company.

2. The Company’s 2017 financial statements reflected a fair view
of the financial position and operating results of the Group in

material aspects.

3. All continuing connected transactions and connected transaction
conducted in the Reporting Period between the Group and its
connected persons were in the ordinary course of business
and carried out pursuant to the terms of the agreement for the
transactions, and no act that prejudiced the interests of the

Company and shareholders has been found.
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4. The Group did not encounter any major litigation during the 4. SREHARNEERETMREKR
Reporting Period.

We would like to express our appreciation to the strenuous supports FFISREFARER - EER T EE T HAES
of the shareholders, directors and all staff to the Supervisory EWANTEHRERHFE -

Committee during the Reporting Period.

BY ORDER OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE EEEEEm

Liu Wenyu 235

Chairman EEeTE

Beijing, PRC FREldE IR

21 March 2018 —E-\F=ZA=+—H
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jianwen, aged 57, is the Chairman of the Board and an
executive director. He worked in Beijing Jingkelong Shang Sha
(“dingkelong Shang Sha”), the predecessor of Beijing Jingkelong
Supermarket Chain Group Company Limited (“Jingkelong
Supermarket”) (the predecessor of the Company) as the deputy
general manager from 1998 to 2002. From 2002 to 2004, he was a
director and the deputy general manager of Jingkelong Supermarket.
From November 2004 to June 2013, he was the managing director
of the Company. He has been the Chairman of the Board of the
Company since June 2013. He is also the Chairman of Beijing Chaopi
Trading Company Limited, an approximately 79.85% directly owned

subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Shang Yongtian, aged 56, is the General Manager of the
Company and an executive director. Mr. Shang acted as the manager
of several retail outlets and the department manager of Chaoyang
Auxiliary from 1991 to 2004. From 2005 to 2009, he was the manager
of Operation Devision of supermarket of the Company and the
manager of Operation Division of hypermarket of the Company. From
January 2010 to April 2013, he was the assistant to the manager of
the Company. From April 2013 to May 2015, he was the assistant
general manager of the Company. He has been appointed as the
general manager of the Company since May 2015. Since November
2015, Mr. Shang has been one of the executive director of the

Company.

Ms. Li Chunyan, aged 45, is an executive director. Ms. Li obtained
a bachelor’s degree in law and subsequently a master’s degree in
private international law from China University of Politics & Law of
China. Ms. Li is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. She was the Officer of the Bureau of Law of Jingkelong
Shang Sha from 2001 to 2002. In addition, she was the Officer of
the Bureau of Law and the Secretary to the board of directors of
Jingkelong Supermarket from 2002 to 2004. Since November 2004,
she has been one of the executive directors of the Company. She has
been appointed as the Company’s Chief Financial Officer and deputy

general manager since December 2008.
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Mr. Liu Yuejin, aged 58, is an executive director. From 2000 to 2004,
he was the general manager of Jingkelong Langfang. Between 2002
and 2004, he was one of the directors of Jingkelong Supermarket.
Since November 2004, he has been an executive director of the
Company. From 2005 to 2009, Mr. Liu had held various positions in
the Company, including the manager of the First Operation Division,
the manager of the Jiuxiangiao Community Shopping Centre and the
manager of the Operation Division of Shopping Centre. From 2009
to 2012, he had been the manager of the First Operation Division of
Supermarkets of the Company. Since March 2012, he has been the

manager of the Operation Division of Hypermarkets of the Company.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Weilin, aged 54, is a non-executive director. From 2006
August to 2009 August, Mr. Wang served as the deputy general
manager of Beijing Hongchao Weiye Company Limited (“Hongchao
Weiye”). From 2009 August to 2012 October, he served as the general
manager of Hongchao Weiye. He has been the general manager of

Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Company Limited since October 2012.

Mr. Li Shunxiang, aged 65, is a non-executive director. From
2000 to 2010, he was the general manager of Beijing Zhonglianjian
Construction Company Limited. From 2002 to 2004, he was a non-
executive director of Jingkelong Supermarket. Since November 2004,

he has been a non-executive director of the Company.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Liping, aged 61, is an independent non-executive director.
Mr. Wang obtained a master’s degree in Economics and a PhD in
Management from Renmin University of China in 1985 and 2004,
respectively. He is currently the professor and doctorial supervisor
at the Institute of Business Organisation and the faculty of Human
Resources Management at Renmin University of China. Since 10 June

2010, he has been an independent non-executive director.
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Mr. Chen Liping, aged 56, is an independent non-executive director.
Mr. Chen obtained a master’s degree in Business Operation from Aichi
University of Japan in 1999 and a PhD in Economics from Circulation
University of Economics of Japan in 2008. He is currently the Head,
associate professor and master supervisor of the faculty of Marketing
in the Institute of Business Management at Capital University of
Economics and Business of China. Since 10 June 2010, he has been
an independent non-executive director. Since September 2014, he has
been an independent non-executive director of Kunming department

store (group) co., LTD.

Mr. Onward Choi, aged 47, is an independent non-executive director
and the chairman of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Choi
was the acting chief financial officer of NetEase, Inc. (a leading internet
and online game service provider in China listed on the Nasdag Global
Select Market) from 2007 to 2017. Mr. Choi currently serves as an
independent non-executive director and the chairman of the audit
committee of Tuniu Corporation (a leading online leisure travel service
provider in China listed on the Nasdaq Global Market) and China ITS
(Holdings) Company Limited (a provider of intelligent transportation
systems and transportation infrastructure technology solutions and
services to railway and civil aviation segments in China listed on the
main board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) Mr. Choi is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, CPA
Australia, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a registered practicing Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. Mr.
Choi holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in accountancy with honors
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Choi has been an

independent non-executive director since June 2010.
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SUPERVISORS

Ms. Liu Wenyu, aged 46, Ms. Liu is a political division and she is
the chairman of the Company’s supervisory committee. During the
period from 1999 to 2008, Ms. Liu has been appointed as the vice-
chairman of the labour union of Chaoyang Auxiliary and the Company,
the deputy manager of the First Operation Division and the officer of
the Office of the Jiuxiangiao Community Shopping Center coordination
team of the Company. Since October 2008, she has been the
chairman of the labour union of the Company. Since June 2010, she

has been the chairman of the Company’s Supervisory Committee.

Mr. Yang Baoqun, aged 65, is a supervisor of the Company. He was
a supervisor of Jingkelong Supermarket from 2002 to 2004. Since

November 2004, he has been a supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Chen Zhong, aged 54, is a supervisor of the Company. Mr.
Chen obtained his doctorate from Peking University in 1989. He is
currently a professor of the School of Electronics Engineering and
Computer Science, the Head of the Advanced Financial Information
Research Centre at Peking University. Since June 2002 to July 2010,
he had been a professor and the Head of the School of Software and
Microelectronics, Peking University. Since January 2005, he has been

a supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Cheng Xianghong, aged 46, is a supervisor of the Company.
Ms. Cheng obtained her bachelor’'s degree and master’'s degree
in management from Renmin University of China. She is a qualified
accountant, certified public valuer and registered tax agent. She had
previously worked in Beijing Ding Xin Li accounting firm. She has
been the deputy general manager and financial controller of Beijing
Zhongguancun City Construction Company since December 2003.
Since January 2005, she has been a supervisor of the Company. Ms.

Cheng ceased to be a supervisor of the Company since 26 May 2017.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Yao Jie, aged 55, is a supervisor of the Company. From 2002 to
2004, she was the deputy officer of the Human Resources Department
of Jingkelong Supermarket. Since November 2004 to July 2009, she
had been the deputy officer of the Human Resources Department
of the Company. From July 2009 to March 2012, she had been the
officer of the Manager Office of the Company. Since April 2012, she
had been the vice-chairman of the labour union of the Company. Since
January 2014, she has been the officer of the Comprehensive Office of
the Company. Since November 2009, she has been a staff- appointed
supervisor of the Company. Ms. Yao ceased to be a supervisor of the

Company since 25 August 2017.

Ms. Fu Yanjun, aged 38, is a supervisor of the Company. Ms. Fu
obtained her bachelor’s degree from Renmin University of China. She
is a Chinese certified public accountant. She had previously worked
in Ernst & Young Hua Ming and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA
Ltd. Since December 2014, Ms. Fu joined China Resources Phoenix
Healthcare Holdings Company Limited (formerly known as “Phoenix
Healthcare Group Co. Ltd”), She is currently an executive director
and an assistant general manager. Since June 2017, she has been a

supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Niu Hongyan, aged 45, is a supervisor of the Company. Ms. Niu
is an intermediate economist. From September 1992 to July 2017,
Ms. Niu has served as the director, deputy manager and manager
of several retail outlets of the Company. Since July 2017, she has
been appointed as the manager of the Party Committee Office of
the Company. Since August 2017, she has been a staff-appointed

supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Li Chunyi, aged 45, is a supervisor of the Company. Ms. Li is
an intermediate economist. Between August 1995 and March 2008,
Ms. Li had worked in Beijing Hardware Machinery Company Limited,
Beijing Jinyu Da Sha and Beijing Shoulian Company Limited. From
April 2008 to June 2009, she had been the deputy manager of the
Labor Ministry. Since July 2009, she has been the deputy manager
of the Human Resources Department of the Company. Since October

2017, she has been a staff-appointed supervisor of the Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Shenlin, aged 54, is an assistant general manager of the
Company. Mr. Li acted as the manager of several retail outlets of
the Company from 1997 to 2007. From 2007 to 2009, he was the
manager of the Operation Division of Hypermarkets and the assistant
to the manager of the Company. Since August 2009, he has been the

assistant general manager of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Hongbo, aged 48, is an assistant general manager of the
Company. From November 1992 to October 1997, Mr. Zhang was the
deputy officer of Executive Office of the Silk Import & Export Group
Company of Hubei. From October 1997 to March 2003, he served
as the general manager of the Information Department of Shenzhen
Huarun Supermarket Company. From March 2003 to March 2006, he
was the Chief Information Officer and the Officer of the Information
Center of the Company. From June 2006 to August 2015, he was the
assistant to the manager of the Company and the Chief Information
Officer. Since August 2015, he has been the assistant general

manager of the Company.

Ms. Wang Hong, aged 47, is an assistant general manager of the
Company. Ms. Wang is a senior economist. She worked in Beijing
Ruida Frozen Foods Company Limited for about nine years and
was appointed as the assistant to general manager before joining
the Company. Since September 2003 to March 2011, she had
been appointed as the deputy officer of the Office of Managers, the
purchase manager of the In-house Brand Division of Purchase Center
and the manager of the Marketing Department of the Company. From
March 2011 to July 2012, she had been appointed as the deputy
manager and the manager of the Human Resources Department.
Since August 2012, she has been the Chief Human Resources Officer
and the manager of the Human Resources Department. From June
2010 to October 2017, she was a staff-appointed supervisor of the
Company. Since August 2017, she has been the assistant general

manager of the Company.
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Mr. Zhang Liwei, aged 40, is an assistant general manager of the
Company. Mr. Zhang is an Intermediate engineer. From August
2000 to December 2013, Mr. Zhang had been appointed as the
office clerk, the assistant to officer, the manager, the Committee
Secretary, the assistant to the manager and the deputy manager of
Beijing Xinyang Tongli Commercial Limited (“Xinyang Tongli”), an non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. From December 2013
to May 2015, he was the manager of the Equipment or Materials
Purchasing Department and the manager of the Equipment Division of
the Company. From June 2015 to March 2017, he was the assistant
to the general manager and the manager of the Operation Division
of supermarket of the Company. Since April 2017, he has been the
assistant to the general manager and the Chief Operating Officer of
the Company. Since August 2017, he has been the assistant general

manager of the Company.

Mr. Li Bo, aged 39, is the Company Secretary of the Company. He
graduated from Capital University of Economics and Business with
a bachelor’'s degree of economics in 2001 and obtained a master
degree of accounting from Macquarie University of Australia in 2004.
Mr. Li is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Certified Practising Accountant of Australia. Mr. Li
worked for Bank of Beijing from July 2001 to June 2002 as Loan
administration officer. He served as an auditor in Deloitte Beijing office
from December 2004 to July 2007. He served as a senior auditor in
the Audit office of New South Wales in Australia from August 2007
to September 2010, then served in Sinolink securities as a project
manager from September 2010 to March 2011. Mr. Li joined the
Company on 18 March 2011. From November 2013 till now, Mr. Li

also served as the Company secretary for Yunnan Water Industry

Investment Company Ltd.
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Ms. Pan Xuemin, aged 30, is the board secretary of the Company.
She graduated from law school of Inner Mongolia University of Finance
and Economics with a bachelor of law degree in 2011 and obtained a
master’s degree in civil and commercial law from Capital University of
Economics and Business in 2014. Since June 2014, Ms. Pan served
as an legal clerk in the Company’s securities and legal department.
Since November 2015, she served as director and deputy manager in
the Company’s securities and legal department. Since August 2016,

she was appointed as board secretary.
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INTRODUCTION

As a player in the retail and wholesale industry of fast-moving
consumer goods, the Group has always valued corporate social
responsibility as one of the core values of its sustainable development,
and has strived to maintain high standard of food safety. The Group
also maintains a constant awareness on the needs of the society and
has proactively participated in community care activities, and has
placed emphasis on environmental protection by implementing low-
carbon operation and cutting energy consumption and emissions, so

as to fulfill corporate social responsibility.

This report is prepared with reference to the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules, summarizing the key areas of operation on environment and
society, and the implemented policies and strategies of the Group’s (i)
operational practices, (i) employment policies; and (i) environmental

protection measures.

OPERATING PRACTICES

Food Safety/Product Responsibility

The Group spares no efforts in promoting the knowledge of food
safety by and hosted trainings for procurement staff, store manager
and relevant positions on the relevant laws and regulations including
the “Food Safety Law of the PRC”. To better enforce the food safety
management work and to eliminate the hidden risks of food safety,
the Group strictly monitors the quality of the products pursuant to
the “Food Safety Law of the PRC”, the “Product Quality Law of the
PRC” and the requirements of other relevant laws and regulations.
New channels and new products are reviewed and approved strictly
according to our quality standards. On-site inspections on newly
introduced channels and high-risk channel are carried out to ensure
that disqualified channels will not be introduced. The distribution
centre implements strengthened measures on the management of
the date of manufacture and shelf life when receiving products and
will refuse to accept any goods which is unable to comply with the

inspection requirements. The Group pays close attention to the shelf
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life of goods keep in the warehouses and will adjust the packaging
and transportation standard of live and fresh merchandise according
to different seasons and requirements of storage and transportation in
order to maintain a standardized operation and management on the

food safety at our stores.

In January 2017, over 300 people, including store managers, persons
in operation departments, supermarket managers, and other operating
personnel, received the training on Food Safety Law, legal liabilities of

edible agricultural product enterprises, and other relevant knowledge.

In February 2017, the food safety training was provided for purchasing
staff, managers in operation departments, food safety managers of
stores, and managers of joint operation manufacturers. The training
focused on operation sites, hygiene, on-site manufacturing, exhibition,

logistics and food safety management system.

In May 2017, the staff in operation departments received the training
on product quality management regulations, legal liabilities of retail

enterprises, and food sales and operation regulations.

In August 2017, the persons of the new store manager assistants
received the training on food safety management regulations and food

safety legal liabilities.

In September 2017, relevant managers of operation departments of
convenience stores, heads of direct-sales and franchised stores, and
live and fresh produce operating personnel received the training on

quality management knowledge of the Group.

The Group had already established a series of management system
including the management instructions for the expiration date of
commodity and quality manual, to guarantee the quality and safety of

the selling commodity.
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Supply Chain Management

In the course of selecting suppliers, the Group would consider a
range of factors including the product quality, the supply capacity,
reasonableness of price, service quality and business reputation
while strictly reviewing information such as operational qualifications,
license and testing reports on product quality in order to ensure that
all products introduced by us are safe and reliable. We have entered
into an agreement for sale and purchase with each supplier that we
introduce, specifying the rights, obligations and related responsibilities
of the supplier explicitly and requesting the supplier to provide regular

testing reports of the products that they offer.

Intellectual Property Protection

The Group has been struggling to actively maintain and protect
the intellectual property, respecting the achievement of intellectual
property. All types of Intellectual property rights have been obtained

legal authorization.

Community Engagement

The Group has constantly paid attention to the needs of society. It
cares for people in the community through setting up convenience
stores in the community and thereby contribute to society. Any
consumer ordering goods using the Jingkelong app can choose to
pick up the goods in a nearby store, or use the service of home
delivery, which is a great convenience to the community. In addition,
the Group distributes the “red heart service card” ([ B LR FR]) to
the needy in the community, providing free services such as home
delivery, blood pressure checks, hairdressing, utility bills payment and
hospital check-in services. Every store offer home delivery to over
200 red heart service customer, services more than 600 times and
cover 96 communities in 2017. Regular community activities are held
by employees of the Group aiming to promote product knowledge
among the community members. The Group encourages employees to
care for people in need in society, promote its corporate culture and

exercise corporate social responsibility.
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Consumer Right and Interest Protection

The Group stick to the requirements of the “the Protection of
the Rights and Interests of Consumers of the PRC” and other
requirements of the relevant laws and regulations, paying attention to
the protection for the consumers privacy and other rights in the daily
business activities. The Group also has set up a special functional

department to handle cases with consumers.

Anti-corruption

The Group requires all employees to be self-disciplined and upright
and corruption and kickback are not tolerated. No one is allowed to
take advantage of their position to misappropriate funds and property

or abuse power for personal gains.

The Group has established the Discipline Inspection and Supervision
Department to accept reports, conduct investigations, and investigate
and handle certain cases, in an attempt to prevent the staff from

corruption.

During the reporting period, the Group and employees are not involved

in any lawsuits involving corruption.

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES

Working Environment

The Group is strictly in compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations including the “Labour Law of the PRC” and the “Labour
Contract Law of the PRC” to create a fair and legitimate working
environment as well as a healthy and safe labour environment.
Reasonable working hours and resting time are arranged for our
employees. The Group has also established a labour union to protect

various rights of all its employees.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group respects and safeguards the rights of female employees.
It arranges positions for female employees rationally according to the
job nature, so that female employees can enjoy equal and competitive
remuneration and benefits as well as equal opportunities to develop
their career. The Group also provides a “Mothers’ Room” especially for
the convenience of female employees who have needs, embodying the
caring corporate culture. The Group also provides “Special Disease
Mutual Security Scheme for Working Female Employees” for female
employees and makes payment of claims to related employees in a
timely manner. Specialized body check plans are also provided to
female employees, along with health seminars focusing on the body

check results to raise the safety awareness.

The Group has built a “reading corner” for the staff to advocate them
to learn culture and knowledge and organized a variety of collective

activities from time to time to enrich their sparetime life.

The Group attaches great importance to the provision of assistance
to employees in need and keeps improving the assistance system.
Emergency assistance is available to employees in need and education
subsidy is provided to employees with great difficulties on their

children’s education.

Employee Structure

The Group is mainly engaged in the wholesale and retail business of
fast-moving consumer goods; therefore, a robust and stable team of
employees is the key to maintain a regular and stable operation. As of

31 December 2017, the Group had 6,842 employees.

The Group upholds the idea of providing an equal working
environment. As at 31 December 2017, the proportion of male to
female employees was 35.74% to 64.26%. The principle of “equal pay

for equal work” has been strictly implemented as well.
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Health and Safety

The Group organizes body checks for all employees regularly.
4 “Physical and Emotional Health Education Session for Employees”
which involved first aid, mental health and other themes were also
held by engaging professional doctors to illustrate precautionary and
healthcare advice related to common diseases in workplace in order
to maintain the health of employees and to promote knowledge on

workplace safety.

Health care seminars on occupational hazard and disease prevention
are regularly held so that employees can maintain an awareness on

health.

The Group adopts “Administrative measures for Distributing Labour
Protection Appliances” for all the employees, builds and keeps
highstandard healthy and safe working environment that do not
jeopardize the health of employees, regularly inspects and maintains
mechanical equipment in use and provides protection appliances and
protective clothing to secure the occupational safety of employees.
The Group has strictly complied with relevant safety regulations.
During the Reporting Period, it was never prosecuted for any violation

of the relevant regulations on occupational safety.

Training and Development of Employees

The Group upholds the corporate spirit of “Connecting Hearts while
Making Profits with Chain Stores” and the corporate value of “integrity
before interest, give before take”. The Group views employees as
family members and focuses on their long term development to help

them realize their individual value.

With continuous innovation on the marketization of recruitment system
and improvement on remuneration and benefits, the Group adapts
to the keen competition of the labour market to achieve the goal of

recruiting and retaining talents.
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The Group provides various specified trainings for frontline staff,
headquarters staff, middle-ranking management and senior
management according to the development plan of the Company,
providing a clear ladder of promotion to employees. Any employees
with ability can realize their value and achieve better development.
The promotion mechanism of the Group is linked with performance
assessment. By enhancing the management system of human
resources and offering room for employees to further develop, the
Group can inspire employees to be enthusiastic at work, maintain

professionalism and thereby enhancing their career development.

During the Reporting Period, 16 employees and 37 employees
respectively obtained Convenience Store Manager Certificate and
Convenience Store Manager Assistant Certificate. The certificate
winners will be cultivated as the reserve talents to improve talent team

building of the Group.

Labour Standards

During the reporting period, there is no child and forced labour in our
Group as it strictly complies with the requirements of the relevant laws
and regulations such as the “Labour Law of the PRC” and “the Labour

Contract Law of the PRC”.

To avoid employing minor laborers and employees, the Human
Resources Department of the Group would strictly examine valid
identity card of job applicants for verification of their actual ages,

resolutely put an end to use of child labor.
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To safeguard the employees’ right, the Group has strictly complied
with relevant labour laws and regulations regarding the working hours
of the employees. The employees’ work hours, duty hours, resting
time and holidays are well respected and are strictly in accordance
with relevant labour law and regulations. Any necessary arrangements
of overtime work must be mutually agreed between the management
and employees on voluntarily basis and any extra workload shall be

fairly rewarded. There is no forced labour in Group.

To ensure the employment conduct in compliance, guarantee the
employee’s full entitlement to the right to be informed, participate,
express and supervise, prevent and eliminate the behavior of violation,
the Group has public the current labour management system and
establish variety channels to gather and integrate the feedback and
complaint of staff, handle and resolve all kinds of employee’s problem

on timely basis.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Emissions

The Group is not a manufacturing enterprise and therefore no
consumption of resources including gases, oil and packaging material
is involved. No hazardous or harmless substances are produced or
emitted to the water or land. The Group will continuously transform
the sewage discharge facilities of all stores and has strictly complied
with relevant environmental regulations. During the Reporting Period,
it was never prosecuted for any violation of the relevant regulations on

environmental.

Use of Resources and Emissions

The Group supports environmental protection and strives to enforce
sustainable development and advocates resources conservation. It
adopts information-based operation to a great extent and promotes
low-carbon office. The Group has also prepared “Energy Management
Handbook” and “Carbon Emission Management Handbook” to
strengthen the management of energy and reduce carbon emission.
As a result, the impact of our operation on the environment can be

minimized.
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Water Usage

Water consumption of the Group in 2017 was approximately 370,454

tons.

Water supply for the Group is sufficient and there is no problem
in obtaining suitable sources. The Group actively carries out water
conservation measures and encourages reutilization of water to reduce
water consumption. Furthermore, it spares no efforts in conserving
water and minimizing water usage to its best, so as to avoid

unnecessary usage of water resources.

Electrical Installations

Total power consumption of the Group was approximately 95.4582

million kWh in 2017.

With an aim to reduce energy consumption, the Group implements
an environment-friendly operation. All lights of the stores have
been changed to LED lighting and adjustment of regional power
consumption has been made according to actual needs. PSG
energysaving freezing system for supermarket is adopted in some
stores to reform the cold chain. Power-consuming devices (such as
refrigerant compressors, anti-condensation heaters, air conditioners
and lighting appliances) are under module management and power
consumption can be reduced automatically to avoid unnecessary loss
and wastage, eliminate outdated equipment and hence achieve a

green operation.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT
EATHRE

To The Shareholders of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited: IRREEEEEERNERAFZEBRE

AUDIT OPINION

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of
Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheets of the Group and the balance sheets
of the Company as at 31 December 2017, the consolidated
income statement of the Group and the income statement
of the Company, the consolidated statement of changes in
shareholders’ equity and the consolidated cash flow statement of
the Group and the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
and the cash flow statement of the Company for the year then

ended, and other certain explanatory notes.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Company and the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of financial performance and cash flows
of the Company and the Group for the 2017 year then ended
in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business

Enterprises.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the China Standards
on Auditing (“CSAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“CICPA Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the CICPA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that we based on the
professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We determine that
the following matters as key audit matters are required to be

communicated in the audit report.

Refer to IV (19) and VI (37) of Notes to the consolidated

financial statements.

3.1.1Description

As stated in Note VI(37) “operating income and
operating cost” in Notes to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company’s operating income
are mainly composed by Wholesale income and
retail income. In the year 2017, the Company’s
wholesale income is RMB6,227,140,323 which is
52.08% of operating income and retail income is
RMB4,513,255,270 which was 37.75% of operating
income (wholesale income was RMB6,330,672,053
which was 53.28% of operating income and retail
income was RMB4,470,274,950 which was 37.62%
of operating income in the year 2016). Wholesale
and retail revenue is a key component of Company’s
operating income. Considering the significant amount,
proper recognizing and measurement directly affect
the accuracy, rationality of annual financial statements,
and subsequent operating policies’ development and

implement of the Company.
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3.1.2How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

When auditing relating wholesale income and retail
income matters, we assessed accounting policies
related to recognizing wholesale income and retail
income of the Company and assessed relevant internal
control design and operation performance. Based
on different operation characteristics of wholesaling
and retailing business we conducted different audit
methods and procedures. Our procedures included,
amongst others: (1) In terms of wholesaling business,
along with analytic review, we also checked signed
sales contracts, delivery records, customer acceptance
records, relevant accounting vouchers and their
supporting documents (including Notice of Delivery,
Invoices, Bank receipts, etc.). We conducted accounts
receivable confirmations based on audit sampling, and
verified accuracy of recognizing sales income based on

reply results and performance of wholesale warehouses

field observation and supervised stocktaking.

In terms of retailing business, subsequent to solid
analytical review, we reconciled retail stores daily sales
lists to accounting vouchers of sales of goods; we
also conducted field observations for their operation
performances and supervised cash reconciliation and
stocktaking. (3) Our internal IT experts conducted
company-level IT control tests, IT general control tests
and application control tests. As information system
played an important part in wholesaling and retailing
business, our internal IT experts performed a detailed

check on the revenue related stock movement data.
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Refer to IV (20) and VI (27, 29, 30, 45 and 46) of Notes to

the consolidated financial statements.

3.2.1Description 3.2.1FH M

As stated on VI (45) “other income” and (46) “non-
operating income” in Notes to the consolidated
financial statements and the consolidated financial
statements of the Company, the company recognized
RMB25,806,245 government grants in the year 2017,
(RMB31,6283,878 in the year 2016). The amount of
government grants of the Company is relative large
and has relative large relate to assets, hence, the
proper recognition and measurement of government
grants have big impact on the accuracy and rationality

of financial statements.

3.2.2How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

In terms of government grants, our procedures
included, amongst others: (1) we assessed accounting
policies of recognizing and measuring government grants
of the Company. (2) We checked all government grants
received in 2016 and related documents, and assess
whether the grant met the recognition requirements
of government grant, if yes, whether the government
grants were long-term assets related or income related.
(8) For income related government grants, we verified
the occurrence and booking of the expenditures,
checked whether related government grants carrying
forward into profit and loss matched corresponding
expenditures. (4) For asset related government grants,
we verified total government grants amount recognized
as deferred revenue matched the corresponding
capitalized expenditures of assets purchasing or
construction, and verified the relationship between

grants and assets items; For these government grants
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related assets was ready to use we checked whether
the recognized deferred revenue was amortized to
the profit or loss for the period over the useful life
of related assets with a reasonable and systematic

approach.

OTHER INFORMATION

Management of the Company is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in 2017 annual report of other than the financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our audit opinion to financial statements does not cover other
information and we do not declare any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements our knowledge obtained in the audit

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we concluded that
there is a material misstatement of this other information we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Management of the Company (“the Management”) is responsible for
the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with the CASs, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing these financial statements, management is
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing

the Company'’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
these financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with CSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company'’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in these financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to

continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Company to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards (If applicable).
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, #ELRIEEEBIBMNEIES - B EHLETE
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit S ANHIMEREBA ST AEE - AMBRERE
of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the  5T=1E - HRFIEZTRE T M ELET - BRIE
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report JAEARZE I ARBEELEE  NEZIHE
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter T @ MR ABBHAESRHREPEBREFHEE
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter KA BAEZRBBEARIEHEELENTE
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse HFfIEETEEZHREDEBZEE -
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication.

Ruihua Certified Public Accountants LESTHMEBM (R EAESE)
Chinese Certified Public Accountants (The Project Partner): Zhou Huiyan — FEE M EE1A1(EH & EA): FZ4%
Chinese Certified Public Accountants: Zhang Youquan FE G EEAD - KBS

Beijing, China FE e db IR

21 March 2018 20183 A21H

(English translation for reference only. Should there be any
inconsistency between the Chinese and English version, the Chinese
version shall prevail.)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
BHEERIE

AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12H31H

REBM  ERREFEHERERNDERAF

Currency: RMB

DEEA c AR

2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—E—+tHF 2T
ltem EAH +=-H=+—H +-A=+—H
Current Assets: REBEE :
Cash and bank balances EE&Ee 1,068,203,328 844,840,438
Notes receivable N EE 1,550,000 -
Accounts receivable JE U AR X 1,359,421,297 1,692,790,112
Prepayments e FOA 662,157,731 1,198,834,416
Other receivables H A R GR 169,933,613 257,294,217
Inventories FE 1,789,719,995 1,724,194,672
Other current assets HittmeEE 215,668,600 293,270,673
Total current assets RBEEAT 5,266,654,564 6,011,224,528
Non-current Assets: ERBEE :
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AJ{EHE S B EE 11,398,000 29,753,200
Investment properties EEFhE 196,314,596 134,563,814
Fixed assets BEBE 1,043,875,757 1,076,062,296
Construction in progress ERIE 108,751,566 108,915,935
Intangible assets mAE 318,169,810 196,656,797
Goodwill EE 86,673,788 86,673,788
Long-term prepaid expenses REGHER 465,880,487 531,022,968
Deferred tax assets BEFTSTREE 22,813,175 22,812,594
Other non-current assets HEMIERBEE 179,720,029 184,762,165
Total non-current assets IRBEES 2,433,597,208 2,371,223,557
TOTAL ASSETS BEA 7,700,251,772 8,382,448,085
Current Liabilities: REEE
Short-term borrowings EHERER 2,716,210,442 2,006,169,441
Notes payable JE =% 264,839,684 598,656,860
Accounts payable FEfTRRER 1,070,616,083 1,224,230,304
Advance from customers TEUE IR 379,071,193 465,966,914
Payroll payable JFEE {<F B8 T 35 M 1,649,123 2,111,358
Taxes payable ERTE 65,970,300 94,974,541
Dividends payable JiE - B 1) 4,380,377 3,796,189
Other payables H MR 171,713,583 202,354,948
Non-current liabilities due within —FREHNIERESERE
one year 749,068,225 -
Other current liabilities HEMRBaE 62,901,543 865,282,645
Total current liabilities RBREEE 5,486,420,553 5,463,543,200
Non-current Liabilities: FREBERE
Bonds payable ERES - 747,573,030
Deferred income EE W = 33,351,013 30,426,639
Deferred tax liabilities BEFSTHARE 3,612,252 2,071,925
Other non-current liabilities HudEmehals 25,241,705 20,555,175
Total non-current liabilities kRBEBEE 62,204,970 800,626,769
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEA 5,548,625,523 6,264,169,969
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
BHEERER

AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12H31H

Currency: RMB

REHBN - R R REEEEEROBRAF SRBEL AR
2017.12.31 2016 12.31
Notes —E—tF ZE—RF
ltem 1HH R +=ZA=+—H +ZHA=+—H
Shareholders’ equity: BRERER
Share capital [EN (V)32 412,220,000 412,220,000
Capital reserves BEARNIE (V)33 605,008,846 609,501,004
Other comprehensive income HAb#rE W (V)34 6,625,801 2,672,758
Surplus reserves Eﬁ% N} (V)35 147,748,597 142,729,211
Undistributed profits KROBFE (V)36 498,085,598 476,230,980
Total equity attributable to BEREATIRREREGH
shareholders of the parent
company 1,669,688,842 1,643,353,953
Minority interests DERRER 481,937,407 474,924,163
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY B EE# &5t 2,151,626,249 2,118,278,116
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND BENMRRERAT
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 7,700,251,772 8,382,448,085
The notes as set out from page 114 to 303 form an integral part of FRFE114EH EE303E KB MK W a2 A
the financial statements WERBHEKE D
The financial statements as set out from pages 99 to 113 have been F99BEF113EMPHIREXAMUTALESE ¢
signed by
TEX =EK FER
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
EERHKA FEBIFIIFAEEA : BEEIEREA -
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BALANCE SHEETS OF THE COMPANY
NEIEERBE

AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12H31H

Currency: RMB

REBM  ERREFEHERERNDERAF DEEA c AR

2017.12.31 2016.12.31
Notes —E—+tF —E—RF
ltem HE Tk +=A=+—H +=-A=+—H
Current Assets: REBEE :
Cash and bank balances EEEe 373,250,486 129,564,870
Accounts receivable FEUBR R (XV)1 91,547,790 264,277,638
Prepayments SELRE /O 288,285 665,188
Other receivables HoAth FEUR (XV)2 559,024,156 716,148,657
Inventories FE 210,161,070 275,637,391
Other current assets HEMREEE 484,272,966 558,522,719
Total current assets REBEES 1,718,544,753 1,944,816,463
Non-current Assets: ERBEE :
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AJ{EHE S & E - 24,935,200
Long-term equity investments REIER & (XV)3 1,246,991,571 978,035,869
Investment properties EEFE 53,805,205 57,075,083
Fixed assets BEEBE 734,939,941 795,592,389
Construction in progress T 103,846,187 100,441,501
Intangible assets mAE 88,093,729 91,718,710
Long-term prepaid expenses REFHER 349,804,988 400,070,917
Deferred tax assets EIEFRS T E E 2,262,265 1,262,893
Other non-current assets HEMIERBEE 4,941,972 7,406,599
Total non-current assets IRBEEST 2,584,685,858 2,456,539,161
TOTAL ASSETS BEMAS 4,303,230,611 4,401,355,624
Current Liabilities: REBEE
Short-term borrowings RHIE K 870,000,000 100,000,000
Accounts payable FEFTBRK 672,628,057 720,745,503
Advance from customers e FRIA 331,750,447 383,449,897
Payroll payable JFE < B T 357 1,328,389 1,279,015
Taxes payable JERX T & 4,794,591 1,258,350
Dividends payable JE 1~ % 937,877 781,564
Other payables E bR 101,680,779 104,045,430
Non-current liabilities due within —FRIHNIERBARE
one year 749,068,225 -~
Other current liabilities EfneaE 49,511,825 852,737,764
Total current liabilities REEEET 2,781,700,190 2,164,297,523
Non-current Liabilities: ERBEE :
Bonds payable FEfHEFH - 747,573,030
Deferred income FEIEW = 21,811,638 23,049,146
Other non-current liabilities HEMIERBEE 4,200,000 5,500,000
Total non-current liabilities kFRBEEST 26,011,638 776,122,176
TOTAL LIABILITIES BESEF 2,807,711,828 2,940,419,699
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BALANCE SHEETS OF THE COMPANY
NRIBEEBRER

AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12H31H

Currency: RMB
BN ARKT

REEM IR RFEREEERNER QA

2017.12.31 2016.12.31
Notes —E—+F —E-RF
ltem HE T +=—A=+—H +=-A=+—H
Shareholders’ equity: BRERER
Share capital f& A 412,220,000 412,220,000
Capital reserves BARRNE 615,293,521 610,293,521
Surplus reserves ey NG 123,971,362 118,951,976
Undistributed profits KoL FE 344,033,900 319,470,428

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY BRE## &5

1,495,518,783

1,460,935,925

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

BEMBRRESATT

4,303,230,611

4,401,355,624

The notes as set out from page 114 to 303 form an integral part of

HNE114 B £ F 303 E MBI 15 3R K M 71 2 A B 75
SRR D

the financial statements

The financial statements as set out from pages 99 to 113 have been $99BF £ 113BMMBREMRUTALTEE

signed by

FEX ZEHHK EER
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
JEEREA FEEITILIFAERA - AR EA
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
EXARAVEES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174

=g

BREMN  ARREEREEERNERAA

Currency: RMB

SEEN  ARET

Notes 2017 2016
ltem i e 0175E 0165
| Total operating income CBERPA 11,955,737,287 11,881,573,977
Including: Operating income LGRE - TON (V)37 11,955,737,287 11,881,573,977
Il. Total operating costs EEENA 11,823,502,835 11,780,020,654
Inclucing: Operating cost E o 2ERA (V)37 9,259,177,609 9,502,184,820
Taxes and surcharges HeRHmM (V)38 50,981,899 52,261,797
Selling expenses HEER (V)39 2,049,163,192 1,791,313,559
Administrative expenses ERER (V)40 298,938,999 282,603,851
Financial expenses HHER (V)41 163,457,153 146,270,584
Impairment losses on assets EERERX (V)42 1,783,983 5,386,043
Add: Investment income n: ZENE (V)43 2,525,469 1,061,767
Gain on disposal of assets EEREYR (V)4 161,944 133,548
Other income e (V)45 25,806,245 -
IIl. Operating profit R 160,728,110 102,748,638
Add: Non-operating income s EFMNIA (V)46 7,813,863 36,787,397
Including: Gains from spoilage and obsolescence B ERBAERBRENG
of non-current assets 12,006 52,622
Less: Non-operating expenses A BRI (V47 20,352,843 5,085,998
Including: Losses from spoilage and obsolescence b R EERREERL
of non-current assets 5,147,245 3,788,604
IV, Total profit HEEE 148,189,130 134,450,037
Less: Income tax expense W AEHER (VI)48 53,346,663 59,129,332
V. Net profit EE (V)49 94,842,467 75,320,705
() Classified by business continity (—)REEHENNE
1. Net profit from continuing operations 1 BEEREAE 94,842,467 75,320,705
2. Net profit from discontinued operations 2 RIHEEEHE - -
(1) Classified by ownership (Z)JEFMERREHE
1. Profit or loss attrioutable to minority interests 1 PERRER 47,357,463 48,634,899
2. Net profit attributable to shareholders of the - BENTRARENIAE
parent company 47,485,004 26,685,806
2017 iae&
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
EXARAVEES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2017 &

BREM : ARREEAFKERNERAA

Currency: RMB
SBEN : \RET

Notes 2017 2016
ltem 4 iR M7EE 20165 %
VI Net value of other comprehensive income after tax N ErEaNENTIEFE 4,958,979 717,190

Net valus of other comprehensive income attributable to FRENARRNE NG NRNRETE
shareholders of the parent company after tax 3,953,043 574,300
Other comprehensive income which can be reclassified into IEREMBEBENE A lE
profit or loss subsequently 3,953,043 574,300
1. Gains or losses from changes in fair value of 1 AENESREELLERE
avalable-for-sale financial assets EEER 3,940,597 577316
2. Balancing arising from the translation of foreign 2 NEHBRENEEE
currency financial statements 12,446 (3,016)
Net value of other comprehensive income attributable to FERNBRENEMGA NGRS
minority interests after tax 1,005,936 142,890
VI. Total comprehensive income t FANREE 99,801,446 76,037,895
Total comprehensive income attributable to shareholders of FENTAARRNGANRES
the parent company 51,438,047 27,260,106
Total comprehensive income attributable to minority interests BN P EREMGA KR 48,363,399 48777789
VIIl. Earnings per share N EBlRlE
() Basic eamings per share (AR ERIE (V)48 0.12 0.06
(1) Diluted earnings per share (Z)REERiE N/A N/A
The notes as set out from page 114 to 303 form an integral part of #HNFE114EH ZE F303E 0 MK 3T 2 A 75

the financial statements SRR BB

The financial statements as set out from page 99 to 113 have been S$99EZF113EMIMBIRETHUNTALTEER

signed by
FEX FHEK
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer
ETREA - FERHTIEEEA -
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Chief Accountant
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INCOME STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY
NSV ES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174

Currency: RMB

BREN I RRREREEERAERAT SEEN: ARET

Notes 2017 2016

ltem i i WITEE 0165 F

I Operating income - BEWA (XV)4 4,448,142,921 4,379,581,466

Less: Operating cost B EERE (XV)4 3,497,342,034 3,466,033,474

Taxes and surcharges HE kKM 26,536,510 22,345,993

Seling expenses HEEHR 699,989,860 704,452,075

Administrative expenses EEER 160,065,359 160,465,453

Financial expenses HBER 40,537,204 30,278,537

Impairment losses on assets BEREEX - 836,331

Add: Investment income e &ENE (XV)5 22,468,751 21,114,062

Gain on disposal of assets EERBNG (229,665) (37,492)

Other income Ethhia 16,748,840 -

Il Operating profi ZEEAE 62,659,880 7,246,373

Add: Non-operating income e EEMNIA 413,196 30,189,070

Including: Gains from spoilage and obsolescence of B ERBAESERENG
non-current assets - 23,812
Less: Non-operating expenses B EEIH 8,501,698 1234935
Including: Losses from spoilage and obsolescence of o ERDEESAREER

non-current assets 656,349 1,070,816

Il Total profit = fESE 54,481,378 36,200,508

Less: Income tax expenses W FEHER 4,287,520 1,507,735

V. Net profit m - ERE 50,193,858 34,692,773

1. Net profit from continuing operations 50,193,858 34,692,773

2. Net profit from discontinued operations | 1 - -

V. Net value of other comprehensive income after tax i ‘ﬁﬁw A Uﬁlﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁ}i é E - -

VI, Total comprehensive income N ERlneE 50,193,858 34,692,773
The notes as set out from page 114 to 303 form an integral part of N FE114B E E303E W B 15 Rk M 52 A 715

the financial statements

The financial statements as set out from page 99 to 113 have been

signed by

FEX

Legal Representative

JEEREKA -

FHMK

Ch/'ef Financial Officer

TEGHIIEAEAN :

HEAAERE D

FOEEFBENMBIHRRANTALEE

EER
Chief Accountant

B HBREA -

2017 &4
I RRBREFEEERNERA A

1054



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

&

&

__._3

aftRTRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2017 &

RREW

[tem

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from selling goods and rendering

Services

ERREEEEEERNERAT

EH
- gg%ﬁ]ﬁiﬂ@ﬁﬁmu;

HEER  RESHUENRS

Taxes and surcharges refunds received KANHERE
Other cash received relating to operating activities BEEhELE R EENES
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities EEEBRETANG

Cash paid for purchasing goods and receiving

Services

Cash payments to and on behalf of employees

Taxes and surcharges paid

Other cash paid related to operating activities

XANBERE

Subtotal of cash outflows from operating activities BEEHRETL /it

Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash received from short-term investment income/

interest income

Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, and

other long-term assets

Cash received from disposal of financial products
Cash received from withdrawal of margin deposits
Cash received from government grants related to

assets

Cash received from temporary borrowings from

other companies

Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,
construction in progress, intangible assets and

other long-term assets

Cash paid for increase of margin deposits

Cash paid for financial products

Net cash paid for investment in other business units

Temporary loans to other companies
Cash paid for investment margin

Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities

Net cash flow from investing activities

RETHECNRSRETE

ZREFDELNRERE
iopiTa

W5
WEEHERLENES

WEIE MR R E R
RERGRERA G

BRETAE  ERIE BVEEA
ERFEESANRE

ENRESEFAXANRS

REARNERLNAS

HEMRRHERER
IRRERES
RERGRERL/ Gt

REZDELNHALREIR

WRERE e FERMRENRE
YRR EERRMBA R

STREXANREFE

BEAR  ERSBXM0NRE
XNEBTIRARI NN
XNEMESEEHAENRE

DEEHRE RS/ FIBRAMKE
REEFAERAMRAEEMLD

Notes
HE

(V)51

V)51
V)52

2017
0175E

13,527,432,533
2,482,897
256,357,572
13,786,273,002

11,013,908,631
730,748,471
326,620,972
1,076,042,683
13,147,320,757
638,952,245

7,545,929

2,034,343
1,887,450,000
273,694,427

19,799,100

66,952,316
2,257,476,115

124,469,357
180,679,706
1,877,697,636
62,293,886
8,500,000

2,253,640,585
3,835,530

Currency: RMB
BB ARET
2016

2016%

13,716,251,435
2,993,288
263,429,153
13,982,673,876

11,274,719,483
717,696,066
327,568,473
1,073,684,883
13,393,568,905
589,104,971

12,089,967

1,650,160
1,761,950,000
476,458,239

3,000,000
2,255,048,366

147,269,945
564,012,137
1,743,250,000

64,100,000
50,000,000
2,568,632,082
(313,583,716)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

RHEEM  HRREEEXKERDARLA)

= %Eﬁfiﬁlb

=

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174

Currency: RMB
SBEBA : ARET

Notes 2017 2016
ltem BE iR 2017EE 20165
lll. Cash flows from financing activities = BETHELNBRERE
Cash received from investments bliev etk 7,350,000 6,859,037
Including: Cash received from capital contribution Ed o FRARNDBRERENE
from minority shareholders of b
subsidiaries 7,350,000 6,859,037
Cash received from borrowings EFABEINRE 5,424,898,356 5,624,023,872
Cash received from bond financing EREEFPEINRE - 800,000,000
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities ELEHROMANT 5,432,248,356 6,430,882,909
Cash paid for repayments of | borrowings ERERZANRE 4,714,857,356 6,458,961,469
Cash paid for repayments of bond financing BEEFIANES 800,000,000 -
Cash paid for distribution of dividends or repayments ~ PERFIRERFEZFHES
of interests. 243,950,106 204,462,424
Including: Dividends and profits paid by subsidiaries ~ E# : FARIZ T HRRERF
to minority shareholders 53,686,350 51,771,527
Cash paid for bonds underwriting fee XFEFREE - 4,230,000
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing activities EXTHREAM NG 5,758,807,462 6,667,653,893
Net cash flow from financing activities EATHELNREAREFE (326,559,106) (236,770,984)
IV. Effect on cash and cash equivalents due to ERSHURLRRSSENNTE
change in foreign currency exchange rate 148,942 212,563
V. Net increase(decrease) in cash and cash I RERASSENFEME/ (HD)
equivalents (V)52 316,377,611 38,962,834
Add: Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the m: ETReRALEENLEE
beginning of the year (V)52 613,131,273 574,168,439
VI. Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the ~ < \EREERBEEENHE
end of the year (V)52 929,508,884 613,131,273
The notes as set out from page 114 to 303 form an integral part of R FE114E EFE303E M FRK W 51 2 A 75
the financial statements IR E D
The financial statements as set out from page 99 to 113 have been HF99BEF113HEMPHRERHBUATALTERE ¢

signed by

FEX

Legal Representative

SEKERZEA

THERK FER
Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
FEESIHIIEBERA - EiTHBEERA ¢

ERRE

2017 i%& 4
EEEBRAARAR O
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY

NARRETRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2017 &

BHEMN  LRRREARXEERNERAF

Currency: RMB
SWEN : ARETL

Notes 2017 2016
Item L B 0175 2016%
. Cash flows from operating activities - REIHELNRERE
Cash received from seling goods and rendering HERR  RESKWINRS
Services 5,079,880,970 5,031,715,495
Taxes and surcharges refunds received KEMRERE 2,158,191 2912114
Other cash received relating to operating activiies ~ WEIEEGLTHEBNES 141,066,031 147,598,737
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities BREIERRA G 5,223,105,192 5,182,026,346
Cash paid for purchasing goods and receiving BERR  AXSEIANBRE
Services 4,046,914,074 4,096,780,040
Cash payments to and on behalf of employees IREBINRARIZHRS 363,177,530 376,819,250
Taxes and surcharges paid IRMEEHE 115,131,057 127,355,659
Other cash paid related to operating activities X EREREEHERNRE 364,267,162 365,645,932
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating activities BEEHRETL /it 4,889,489,823 4,966,600,881
Net cash flow from operating activities MEEHELNRLNEE 333,615,369 215,625,465
I Cash flows from investing activities ZRETHELNBETE
Cash received from short-term investment income/  EUSEEIR AU /FI S AT
interest income i 53,434,914 50,758,294
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, and ~ BEEFEER At REEERRELH
other long-term assets #e 265,712 392,863
Cash received from disposal of financial products WEBEENEIn RS 1,765,000,000 1,273,900,000
Cash received from recovering entrusted loans b EES e 180,000,000 350,000,000
Cash received from government grants related to ealliok -Vl faofovingal
assets 7,151,200 3,000,000
Cash received from dividend paid ARBFREINRS 20,241,239 20,241,239
Cash received from recovering temporary loans from  WEIE (A A EHE
other companies 345,000,000 775,000,000
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities REZHRSRA NG 2,371,093,065 2,473,292,396
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, BRETEE  TRIE  BVEEN
construction in progress, intangible assets and EtRHEEZANRE
other log-term assets 66,306,633 82,286,176
Cash paid for entrusted loans ZRER RS 175,000,000 370,000,000
Cash paid for financial products REBMERTNNES 1,715,000,000 1,253,900,000
Other cash paid relating to investment activities BEFRRRARES 64,020,502 -
Temporary loans to other companies HEMARNEER 300,150,000 555,000,000
Cash paid for investment margin T RNEERES - 50,000,000
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities REEHBE AL NG 2,320,477,135 2,311,186,176
Net cash flow from investing activities REZHELNRLNESE 50,615,930 162,106,220
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY

NAIRERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174

Currency: RMB

REEN : AR EEREEERAERAR SREN: ARET
Notes 2017 2016
ltem EH B 0175 20165
lll. Cash flows from financing activities = BETHELNBRERE
Cash received from borrowings ERALENES 1,100,000,000 950,000,000
Cash received from bond financing EFEEMKEINRE - 800,000,000
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities EREHRMANG 1,100,000,000 1,750,000,000
Cash paid for repayments of liabilities BEERINERS 330,000,000 2,154,947,704
Cash paid for repayments of bond financing BRERIANRE 800,000,000 -
Cash paid for distribution of dividends or repayments 2 EBFIRERF S HHEE
of interests 110,499,551 87,961,100
Cash paid for bonds underwriting fee XFEFREE - 4,230,000
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing activities EXTHREAM NG 1,240,499,551 2,247,138,804
Net cash flow from financing activities ERTHEENRENETH (140,499,551) (497,138,804)
IV. Effect on cash or cash equivalents due to ERFBHBSRASESENNTE
change in foreign currency exchange rate (46,132) (60,812)
V. Net increase(decrease) in cash and cash I RERASSENFEME/ (HD)
equivalents 243,685,616 (119,467,931)
Add: Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the m: ETReRALEENLEE
beginning of the year 129,564,870 249,032,801
VI. Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the end X *EREE KB & EENHE
of the year 373,250,486 129,564,870
The notes as set out from page 114 to 303 form an integral part of FHNRFE114B EE3038 B HE W 12 A
the financial statements HE BB EE D
The financial statements as set out from page 99 to 113 have been H QOB EFE113BEHIMBERERIUTATEE -

signed by

FEX

Legal Representative

SEKERZEA

THEK
Chief Financial Officer

TEEFTTIFREEA -

*ER

Chief Accountant

BIEERAA

ERRE

2017 i%& 4
EEEEBRAARAR 00
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
BB ER R DX

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2017 &

Currency: RMB

REEf - L RRREAFEARNERAR SHEN : AR¥T
For the year ended at 31 December 2017
WITEE
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent company
GERELRRRESR
Other Total
Share Capital  comprehensive Surplus  Undistributed Minority  shareholders’
capital reserves income reserves profits interests equity
Item 13H s BRLE  HftfRoka BAOME  APERE  JEBRER  RREERGH
| Balance at the end of last year - EEREBE 412,220,000 609,501,004 2,672,758 142729211 476,230,980 474,924,163  2,118,278,116
Add: Changes in accounting policies i einREs - - - - - - -
Correction of prior errors AIEEEET - - - - - - -
Business combination under (RN =
common control - - - - - - -
Others 0] - - - - - - -
Il Balance at the beginning of the year = ~ Y% 412,220,000 609,501,004 2,672,758 142729211 476,230,980 474,924,163  2,118,278,116
Il Increase or decrease amount in the year = - AEIEREEEE - (4,492,158) 3,953,043 5,019,386 21,854,618 7,013,244 33,348,133
() Total comprehensive income (-) Gahngs - - 3,953,043 - 47485004 48,363,399 99,801,446
(I Contribution and reduction of (2) REBRATEDER
Shareholders” capital - (4,492,158) - - - 12,764,522 8,272,364
1. Ordinary shares contribution 1 REREAN
from shareholders LBk - - - - - 7,350,000 7,350,000
2. Capital contribution from holders 2 EfERTER
f other equity instruments BERNER - - - - - - -
3. Dividends payments recognized 3 BhfiE AR
in shareholders’ equity REGNLE - - - - - - -
4, Others 4-Ef (4,492,158) - - - 5,414,522 922,364
(1) Profit contribution (2) FEAE - - - 5019386  (25630,386)  (54,114,677)  (74,725,677)
1, Appropriation to surplus reserves 1 REEHLE - - - 501938 (5,019,386) - -
2. Appropriation to general 2 RE-RER
risk reserve i - - - - - - -
3. Distrbuton to shareholders 3 HRENAE - - - - (011,000 (54114677 (74725677)
4, Others 4 Eff - - - - _ _ _
(V) Internal transfer within (m) RrERNPES
Shareholders” equity - - - - - - -
1, Capital reserves transferred 1 BRDREL
to capital (or shares) ER(EARE) - - - - - - -
2. Surplus reserves transferred 2 BRLEES
to capital (or shares) ER(GRE) - - - - - - -
3. Surplus reserves made up 3 BRNERE
for losses BB - - - - - - -
4. Others 4 Eft - - - - - - -
IV Balance at the end of the year L Mﬁiﬁ%éﬁ 412,220,000 605,008,846 6,625,801 147,748,597 498,085,508 481937407  2,151,626,249
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
AHRE AR DR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174

Currency: RMB
REEN W RREEEREERNERLA SEEN  ARET

For the year ended at 31 December 2016
165F
Equty attributable to shereholders of»th/e parent company
SENSLTRRER

Other Total

Share Capital  comprehensive Surplus Undistributed Minority - shareholders'

capital reserves income reserves profits interests equity

ttem 13H e BRRE EbEadE BRAE  APRNE  JERRER  REERAH

I Balance at the end of last year - LEEREBE 412220000 609,308,148 2098458 139,250,934 473625451 473001721 2,100513712

Add: Changes in accounting policies n: eHBRES - - - - - - -

Correction of prior errors AHZEEF - - - _ _ _ _
Busingss combination under FA-25T0EAH

common control - - - - - - -

Others Eft - - - - - - -

I Balance at the beginning of the year = » REFH5E 412,220,000 609,308,148 2098458 139,259,934 473,625,451 473,001,721  2,109,518,712

IIl. Increase or decrease amount in the year = Mﬁﬁﬁi?if]ﬁ%ﬁ 192,856 574,300 3,469,217 2,606,529 1,922,442 8,764,404

() Total comprehensive income (—) GRkEEE - - 574,300 26,685,306 48,777,789 76,087,895
(I Contrioution and reduction of (Z) BREARROER
shareholders” capital - 192,856 - - - 4,916,180 5,109,036
1. Ordinary shares contribution 1 RREAR
from shareholders LRk - - - - - 4,867,513 4,867,513
2. Capital contrioution from holders 2 HHERTAH
of other equity instruments EERNER - - - - - - -
3. Dividends payments recognized 3 Bl AR
in shareholders" equity BRENLE - - - - _ _ _
4, Others 4-Eff - 192,856 - - - 48,667 241,528
(1) Profit contribution (z) HMESR - - - 3460277 (24,080277)  (1771527)  (72,382,527)
1. Appropriation to surplus reserves 1 ROABLE - - - 3469277 (3,469,277) - -
2. Appropriation to general 2 R RER
risk reserve i - - - - - - -
3. Distribution to shareholders 3 HRRASE - - - - 0611000 (31,771,527)  (72,382,527)
4. Others 4 Eff - - - - - - -
(V) Internal transfer within (m) RREENFEE
shareholders” equity - - - - - - -
1. Capital reserves transferred 1 BRpiEEs
to capital (or shares) ER(FHEA) - - - - - - -
2. Surplus reserves transferred 2 BiiEEs
to capital (or shares) ER(FHRA) - - - - - - -
3. Surplus reserves made up 3 BHLERE
for losses 74 - - - - - - -
4. Others 4 Ef - - - - - - -
IV. Balance at the end of the year REFRRE 412220000 609501004 2672758 142729211 476230080 474924163 2,118,278,116
The notes as set out from page 114 to 303 form an integral part of HRE114E EFHI03B MBI IERER M 2R
the financial statements B IR R A AE R ED D
The financial statements as set out from page 99 to 113 have been FOOBEFIIEMTBHRERAUNTALE
signed by :
FTEX THEK FEIR
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
EEREA - FEEGIHIIFERA : SEBEERA ¢

2017 & 1114
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY OF THE COMPANY
ARRRESEDE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2017 &

REEN KRREEBZEARNARAA

[tem

|, Balance at the end of last year
Add: Changes in accounting policies
Gorrection of prior errors
Others
Il Balance at the beginning of the year
Ill. Increase or decrease amount in the year
() Total comprehensive income
(I Contribution and reduction of
shareholders’ capital
1. Ordinary shares contribution
from shareholders
2. Capital contribution from holders
f other equity instruments
3. Dividends payments recognized
in shareholders” equity
4. Others
() Profit contribution
1. Appropriation to surplus reserves
2. Appropriation to general
risk reserve
3. Distribution to shareholders
4. Others
(V) Internal transfer within
shareholders” equity
1. Capital reserves transferred to
capital (or shares)
2. Surplus reserves transferred to
capital (or shares)
3. Surplus reserves made up
for losses
4. Others
(V) Special reserves
1. Appropriation in the year
2. Usage in the year
(VI) Others
IV. Balance at the end of the year

Currency: RMB

SHBE(: ARET
For the year at 31 December 2017
WITEE
Other Total
Capital Capital  comprehensive Surplus Undistributed shareholders’
share reserves income reserves profits equity
B e ERDE  Hfb&euE BHOR AOBAE  RRERAR
- LEERBE 412,220,000 610,203,521 - 118,951,976 319470428 1,460,935,025
n: eHHKER - - - - - -
HMEEEE - - - - - -
it - - - - - -
O REETRE 412,220,000 610,293,521 - 118,051,976 319470428 1,460,935,025
= FEERESLE - 5,000,000 - 5,019,386 24,563,472 34,582,858
(-) GAlhaAE - - - - 50,193,858 50,193,858
(2) RREARRSER
- 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
1 RERRAMSER
2 EfERIE
REERAER - - - - - -
3 BfEAEA
RRERNSE - - - - - -
4 Ef - 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
(2) #ESE - - - 5,019,386 (25,630,386) (20,611,000)
1 ROEHLE - - - 5,019,386 (5,019,386) -
2 RN RERER
3 HRRMARE - - - - (20,611,000) (20,611,000)
4 Efh - - - - - -
(m) meﬁﬁﬁw iE
1 BRDEEEET
(k) - - - - - -
2 BRLREEER
(k) - - - - - -
R INELT
4 Efh - - - - - -
(h) E5RE - - - - - -
1 AHRER - - - - - -
2 FEER - - - - - -
(77) Efp - - - - - -
M- AEERHE 412,220,000 615,293,521 - 123,971,362 344,033,900 1,495,518,783

4 112 ANNUAL REPORT 2017

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED



¢ 4 da
my (¢ ab Vol

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY OF THE COMPANY
ATBREREHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 E

Currency: RMB

BREM : I RREEAEEERABRAT SBEN  A\RET
For the year ended at December 31, 2016
165 %
Other Total
Share Capital  comprehensive Surplus Undistributed shareholders’
capital resenves income resenves profits equity
ltem ER e EUYN Eliiralia BHLE AORAE RRERRE
|, Balance at the end of last year - LEERHE 412,220,000 610,293,521 - 115,482,699 308,857,932 1,446,854,152
Add: Changes in accounting policies m: ex ke - - - - - -
Correction of prior errors FE - - _ _ _ _
Others i - - - - - -
Il Balance at the beginning of the year = ~ AEE{IRE 412200000 610,208,521 - 115482699 308857932 1446854152
Il Increase or decrease amount in the year = + AEEHEEHLH - - - 3,469,277 10,612,496 14,081,778
() Total comprehensive income (-) Falsas - - - - 34,692,773 34,692,773
(I} Contribution and reduction of (2) REBRATRSER
shareholders” capital - - - - - -
1. Ordinary shares contrioution 1 BEEAGEBR
from shareholders - - - - - -
2. Capital contribution from holders 2 EfBEETA
of other equity instruments BEERAER - - - - - -
3. Dividends payments recognized 3 ROZMA
in shareholders” equity REBEENLE - - - _ _ _
4. Others 4 Efy - - - - _ _
(1) Proftt contribution (2) HEsE - - - 3,469,277 (24,080,277) (20,611,000
1. Appropriation to surplus reserves 1 ROEBLE - - - 3,469,217 (3,469,277) -
2. Appropriation to general 2 RR-RERER
risk reserve - - - - - -
3. Distribution to shareholders 3 HRENAR - - - - (20,611,000) (20,611,000)
4. Others 4 Hff - - - - - -
(V) Internal transfer within (m) BEEGNHEE
shareholders” equity - - - - - -
1. Capital reserves transferred 1 ERREELET
to capital (or shares) ety - - - - - -
2. Surplus reserves transferred 2 BHLEELEAR
to capital (or shares) (REE) - - - - - -
3. Surplus reserves made up 3 BHLEEREE
for losses - - - - - -
4. Others 4 Eft - - - - - -
(V) Special reserves () EBRE - - - - - -
1. Appropriation in the year 1 AHER - - - - - -
2. Usage in the year 2 TR - - - - - -
V) Others (~) Ef - - - - - -
IV, Balance at the end of the year REERBE 412,220,000 610,293,521 - 118,951,976 319470428 1460935925
The notes as set out from page 114 to 303 form an integral part of HNE14BEEFEI03BE M B HREM TR A
the financial statements 7% = B A B ER
The financial statements as set out from page 99 to 113 have been FOOEEFISEMPBEREAMNTAL
signed by ®E:
TEX THERK FER
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
EEREA - FEEGIHIIFERA : SEEEEEA -
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited (the “Company”) is a joint
stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”). On 1 November 2004, with the approval by
Beijing Administration for Industry and Commerce, the Company
(formerly known as “Beijing Jingkelong Supermarket Chain
Company Limited”) was established and the registered capital
of the Company was RMB412,220,000. The company’s unified
social credit code is 91110000101782670P. The registered office
and the principal place of business of the Company are located
at Block No.45, Xinyuan Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the retail and wholesale

distribution of daily consumer products.

On 25 September 2006, the H shares issued by the Company
were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. On 26 February 2008, all the H
shares were transferred to the Main Board for listed trading. The
Company issued a total of 412,220,000 ordinary shares as at 31
December 2017.

The controlling shareholder of the Company is Beijing Chaoyang

Auxiliary Food Company (“Chaoyang Auxiliary”).

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and financial
statements of the Company, which are subject to consideration
at the general meeting pursuant to the Articles of Association of
the Company, were approved by the board of directors on 21

March 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 E

All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)

BASIS FOR PREPARASTION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements are presented on a going concern
basis. The financial statements are prepared based on the actual
transactions and events and in accordance with “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic Standard” (issued by
Ministry of Finance No0.33 and revised by Ministry of Finance
No.76), 42 specific accounting standards, implementation
guidelines and explanations of enterprise accounting standards
and other relevant provisions issued on 15 February 2006 and
those updated afterwards (Hereafter collectively referred to as
“ASBE”), and the disclosure requirements of Company Ordinance
of Hong Kong and the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

In accordance with ASBE, the Group has adopted the accrual
basis of accounting. Except for certain financial instruments,
the Company adopts the historical cost as the principle of
measurement in the financial statements. When assets are
impaired, provisions for asset impairment are made in accordance

with relevant requirements.

STATEMENTS OF COMPLIANCE WITH ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS FOR BUSINESS ENTERPRISES-BASIC
STANDARD

The financial statements have been in compliance with ASBE,
truly and completely reflecting the financial position of the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2017 and of the
financial performance, cash flows and other relevant information

of the Company and the Group for the 2017 year then ended.

—  PBHRRNERER

REBEMBREAFBLCEHBRAER - R
BERZEENRHMEIE - ZRYEEBEMS
B SRR — EARERI ) (BT R E8 2 2533
SREG - BIBERL S 765RIERT) ~ 200642
RA158 R HBBANERT 4218 A8 52
B - ESERIERER - SEEFER
RIEREMBRRE(UTABICESE
A1) - peoh - AEEIRRBCEB R FHER)
TIEBHMAXTIMBERARES ETHRAD
CERBEBRABUBESR o

RIBEESHENNBERTE  AEEER
BRENEEELHAER - BRULSHTA
S REAFMRIAE LA Bt EER
BEMRELRE - AR R E A
FERBIEER -

[1]
.

BRECESHEANES

AUBREFTEACEGHENHER &
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1y

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEEERME AR
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the ARABIRGEFRAAETEXRETERTE « #18
retail and wholesale business of goods. The Company and its K o RRRIREFRAIRBERKEER
subsidiaries have formulated certain specific accounting policies B RBHABCESTENNSRTE - Bk
and accounting estimates related to income confirmation, which ABREIETETHEEES A BERNG G
based on their own operating characteristics and the relevant o FERARMIFERY 19 [HA J 2 H#hil - 78
provisions of the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, REBEMELMNERE T HET G
please refer to the description of Note IV.19 “Revenue”. As for B BTN - 24 [EREHHETFG
the details of the significant accounting judgments and estimates Fh e

made by the management, please refer to the Note 1V.24

“Significant accounting judgments and estimates”.

1. Accounting period 1 B3HE
The Group adopts the calendar year as its accounting year REBENSHFEAREFE « EGF
from January 1 to December 31. 1A1HEZ=12831H1E

2. Functional currency 2 v GRERAE
RMB is the currency of the primary economic environment ARBEREERIEANTFRBILEEE
where the Group and its domestic subsidiaries operate, MEZLBERBETNEY  AEBKIE
and the Group and its domestic subsidiaries used RMB as WFRRIAARE BRREREAMNEE - K&
the functional currency. The financial statements have been BREATBEBRREMEANEEABA
prepared in RMB. R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.

Business combinations involving enterprises not

under common control and goodwill

A business combination involving enterprises not under
common control is a business combination in which all of
the combining enterprises are not ultimately controlled by

the same party or parties before and after the combination.

The cost of combination is the aggregate of the fair values,
at the acquisition date, of the assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed and equity securities issued by the acquirer
in exchange for control of the acquiree. For the business
combination involving enterprises not under common control
and achieved in stages, the cost of combination is the price
paid at the acquisition date plus the fair value of previously-
held equity interest in the acquiree at the acquisition date.
The intermediary expenses incurred in respect of auditing,
legal services, valuation and consultancy services, etc. and
other associated administrative expenses attributable to the
business combinations are recognized in profit or loss when
they were incurred. The previously-held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value
and any resulting difference between the fair value and the
carrying amount are recognized as investment income for
the current period. Where the previously-held equity interest
in the acquiree involves other comprehensive income, the
relevant comprehensive income is transferred to investment

income in the period.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.

Business combinations involving enterprises not

under common control and goodwill (Continued)

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities or contingent
liabilities, acquired by the acquirer in a business
combination, that meet the recognition criteria are measured
as fair value at the acquisition date. Where the combination
cost exceeds the acquiree’s interest in the fair value of
identifiable net assets, the difference is treated as an asset
and recognized as goodwill which is measured at cost
on initial recognition. Where the combination cost is less
than the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of identifiable
net assets acquired in the business combination, the
measurement of the fair values of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities or contingent liabilities and combination
costs is firstly reassessed, if after the reassessment, the
combination cost is still less than the acquirer’s interest
in the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired in the
business combination, the acquirer recognizes the remaining

difference immediately in profit or loss for the current period.

The goodwill arising on the business combination is
represented separately and measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. The goodwill is tested for

impairment at least at the end of each year.

4 118 ANNUAL REPORT 2017

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

M- EESBERME AR ()

3

FE—ZFTEEXEHNEHEE)

BESTGEGHTARBHRBESTE
BRGTOAIHREE BERIBER
BEBEANRABENE - AHRA
AREHPEENRBET IHRFE
ERABENENER  FR—IBEE
ERABELIZAARTETIGE - &
PERA N A B ERIS RO 1R 38 B 75 7] 2%
REBEAABENEN  BEHIE
MKBEDSRAHRREE - AERK
BRBENRAABEAREHRANGE
EITER - BRRAFERANNRE G
TRENEBE SRR FEERA(E
BN - FFAEHIES -

AEEAHEKNEEES HIMBRER
RERIH - WIRIRAK AR RHRE
EHRNTSBITE - BEELEEFF
B TETRENR




) PO Cf00))
= A Sl ) ‘
a2 ]j: \T/ I £

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.

Business combinations involving enterprises not

under common control and goodwill (Continued)

When conducting the impairment test for goodwill, the test
is conducted through combination with the related asset
group or portfolio of asset group. That is, the carrying
amount of goodwill is allocated to the relevant asset group
or portfolio of asset group benefited by synergetic effect
of merging since the acquisition date. If the recoverable
amount of asset group or portfolio of asset group which
contains the allocated goodwill is lower than its carrying
amount, relevant impairment loss is recognized. The amount
of impairment loss is first written-down carrying amount of
goodwill allocated to that asset group or portfolio of asset
group, and then written down to the carrying amount of
all other types of assets proportionally other than goodwill,
according to the weighting of the carrying amount of all

other types of assets within asset group or portfolio of asset

group.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the net value the
fair value of an asset less costs of disposal and the present
value of the future cash flow expected to be derived from

the asset.

The impairment loss of goodwill is recorded in profit and
loss for the current period and shall not be reversed in

subsequent accounting period.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

4.

Preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidation scope in consolidated financial statements
is determined on the basis of control. The control refers to
the power to influence the investee and participate in its
operating activities to obtain benefits, the amount at which

shall be effected by the power.

Major accounting policies and accounting periods
adopted by the subsidiaries are defined according to the
standardized accounting policies and accounting periods

stipulated by the Company.

All significant intra-group balances and transactions are

eliminated on consolidation.

The portion of a subsidiaries’ equity not attributable to the
parent company is treated as the minority interests and
represented as minority interests in the consolidated balance
sheets within shareholder’s equity. The portion of net
profits or losses of subsidiaries for the period attributable to
minority interests is represented as minority interests in the

consolidated profit and loss statement under net profit item.

When the loss amount of the subsidiary attributable to
minority shareholders of a subsidiary exceeds minority
shareholders’ portion of the opening balance of owner’s
equity of the subsidiary, the excess amount are still

allocated against minority interests.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

4.

Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

For the transactions of acquiring minority interests of the
subsidiaries or disposing part of its subsidiaries’ equity
without losing control, treated as equity transaction, the
book value of shareholder’s equity attributable to the parent
company and that of minority interests should be adjusted
to reflect the change in the company’s interests in the
subsidiaries. Differences between the adjustment of the
minority interests and the fair value of consideration are
adjusted to capital reserve. If the difference exceeds capital

reserve, retained earnings shall be adjusted.

Recognition criteria of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group comprise cash,
deposits that can be readily withdrew on demand, short-
term (usually within a period of 3 months from purchase
date on) and highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to an

insignificant risk of change value.

Foreign currency transactions

The foreign currency transactions are, on initial recognition,
translated to the functional currency at the spot exchange
rate on the dates of transactions, foreign currency monetary
items are translated using the spot exchange rate at
the balance sheet date. The exchange difference arising
from the difference between the spot exchange rate at
the balance sheet date and the spot exchange rate on
initial recognition or at the previous balance sheet date is

recognized in profit or loss for the period.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7. Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. For financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs are recognized in profit and loss for the
current period. For other financial assets and financial
liabilities, transaction costs are included in their initial

recognized amounts.
7.1 Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
Where there is an active market, the Group adopts
the quotation in the active market as the fair value
of financial instruments. Quoted prices in an active
market are the prices which are easily and regularly
obtained from an exchange, broker, trade association
and the pricing service etc., and those prices represent
actual and occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. If the market for financial assets is not
active, the Group establishes fair value by using a
valuation technique. Valuation techniques include using
recent arm’s length market transactions between
knowledgeable, willing parties, reference to the current
fair value of another instrument that is substantially the
same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing

models etc.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7. Financial instruments (Continued)

7.2 Classification, recognition and measurement of

financial assets

Financial assets purchased or sold in regular way are

recognized and derecognized based on the accounting

at transaction date. On initial recognition, the Group’s

financial assets include financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments,

loans and receivables, and available-for-sale financial

assets.

7.2.1Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and those

designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

A financial asset held for trading is the financial
asset that meets one of the following conditions:
A. the financial asset is acquired for the purpose
of selling it in a short term; B. the financial
asset is a part of a group of identifiable financial
instruments that are collectively managed, and
there is objective evidence indicating that the
enterprise recently manages this group for the
purpose of short-term profits; C. the financial
asset is a derivative, except for a derivative that
is designated as effective hedging instrument, or
a financial guarantee contract, or a derivative that
is linked to and must be settled by delivery of
an unquoted equity instrument (without a quoted
price from an active market) whose fair value

cannot be reliably measured.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEETEEMEAR(E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7. Financial instruments (Continued) 7 &@ITHE

2) =HEENTE  BRAE

financial assets (Continued) (#&)

7.2 Classification, recognition and measurement of

O KAAEESEARZE

7.2.1Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

412

(Continued)

A financial asset meeting one of the following
requirements can be designated as a financial
asset measured at fair value and of which
the variation is included in the current profits
or losses: A. the designation can eliminate
or obviously deduce the discrepancies in the
recognition or measurement of related gains
or losses arisen from the different basis of
measurement of the financial assets; B. the
official written documents on risk management or
investment strategies of the Group have recorded
that the combination of financial assets and
financial liabilities will be managed and evaluated
on the basis of their fair values and be reported

to the key management personnel.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are subsequently measured at fair value.
The gains or losses related to financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and dividend or
interest income related to those financial assets
are recognized in profit or loss for the current

period.
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 EERHBEMRHEH ()

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
7. Financial instruments (Continued) 7 S@MIAE)

2) =HMEENTE  BRAE

(%)

7.2 Classification, recognition and measurement of

financial assets (Continued)

7.2.2Held-to-maturity investments Q FEZIHRE

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed maturity, fixed or
determinable payments and that an entity has the

positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Such kind of financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition, impairment or amortization are

recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortized cost of a financial
asset or a financial liability (inclusive of a group
of financial assets or financial liabilities) and
the interest income or expense of each period,
using the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated
future cash flows through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the current
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial

liability.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

- EESBERAME AR ()

ETRITH

7. Financial instruments (Continued) 7

2) =HEENTE  BRAE

7.2 Classification, recognition and measurement of

all contractual terms of the financial asset or
financial liability (without considering future credit
losses), as well as consider all kinds of charges,
transaction fees and discount or premium paid
forming an integral part of the effective interest
rate paid or received between both parties of

financial asset or financial liability contract.

7.2.3Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Financial
assets classified as loans and receivables by the
Group include receivable, accounts receivable,
interest receivable, dividends receivable, and

other receivables.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Gain or loss arising from derecognition,
impairment or amortization is recognized in profit

or loss for the current period.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7.

Financial instruments (Continued)

7.2 Classification, recognition and measurement of

financial assets (Continued)

7.2.4Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include non-
derivative financial assets that are designated
on initial recognition as available for sale, and
financial assets that are not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans

and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

The final cost of investment in an available-for-sale
debt instrument is determined using amortized
cost method. Namely the amount is measured
at initial recognition amount minus principle
prepayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method
of any difference between that initial amount and
the maturity amount, and minus any reduction
for impairment. The final cost of investment in
an available-for-sale equity instrument is its initial

acquisition cost.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEETEEMEAR(E)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7. Financial instruments (Continued) 7 SETA(
7.2 Classification, recognition and measurement of 2) =HEENTE  BRAE
financial assets (Continued) (%)
7.2.4Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued) @ AFHHEHEEE)

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Except that impairment
losses and exchange differences between foreign
monetary financial assets and amortized costs
are recorded in profit or loss for the period, gains
or losses arising from changes in fair values
are recognized in other comprehensive income.
When the financial assets are derecognized,
gains or losses previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are transferred out and
recognized as profit or loss for the period. But
an equity instrument in unquoted active market
whose fair value can not be reliably measured and
a derivative financial asset that is linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted
equity instrument are subsequently measured at

cost.

Interest received from an available-for-sale
financial asset and cash dividend declared to
distribute by the investee are recognized in

investment income.

AfhEEREERA AR
EBEETRENE  ARE
BEHTROFGHIEL
BB ERAMINEERE LS
BhE E B AR A R AE B RO [
HEBEFAS BRI - W
REEMEENE  E%E
BMEERLLEREEL - 5
AEHBE - BR - EER
mEHRAEREEERAAE
BERgEAEFENEaTA
KE - AREZESTAH
MY BBBRNZERTA
HBENTESREE @ BR
RAEITIREAE -

il

AL ESREERA R

BB RRKREENE
FEBRNREBA - AR
Bz o

Y

7.3 Impairment of financial assets (3) =ZEEERE
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date the BTUAREEFEAEEHEA
carrying amounts of financial assets other than those EHERNEMEEIN  AKEH
at fair value through profit or loss. If there is objective EEHEEERERAYEMERE
evidence that a financial asset is impaired, the Group ENEEEAETRSE B8
determines the amount of any impairment loss. BRERRACREESLLERERD -

HEREER -
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7. Financial instruments (Continued)

7.3

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For a financial asset that is individually significant,
the Group assesses the asset individually for
impairment. For a financial asset that is not individually
significant, the Group assesses the asset individually
for impairment or includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. If
the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset (whether significant or not), it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively reassesses them for
impairment. Assets for which an impairment loss is
individually recognized are not included in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics

for collective assessment of impairment.

7.3.Tlmpairment of held-to-maturity investment, loans
and receivables

A financial asset measured at cost or amortized
cost is decreased from the carrying amount to the
present value of estimated future cash flow, the
decrease amount is recognized as the impairment
loss and recorded in profit or loss. If, subsequent
to the recognition of an impairment loss on the
financial assets, there is objective evidence of a
recovery in value of the financial assets which
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment is recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed, the
carrying amount after reversal of impairment
loss of the financial asset should not exceed the
amortization cost at the reversal date assumed if

no impairment loss is provided.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEETEEMEAR(E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

EETA(

7. Financial instruments (Continued) 7

(3 Z=MEERMEE)

7.3 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

AU &2 B A ERE

7.3.2Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets @)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is
impaired, the cumulative loss arising from decline
in fair value previously recognized directly in
capital reserves is reclassified from the capital
reserves to profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is reclassified from capital
reserves to profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortization) and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial

asset previously recognized in profit or loss.

If, subsequent to the recognition of an impairment
loss on available-for-sale financial assets, there is
objective evidence of a recovery in value of the
financial assets which can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment
is recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed. The amount of
reversal of impairment loss on available-for-
sale equity instruments is recognized as other
comprehensive income, while the amount of
reversal of impairment loss on available-for-sale

debt instruments is recognized in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7. Financial instruments (Continued)

7.3 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

7.8.2Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

(Continued)

If an impairment loss has been incurred on an
investment in unquoted equity instrument (without
a quoted price in an active market) whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, or on a
derivative financial asset that is linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity
instrument, the impairment loss on such financial

asset is not reversed once it is recognized.

7.4 Recognition and measurement of financial asset

transfer

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when:
(1) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire; or (2) it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity; or (3) it
transfers the financial asset, neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership but has not retained control over the

financial assets.

For a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety that
satisfies the derecognition criteria, the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
transferred and the sum of the consideration received
from the transfer and any cumulative change in fair
value that has been recognized in other comprehensive

income is recognized in profit or loss.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

- EESBERAME AR ()

413

7.5

For a transfer of part of a financial asset that satisfies
the derecognition criteria, the carrying amount of
the financial assets transferred is amortized at its
corresponding fair value between the derecognized

and the non-derecognized, the difference between the

7. Financial instruments (Continued) 7 £@TIA
7.4 Recognition and measurement of financial asset (4) =HEEEBBHERRENGES
transfer (Continued) ()

EREER D BRH L LR
HH - BAEBEEREENRA
BEERILER LR IEREBD
ZHEREEHN 2R EEETY
B WHEBSBmKRI Y ER

sum of the consideration received from the transfer JENBRK IR D HRFT AR
and cumulative change in fair value that has been e W= AR EBEEH RAE
recognized in other comprehensive income and the ZMESBORINEE B ETE

forgoing carrying amount amortized is recognized in

profit or loss.

Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities

On initial recognition, financial liabilities are classified
as either financial liabilities at 'fair value through
profit or loss’ or 'other financial liabilities’. Financial
liabilities, on initial recognition, are measured at fair
value. For financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, relevant transaction costs are recorded in profit
or loss for the period. For other financial liabilities,
relevant transaction costs are recognized in their initial

recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7. Financial instruments (Continued)

7.6

7.7

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability or part of
it only when the underlying present obligation or part
of it is discharged. An agreement between the Group
(an existing borrower) and an existing lender to replace
the original financial liability with a new financial liability
with substantially different terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the

recognition of a new financial liability.

When a financial liability or a part of it is derecognized,
the difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability or part of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid (including any
non-cash assets transferred or new financial liabilities

assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

When the Group has a legal right that is currently
enforceable to set off the recognized financial assets
and financial liabilities, and intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realize the financial asset and settle
the financial liability simultaneously, financial assets
and financial liabilities are offset with the net amounts
presented on the balance sheet. Otherwise, financial
assets and financial liabilities are separately presented

on the balance sheet without offsetting.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8. Accounts receivable

Receivables include accounts receivable and other

receivables etc.

8.1 Recognition of provision for bad debts

The Group assesses the carrying amount of accounts
receivable at the balance sheet date. Where the
following objective evidence indicates an impairment
of accounts receivable, the provisions for impairment
shall be made. @ Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor; @ A breach of contract by the debtor
such as a default in interest and principal payments;
® It becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganizations;
@ Other objective evidence which indicates there is an

impairment of accounts receivable.

8.2 Provision for bad debts

8.2.1Receivables that are individually significant and for

which bad debt provision individually assessed

A receivable over RMB5 million is recognized by

the Group as an individually significant receivable.

For the receivable that is individually significant,
the Group assesses the receivable individually
for impairment. The financial asset which is
not impaired individually shall be included in
the financial asset group with similar credit risk
characteristics and assessed for impairment.
The receivable for which the impairment loss is
recognized shall not be included in the group with
similar credit risk characteristics for impairment
assessment.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8. Accounts receivable (Continued) 8 EWIRIE(E)

8.2 Provision for bad debts (Continued)

8.2.2Receivables which bad debt provision is

(2) BIREFEHNFIESZ(E)
Q ’IEHERBHEEIEZERE

collectively assessed on portfolio basis 15 B FE S 50 TE B 1ETE IR
BIREHFIE T E
(a) Basis for determining a portfolio according A EARBEEHASE
to credit risk characteristics TR
The Group classifies the receivables that AEBUBEEEEISE
are not individually significant and those that AUAKR S FEERBEIR

are individually significant but not impaired
into groups of financial assets according
to the similarity and relevance of credit
risk characteristics. The credit risks usually

reflect the debtor’s ability to pay amounts

AR B A RUE A B UL
HIR - RERRRSH
AR MARRE S

due at maturity under contractual items of ANEZRZEEENEAR
related assets and relevant to the estimation GREEMENHEE
of future cash flows of the assets subject to 9 g I H Bt &
assessment. BEEMRKRRESREA
HiEH -
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II/

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEETEEMEAR(E)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8. Accounts receivable (Continued) 8 EWFNIE(E)
8.2 Provision for bad debts (Continued) (2) BREMFBHIGHER 2 (&)
8.2.2Receivables which bad debt provision is Q EIEHRBAESTIEZERE
collectively assessed on portfolio basis (Continued) 175 B & L 30 T B FE B I
AR EHLIE A ()
(o) Bad debt provision for a portfolio according B. WBEEARRFEES
to credit risk characteristics THEMIBEREETIRS
=
The method of aging analysis is the bad RNEBHRERERRER
debt provision for a portfolio according to BB ETHERE
credit risk characteristics in the Group. BERAER  RED
W& o
Aging analysis method is used to a portfolio HARE DA IRE
of bad debt provision BREENMBEA TR
Receivables accrual
proportion (%)
Aging R FE U R IE 5T 2 EE B (%)
Within 1 year (including 1 year, 1FLA(EIF - TR
the same below) 0
1-2 years 1-24F 3
2-3 years 2-3%F 10
3-4 years 3-44F 25
4-5 years 4-5%F 50
Over 5 years 5F LA 100
8.2.3Receivables which are not individually significant Q@ HEHzBEHETEAEEHRF
but for which bad debt provision is individually FEE AR BB JE M TE
assessed
Impairment test is individually conducted by AEERHEESBIEKX
the Group on accounts receivable that are not BEEREEBERAEDEA
individually significant but deemed to be impaired B EWRIE - BIEELT
by objective evidence to determine the impairment BRI - FEEREERK
losses recorded in profit or loss. FAE BiEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9. Inventories

9.1

9.2

9.3

Classification of inventories

Inventories include raw materials, turnover materials

and goods in stocks, etc.

The measurement of inventories received and

issued

The inventory is initially measured at the actual cost;
Inventory costs comprise costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs. Cost of sales is

determined using First in first out.

Recognition of the net realizable value and
measurement of provision for decline in value of

inventories

At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured
at the lower of cost and net realizable value. If the
net realizable value of the inventory is lower than the
cost, a provision for decline in value of inventories
is recognized. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale and relevant taxes. The
Group determines the net realizable value of inventories
based on solid evidence obtained and after taking
into consideration the purpose for which the inventory
is held, and the effect of events occurring after the

balance sheet date.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9. Inventories (Continued)

9.3 Recognition of the net realizable value and
measurement of provision for decline in value of

inventories (Continued)

For the inventory with tremendous number and
relatively low unit price, the decline in value of
inventories is provided according to the type of
inventory; for other inventories, the decline in value of
inventories is provided at the difference of the cost of a
single inventory item exceeding its net realizable value.
After the provision of decline in value of inventories
is made, if the circumstances that caused the value
of the inventory to be written down below cost no
longer exist so that the net realizable value is higher
than the carrying amount, the original provision for
decline in value is reversed and the reversed amount is

recognized in profit or loss for the period.

9.4 The perpetual inventory system is adopted for

stock count.

9.5 Amortization methods of low-value consumables

and packaging materials

Low-value consumables are written off in full when
issued for use. Packing materials are written off in full

when issued for use.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

10. Long-term equity investments

A long-term equity investment is the long-term equity
investment of the Group that is able to control, jointly
control or significantly influence on the investee. The long-
term equity investment of the Group that is not able to
control, jointly control or significantly influence on the
investee is recognized as the held-for-sale financial asset or
the financial asset measured at fair value through profit or

loss.

10.1 Determination of investment cost

For a long-term equity investment acquired by a
business combination involving enterprises under
common control, the initial investment cost of long-
term equity investment is the share of the carrying
amount of the owner’s equity of the merged party
in the consolidated financial statements of ultimate
controlling party at the acquisition date. For a long-term
equity investment acquired by a business combination
involving enterprises not under common control, the
initial investment cost is the cost of acquisition. The
long-term equity investment through means other than

a business combination is initially measured at its cost.

10.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit

or loss

The long-term equity investment that is able to jointly
control or significantly influence in the investee adopts
the equity method. In addition, the financial statement
of the Company adopts the cost method for the long-
term equity investment that is able to control over the

investee.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEETEEMEAR(E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

10 - REIRERE

10. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(2) BETEBRBERERLEGE)

10.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit

or loss (Continued)

O KR ZEENRBRERE

10.2.1A long-term equity investment accounted for

414

using the cost method

Under the cost method, a long-term equity
investment, on its initial recognition, is measured
as cost and adjusted according to the amount of
additional investment or disinvestment. Except for
cash dividends or profits which include in actual
payment or consideration as the Group obtains
the investment but have not been paid, the
investment income for the period is recognized
according to cash dividends or profits declared to

distribute by the investee

10.22A long-term equity investment accounted for

using the equity method

Under the equity method, where the initial
investment cost of a long-term equity investment
exceeds the Group’s share of the fair value of the
investee’s identifiable net assets at the time of
acquisition, no adjustment is made to the initial
investment cost. Where the initial investment cost
is less than the Group’s share of the fair value of
the investee’s identifiable net assets at the time of
acquisition, the difference is recognized in profit
or loss for the period, and the cost of the long-

term equity investment is adjusted accordingly.
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M- EESFBERME R (2)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

10. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 10 - REIRERE(

BATERBEER L E(E)

10.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit 2)

or loss (Continued)

10.22A long-term equity investment accounted for Q BuniBENRHREKE

using the equity method (Continued)

Under the equity method, the Group recognizes
its share of the net profit or loss and other
comprehensive income made by the investee
as investment income and other comprehensive
income respectively, and adjusts the carrying
amount of the long-term equity investment
accordingly; The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced by the portion of any
profit distributions or cash dividends declared
by the investee that is distributed to the Group;
the share of changes in owners’ equity of the
investee other than those arising from net profit
or loss, other comprehensive income and profit
distribution are recognized in the capital reserves
the carrying amount of the long-term equity
investment is adjusted accordingly. The Group
recognizes its share of the investee’s net profit
or loss after making appropriate adjustments
based on the fair value of the investee’s individual
separately identifiable assets, etc. at the
acquisition date. Where the accounting policies
and accounting period adopted by the investee
are not consistent with those of the Group, the
Group shall adjust the financial statements of the
investee to conform to its own accounting policies
and accounting period, and recognize investment
income and other comprehensive income based
on the adjusted financial statements. For the
Group’s transactions with its associates and
joint ventures where assets contributed or sold
does not constitute a business, unrealized
intra-group profits or losses are recognized as
investment income or loss to the extent that those
attributable to the Group’s proportionate share of
interest are eliminated. However, unrealized losses
resulting from the Group’s transactions with its
investees which represent impairment losses on
the transferred assets are not eliminated.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEETEEMEAR(E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

10. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 10 - REIRERE(E)

(2) BHETEBRBRERLEGE)

10.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit

or loss (Continued)

WlE LR IE

10.2.3 Acquisitions of minority interest (©)

When the Group prepares the consolidated
financial statements, the difference between the
long-term equity investment arising from the
acquisition of minority interest and shares of
the subsidiary’s net assets attributable to the
Company which are continuously calculated from
the purchase date (or the acquisition date) based
on new additional proportions of shares is used
to adjust capital reserves, if capital reserves are
not sufficient to be written down, the retained

earnings shall be adjusted.

10.2.4 Disposals of long-term equity investment

In consolidated financial statements, when the
parent company disposes a part of a long-term
equity investment without losing power of control,
the difference between its disposal price and its
subsidiary’ net assets attributable to the Company
corresponding to the disposal of long-term
equity investment is recorded in owner’s equity.
For other circumstances of disposing of a long-
term equity investment, the difference between
its carrying amount and actual purchase price is

recorded in profit or loss for the period.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

11.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation, or both, including rented land use
right, land use right which is held and prepared for transfer

after appreciation, and rented building.

The initial measurement of the investment properties shall
be measured at its actual cost. The follow-up expenses
pertinent to the investment properties shall be included
in the cost of the investment properties, if the economic
benefits pertinent to this real estate are likely to flow into the
enterprise, and, the cost of the investment properties can
be reliably measured. Otherwise, they should be included in

the current profits and losses upon occurrence.

The Group adopts the cost model for subsequent
measurement of investment properties, and the depreciation
or amortization policies are consistent with that of building

and land use right.

When an investment properties is sold, transferred, retired
or damaged, the Group recognizes the amount of any
proceeds on disposal of the asset net of the carrying
amount and related taxes in profit or loss for the current

period.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

12. Fixed assets

12.1 Recognition of fixed assets

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for use
in the production of goods or supply of services, for
rental to others, or for administrative purposes and
have a useful life of more than one accounting year.
Fixed assets are only recognized when the related
economic benefits probably flow to the Group and the
cost can be reliably measured. Fixed assets are initially
measured at cost as well as taking into account the

effect of estimated disposal costs.

12.2 Method for depreciation of different fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated on straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives from the month after
they are brought to working condition for the intended
use. The useful lives, estimated net residual values and
annual depreciation rates of each category of fixed

assets are as follows:

Category Hhl
Buildings B2 IR EEY)
Machinery and equipment 2S5 1
Office equipment PN
Vehicles EHRE

M- EESBERME AR ()

12 -BEEEE

(1) BZEZEEZEKME

&

Useful life

(year)
TEFR(F)

20-35
5-10
5

5-8

BEEEREAEERM  RBH
g1 HEXKEEEMFTE
oo ERSwEE —EEFFE
WBVEE - BIEEEEREH
BRENEENERAIERARE
B BERAESNE FHFER
A TR - BEEERKAL
EREMAEZEEARRNTEET
aEtE -

HEEEEEANITES %

B & E{E DI TE T Al i A AR AR Y
RAR  HKAFERFEEERE
NN E c SEETEE
MEAES - EIDFREMEN
EXT

Annual

Residual depreciation
value (%) (%)
BEE%)  FHEE%)
3-4 2.74-4.85

3-5 9.50-19.40

3-5 19.00-19.40

3-4 12.00-19.40

Estimated net residual value is the amount which
would be obtained from the disposal of the assets after
deducting of estimated costs of disposal, if the asset
were already of the age and in the condition expected

at the end of its useful life.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

12. Fixed assets (Continued)

12.3

12.4

Recognition, measurement method of fixed assets

leased under finance leases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers in substance
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset. Title may or may not eventually be transferred.
Consistent depreciation policies are adopted to
finance leased fixed assets. Leased fixed assets are
depreciated over the estimated useful lives when it is
reasonably determined that the ownership of the asset
will be obtained after the lease term is over. Otherwise,
the leased assets are depreciated over the shorter
period between the lease term and the estimated

useful lives of the assets.

Other explanations

Subsequent expenditures incurred for a fixed asset
are recognized in the cost of fixed assets when the
associated economic benefits will probably flow
to the Group and the related cost can be reliably
measured, and the carrying amount of replaced part is
derecognized. All the other subsequent expenditures
are recognized in profit or loss for the period in which

they are incurred.

A fixed asset is derecognized on disposal or when
no economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. When a fixed asset is sold, transferred,
retired or damaged, the Group recognizes the amount
of any proceeds on disposal of the asset net of the
carrying amount and related taxes in profit or loss for

the current period.

B FS R I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)

M- EESFBERME R (2)

12 -BEEEE#E)

3

(4)

BEHEABZEEENREFBR T
E5%
MEMEREL BB THEEM
EREBN 2R R MBI E
T HMAERERAUEEE 4
ARETER - UREHEES XM
AWMBEEEERAERBREEEE
—HNBRFREEEERE -
AT HE I EmRESHE
BEMBENEHEEERERS
WETRITE - AR EREM
[EmEE IS THE R EMA
B EHEHREAEEEERS
AME P ERE BRI AGHRITE -

t|> mH"

‘m]‘\

Htbai B
HETEEFWNRESL W
REZE B E R B KB s
RATRE A B E B A B2 7] S b &1
B AGFABEEERSE » L&
IR E RO MEREEE -
BRUC AN E iR A th - 3
ERFTAE MBS ©

EEEEERNEEMENIEN
BEANEE TR E LB M
B RIEHERZEEEE ° BIE
BEHE HE REIREN
BB WAMGE R EEMERE
BROEFEAZHIES -

=

2017 iiﬁ
IRRBEFEEEROERR 145



AL

"
doNEd®

""-‘@

~

L

d.T)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 RaR I o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2017%#E
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RET)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

414

12.

13.

14.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Fixed assets (Continued)

12.4 Other explanations (Continued)

The Group reviews the useful life, estimated net
residual value of a fixed asset and the depreciation
method at least at each financial year-end. A change
in the useful life, estimated net residual value of a fixed
asset or the depreciation method shall be accounted

for as a change in accounting estimate.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress is measured at its actual costs.
The actual costs include various construction expenditures
during the construction period, borrowing costs capitalized
before it is ready for intended use and other relevant costs.
Construction in progress is transferred to a fixed asset when

it is ready for intended use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expenses, amortization
of discount or premium, auxiliary expenses, exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings etc.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying asset are capitalized
when expenditures for such asset and borrowing costs
are incurred and activities relating to the acquisition,
construction or production of the asset that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale have
commenced. Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases
when the qualifying asset being acquired, constructed or
produced becomes ready for its intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period

in which they are incurred.
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 BEEETTERMETHER (2)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

14. Borrowing costs (Continued) 14 - BERERHE)

Where funds are borrowed under a specific-purpose
borrowing, the amount of interest to be capitalized is the
actual interest expense incurred on that borrowing for
the period less any bank interest earned from depositing
the borrowed funds before being used on the asset or
any investment income on the temporary investment of
those funds. Where funds are borrowed under general-
purpose borrowings, the Group determines the amount of
interest to be capitalized on such borrowings by applying
a capitalization rate to the weighted average of the excess
of cumulative expenditures on the asset over the amounts
of specific-purpose borrowings. The capitalization rate is
the weighted average of the interest rates applicable to the

general-purpose borrowings.

The qualifying assets to be capitalized are fixed assets,
investment properties and inventories which need to be
acquired, constructed or produced through a long period of

time, in order to become ready for its intended use or sale.

Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during
periods in which the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset is suspended abnormally and when
the suspension is for a continuous period of more than 3
months. Capitalization is suspended until the acquisition,

construction or production of the asset is resumed.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

15.

16.

17.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include land use right, software

development costs and distribution network software.

Intangible assets are initially measured as cost. When an
intangible asset with a finite useful life is available for use, its
original cost is amortized using straight line method over its

estimated useful life.

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, the useful life
and amortization method shall be reviewed at the period

end, and the adjustments shall be made if necessary.

Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses are expenses which have
occurred but shall be amortized over the reporting period
and subsequent periods of more than one year long-term
prepaid expenses shall be amortized evenly over expected

benefit periods.

Long-term assets impairment

For non-current and non-financial assets such as fixed
assets, work in progress, intangible assets with a finite
useful life, investment properties measured at cost, long-
term equity investment of joint ventures and associated
enterprises etc., the Group assesses if any of them is
impaired at the balance sheet date. If there is any evidence
indicating that an asset is impaired, recoverable amounts
shall be estimated for impairment test. Goodwill and
intangible assets with a uncertainty useful life and intangible
assets which have not reach work condition shall be tested
for impairment annually regardless of whether there is any

evidence indicating that the assets have been impaired.
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M- EESFBERME R (2)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

17 - REEEREE)

17. Long-term assets impairment (Continued)

If the result of the impairment test indicates that the
recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying
amount, a provision for impairment and an impairment loss
are recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and the present value of the future cash flows expected
to be derived from the asset. An asset’s fair value is
determined based on the sales price agreed in an arm’s
length transaction. When no sales agreement but the active
market of an asset is available, its fair value is determined
according to a buyer’s bid. When no sales agreement and
the active market of an asset are available, its fair value
is estimated on the basis of best information which is can
be obtained. The disposal expenses include asset- related
legal expenses, relevant taxes, handling fees and direct
costs incurred for the asset intended sale. The present
value of expected future cash flows of an asset is the
amount that an asset’s expected future cash flows arising
from its continuous use and final disposal are discounted
at an appropriate rate. Provision for asset impairment is
determined and recognized on the individual asset basis.
If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the recoverable amount of a group of
assets to which the asset belongs is determined. A group
of assets is the smallest group of assets that is able to

generate independent cash inflows.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

17.

18.

Long-term assets impairment (Continued)

Goodwill that is separately presented in the financial
statements is tested at least annually for impairment,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that it may
be impaired. In conducting the test, the carrying value of
goodwill is allocated to the related asset groups or groups
of asset groups which are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the business combination. If the result of the
test indicates that the recoverable amount of an asset group
or group of asset groups, including the goodwill allocated,
is lower than its carrying amount, the corresponding
impairment loss is recognized. The impairment loss is
first deducted from the carrying amount of goodwill that
is allocated to the asset group or group of asset groups,
and then deducted from the carrying amounts of other
assets within the asset groups or groups of asset groups in

proportion to the carrying amounts of other assets.

An impairment loss recognized on the assets mentioned

above shall not be reversed in the subsequent period.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits mainly include short-term employee

benefits, post-employment benefits and resignation benefits.

Short-term benefits include salaries, bonuses, allowance
and benefits, employee benefits, medical insurance,
maternity insurance, work injury insurance, housing fund,
labor union running costs and employee education cost and
non-monetary benefits etc. Actual short-term benefits are
recognized as liabilities during the accounting period when
employees render services and are charged into profit or
loss for the period or capitalized in costs of related assets.

Non-monetary benefits are measured at fair value.
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 BEEETTERMETHER (2)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

18 B ITHM (&)
AEEBEBREEN2BARERER

18. Employee benefits (Continued)

All post-employment benefits of the Group are defined

contribution plan. The amounts to be contributed under 2 ER T AHERHERBOSTHME -
defined contribution plan are recognized as liabilities IR ER ERF T ENESF SR
during the accounting period of when employees render WRAAR Uit \EHBEZNEEE
service and are charged into profit or loss for the period or B o
capitalized in costs of related assets.

19. Revenue 19 ~ lEA

19.1

Revenue from sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods are transferred to the buyer, the Group retains
neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold, and it is probable that the
economic benefit associated with the transaction will
flow to the Group and the relevant revenue and costs

can be measured reliably.

For sale of goods that result in award credits for
customers, the Group allocates the consideration
received or receivable between the revenue from sale
of goods and the fair value of the award credits. The
consideration received or receivable after deduction of
the portion attributable to the fair value of the award
credits is recognized as revenue, the portion of the fair
value of the award credits is recognized as deferred

income.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEETEEMEAR(E)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

19. Revenue (Continued) 19 - IRA (&)

19.1 Revenue from sales of goods (Continued) (1) ERHEERA(E)
When a customer redeems the award credits, the EPHABREESR  AEEE
Group reclassifies the amount associated with the [RET AR IE IR 25 /) B2 T 5 3R A8 95 48
credits redeemed from deferred income to revenue. BRI A D ERABUWA - R R
The amount of revenue recognized is based on the AR S RE AR IR RN IR BB A
number of award credits that have been redeemed in BoBRRL A KR AR R IR
exchange for awards, relative to the total number of BB BE O AERT EE
award credits expected to be redeemed. TE e

19.2 Revenue from rendering of services (2) FRBHREHEKRA
When the amount of revenue from rendering of services RSB FRARN SRR ] S
can be reliably measured, the associated economic FFE - ABERNKERN SRAER
benefits probably flow into the Group, the stage of ARE  RHMTEILIREEMA
completion of the transaction can be measured reliably HHWHRTE KPP EEMBH
and the costs incurred and to be incurred for the AR ARRE A SE A B 0 B
transaction can be measured reliably, the revenue from RIPHEBFWANER -

rendering of services is recognized.

Where the outcome cannot be estimated reliably, IMRBHBEZI D ER TSR]
revenues are recognized to the extent of the costs SEfhED - AR &% AT TEFT 82
incurred that are expected to be compensated, and WS MENS B A EERIE
the service costs incurred are regarded as the current HEOBBWA - WEEBEAENE

cost; if the service costs incurred are not compensated BRAEREHER - ©&8 4
as anticipated, no revenue is recognized. BB N TE R TS B B

B BIREERUA o

Revenue from service of the Group mainly includes the AEBEREERAEEBRIFIEHE
promotional activities. When the various services have FPA - FEHEBRAELHE
been provided and related economic benefit probably LR BAEBESENRRA
flow into the enterprise, revenue from provision of BERMALER  BRBEBUIAR

i

service is recognized. TIR o

\
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 BEEETTERMETHER (2)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

19. Revenue (Continued) 19 ~ WA (%)

19.3 Rental Income

Primary rental income of the Group includes property
lease and sublease and counter rental income.
According to relative lease contracts and agreements
we make decision based on term that people have

leased property or counter and prices they agreed.

20. Government grants

Government grants are transfers of monetary assets and
non-monetary assets from the government to the Group,
which do not include any capital contribution from the
government as an investor. Government grants include
government grants related to assets and government
grants related to income. The Group defines government
grants that are acquired for the acquisition or otherwise
formation of long-term assets as government grants related
to assets, and the rest of them are defined as government
grants related to income. If the government documents do
not have a specific classification, the grants will be divided
into government grants related to assets and government
grants related to income by the following methods: (1) the
government documents confirm the specific programme
of the grants, according to the proportion, which based
on the grants expend on assets and expenses separately
in the specific programme’s budget, it is used to divide
the government grants. Meanwhile, the division ratio will
be reviewed at each balance sheet date and changed it if
necessary. (2) The government documents do not confirm
the specific programme and only have a general explanation
for the programme, which will be regard as government
grants related to income. If a government grant is a transfer
of a monetary asset, it is measured at amounts received
or receivable, otherwise, a non-monetary asset will be
measured at fair value. If the fair value is not accurate, the
grant is measured at nominal amount and credited to the

current profit or loss.

(3) HEHUA
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

20. Government grants (Continued)

The government grants of the Group are normally
recognized and measured at the moment they are actually
received. However, if they have conclusive evidence to
prove that they can correspond the relevant provisions
of the financial support policies and they will receive the
financial support funds in the future, it is measured by the
amount of money receivable. The government grants that
measured by the amount of money receivable will meet
the following conditions simultaneously: (1) the amount of
receivables have been confirmed by the documents, which
issued by the related authorities of the government, or the
Group calculate reasonable receivables depending on the
relevant provisions of officially released Measures for the
Administration of Financial Funds, as well as, there is no
significant uncertainty about the amount; (2) According
to the regulations based on ‘Government Information
Disclosure Ordinance’ issued by local finance department
officially, the financial support project and Measures for
the Administration of Financial Funds should be initiative
publicly. The formulation of this management approach is
general and benefit for all enterprise, instead of a specific
enterprise, which means the company who meets the
specified conditions can apply it; (3) the approval of the
related grants has promised the disbursement period, and
the payment is guaranteed by the corresponding budget.
Thus, they have a reasonable guarantee about the grants

and will receive them within the prescribed time.
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M- EESFBERME R (2)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

20 ~ BATHE ()

20. Government grants (Continued)

A government grant related to assets is recognized as
deferred income, it is allocated to the profit or loss for the
period over the useful life of related assets reasonably and
systematically, or offset the book value of related assets.
For a government grant related to income, if the grant is
a compensation for related expenses and losses to be
incurred in subsequent periods, the grant is recognized
as deferred income and charged in the profit or loss over
the period in which the related costs are recognized, or
offset the related cost; if the grant is a compensation for
related expenses and losses already incurred, the grant
is recognized immediately in profit or loss for the current

period, or offset the related cost.

At the same time, if the government grants contain both
assets related and income related, the accounting treatment
will depend on the different parts of government grants; if it
is difficult to distinguish, the whole government grants are

classified as the income-related government grants.

The government grants related to daily activities of the
Group relying on the essence of economic business,
the grant is recognized in other income or offset related
expenses of cost, otherwise, recognized in non-operating

income or non-operating expenses.

When the government grants that confirmed by the Group
required to be returned, if they have the balance of related
deferred income, they can offset the book value of them,
the other government grants are classified as current profits
and losses or adjust the book value of the assets. If not, the
government grants are included in the current profits and

losses directly.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

bois

21.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

21.1 Current income taxes

At the balance sheet date, current income tax
liabilities (or assets) for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be paid
(or recovered) according to the requirements of tax
laws. The taxable income used for calculation of
current income tax is calculated based on the current
period adjusted taxable profit in compliance with the

regulation of taxation law.

21.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

For temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of certain assets or liabilities and their tax
base, or between the carrying amount of those items
that are not recognized as assets or liabilities and their
tax base that can be determined according to tax laws,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized using

the balance sheet liability method.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

21 - EEFBHREE BEEFREHAR

(Continued) (%)

21. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(2) EEZFEHEERELZFFEHAERE

21.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(Continued)

For taxable temporary difference which is related
to the initial recognition of goodwill and the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither accounting profits or
taxable income (or deductible losses), a deferred tax
liability is not recognized. In addition, for deductible
temporary difference arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, the Group
shall recognize a deferred tax liability for all taxable
temporary difference except to the extent that the
Group is able to control the timing of reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

(%)
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

- EESBERAME AR ()

21. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 21 “EEFSHEE ELAMEHREE

/43

(Continued) (7€)

21.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(Continued)

For deductible temporary difference which is related
to the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
accounting profit or taxable income (or deductible
losses), a deferred tax asset is not recognized. In
addition, for deductible temporary difference arising
from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, the Group shall recognize a deferred tax
asset for other deductible temporary difference to

the extent that it is probable that taxable income will

(&

EEFEHEERELEHAR
(&)
HBETREEAM BERKDLT
TGN M E A ATIFRE (K
AENERNISTELENEE
s BB R V)46 FERR B B R0 AT 4 40
ERMEEZR T THEIABRNE
FEFTSMEE  thoh » HETFTA
Al BECERAEMEREN
B ENEREER  WRY
FUEZEAABEINRETER
AIREEE M - S E R ER AT BE
SRR RN TR ERN

be available against which the deductible temporary JEMBATISE T THERBEEN
difference can be deducted except to the extent that BIEFTSREE © B L BlHME

it is not probable that the temporary difference will
reverse in the foreseeable future or taxable profit will
not be available against which the temporary difference

can be utilized.

Mo REB AR AT BEER S A SRR
HAHEHER T EROERATS
BAR  EREOUENEREE
ERELNBRTEHEREE -

For deductible losses and tax credits that can be HREENEE R FERNAENE
carried forward, deferred tax assets are recognized to BRBRER - LRI EERF A

the extent that it is probable that future taxable income

will be available against which the deductible losses

HRARAN AT AN R AL SRR R
REMABESR - AEE

and tax credits can be deducted. RUEEFTS B E ©
At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and BEAGBEXRA  HRELTEHMER
liabilities are measured at the tax rates, according to BEMRLEMSHEE  BEMH

tax laws, that are expected to apply in the period in

which the asset is realized or the liability is settled.
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 BEEETTERMETHER (2)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

21. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 21 VEEFBHREE ELAMEHRER

deferred tax assets is reviewed and reduced if it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be
available in the future to allow the benefit of deferred
tax assets to be deducted. Such reduction in amount
is reversed when it is probable that sufficient taxable

income is available.

When the Group has a legal right to settle on a net
basis and intends either to settle on a net basis
or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, current tax assets and current tax

liabilities are offset and presented on a net basis.

(Continued) (#&)

21.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities (2) EEFEHEERELZFEHERE
(Continued) (%)
At the balance sheet date, the carrying amount of REEBEBEXRA  HELEHMBEH

BEENRAEELETER WX
AR AJ e RIS 2 S0 A0 B AN AL
PSR AR RS EERN
e ARRRERBHEEN
FREEE ERAEESEHD
JEMBFTIS R - B SR T
Ag [ -

21.3 Income tax 3) FEHER

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. IS & B eRE e RARLT
FiST °

Income tax is recognized as an income or an expense BRERBEMIRE WamEEETA
and included in the income statement for the current BRERNZHNEERBEOE S
period, except to the extent that the current income tax FrgBAIEE TS st AR E
related to a transaction or events which is recognized Wkl RS - ARDESRG
under other comprehensive income or directly EARNBELEMSHAZREEMNERA
recorded in equity, deferred tax recorded under other BEN  EHZHASHMNET
comprehensive income or equity, and deferred tax e & Akt A& B8 -
arises from a business combination that have impact
on the carrying value of goodwill.

21.4 Offsetting of income taxes (4) FrE#EHE

ERBNFREENETERER -
AEENFRAEEXDNEEE -
BEARERFETE  AKEE
HIFGEHEENEHMAEHAEN
HIHR A FRTIR -
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

- EESBERAME AR ()

21. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 21 » ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁé/ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁ

=)
</

M

(Continued)

(4) FrieBavEsH (&)
ERANFREEEHMEGREE

21.4 Offsetting of income taxes (Continued)

When the Group has a legal right to settle current

tax assets and liabilities on a net basis, and deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis or to realize the assets and
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities
are expected to be reversed, deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are offset and presented on a net

basis.

HIFFB B EREEREN -

BEEMIREERELEHREHEA
B2 B[R — W E B SR —
BERBRNAEH AR E =Y

TRMNMAHEEAR - BEKRKE

—REEBRUNRBIEMSHEE
MEBEEBLNHEAR - FRAA
BEREEANFREEZHREHR
BEEMBEXERBEREFEE
BEEER  NEBIREMEH
BENMBEFEHAGBMEHERD
FERTIER o

22 -HE
MEHEREL BB THREEMAR
BRNIRBRNEMOMEE - HE
REE TR LA T ER - gt &
AELIINEMAEREERE -

22. Lease

Finance leases are the leases in which substantially all the
risks and rewards of asset ownership are transferred, the
ownership will be transferred or may not be transferred

eventually. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

(1) FEEERREACHEEHEF
#

22.1 The Group as lessee under operating leases

Operating lease payments are recognized on a straight-
line basis over the terms of the lease, and are either

included in the cost of related asset or charged to

rEMENEE X HERERRN
R RERET ARBEEEK
R EHED - VR ER B

ABHED - AEHENBER S
ERETAE MR -

profit or loss for the period. Initial direct costs incurred
are charged to profit or loss for the period. Contingent
rents are charged to profit or loss in the period in

which they are actually incurred.
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M- EESFBERME R (2)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
22. Lease (Continued) 22 ~HE(E)

(2) FEEERBHBALFEEHEH

22.2 The Group as lessor under operating leases

e

Rental income from operating leases is recognized in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs with more than an
insignificant amount are capitalized when incurred, and
are recognized in profit or loss on the same basis as
rental income over the lease term. Other initial direct
costs with an insignificant amount are charged to
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Contingent rents are charged to profit or loss in the

period in which they actually arise.

meHENEe K AEEESRAN
EEPREZERZERRERNR
& HeBERANNBERER
RBELERTAERN L - EEEHE
EHR AR R ERERE S W AMER
MERD HEt AE MRS  Hibe
BRI ER B RN EERE
AEHER - EHENBERH
ERETAE MR -

=114

23 - EEEEHR - SRHERTH

i

Ed

23. Changes in significant accounting policies and

accounting estimates

BilHEEE

(1) Changes in accounting policies (1)

The reason of this change is the implementation of

new ASBE.

As at 28 April 2017, ministry of finance promulgated
CAIKUAI NO. [2017] 13, which refers to ‘NO. 42
of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-
Holding non-current assets for sale, disposing of
groups and terminating operations’ and implemented
at 28 May 2017. As at 10 May 2017, ministry of
finance promulgated CAIKUAI NO. [2017] 15, which
is ‘NO. 16 of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises- Government Grants (Revised at 2017)’
and implemented at 12 June 2017. The Group begin
to implement the two accounting standards mentioned

before, when the ministry of finance required.

RHAITH O X RIDEAEHN R
WFEEE

o

20174 A28H » BIEREP AN S
RO17TN35E &M T E &
AIE42% —HAEFENERDE
E o REAMRIEERE)  B2017
F5H28AREE - 201745410
H - BEREDABA E 20171657 3P
TAREEERNE165% — BTH
Bh (2017 &5])) - B201746A
12BREH o A5 Bi% R BE
() B SR R B SR AT A LR T & 5T
8 -
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

- EESBERAME AR ()

23. Changes in significant accounting policies and 23 -EEGTTEBR - SFHETTHNBEE)

accounting estimates (Continued)

(1) BitBEREEE)

(1) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

‘NO. 42 of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises-Holding non-current assets for sale,
disposing of groups and terminating operations’
defines the classification, measurement and disclosure
of non-current assets or disposal groups for sale, and

the disclosure of termination operations.

The Group included the government grants related to
income in non-operating income or the government
grants related to assets in deferred income, and the
average amortization is included in the profit or loss
for the current period, before the ministry of finance
carried on ‘NO. 16 of Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises-Government Grants (Revised at
2017)’. After the document published, as for happened
after 1 January 2017, the government grants related
to daily activities of the Group, it is recognized in other
income or offset related expenses of cost, if not, it is
recognized in non-operating income or non-operating

expenses.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s EESTBEME AR (&)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23 - EEETHE - SRHERTNEEE)

23. Changes in significant accounting policies and

accounting estimates (Continued)

(2) Changes in accounting estimates

(2) Bittist#E

Influenced
The contents, reasons and available date Approval report items
of changes in accounting estimates procedure ZHENEXR Affected amount
SHEHRENRET FEREARH EHER HEEB YEeH
A EEND  YREBECEARAREBERTIRER E£8 FEU R - HtbfE 6,333,695
REE RKFIRIE R DA E - REA - Ik W - RDEH
WHIBER @ FREQENRTERERNE  1E - BERER
PriERKFERERR  BRKE : 5201741231 %
AARER -
Contents: Aging analysis accrual method will be added Board of Directors ~ Accounts receivable, 6,333,695

to bad debt provision for a portfolio according to

Other receivables,

credit risk characteristics; Reasons: More cautious Undistributed

and reasonable to determine the amount of bad profits,

debt reserves, through strengthen corporate Impairment losses
accounts receivable management and promptly on assets

prevent and control the risk of impairment of
receivables, Available from 1 December 2017

24. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
the Group is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of items in the
financial statements that cannot be measured accurately,
due to the internal uncertainty of the operating activities.
These judgments, estimates and assumptions are based on
historical experiences of the Group’s management as well
as other factors that are considered to be relevant. These
judgments, estimates and assumptions affect the reporting
amounts of the income, expenses, assets and liabilities as
well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the balance
sheet date. However, actual results due to the uncertainty
of these estimates possibly vary from the current estimates
made by the Group management and therefore lead to
significant adjustments of carrying amounts of assets or

liabilities which will be affected in the future.

24 - EXEFHHE MG

AEBETERGBRBRET - R
BEBNENTHEEN  AEEFTEYH
BRERGENMRIARNREEEE
TTHE - AR MERER - ELHE - &
AMEBEREERAREEEERENE
SRE - WHEERHEMBERERNEAR
EfHE o LA - BENRREY
BWA - BR - BEMAENHRSDE
UEEERBERAXBRENEKE - A
- E L e IR P B B B IR
R EEAREEREEANMGT
EER  EMERBRARIZENEE
HEENRASRETEARE -
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

24. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

(Continued)

The Group regularly reviews the aforesaid judgments,

estimates and assumptions on the basis of continuous

operation. Where the changes in accounting estimates only

impact the current period, the impact shall be recognized

during the current period; where such changes impact

both the current and future periods, the impact shall be

confirmed during the current and future periods when such

changes occur.

The significant areas where the Group is required to make

judgments, estimates and assumptions regarding financial

statement items are listed as follows:

(1)

2

Operating lease -as the lessor

The Group had contract on the investment properties.
The Group retains all the significant risks and rewards
according to the lease contract and thus accounts for

the operating lease.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests whether the goodwill is impaired
at least annually. This requires the evaluation of the
present value of the future cash flows on the groups
of assets or group of assets with allocated goodwill.
Upon the evaluation of the present value, the Group
should evaluate the future cash flows of the group
of assets or groups of assets using the appropriate
discounted rate. When the actual cash flows are lower
than the predicted cash flows, there might be material

impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

24. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

(Continued)

3

(4)

Provision for inventory impairment based on the

net realizable value

The Group recognizes provision for inventory
impairment according to the net realizable value of
the inventory. Provision for inventory impairment is
required to be recognized when there is sign showing
that the net realizable value is lower than cost. The
Group will reevaluate whether the inventory is obsolete
and slow-moving, and the net realizable value is
lower than the cost at each year end. If the result of
new estimation differs from current estimation, such
difference will impact the book value of inventory for

the corresponding period.

Provision for bad debt of receivables

The Group recognizes provision for bad debts
according to the management’s judgement on
recoverability of receivables. When there is sign
showing that a the recoverable amount is lower than
its book value, provision for bad debts is required
to be recognized. The management will conduct
the revaluation at each year end. If the result of
new estimation differs from current estimation, such
difference will impact the book value of receivables for

the corresponding period.
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24 - EXEFHHE MG E (E)

3

(4)
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

24. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

(Continued)

(5)

(6)

Depreciation

The Group accounts for the depreciation on straight-
line basis in the predictable useful life after considering
the residual value. The Group reviews the predictable
useful life to calculate the amount of depreciation in
the reporting period. The Group estimates the useful
life of fixed assets based on experience of actual
useful life of fixed asset of similar nature and function.
Significant changes relating to the estimation will result

in adjustment of depreciation in future periods.

Deferred tax assets

At the balance sheet date, the Group will assess
whether the recognition of the deferred tax assets will
be made. A deferred tax asset should be recognized
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary
differences or unused tax losses can be utilized and
the Group should make appropriate estimates and
judgments when considering whether there will be
enough taxable profit. Deferred tax assets should be
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the period when the asset is realized or the liability
is settled. If the actual earnings accrued in the future
is more than estimates, or the actual tax rate is higher
than estimates, such deferred tax asset shall be
recognized in the consolidated income statement in the

six months in which they are incurred.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

24. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

(Continued)

(7)

Credits system for customers

Sales of goods that result in award credits for
customers, under the Group’s customer loyalty
programme, are accounted for as multiple element
revenue transactions and the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable is allocated

between the goods sold and the award credits

C BEESBRENS A (@)

24 « AR A (2)

(7) EEFESHE

B NEEED RRNRLEW SR
BAKEERAMMONERREN LR
TAEMBHANE BAAEE
B BBMENKRNAEM-HE
BREERT  NEBREEEAR
=B AEEBREEE FER

BOMEBERANER  HEHA
NERETENG - LRBELT

Such consideration is not recognized as revenue at WantREE o

granted. The consideration allocated to the award

credits is measured by reference to their fair value.

the time of the initial sale transaction but is deferred
and recognized as revenue when the award credits
are redeemed and the Group’s obligations have been

fulfilled.
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V. TAXATION

Major taxes and tax rates

Tax types
HE

Value-added tax
AR

Consumption tax
HE

City construction and
maintenance tax

YT R R R

Education surcharge

BB

Local education surcharge

I A B0

Corporate income tax

EEFEHR

F BB
1 TEFERBER
Tax basis Tax rate
BB B
Note 1 17%/13%/11%/6%/5%
R

Taxable sales subject to consumption tax

THEDETA
Value-added tax, business tax and consumption tax
R

Value-added tax, business tax and consumption tax

&

Value-added tax, business tax and consumption tax

&

Taxable income

FEMNTR PS8

5%

5%/7%

3%/4%

2%

See table below

FHAETR

Taxable entities Tax basis Tax rate of income tax
MR ERE TR & FRIGBIB =R
Chaopi Maolisheng Hong Kong Co., Ltd. Note 2 16.5%
YR A TSGR LA 52

Hong Kong Chaopi Asia Company Limited Note 2 16.5%
BRI TEMER AR T2

Others 25%
Hih &N a]

Note 1: The value-added tax payable is the residual value of the 1 EANSET A IER RE R AT I B

RIOMER - HARBEREERETUARE
FHEEHEREE -

output value-added tax after deduction of input value-
added tax. The output value-added tax is computed on a
basis of sales resolved by relevant tax laws.

Note 2: CARRBZ FARPHRENATEERA
AREFPRTMNERRA /BB
MAZERF] - RBEERBOEER
E o REMENHER16.5% ©

The Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Maolisheng Hong Kong
Company Limited and Hong Kong Chaopi Asia Company
Limited were registered and established in Hong Kong and
in accordance with Hong Kong taxation law its corporate

income tax rate was 16.5%.
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V. TAXATION (Continued)

Tax incentives and approvals

According to the Circular of the paragraph 86, item 1, point
7, the scope of the preferential policy of primary processing
of agricultural products relating to the business tax issued
by the Ministry of Finance, State Administration of Taxation
on 20 November 2008, the Group obtained the right of
exemption of relevant income tax of the primarily processed

agricultural products in the fresh logistics center.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Al AMOUNTS IN RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

Cash and bank balances

ltem IEH
Cash on hand EFRE
Cash in bank RITIFR

Other cash and bank balances (Note 1) EftE¥E S (5£1)

A -BIEGE)

2 BlEER#X

R AR K B SR AR 75 48 TR 2008 F 11
H20 A EMEKBERERZZLEME
BEERRNBRERMTEHEGGTT)
HBAE86IR(—)B7THMME - A%
I3 R A M B X D R EE R D AR AN
TEMMTASHENEEMEH

BN BRREBERE

BREBERIN RRASBEELHRARY

2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—E—+F —E—RF
+=B=+—-8 | +t—A=+—H

17,831,167 18,903,274
911,677,717 594,227,999
138,694,444 231,709,165

Total &5t
Including: Overseas deposits (Note 2)

1,068,203,328 844,840,438

Hep - FRAERINRIRARE(FE2) 7,067,378 5,622,576

Note 1: As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s margin deposits
with use restrictions was RMB122,714,742 (31 December
2016: RMB207,259,165), and details were referred to
Note (VI) 19 Notes payable. The credit margin deposits
amounted to RMB15,979,702 (31 December 2016:
RMB24,450,000).

Note 2: The overseas deposits were the deposits of Chaopi
Maolisheng Hong Kong Company Limited in The Hong
Kong and Shanghai Bank Corporation Limited and China
Everbright Bank Hong Kong Branch.

#1: R2017F12A31H - AEBEBFAE
ZERFNBERBSERAARSE
122,714,74278(20165F12 318 + A
R#207,259,1657C) * 2 R MIFEN -
19 BNRE - GERERBLERR
AR 15,979,702 (2016 12 A 31
A : AR#24,450,0007T) °

2 - FRERINORITERRPXN T E
BAERQRFRNEBELZRITMHE
RRBITEBNTT ©
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < 80t RBEA TR (&)

(Continued)
2. Notes receivable 2 EWE
2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—E—tHF e AES
ltem EA +=ZA=+—-8 | tZA=+—H
Bank acceptances RITHEHESR 1,550,000 -
Trade acceptances B EANES - -
Total &t 1,550,000 -
3. Accounts receivable 3~ EWERR
(1) 31 December 2017 (1) 2017%12531H
Presentation of accounts receivable by category: FEUER R I 7
2017.12.31
ZE-tETZAZ1-H
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
RESE BEER
Net book
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount Rate (%) value
Category g k2] $4(%) 88 HRIA(%) KEEE

Receivables that are individually significant and for ~ EESEB AT E BT RER
which bad debt provision is assessed individually  EBE)EUZE - - - - -
Recelvables for which bad debt provision is assessed (= BER K& EA 256
by groups according to credit risk characteristics — EE&)EGIE 1,365,754,992 100 6,333,695 - 1,350,421,207
Recelvables that are not individualy signficant but ~ EE4EFEXEEEHESE
for which the bad debt provision is assessed EENEINGE
indlvidually - - - - -

Total At 1,365,754,992 100 6,333,695 1,359,421,297
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < &fBiEHEREETE(Z)
(Continued)
3. Accounts receivable (Continued) 3 EWERR(E)
(1) 31 December 2017 (Continued) (1) 2017%12531H (&)

JRE W BR SR A A HE TR, B AR E Y

Presentation of accounts receivable according to aging

analysis on the basis of the date when revenue is BRERIAT ¢
recognized:
2017.12.31
—E—tHF+=A=+—H

Carrying Bad debt Net book

amount Proportion (%) provision value
Aging ot} b 51 (%) RIREE REEE
Within 1 year 1,289,547,706 94 - 1,289,547,706
1-2 years 42,964,556 3 1,288,937 41,675,619
2-3 years 21,772,826 2 2,177,282 19,595,544
3-4 years 11,469,904 1 2,867,476 8,602,428
4-5 years - - - -
Over 5 years - - - -
Total 1,365,754,992 100 6,333,695 1,359,421,297

Aging analysis method is used to a portfolio of bad

mesh  BRERDITERER

debt provision JE B FEULBR R
2017.12.31
—E—tF+=ZHA=+—H

Accounts Bad debt Provision
receivables provision ratio (%)
Aging FEURBR R HIRERE  FHREEGI(%)
Within 1 year 1,289,547,706 - 0
1-2 years 42,964,556 1,288,937 3
2-3 years 2E3F 21,772,826 2,177,282 10
3-4 years 3E4F 11,469,904 2,867,476 25
4-5 years 4355 - - 50
Over 5 years 5F AL - - 100

Total A&t 1,365,754,992 6,333,695
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHzEETE (&)

(Continued)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued) 3 EWERMRGE)
(1) 2017%12531H (%)
AEFH O BRI

Accumulated bad
debt provision

(1) 31 December 2017 (Continued)

Reversals in the current year:

Content of accounts Reversal Basis of recognizing the prior to reversals Amount of
receivable reasons previously bad debt provision HE AR e reversals
AL TR BEHERE BERERERDKE ROBREFSE BE&E
Beijing Lotus Supermarket Wholly recovered  Part of fund exceed normal 4,042,602 4,042,602
Chain Co., Ltd. settlement period that is
uncertainly to recover.
RSB EHET [RE=E HoFERBEREERS
BRAT BRI TN
Beijing Resources Vanguard Wholly recovered  Part of fund exceed normal 507,110 507,110
Life Supermarket Co., Ltd settlement period that is
uncertainly to recover.
ITREREREEBD [EE=E HAFERBEREERS
BRAF EmyEE T I
Total At 4,549,712 4,549,712

(2) 31 December 2016 (2) 2016%12H31H

Presentation of accounts receivable by category: JEYBR TR 0 $A IR BR
2016.12.31
ZE-EtZA=1-H
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
BERE SRER
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount Rate (%)  Net book value
Category 7 | 54)%) 28 FHRLAI%) FEEE
Receivables that are inolvidually significant and for ~ BESEEAY BB TR
which bad debt provision is assessed individualy ~ EfgHEIEUE 28,023,259 2 4,042,602 14 23,980,657
Receivables for which bad debt provision is EERRRERALTEER
assessed by groups according to credit risk EENENE
characteristics 1,006,781,013 %8 - - 1,666,781,013
Recelvables that are not indivicually signfficant but ~ EIB4EAEA BB S
for which the bad debt provision s assessed REBNELZE
individlually 4,289,458 - 2,261,016 53 2,028,442
Total At 1,699,093,730 100 6,303,618 1,692,790,112
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

3.

Accounts receivable (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2016 (Continued)

Presentation of accounts receivable according to aging

RN ERREETEE)
3 EWERR(E)

(2) 2016%12H31H (%)
R AR RER IR ARER B R B

analysis on the basis of the date when revenue is BRERIAT ¢
recognized:
2016.12.31
—E—R"Ft+=-A=+—H
Carrying Bad debt
amount  Proportion (%) provision Net book value

Aging BRER G EEA1(%) EIREE FREEE
Within 1 year 1F AR 1,647,446,756 91 — 1,547,446,756
1-2 years 1824 39,825,714 2 66,264 39,759,450
2-3 years 2E3F 30,046,088 2 4,483,448 25,562,640
3-4 years 3E4F 21,266 - - 21,266
4-5 years 4Z5F 1,753,906 - 1,753,906 -
Over 5 years 5F M E 80,000,000 5 - 80,000,000
Total a5t 1,699,093,730 100 6,303,618 1,692,790,112
Receivables that are not individually significant but for FREFESHEAABFMRER
which the bad debt provision is assessed individually: FEFR EBERA -
Content of accounts Bad debt
receivable Amount provision Rate(%) Reason
EWERAR ARTH &R %E ZReH STHELEDI(%) M
Beijing Lotus 28,023,259 4,042,602 14 Part of fund exceed normal

Supermarket Chain settlement period that is

Co., Ltd. uncertainly to recover.
1L 5 BT AT HORIERBEEHEERS -

BRAF H@H&T‘ETEE Ii{

2017 &3} 1734
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHzEETE (&)

(Continued)
3. Accounts receivable (Continued) 3 EWERMRGE)

(2) 31 December 2016 (Continued) (2) 2016%F12H31H (%)
Receivables that are not individually significant but for FREFSEIENBEFRE
which the bad debt provision is assessed individually: BREER FEUERTX ¢
Content of accounts Bad debt
receivable Amount provision Rate(%) Reason
JEWERR AR IR BAER EReR sTHRLEBI(%) e
Beijing Resources 2,535,552 507,110 20 Part of fund exceed normal

Vanguard Life settlement period that is
Supermarket Co., Ltd. uncertainly to recover.
I RERBREEET BoFEBREFHEERR - B
BRAF BV AFTE T RETE 1
Liu Liangguo 1,753,906 1,753,906 100 Controversial debts which are
unlikely to recover
2556 BB A SRR EEREE H BIRE
AT K
(3) Significant accounts receivable written off 3) EEHEREZZIERER
Due to
The nature related party
of accounts transactions
Name of entity  receivable Amount Reason Procedure =B R
BUEB FEW AR R E R#EESE BRHERE BTN RERRF REEE
Liu liangguo Payment 1,753,906 The relevant responsible  Approved by the No
person is handled and manager’s office
still unlikely to received meeting
EbRtE =t MEREE (E AR IR IEERAEHAE B
RiZ S EENIE Nl
Total 1,753,906
&&t
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(Continued)

3.

Accounts receivable (Continued)

accounts receivable

31 December 2017

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 7

(4) Top five entities with the largest balances of

Aot BmRAEEERE)

3 FEWRRRR(E)

All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)

(4) BXFATGERFRGERLEL

R IER
2017512A31H

Proportion of

the amount

to the total Closing

accounts  balance of

receivable bad debt

Relationship with the (%) provision

Name of entity Group Amount  Aging kWS BRER

Efif# HARERE tE  FR BHLAI%) EREE

Beijing Wu-mart Store Co., Ltd. (‘Wu-mart’) Independent third party 369,305,418 Within 3 years 27 672,338
IRnERA BT ARARD (A TEE 1%]) BuE=H LN

Beiing Jingdong Century Trade Co., Ltd. (“Jingdong’) Independent third party 204,964,499 Within 3 years 15 61,808
IRRREEESRRATDATHERR]) BuE=H SEHR

Vipshop (China) Holdings Limited (*Vipshop) Independent third party 161,995,848 Within 1 year 12 -
e (e AR AR TERERE]) BUE=F EAN

Beijing Carrefour Commercial Co. Ltd., (‘Carrefour’) Independent third party 53,418,245  Within 3 years 4 75,949
IRFEREFARRA (AT BRI FEE]) BugE=h SEUR

Beiiing Yonghui Superstores Co. Ltd. (*Yonghul") Independent third party 43,794,985 Within 2 years 3 45,645
FRABEEER LA TER KB BUE=H %ENR

Total 833,488,995 61 855,640

At
L ) 2017 F 4 4 754
ERREERERERNBRAR
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHzEETE (&)

(Continued)
3. Accounts receivable (Continued) 3 EWERMRGE)
(4) Top five entities with the largest balances of (4) BRAGTEHEEWFARGEITEN
accounts receivable (Continued) FEW RS 185 (&)
31 December 2016 2016F12H31H
Proportion of
the amount
to the total Closing
accounts balance of bad
receivable (%)  debt provision
Name of entity Relationship with the Group Amount  Aging BERER SHRERE
EAR HAZEBWK 28 £R EBal%) ERLE
Beiing Wu-mart Store Co., Ltd.("Wu-mart’) Independent third party 452,583,097 Within 2 years 27 -
ERMEG A BT ARAR (AT ERE £ BuE=Hh 2EHR
Beiing Jingdong Century Trade Co., Ltd. (“Jingdong”) Independent third party 211,721,023 Within 2 years 12 -
IRRRELESERAR (A THRE X)) BiE=H 2EHA
Vipshop (China) Holdings Limited (“Vipshop”) Independent third party 204,527,901 Within 2 years 12 -
RE(FE)BRARATHRE ERE]) BUE=5 2EHRA
Shoulian Group Co., Ltd. (“Shoulian Group”) Independent third party 80,000,000  Over 5 years 5 -
FREREEERERAR(TER ELEE]) BUE=H 5EH L
Jumei International Holdings Limited (*Jume”) Independent third party 69,490,970  Within 1 year 4 -
REEZBOMEARAD(MTER ZEER]) BUE=5 EDE
Total 1,018,322,991 60 -
&3t
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < &fBiEHEREETE(Z)
(Continued)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued) 3 EWERERGE)

(4) Top five entities with the largest balances of

(4) BXHATGERFRGER L EH

accounts receivable (Continued)

The Group normally allows a credit period of no more
than 90 days to its customers with a longer credit

period of 180 days granted to its major customers.

On 31 December 2017, the total accounts receivable
due from Wu-mart, Beijing Carrefour Commercial
Co., Ltd., Beijing Lotus Supermarket Chain Co., Ltd.,
Beijing Yonghui Superstores Co., Ltd., Jingdong, Jumei
International Holdings Limited, Vipshop, and Lefeng
(Shanghai) Information Technology Company Limited
amounted to RMB428,485,860 (31 December 2016:
RMB374,369,708) were limited by being factored to

secure certain bank loans of the Group.

Pursuant to the factoring agreement between the
Group and HSBC, HSBC provides a bank loan for
amount of not exceeding 70% of accounts receivable
factoring to the Group. HSBC collected the entire
amount of accounts receivable and is only required
to pay the Group any amount it collects in excess of
the loan amount. As the Group has not transferred
specifically identifiable cash flows, fully proportionate
share of all or part of the cash flows or part of
specifically identifiable cash flows, the Group cannot
apply the derecognition model to part of the factored

accounts receivable.

FEWRF R ()

FEABRFE B S 290K » £
BEFAUERE180K °

2017812 A318 - i3 -
IRREBHEFRAT - bR
SMEREHEHBTARAR - I
RKBBTERAA  RE -
AREERXERREERAA
MRE - #E(LEE)EFERRM
BRATOERERET AR
428,485,860 7T(2016 4 12 A 31
H: AR#374,369,7087T) K B
B AAEBBRETHER
RITERMZEIRS] o

RIBA S B HE SIRITRBORIE
W EERTAAEERERT
HIBEM R IRIZEZ R 70%H IR
B o (B RTT YHR B Y BR X
Me®E  EAANEEXNEB
EREEOA - AARKEBER
BRREARETHE - THRHM

CHEARERERREREN—
ELHPINBRERETEE - ATk
REBOE—FLH - Bt - K&
B e ETTIRIZ A FE U BR AR 3

JEFR AR IEHRERIBEED o

Hp
DH

D

| }

]
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1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <
(Continued)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(4) Top five entities with the largest balances of

accounts receivable (Continued)

Since factored accounts receivable is on full recourses
basis, the Group has not transferred the significant
risks and rewards relating of these receivables, it
continues to recognize the receivables and has
recognized the cash received from the bank as

accounts receivable secured loan (See Note (VI)18).

Content of accounts receivable

Carrying amount of transferred assets EREENREEE
Carrying amount of related liabilities B ENEEERE
Net book value R

- B BRRERERE)

3 FEWRRRR(E)

(4) BXFGERHFRGHEINLEL
PRI 1ER (&)
HETHZRENEYERER
BRE AEEYREBEZERE
Yo B 3R AT B R b KRR M ¥R
B Rt EEERERER X
AAEERTT IR B O 3R £ HERR A B W BR
FARIEE R (HIFEN ~ 18) ©

Factoring accounts receivable
on full recourses basis

BRRENBURERRE
2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—g—t7F —T—x
+=A=+-8| t=B=t-~
428,485,860 374,369,708
115,521,058 166,655,041
312,964,802 207,714,667

4. Prepayments

(1) Presentation of prepayments according to aging

4~ FENFE

(1) FANFBZRE ST

analysis
2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—E2—tH+ZHA=+—H —ZE-RE+ZA=1+—H
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount  Proportion(%)
Aging IR R &5 L A51(%) o5 EE151(%)
Within 1 year 1E AR 662,157,731 100 |1,198,834,416 100
Total Bt 662,157,731 100 |1,198,834,416 100
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < &fBiEHEREETE(Z)
(Continued)

/i,?tﬂ\

4. Prepayments (Continued) 4~ FERRIEE)

(2) BENHREEFRGHEINLEL

(2) Top five entities with the largest balances of

prepayments

31 December 2017

FANABER
20175128311

Relationship Unsettled

Name of entity with the Group Amount Aging reason
ENER BASEBE 2 ER REERE
Yibin Wuliangye Liquor Sales Co., Ltd. Independent third party 91,498,674 Within 1 year  Haven't received goods
HERRRERHEEREALA BUE=H 1ELR EAYEIEN
Shanghai Nestle Products Services Co., Ltd. Independent third party 45,599,484 Within 1 year  Haven't received goods
TEREERREERLA BUE=F TEHRA HARREN &N
Beijing Red Bull Vitamin Drink Co., Ltd. Independent third party 40,694,396 Within 1 year ~ Haven't received goods
ERmIHERGHRHEREER Bug=h 1ELAR EARYEE
Wall's (China) Co., Ltd. Tlanjlﬂ Branch Independent third party 30,164,401 Within 1 year  Haven't received goods
MEE(PE)ERATREA R BUE=H 1ELAR HARME &N
Kweichow Maotai wine Marketing Co., Ltd. Independent third party 25,913,538 Within 1 year  Haven't received goods
BNFaERERHEERAR BUE=H 1ENUR EARYEIE
Total 233,870,493
At
31 December 2016 2016%12H31H
Name of entity Relationship with the Group Amount Aging Unsettled reason
B AR ERREBRA ki ER AEERA
Yibin Wuliangye Liquor Sales Co., Ltd. Independent third party 478,335,139 Within 1 year  Haven't received goods
HERRRERHEEREALTA BUE=H 1ELAR EARNEI S
Shanghai Nestle Products Services Co., Ltd. Independent third party 54,867,456 Within 1 year  Haven't received goods
TEREERREERLA BUE=F TEHRA HARRE &N
Moutai (Kweichow Renhuai) Marketing Co.,Ltd. Independent third party 45,257,637 Within 1 year ~ Haven't received goods

BIEF A (BMCE)2HERAF BuZ=h 1ELAR EARAEE
He Bei Cheng De Lolo Co., Ltd. Independent third party 41,963,660 Within 1 year  Haven't received goods
ALXAEERRHERAF BUE=H 1ELA HARNREIE
Ferrero Trade (Shanghai) Co.,Ltd. Independent third party 25,984,845 Within 1 year ~ Haven't received goods
B3ZE5(L8)ERAA BUE=H 1A mARREEY
Total 646,408,737
At

L ) 2017 F 4 4 794
I RREEREEERGERAQAF]
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHzEETE (&)

(Continued)
5. Other receivables 5 HhEWR
(1) 31 December 2017 (1) 2017%12H31H
Presentation of other receivables by category: HAb U GR D FaHE BR
2017.12.31
“E-tF+ZA=1-H
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
BESE BRER
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%) Net book value
Category L=}l 2] Hofl(%) S8 GREA%) L
Other receivables that are individually ERSBEAVEBHIERE
significant and for which bad debt RENEHER
provision is assessed individually 5,312,250 3 4,224,750 80 1,087,500

Other receivables for which bad debt BERERRAALHESE
provision is assessed by groups according R E U
to credit risk characteristics 168,846,113 97 - - 168,846,113
Other receivables that are not individually ~ B4 EAEABEB:HIEE
significant but for which the bad debt FRENE MR
provision is assessed individually - - - - -

Total A 174,158,363 100 4,224,750 169,933,613
Presentation of other receivables according to aging HoAt e MR AR R A0 T
analysis:
2017.12.31
“E-tFtZR=1-H

Carrying amount Proportion(%) Bad debt provision  Net book value
Aging fRie E2 £ (%) BRER REEE
Within 1 year 1ENA 168,846,113 97 - 168,846,113
1-2 years 1208 - - - -
2-3 years 2E3F - - - -
3-4 years 324F - - - -
4-5 years 4255 - - - -
QOver 5 years 5% F 5,312,250 3 4,224,750 1,087,500
Total At 174,158,363 100 4,224,750 169,933,613
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

5. Other receivables (Continued)

(1) 31 December 2017 (Continued)

Other receivables that are individually significant and for

which the bad debt provision is assessed individually:

Carrying

Content of other receivables amount
HitEWEAR RESE
5,312,250

Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Market Co., Ltd.
EREEEMBETHERAR

Bad debt
provision

BREH
4,004,750

B FS R I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)

N A BHRREEERE)

5 HABWERE)

(1) 2017%412531H (4#&)

Rate(%)
HRELAI(%)

80

EAREES BE AL EH LS

4 A H M FE R
Reason
B

Full bad debt provision for the part unrecovered,
according to the agreement

BEENHE - SRUEEDHRRRER

Aging analysis method is used to a portfolio of bad

debt provision

e mEREROIETIRERE
) LA R TR

2017.12.31
—E—tFt+=-A=1+—-H

Other Bad debt Provision
receivables provision ratio (%)
Aging IR H{th FE KRR HIRERE FT R EE (%)
Within 1 year 1 LAR 168,846,113 - 0
1-2 years 1226 - - 3
2-3 years 2ZE34F - - 10
3-4 years 3E4F - - 25
4-5 years 455 - - 50
Over 5 years 5F LA - - 100

Total At 168,846,113 -

2017 &3} 1814
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A ARARA]

 Yalos

o—

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

II/

B FS R I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2017%#E
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RET)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHzEETE (&)

(Continued)

5. Other receivables (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2016

5

Presentation of other receivables by category:

HitEW R (&)
(2) 2016%F12H31H

H A AR D SEIREE

2016.12.31
ZE-EtZA=t-H
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
REAE SRER
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%) Net book value
Category L] x| £ (%) 28 FRRA%) FEER
Other receivables that are individually EESREAVERHRER
significant and for which bad debt EBOE R
provision is assessed individually 5,762,250 2 4,224,750 73 1,637,500
Other receivables for which bad debt RERERSHAAT IR
provision is assessed by groups according Y E 1 FE LT3
to credit risk characteristics 255,756,717 9 - - 265,756,717
Other receivables that are not individually ~ BB EAEAAEEHIES
significant but for which the bad debt BB RN
provision is assessed individually - - - - -
Total = 261,518,967 100 4,224,750 257294217
Presentation of other receivables according to aging Hith FEUCRER BRI T
analysis:
2016.12.31
“Z—Ft+-A=T-H
Carrying amount Proportion(%) ~ Bad debt provision Net book value
Aging i Ex] LL %) FHRER FHEE
Within 1 year FLHR 236,176,383 9 - 236,176,383
1-2 years 150% 13,477,068 5 - 13,477,068
2-3 years 253F 6,103,266 2 - 6,103,266
3-4 years REYL:S - - - -
4-5 years 4E5% - - - -
Over 5 years 5E £ 5,762,250 2 4,224,750 1,637,500
Total At 261,518,967 100 4,224,750 257294217
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHREETE (&)

(Continued)
5. Other receivables (Continued) 5 HihEWRE)
(2) 31 December 2016 (Continued) (2) 2016%F12H31H (%)
Other receivables that are individually significant and for FREFESHEEAWEBHRER
which the bad debt provision is assessed individually: EAE Y EL Ath FE LR
Carrying Bad debt
Content of other receivables amount provision Rate(%) Reason
EtRBHAE RENE ZHRe® RO B
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Market Co., Ltd. 5,762,250 4,224,750 73 Full bad debt provision for the part unrecovered,
EREEERSETSERAR according to the agreement
BREARE - HRUEHHHRERER
Reversals in the current year: ANAEEO A ERIN T
Accumulated bad

Content of other Basis of recognizing the debt provision Amount of
receivables Reversal reasons previously bad debt provision prior to reversals reversals

HBE R E
HttEW R AR EHEWERE BERFRERHKE ROZRERSE HELH
Beijing Bailitongda Wholly recovered  Controversial debts which are 1,171,772 1,171,772

E-commerce Co., Ltd. unlikely to recovgr
TRAMNBEREARLR 22HBkE EHABRREEFAEMKE
EEZ:RIN
(3) Presentation of other receivables by nature (3) BHEMELREMEKS

2017.12.31 2016.12.31

—E—tF —EAF
Nature of other receivables H b B E +=A=+—H +=-—A=+—H
Receivables of promotional activities FEWR SHE 146,103,939 122,918,565
Receivables of deposit W RES KRS 388,193 56,737,553
Others EHh 23,441,481 77,638,099
Total a5t 169,933,613 257,294,217

2017 &3} 1834
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

N AHPBHRREAEERE)

5. Other receivables (Continued) 5 HiEWRE)

(4) BXFGHERHFRGHEINLER
b E W 5

2017612A31H

(4) Top five entities with the largest balances of other

receivables

31 December 2017

4‘18

Proportion of Closing

the amount to balance

Closing the total other of bad debt

Company name Nature of other receivables balance  Aging receivable (%) provision

e BRER

EUEH HEtE EREE ER BERAILLBI (%) ERHE

Shanghai Jahwa E-commerce Co., Ltd. Promotion fee 28,990,401 Within 2 year 17 -
FERICEFAKERAT RHE 2F LA

Beijing Wu-mart Store Co Ltd. Promotion fee 19,357,389 Within 3 year 11 -
ErPEGaBEmERAR RRHE SELA

Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Market Co., Ltd.  Receivables of prepaid rent 5,312,260  Over 5 years 3 4,224,750
FREEARBETEERAA EREE 5% E

Unicharm daily necessities (China) Co., Ltd. Receivables of promotional 2,654,669  Within 1 year 2 -
AREEERR(FE)ARAT activities TEHRA

ELiEHER

Henkel (China) Investment Co., Ltd. Promotion fee 2,627,870 Within 1 year 1 -
ER(hE)REERAR feHE 1EHR

Total 58,842,579 34 4,224,750

ait
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < &fBiEHEREETE(Z)
(Continued)

5. Other receivables (Continued) 5 HihEWRE)

(4) Top five entities with the largest balances of other

(4) BXAGHERHFRGENLER
oIER (&)

receivables (Continued)

31 December 2016

2016512A31H

Proportion of Closing
the amount to balance
Nature of other Closing the total other of bad debt
Company name receivables balance  Aging receivable (%) provision
BRI BHRERE
B A FURNE FReE &R BERLHI%) FRBE
Shoulian Group Borrowing and margin 100,000,000  Within 1 year 38 -
EHEE ERRkRES 1ELR
Beii ijing Guanyuan Wholesale Market Co., Ltd. Receivables of prepaid 5,762,250  Over 5 years 2 4,224,750
IREERm ETSERAR rent SEE
B
Jingdong Receivables of promotional 4,835,249 Within 1 year 2 -
*% activities 1EUR
FREHER
THEFACESHOP(Shanghai) Cosmetics Sales Receivables of promotional 4,793,005 Within 1 year 2 -
d. activities 1R
*E; J ﬁ(kﬂtﬁﬁuﬂuﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ FRiEHER
Citi Guoan Wine Marketing Co., Ltd. Receivables of promotional 4,496,234 Within 1 year 2 -
HEEREEEE e EARAR activities 1R
ERRHER
Total 119,886,738 46 4,224,750
At
2017 3 15 4
ERREERERERNBRAR
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < 8B HREETE(Z)
(Continued)
6. Inventories 6 FE&
(1) Presentation of inventories by category (1) HESE
2017.12.31

—E—tE+=ZHA=1-H
Carrying amount Impairment  Net book value
ltem JEH IREEAE BREEE REEE
Merchandise inventory B Em 1,769,016,192 - 1,769,016,192
Raw material R R 20,609,749 - 20,609,749
Goods in process THEm 90,328 - 90,328
Low-value consumables RKESESR 3,726 - 3,726
Total A 1,789,719,995 - 1,789,719,995

2016.12.31

—T-RF+=ZA=+—H
Carrying amount Impairment Net book value
ltem HH REfE BEAERE REEE
Merchandise inventory EFEm 1,707,979,811 1,377,122 1,706,602,689
Raw material AR 17,307,369 - 17,307,369
Goods in process EES 281,601 - 281,601
Low-value consumables KESER 3,013 - 3,013
Total At 1,725,571,794 1,377,122 1,724,194,672

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, no

inventories were pledged or guaranteed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 #RaR I o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHREETE (&)

(Continued)
6. Inventories (Continued) 6 FE#E)
(2) Impairment allowance of inventories (2) HFEHRBERE
For the year ended at 31 December 2017 20175 E
2017.1.1 2017.12.31
—E-tF Provision  Decrease in the current year “E-iF
ltem BEEE —-A-H REHREE KERD +-B=+-H
Reversal Written-off
H[ B
Merchandise inventory ERER 1,377,122 - - 1,377,122 -
For the year ended at 31 December 2016 20165 E
2016.1.1 2016.12.31
“E-REF Provision  Decrease in the current year —ERF
ltem FERESE —A—H REFHEE KERD +ZA=1+—H
Reversal Written-off
[ iy
Merchandise inventory ETFrE 1,666,282 - 43,197 245,963 1,377,122
7. Other current assets 7 HitRBEE
2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—ZT—tF —TRF

Iltem HH t=R=+—-8| t=A=+—H

Short-term investments (Note 1-3) RHIRE (F51-3) 25,800,000 50,000,000

Deductible input value-added tax FIRIE IR 148,176,268 199,986,173

Prepaid lease expenses SERESER 32,534,912 36,634,174

Prepaid heating expenses SRR ER 2,906,124 2,633,219

Other prepaid expenses (Note 4) HEFEEm(GE4) 6,251,296 4,017,107

Total aat 215,668,600 293,270,673

Note 1: On 25 December 2017, Chaopi Huansheng, a subsidiary 1 B EE 2 T RARIFHIR RN 2017 F
of Chaopi Trading, held principal-guaranteed floating- 12258 MFREERERITRHARD
income financial products of RMB12,000,000 managed ARARTZB WA IEMEMARE
by Agricultural Bank of China Limited with annual yield 12,000,0007C * HE (=R FB2%E
2% to 3.1%. The principal and interest of such short- 3.1% ° 201842 268 « G H&
term investments were fully recovered respectively on 26 EAS KA S EFEKE -

February 2018.

Note 2: On r 27 December 2017, Chaopi Jiusheng, a subsidiary T2 B E 2 T AR E N 2017 F
of Chaopi Trading, held principal-guaranteed floating- 1227 B EEBITROHAERA A
income financial products of RMB8,800,000 managed BARKTIBD RGBT EMARE
by Agricultural Bank of China Limited with annual yield 8,800,0007C * EF M mER2%E
2% to 3.1%. The principal and interest of such short- 3.1% ° 720181 A30R8 » ZEHK
term investments were fully recovered respectively on 30 EARS RFEDEERE -

January 2018. 2017 58 1874
IR REEREERERG AR AR



\ A

I \4 i Fjb

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 RaR I o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2017%#E
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RET)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <  &4tBI s REE FE (&)
(Continued)
7. Other current assets (Continued) 7 HiRBEEE)

Note 3: On 26 July 2017, Tangshan Baishun, a subsidiary of IS MM E s FAREILAIER20174
Chaopi Trading, held BOC accumulates daily — plans to 7H26BEFHARITEARIERDTEA
manage wealth management products of RMB5,000,000 2 — BHEH 228 E & A K ¥5,000,000
managed by Bank of China Limited with annual yield TC - HF SR A2.8%E3% © #HlE
2.8% to 3%. The principal and interest of such short- AsRE A mAREE o
term investments are not recovered respectively until the
reporting date.

Note 4: Prepaid property fees, cleaning fees and security fees, etc. 4 AMFEMBERIZ0RBAYESRE R
are the primary expenses of other prepaid expenses. 2E  RELEBESE -

8. Auvailable-for-sale financial assets 8 WHEESREE
(1) Details of available-for-sale financial assets (1) AHEHELEHEZERR
2017.12.31 2016.12.31
Z8-tEtZA=t-8 ZE-RE+-f=1-8
Carrying Net book Carrying Net book
amount  Impairment value amount  Impairment value
ltem B BESE  AEREE  BEEE | FESE NEEE  REEE
Avalable-for-sale equity instrument At HERERTA
Including: Measured by fair value EmRAABETER 11,398,000 - 11,398,000 | 4,818,000 - 4818000
Measured by cost HRAAG B 1,188,000 1,188,000 - | 26123200 1,188,000 24,935,200
Total &t 12,586,000 1,188,000 11,398,000 | 30,941,200 1,188,000 29,753,200
(2) Available-for-sale financial assets measured at fair (2) FAREALBEIIEBHNARLHES

AEE

value at the end of period

Available-for-sale equity instrument

418

AfHERRTA

\ 2017.12.31 2016.12.31

Category AtHESCHAENE “E—tF —Z—R
t=B=t-B| ftZA=t-H
Cost of equity instrument (Note 1) em TAMMARGI) 350,000 350,000
Fair value N EE / 11,398,000 4,818,000

Accumulative amount of other comprehensive ;%Eﬁir)\ﬁw%ﬁé\%zﬁé’\]@ L BEED

income by fair value kX 11,048,000 4,468,000
Accrued amount of asset impairment BATERESSE - -

g ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 #RaR I o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHREETE (&)

(Continued)
8. Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued) 8 MEHESHMEEE)
(3) Available-for-sale financial assets measured at cost 3) FAERAGEHTHREESHE
at the end of period E
31 December 2017 2017%12H31H
Carrying amount
IREERER
Increase in  Decrease in
Opening  the current  the current Closing
balance period period balance
Investee HREEN £9 REZM RERD X
Luoyang Chundu Group Limited & IEEHEIRNER LA
(Luoyang Chundu) (Note 2) (AT EBREREES]) (F2) 1,188,000 - - 1,188,000
Total At 1,188,000 - - 1,188,000
Provision for impairment of assets
REER
Increase in  Decrease in Cash
Opening the current the current Closing Share dividend in
balance period period balance proportion (%) the period
EHREEN  AERS
Investee BREEN B AEBM  XFEHY EX  BRIAI%) i
Luoyang Chundu Group BEEHEERHAERAT]
Limited (Luoyang (A THROEHES]) (F2)
Chundu) (Note 2) 1,188,000 - - 1,188,000 0.12 -
Total A 1,188,000 - - 1,188,000 -

2017 &3} 1894
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 15k MY 5 E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2017%#E
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RET)

II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHzEETE (&)

(Continued)
8. Auvailable-for-sale financial assets (Continued) 8 TAHtHESHMEEE)
(3) Available-for-sale financial assets measured at cost 3) FAREHRAGEHNTHREESHE
at the end of period (Continued) E(E)
31 December 2016 20165F12H31H
Carrying amount
REERE
Increase in - Decrease in
Opening  the current  the current Closing
balance period period balance
Investee WA EAL E4) AREL AERD E S
Beijing Lianchao Company Limited 1t RESBEEFR AT
(Lianchao Limited) (AT ERMEBAR]) 24,935,200 - - 24,935,200
Luoyang Chundu Group Limited B EHEERDERAR
(Luoyang Chundu) (Note 2) (ATEBIsBEER]) (F2) 1,188,000 - - 1,188,000
Total At 26,123,200 - - 26,123,200
Provision for imparment of assets
AR
Increase in - Decrease in Cash
Opening  the current  the current Closing Share  dividend in
balance period period balance  proportion (%)  the period
ERREEN
Investee BRA S £ AEEmM AERS EX BRI RERSAN
Beiing Lianchao Company 1t REHBRE£BR A
Limited (Lianchao Limited) (WA T &8 BB AT ) - - - - 15 -
Luoyang Chundu Group ~ ABEBEERNHBBRARF
Limited (Luoyang (AT ERE5ES]) (F2)
Chundu) (Note 2) 1,188,000 - - 1,188,000 0.12 -
Total At 1,188,000 - - 1,188,000 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FS R I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 E

All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

8. Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

(3) Available-for-sale financial assets measured at cost

at the end of period (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company,
subscribed for 100,000 legal person shares (RMB1
per share) of Shanxi Xinghuacun Fen Wine Factory
Co., Ltd. (Shanxi Xinghuacun) for RMB350,000
in November 1993. In the same year, Shanxi
Xinghuacun was listed in Shanghai Stock Exchange.
On 18 May 2012, Shanxi Xinghuacun issued a stock
dividend of 10 for 10 stocks based on the total
shares at 31 December 2011 to all shareholders
through the notice of 2011 annual general meeting.
As at 31 December 2017, Chaopi Trading possessed
0.023% of its equity in total (31 December 2016:
0.023%). In the current year ended at 31 December
2017, the increase in fair value, namely its market
value, of the Group’s available-for-sale financial
assets was RMB6,580,000 (2016: increased by
RMB964,000) and has been recognized into other
comprehensive income (Note (VI) 34).

Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company,
subscribed for 600,000 legal person shares (RMB1
per share) of Luoyang Chundu for RMB1,188,000 in
June 1993. At 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2016, Chaopi Trading possessed 0.12% of its equity.
As the deterioration of operating condition of Luoyang
Chundu, the Group took full provision for the long
term equity investment whose recoverable amount
is less than the carrying amount and such decrease
expected not to be recovered in the foreseeable

future.

N At BEHRREEERE)

8 AHHESHMEEH)

(3) FARERAFGEBHAHLESHE

E(E)

71 ARAZFARIAREEN1993
FUALBEKES ARBIE
TUREE L P A END B B AR 15
PR A (LA T T L Fa A fER 1)
EARIOCER(EREBEARE
1.007T) © A TER R 19934
ELBBHRZGMEM - LA
TERTH 201245 A 18 H #2011
FERREAGRFEAS  LA2011
F12A31 BMBRABES - M
ZRBRFEI0RX10ARALAR - &
1E2017412A31H - it
BAWLAESENOEARRE R
208 % - 20174 12HA318 -
B EEH E0.023% (20164F
12 A31H :0.023%) K B 1 -
R2017FEE R AR BE(TA
HMBEE)ZHAEMARE
6,580,0007C( 20164 [ « H#EA0A
R #964,0007T) + Bt AH bR
Bl 2RISR 34

2 ANQEZF AR AR EER1993
FOAUNEHKES ARK1188
ETRERBEHMEARGOE
BR(FREEAREI1.00T) °
2017412 A31 B &20164 12 A
318 - SAHREMELEFER012%
BRI - RSB EEEEMRR
TS RAMERZ R AHRIES
Bl ESFEERRERREE
B wREERENEEEE
SRR IREARI T A AT REIRAE - i
2RI EEE o

2017 &3} 1914
I RRBEEHEEERNERAA]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 sk B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2017FE

III/

All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RET)

VL.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

9. Investment properties

Investment properties under the cost method

Item

. Original carrying amount

1. 2016.12.31

2. Increase in the period
(1) Transferred from the fixed assets
(2) Business mergers increased
3. Decrease in the period
(1) Transferred to the fixed assets
(2) Transferred to the intangible assets

4.2017.12.31

Il. Accumulated depreciation and amortization

1. 2016.12.31

2. Increase in the period
(1) Accrual or amortization
(2) Transferred from the fixed assets
(3) Business mergers increased
3. Decrease in the period
(1) Transferred to the fixed assets
(2) Transferred to the intangible assets

4.2017.12.31

IIl. Net book value
1. Net book value as at 31 December 2017
2. Net book value as at 31 December 2016

EE

— RARE
1. FNEE
2. REEMEHE
(1) RETEEEAN
Q) EAHEM
3. AFRIEE
) BARTEE
Q BABFEE
4, FREBE
= BEMENZGEH
1. F¢8
2. KERMNEHE
(1) FHHR oS
2 RETEEEA
(@) EAHHEM
3. AERLEE
1) EAETEE
R BAEFAE
4. EREBE
= KEEE
1. EREEEE
2. ENEREEE

N AHPBHRREAEERE)

9 REMEHE

BEA BRI REMNEHE

Buildings
EEREEY

128,972,784
10,276,100

10,276,100

139,248,884

45,658,998
5,636,184
5,359,910

276,274

51,295,182

87,953,702
83,313,786

31 December 2017
2017F12H31R
Land use rights

TiERE

61,834,184
61,066,524

61,066,524

122,900,708

10,584,156
3,955,658
2,622,384

1,433,274

14,539,814

108,360,894
51,250,028

Total
&t

190,806,968
71,342,624

71,342,624

262,149,592

56,243,154
9,691,842
7,882,294

1,709,548

65,834,996

196,314,596
134,563,814
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

9.

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties under the cost method (Continued)

Item A
|. Original carrying amount — RERE
1. 2015.12.31 1. 588

2. REEMEHE
(1) RETEEEA
3. AERIEH
(1) BAETEE
Q) BAERFEE

2. Increase in the period

(1) Transferred from the fixed assets
3. Decrease in the period

(1) Transferred to the fixed assets

(2) Transferred to the intangible assets

4. 2016.12.31 4. FRHBE
II. Accumulated depreciation and amortization = + 2:HTEMZTE
1. 2015.12.31 1. 588

2. REEMEE
(1) FHiRak B 8

2. Increase in the period
(1)Accrual or amortization

(2) Transferred from the fixed assets 2 HETEEZA
3. Decrease in the period 3. AFRIERE
(1) Transferred to the fixed assets (1) BAEEERE
(2) Transferred to the intangible assets Q) BAEVEE
4, 2016.12.31 4. FRBE
Ill. Net book value = KAEEE
1. Net book value as at 31 December 2016 1. FREEEE
2. Net book value as at 31 December 2015 2. FNERAERE

B FS R I ot

AN

1y

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)

N At BEHRREEERE)

9 REMEHEME)

BEA BRI REMEHE ()

Buildings
EEREEY

128,972,784

128,972,784

40,654,714
5,004,284
5,004,284

45,658,998

83,313,786
88,318,070

31 December 2016
2016F12A31H
Land use rights

T RE

61,834,184

61,834,184

8,955,824
1,628,332
1,628,332

10,584,156

51,250,028
52,878,360

Total
Ast

190,806,968

190,806,968

49,610,538
6,632,616
6,632,616

56,243,154

134,563,814
141,196,430

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, no
investment properties were pledged to secure certain of the

Group’s long-term bank loans.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, all land
use rights in the investment properties of the Group were

medium-term lease.

2017412318 K2016512 4318 -
#EPERITRMETEBYORE LR
HIEE o

2017412 431 H 2016412 A31H -
AR SR B 5 A N S Hh E R A - {5 R A AT
BRAPME -

2017 &4 1934
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 15k MY 5 E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2017%#E
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RET)

II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHzEETE (&)

(Continued)
10. Fixed assets 10  -BEEEE
31 December 2017
2017F12831H
Machinery Electronic
and  devices and Transportation
Buildings equipment others vehicles Total
Item R EEREEN KE%E ETREREM EuRfE &t
. Original carrying amount - RERE
1. 2016.12.31 1. ENBE 1,020,771,577 905,280,954 165,463,288 76,170,718  2,167,686,537
2. Increase in the period 2. NEEINE 45,144,048 37,061,403  123359,170 12,318,740 106,883,361
(1) Purchase () BE - 24,089,087 11,728,773 10,790,283 46,608,143
(2) Transferred from the Q) EEIREA
construction in process - 12,972,316 623,247 1,528,457 15,124,020
(3) Transferred from the investment Q) REBREHEEA
properties - - - - -
(4) Business mergers increased (4) BEAGEM 45,144,048 - 7,150 - 45151,198
3. Decrease in the period 3 AERD - 32,356,091 11,531,960 7,493,968 51,382,019
(1) Disposal ) AFRE - 32,356,091 11,531,960 7,493,968 51,382,019
(2) Transferred to the investment Q) BEAREENE
properties - - - - -
4, 2017.12.31 4 ERHBE 1,065,915,625 909,986,266 166,290,498 80,995,490 2,223,187,879
Il. Accumulative depreciation = RitEH
1. 2016.12.31 1. ENBE 322,502,049 598,756,611 124,137,365 46,228,216  1,091,624,241
2. Increase in the period 2. KERME 37,805,448 52485177 13,881,108 18,181,957 122,353,690
(1) Accrual (1) REFHE 35,066,194 52,485,177 13,878,564 18,181,957 119,611,892
(2) Transferred from the investment Q) BEBREHEEA
properties - - - - -
(3) Business mergers increased (3) EEABHEN 2,739,254 - 2,544 - 2,741,798
3. Decrease in the period 3 KEFLE - 15,681,756 7,207,379 11,686,674 34,665,809
(1) Disposal ) AFRE - 15,681,756 7,297,379 11,686,674 34,665,809
(2) Transferred to investment Q) BEAREENE
properties - - - - -
4, 2017.12.31 4 FRHBE 360,307,497 635,560,032 130,721,094 52,723,499 1,179,312,122
il Net book value = RAEEE
. Net book value as at 31 December 1. EREHEE
2017 705,608,128 274,426,234 35,569,404 28,271,991  1,043,875,757
2. Net book value as at 31 December 2. EXEEEE
2016 698,269,528 306,524,343 41,325,923 29,942,502 1,076,062,296
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI 5T

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)

II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHREETE (&)

(Continued)
10. Fixed assets (Continued) 10 BEEEEE)
31 December 2016
2016F12A31A
Machinery Electronic
and devices and  Transportation
Buildings equipment others vehicles Total
Item E FEREEN HERE TTREREM Bh%E ait
| Original carrying amount - FERE
1, 2015.12.31 1. FAEE 1,020,771,577 902,000,851 150,713,403 60,099,478 2,133,585,309
2. Increase in the period 2. NEEME - 18,116,849 20,783,010 21,757,231 60,657,090
(1) Purchase 1) EBE - 17,643,725 17,085,194 21,452,308 56,181,227
(2) Transferred from the Q) EETIREA

construction in process
(3) Transferred from the investment Q) REUEHEEA

473,124 3,607,816 304,923 4,475,863

properties - - - - -
3. Decrease in the period 3 KERD - 14,836,746 6,033,125 5,685,991 26,555,862
(1) Disposal (1) AFRE - 14,836,746 6,033,125 5685991 26,555,862
(2) Transferred to the investment Q) BAREUERHE
properties - - - - -
4. 2016.12.31 4 FREE 1,020,771,577  905280,954 165,463,288 76,170,718 2,167,686,537
Il. Accumulative depreciation ~ o REHEH
1. 2015.12.31 1. FNBE 286,754,989 561,247,484 116,213,040 35,224,895 989,440,408
2. Increase in the period 2. NS 35,747,060 52,880,945 13048492 18905583 120,582,080
(1) Accrual (1) AFF1R 35,747,060 52,880,945 13,048,492 18,905,583 120,582,080
(2) Transferred from the investment Q) REUFHEEA
properties - - - - -
3. Decrease In the period 3 AERIE - 5,371,818 5,124,167 7902262 18,398,247
(1) Disposal (1) KERE - 5371818 5,124,167 7902262 18,398,247
2) Transferred to investment (2 BAREAMEHE
properties - - - - -
4. 2016.12.31 4 FRHE 322,502,049 598,756,611 124,137,365 46,228,216 1,091,624,241
il Net book value = RAEE
. Net book value as at 31 December 1. FREEEE
2016 698,269,528 306,524,343 41,325,923 29,942,502 1,076,062,296
2. Net book value as at 31 December 2. EXJEHEE
2015 734,016,588 350,753,367 34,500,363 24,874,583 1,144,144,901
As at 31 December 2017, and 31 December 2016, no fixed 2017512 A31H &20165F12H31H -
assets were restricted as they were been pledged to secure EAAERAAERTROAGBRNERY
certain of the long-term Group’s bank loans. M ERHIHEEEE °
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2017%#E
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RET)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

10. Fixed assets (Continued)

Fixed assets of which issued certificates of title have not

been obtained as at 31 December 2017:

10 BEEEEE)
R2017E12A31H » R ZER#E
METEEBR

Reasons for

ENTS

N AHPBHRREAEERE)

Expected time

not obtaining of obtaining

Net book certificates certificates

value of title of title

RIFE FETHIAE

Item HA REFE EESEREE EfSERE

Room1-201,1-202, 2-201, AFREEIEE13-1-201 2,862,430 In progress 2018

2-202, 3-201, 3-202, Unit 13, 13-1-202 » 13-2-201 - TFAE SR 20184

Chenxin Garden, Datong 18-2-202 - 13-3-201 -
13-3-202F &

Xinyishangzhen — the office HOME — PN R E 18,651,664 In progress 2018

building and the factory TEAE R 20184
Fixed assets of which issued certificates of title have not R2016F12A31H - ARPZEERE

been obtained as at 31 December 2016:

ltem

Room1-201,1-202, 2-201,
2-202, 3-201, 3-202, Unit 13,
Chenxin Garden, Datong

Xinyishangzhen — the office
building and the factory

THH

AEEZEIEE13-1-201 -
13-1-202 » 13-2-201 -
13-2-202 + 13-3-201 -
13-3-202FE &

FO MY — P NiE R

MEEEEBR

Net book
value

FREHE

2,904,713

19,436,143

Reasons for

not obtaining

certificates

of title

%?ﬁi
EEZER

In progress

ERERES

In progress

EfEHHEH

Expected time

of obtaining

certificates

of title
TERTI A

Fﬁé Fei=— ETF%

2017

20174

2017
20174
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 /Z
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < &fBiEHEREETE(Z)
(Continued)

11.

Construction in progress

(1) Details of construction in progress

)

11 -FEEIR

(1) HEBEIEBHMT

2017.12.31 2016.12.31
ZE-tE+ZA=t-H “E-RE+ZAZ+-H

Carrying Net book Carrying Net book

amount  Impairment value amount  Impairment value
Item o RESE  HEEHE  REEE REBE  EER REEE
Shuanggiao Project BT 50,232,653 - 50,232,653 | 50,232,653 - 50,232,653
Pingfang Project TEIR 43,547,031 - 43547031 | 36,694,407 - 36,694,407
Pingfang Refrigeratory Project ~ FREAEBIRE 9,617,821 - 9,617,821 9,130,429 - 9,130,429
System Software Project ZEEHEATR 4,905,379 - 4,905,379 | 8474434 - 8,474,434
Xibahe Store il 52,000 - 52,000 - - -
Fresh distribution equipment EERRER

change 329,189 - 329,189 - - -
Jiuxiangiao Project BlETRE 67,493 - 67,493 - - -
Jingbai store Reconstruction YEE-£%

Project - - - 4,384,012 - 4,384,012
Total At 108,751,566 - 108,751,566 | 108,915,935 - 108,915,935
Changes in significant construction in progress in 2 EEHFEIEEBAFEEELR
the current year
For the year ended at 31 December 2017 20175 E

Transferred to
fixed assets,
intangible assets
or long-term
prepaid
expenses
Budget 2017.1.1 Increase ~ BABEEE Other 2017.12.31
Item amount ZE-tE in the period BYEER deduction “E-tE
FEER BEH -F-H RER REGHER EftHY  t=A=t-H
Shuanggiao Prolect (Note 1)* 108,988,036 50,232,653 - - - 50,232,653
X%I*f(ﬂ )
Pingfang Project (Note 2)° 78,655,986 36,694,408 6,852,623 - - 43,547,031
; I*}.(u )
Pingf fan Refrigeratory Project 35,047,286 9,130,429 487,392 - - 9,617,821
TERETRE
ngtfg store Reconstruction Project 25,531,163 4,384,012 5,327,696 8,495,432 1,216,276 -
HaERY
Others 80,902,396 8,474,433 21,912,327 25,024,450 8,249 5,354,061
ApERIR
Totjl 108,915,935 34,580,038 33,519,882 1,224,525 108,751,566
AL
(=)}

&

al

fu:
=
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHzEETE (&)

(Continued)
11. Construction in progress (Continued) 11 -EREIRE)
(2) Changes in significant construction in progress in (2) EFEGBEIBEAXFEHER
the current year (Continued) (#&)
For the year ended at 31 December 2017 (Continued) 2017 E (&)
Amount
injected as a Amount of Including: Interest
proportion accumulated Capitalized  capitalization
of budget capitalized interest in rate for the
amount (%)  Construction interest the period period (%)
Project name IRRAME  progress (%) FEERl Hi:AEFHE KEFIE Source of funds
HE AR BEWH()  IREE%) ZiteH BAEE  BALLE®%) EERE
Shuanggiao Project (Note 1)* 46 46 3,000,000 - - Own funds and bank loans
ERIEGH) " BREERET-RER
Pingfang Project (Note 2)* 59 59 425,988 - - Own funds and bank loans
TRIE(H?) BEESRBT-RER
Pingfang Refrigeratory Project 27 21 - - - Own funds and bank loans
TRRELR BEESRBT-RER
Jingbai store Reconstruction Project - - - - - Own funds and bank loans
HEESY BREERET-RER
Others 210100 210100 106,919 - - Own funds and bank loans
AtiERTR 22100 22100 BEESRET-RER
Total 3,532,907 -
bt
For the year ended at 31 December 2016 2016 FEE
Transferred to
fixed assets,
intangible assets
or long-term
prepaid
expenses
Budget 201611 Increase  BABETEAE - Other 2016 12.31
ltem amount “ERE in the period BRAER deduction —ERE
RS BEH -A-A REEN  RAGEER EtES  +tZA=t-H
Shuanggiao Project(Note 1)* 108,988,036 50,232,653 - - - 50,232,653
ERIEG) "
Pingfang Project (Note 2) 73,655,986 36,694,407 - - - 36,694,407
TRIRE(R)
ngfang Refrigeratory Project 35,047,286 6,000,000 3,130,429 - - 9,130,429
TEREIR
Xihongmen Project 41,134,552 67,819 1,708,606 1,679,486 191,939 -
FEAMIR
Others 145,891,932 8,249,546 32,641,935 25,487,215 2,545,820 12,858,446
AT
Total
At 101,244,425 37,475,970 27,066,701 2,737,759 108,915,935
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < &fBiEHEREETE(Z)
(Continued)

11. Construction in progress (Continued) 11 -EEBIRE)

(2) Changes in significant construction in progress in (2) EFGHEIREAZXFEEHER
the current year (Continued) (%)
For the year ended at 31 December 2016 (Continued) 2016FE (&)
Amount injected Amount of Including: Interest
asa proportion accumulated Capitalized capitalization
of budget capitalized interest in rate for the
amount (%) Construct\on interest the Qenod period (%)
Project name Aiﬁx/\\ﬁ progress (9 BEA( ﬁﬁP | REFIE REFE Source of funds
AR TAEL(%) Ikﬁ/x( ) H ZieE 1”\55 EXLE%) B&RE
Shuangq|ao Prolect (Note 1)* 46 46 3,000,000 - - Own funds and bank loans
ERIIEGH) BEEE RET—RER
P%fan% Project (Note 2) 50 50 425,988 - - Own funds and bank loans
BEEE RETRER
P%fan& Refngeratory Project 26 26 - - - Own funds and bank loans
BEEE RETRER
X|h0n%men Prolect 4 4 - - - Own funds and bank loans
RAFMTR BEEE RETRER
Others 210100 210100 91,479 22,437 446 Own funds and bank loans
HfpfeR iz 2£100 22100 BRESRBT—HER
Total 3,517,467 22,437
ait

Note 1:

Note 2

According to the revised budget amount for
subsequent years/periods, the project budget and the
proportions of project investments of the total budget

in respective periods were restated.

The costs of Shuanggiao Project mainly consisted of
land compensation cost. Due the change in planning
policies on the requisitioned land, the Company has
not obtained the land use right certificate yet. Pursuant
to the Land Requisition and Compensation Agreement
between the Company and the People’s Government
of Guanzhuang Township, Chaoyang District, Beijing
and its supplemental agreement, the amount prepaid
to the latter shall be refunded in full to the Company
in case of any change in policies or any other situation
that may affect land requisition of the Company.
Therefore, the management believes that there is no

risk of impairment for the project.

. As at 31 December 2017, the costs of Pingfang

Project mainly consisted of civil engineering. The
Company was in process of obtaining the builder’s
license and predicted to start the project in 2018.
Therefore, the management believes that there is no

risk of impairment for the project.

* o ZEHEABRBERUEFESHME
BIRNAESREAENESR
MAHENIEERERTRERAL
TAERLLS -

W TRMBATEA LR
B o MR LIS RHRBIR
%%immﬁﬁl~$ﬁﬂﬁi

T EMERE - REARE
Eﬁit?ﬁﬁﬂl%[ HARBU

FRI R Lt BB R E =) &
HWAMENAE - IRFEEBR
Bk E Al Re B A RA L
it HEIER - AR mEEEE
S48 RBUT FE S B IR A © 58
2HREBLAR - Bt - BEE
RRZBIRTFERERR

2 HE2017F12A31BFEIEN
BWATEATRTR - AQFIE
R MRES - BE
2018F BT - BERERAZEAL
B EFERERR
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

12.

Intangible assets

31 December 2017

D

N AHPBHRREAEERE)

12 - BILEE
2017F12A31H

Operation rights
of distribution
Land use rights Software network Total
Item EH TifERE B4 SERRCHE fit
|, Original carmying amount - KERE
1, 2016.12.31 1. F%E 193,141,817 43,804,937 34,254,633 271,201,387
2. Increase in the period 2 REENSH 129,726,699 8,828,032 - 138,554,731
(1) Purchase (1) BE - 1,881,204 - 1,881,204
(2) Transferred from the construction in process () EBRIREA - 6,946,738 - 6,946,738
(3) Transferred from the investment properties (3 BEREHEEA - - - -
(4) Business mergers increase (&) REOHEN 129,726,699 - - 129,726,699
3. Decrease in the period 3 AER LR - - - -
4, 2017.12.31 4 RGBS 322,868,516 52,632,969 34,254,633 409,756,118
Il Accumulated amortization Z o REER
1. 2016.12.31 1. F5%8 39,573,184 17,406,606 17,564,800 74,544,590
2. Increase in the period 2 KEEMEE 10,155,052 4,008,166 2,878,500 17,041,718
(1) Accrual (1) 5% 5,726,704 4,008,166 2,878,500 12,613,370
(2) Transferred from the investment properties () REREHEEA - - - -
(3) Business mergers increase (3) REAGHEM 4,428,348 - - 4,428,348
3. Decrease in the period S AEROER - - - -
4, 2017.12.31 4 EXBE 49,728,236 21,414,772 20,443,300 91,586,308
Il Net book value = FAEE
1. Net book value as at 31 December 2017 1. FRERER 273,140,280 31,218,197 13,811,333 318,169,810
2. Net book value as at 31 December 2016 2. EVEEER 153,568,633 26,398,331 16,689,833 196,656,797
31 December 2016 20164128318
Operation rights
of distribution
Land use rights Software network Total
ftem EH THRRE B HEERTHE Ait
I Original carrying amount - RERE
1. 2015.12.31 1. F0E 198,141,817 29,235,886 34,254,633 256,632,336
2. Increase in the period 2. REENEE - 14,569,061 - 14,569,051
(1) Purchase (1) BE - 7,719,088 - 7,719,088
(2) Transferred from the construction in process Q) ERIREA - 6,849,963 - 6,849,963
(3) Transferred from the investment properties 3 REKEREHEEA - - - -
3. Decrease in the period 3 AERSEE - - - -
4. 2016.12.31 4 ERHE 198,141,817 43,804,937 34,254,633 271,201,387
Il. Accumulated amortization = BB
1, 2015,12.31 1 58S 34,362,189 14,300,941 14,684,300 63,347,430
2. Increase in the period 2. AEENEE 5,210,995 3,105,665 2,880,500 11,197,160
(1) Accrual (1) 512 5,210,995 3,105,665 2,880,500 11,197,160
(2) Transferred from the investment properties Q) REMHEHEEA - - - -
3. Decrease in the period 3 AEH I 2E - - - -
4. 2016.12.31 4 ERIE 30,578,184 17,406,606 17,564,800 74,544,590
ll. Net book value = FEER
1. Net book value as at 31 December 2016 1. EXEREE 158,568,633 26,398,331 16,689,833 196,656,797
2. Net book value as at 31 December 2015 2. EEEEE 158,779,628 14,934,945 19,570,333 193,284,906
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 E
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

12.

13.

Intangible assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, all land
use rights in the intangible assets of the Group are medium-

term lease.

Goodwill

Name of the investee
or item resulting in goodwill

WiEEHEEE

Acquisition of Shouchao Group

BREENVEWILREENSE

Aot BmRAEEERE)

12 - BLEE(E)

R2017F12 831 B M20164F 12 A 31
A AEBEFEETHTHFERAED
BRPHEE -

13 - &

2017.12.31
and 2016.12.31
2017.12.31
’2016.12.31

86,673,788

On 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the balance
was the goodwill arising from the acquisition of Shoulian
Supermarket and its subsidiaries (“Shouchao Group”) as well
as Beijing Jingchao Commercial Company Limited (Hereinafter

referred to as “Jingchao”).

The impairment tests of goodwill acquired through the
purchase of Shouchao Group and Jingchao were conducted
on the group of assets in relation to the retailing business
segment of the Shouchao Group after consolidation of

Jingchao.

The recoverable amount of the group of assets had been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-
year period approved by senior management. The discount
rate applied to calculate the present value of a future stream
of cash flows was 11% (2016: 11%). The growth rate used
to extrapolate the cash flows of the subsidiary beyond the

five-year period was 3% (2016: 3%).

2017412 A31 A %2016 12 A 31
B Z8EAREEHEmRE TR
(ATEBAIERER]) It RAHER
EARDRIATEBAIRBEELN

e -

AEEREEBEE R NBREHEE
NEaHRBRNEBRETRETEXRHK
HENEEER —EEEANETRE
AR - ZEEABRTEDH

ZEE R AT I e & R R R E A AT AR R
RensmRERT  BREEEIE
MsFEMMBELEER FNReRE
TRIRIEE - SHEFRFRKRRETE
REMANITIREZ11% (20164 :
11%) ' 5FUAEMNR S TEMLRER
3%(20164F : 3%) °

2017 &4 201 4
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

13. Goodwill (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, and 31 December 2016,
certain key assumptions are taken into consideration of
the calculation of the present value of the cash flow of
Shouchao Group. Below are the key assumptions made
by the management in forecasting the present value of a
future stream of cash flows to conduct impairment tests of

goodwill.

Expected gross profit- The estimation of gross profit is
based on the average gross profit realized in previous year,
and then appropriately increased according to the increase

of expected efficiency and market expansion.

Discount rate- Using the discount rate before tax which

reflects Shouchao Group’s specific risks.
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All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)

1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHREETE (&)

(Continued)
14. Long-term prepaid expenses 14 - REPFEEH
For the year ended at 31 December 2017 20176 E
Increase Amortization Other
Item 2017.1.1 in the period in the period deduction 2017.12.31 Reason for other deduction
E-tf Ig-1f
ER -A-f RERN AEEEY EfiHY  TZR=t-R HtEORE
Transferred from construction in progress to 473,162,482 31,840,931 86,800,815 - 418,202,598
leasehold improvements
Bel ETAENRL
Rent 57,860,486 59,940 962,459 9,280,078 47,677,889 Transferred to current assets
R HERBEE
Total 531,022,968 31,900,871 87,763,274 9,280,078 465,880,487
At
For the year ended at 31 December 2016 20165 &
Increase Amortization Other
Item 2016.1.1 in the period in the period Oeduction 2016.12.31  Reason for other deduction
—3-5E —I3-5E
1EH —-R-B TELN TEERT EbES  TZA=T-B EHESRR
Transferred from construction in progress 514,447,319 38,256,116 79,453,006 87,947 473,162,482 Adjustment
to leasehold improvements HE
U INE S-S b
Rent 68,120,803 - 980,239 9,280,078 57,860,486 Transferred to current assets
B Ly
Others - 167,562 167,562 - -
i
Total 582,568,122 38,423,678 80,600,807 9,368,025 531,022,968
At
15. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities 15 I EEFEHEE ELEMEHRAE
(1) Deferred tax assets without offset (1) RASIE $H 19 EAL FiT 15 5 4 2 B AT
2017.12.31 2016.12.31
ZE-tETZA=T-H ZE-RETZAZTH
Deductible Deductible
temporary Deferred temporary Deferred
differences tax assets differences tax asset
Item E THENEREER BEMSHEE | TENERUER ERFEHAE
Deductible losses ENEE 67,203,019 16,800,755 76,400,649 19,100,162
Taxable government grants TEM BT 42,681,315 10,670,329 36,097,821 9,024,455
Total At 109,884,334 27,471,084 112,498,470 28,124,617

2017 &R 2034
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHzEETE (&)

(Continued)

15 EEFEHEE BEEFREHAR
(%)

15. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

(2) KA EHELTISHE BB

(2) Deferred tax liabilities without offset

2017.12.31 2016.12.31
“EF-t5+ZA=+-H ZEETZA=T-H
Taxable Taxable
temporary Deferred temporary Deferred
differences tax liabilities differences tax liabilities
B4 BE JEMRL i3
ltem BH FEHER FEsas TRfER MEHaR
Fair value adjustment of assets arising ~ JEEM I EEC B ALE
from non-monetary asset exchange AMEERER 13,605,829 3,401,457 14,672,267 3,668,067
Changes on the fair value of R EeREELABEED
available-for-sale financial assets 11,048,000 2,762,000 4,468,000 1,117,000
Capitalized interest adjustment of ERERFBEA AR
borrowing costs 5,025,804 1,256,451 6,575,826 1,643,956
Difference between the fair value and the 47 AFEREEN AR
carrying amount of subsidiary merger ~ BEZE
and acquisition 3,401,008 850,252 3,819,702 954,925
Total At 33,080,641 8,270,160 29,535,795 7,383,948

(3) HUBHEFEITHELEFEHE
EREE

(3) Net deferred tax assets or liabilities with offset

Amount after

Amount after  Offset amount offset of

Offset amount offset of of deferred deferred tax

of deferred deferred tax tax assets and assets and

tax assets and assets and deferred tax deferred tax

deferred tax deferred tax liabilities in the liabilities in the

liabilities at the liabilities at the beginning beginning

end of year end of year of year of year

BEREH KHEBETE BEREH KHBIET

EENERRE FiEHEER EENEE FiSHEED

ltem HH FAERSE ABEFRHE FULESE SEFIHE
Deferred tax assets ERMEHREE 4,657,908 22,813,175 5,312,023 22,812,594
Deferred tax liabilities BEFMEBHAR 4,657,908 3,612,252 5,312,023 2,071,925
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHREETE (&)

(Continued)
15. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities (Continued) 15 IEEFBHEE EEFEHARE
(#&)
(4) Details of unrecognized deferred tax assets (4) RERIELFEHEERH
2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—E—+tF ZE—RF
ltem A +=A=+—-8| +=ZA=+—AH
Deductible temporary differences  A[3EINE M E R 11,746,445 13,093,490
Deductible losses mKFIE IR 220,973,071 152,426,792
Total A&t 232,719,516 165,520,282
In the view of the management of the Group, deferred SEETRERBARTZRAEE
tax assets are not recognized since it is not probable A R Lt el N E A R
that taxable profit will be available against which the MERMEEZENEAT ISR -
deductible temporary differences or deductible losses E S ARFERLA LB B MIREFEH
can be utilized. BE o
(5) Deductible losses of unrecognized deferred tax (5) RIERIEFL T35 ZER A/ 18 &5
assets will expire in the following years BRRUTEEZH
2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—E2—+F —E-RF
Year F1H +=ZA=+—HB | +=ZA=1+—H
2017.12.31 2017.12.31 - 984,414
2018.12.31 2018.12.31 18,081,827 18,081,827
2019.12.31 2019.12.31 23,531,996 23,531,996
2020.12.31 2020.12.31 39,299,786 39,299,786
2021.12.31 2021.12.31 70,528,769 70,528,769
2022.12.31 2022.12.31 69,530,693
Total A&t 220,973,071 152,426,792
2017 2054
IERREEREEERG AR AR
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHzEETE (&)

(Continued)
16. Details of provision for asset impairment 16 - EERBEEERHA
For the year ended at 31 December 2017 2017FE
Decrease in the year
B
Increase
2017.1.1 inthe year Reversal Written-off 2017.12.31
—E—t& —E2-tF
ltem 5H -A-8 KELM BE B +-A=t-H
Bad debts provision BEREE 10,528,368 6,333,695 4,549,712 1,753,906 10,558,445
Provision for inventory impairment 7745 i (& % (& 1,377,122 - - 1,377,122 -
Impairment of available-for-sale At &4 REERBER

financial assets = 1,188,000 - - - 1,188,000
Total At 13,093,490 6,333,695 4,549,712 3,131,028 11,746,445

For the year ended at 31 December 2016 20165 &

Decrease in the year
FRd
Increase
2016.1.1 inthe year ~ Reversal  Written-off 2016.12.31
—ERF —ERE
ltem 5E —R—H RELEM #[ B T-A=t-8
Bad debts provision EHRER 7,150,428 4,549,712 1,171,772 - 10,528,368
Provision for inventory impairment - 7 & 2 &% (& 1,666,282 - 43197 245963 1,377,122
Impairment of available-for-sale At iH &4 FE EREEE

financial assets 1,188,000 - - - 1,188,000
Total At 10,004,710 4,549,712 1,214,969 245,963 13,093,490
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHREETE (&)

(Continued)

17. Other non-current assets

17 - Ht3ERBEE

2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—E—+tF —T—RF
ltem ERE| +=B=+-8| +t=ZA=+—H
Loggﬁitr?émsrrw%ﬁigﬁbclaerzfs ?l\lfgct? 1) HEBRMA SR (1) 135,600,000 159,100,000
Security deposit HeRED 30,997,640 23,252,479
Prepaid construction fees JE T2 1,452,389 2,409,686
Save investment fund (Note 2) FHRER(GGE2) 11,670,000 -
Total &5t 179,720,029 184,762,165
Note 1: As at 31 December 2017, such long-term receivables 71 R2017F 128318 2SS REEUGR
consist of borrowings lent by Shoulian Supermarket to REBETMEMEERHNESRF
Shoulian Group due on 31 December 2020 as agreed f& - %ﬁﬁ’ﬁ%?ﬂaﬁzozoimﬂm
upon. The long-term receivables bear interest at 4.64% per iR BRI R F 7 £4.64%5T
annum. Meanwhile certain buildings and land use rights B oo @R ZEZBERKFUAALEET
of Shoulian Group with a total fair value not less than the BERZERRZARBONEHEREER
balance of the long-term receivables have been pledged T AR IR AELR o
for these long-term receivables in favor of Shoulian
Supermarket.
Note 2: As at 31 December 2017, the investment fund is the 72 R20179F 128318  ZERERAR

purchase of Yibin Wuliangye Co., Ltd. non-public offering
of shares subscription by Chaopi Trading as a subsidiary
of the Company, as at the reporting date, these non-public
offering of shares have not yet completed the final issuance

process.

REZFRABDAUBERE

HELR

BN BRRBFEAFBEITRERRE

R BEABREA

HEEA

AT

ISR AR TR BRAZIEITIZT ©
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 7~

(Continued)

BB BBREA TR (E)

18. Short-term borrowings 18 ~ EHIfERK

2017.12.31 2016.12.31

—E—tF —E—RF
[tem 15H +=A=+—H +=—A=+—8H
Accounts receivable secured loan (Note 1) JEURBRFRIBME X (351) 117,179,353 166,655,041
Guaranteed loan (Note 2) IREBER(GE2) 2,149,031,089 1,5690,514,400
Unsecured loan (Note 3) ERERGES) 450,000,000 249,000,000
Mortgage loan EAERK - -
Total &5t 2,716,210,442 2,006,169,441

As at 31 December 2017, and 31 December 2016, the

short-term borrowings above bore annual interest rates

ranging from 1.15% to 5.39% and 1.15% to 4.79%

respectively without any due but unsettled ones.

Note 1:

Note 2:

As at 31 December 2017, such short-term loan was
obtained by several accounts receivable factoring of the
Company totaling to RMB428,485,860 (31 December
2016: RMB374,369,708), and details were referred to Note
(V1) 8.

As at 31 December 2017, among such short-term bank
loans, RMB730,000,000 was borrowed by the Company’s
subsidiary Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by the
Company; RMB16,100,000 was borrowed by subsidiaries
of Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by the Company;
and RMB782,931,089 was borrowed by subsidiaries of
Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by Chaopi Trading;
RMB620,000,000 was borrowed by the Company upon a
surety provided by Chaopi Trading.

As at 31 December 2016, among such short-term
bank loans, RMB570,000,000 was borrowed by the
Company upon a surety provided by Chaopi Trading;
RMB20,000,000 was borrowed by the Company’s
subsidiary Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by the
Company; and RMB1,000,514,400 was borrowed by a
subsidiary of Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by
Chaopi Trading.
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1.15% %£5.39% X 1.15% E4.79% ' A
B AFEEE B AREENER ©
511 R2017F12A31H - ZEEEBER

RUAREE ST AR 428,485,860
(2016 #12 A31 H: AR ¥
374,369,7087T) #) 4 T & W BR 7K 18
RELZHES  28MH7< 3.

CHR2017F 128318 - ZEREAERF
B AR#730,000,00070 BARA A ZF
NAIBPHAEOER - AR FRER
FER + AR%16,100,0007T AFHLR
B2 TARMMBR - AARARIRBRE
R AR#782,931,0897T AL
B2 FRARMMER - B BREAR
FIER 0 ARKEB20,000,0007T B4 A
RIMER - B ERMRBER -

M2016F 128318 + ZERAERH
A ARM570,000,0007T BARA A ZF
DRI ENER - AARFHRER
FHER ¢+ AR20,000,0007T AFHER
B2 FRARMER - BEARARERE
ER AR®1,000,514,4007T &AL
BEZ FTARMMGER - MEitAERM
IREBIER -



e ——

© i ’ X

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FS R I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 E

All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

18. Short-term borrowings (Continued)

Note 3: As at 31 December 2017, the credit loans included
RMB50,000,000, RMB100,000,000 and RMB100,000,000
respectively granted by Mizuho Bank (China), Ltd. Beijing
Branch and Industrial, Commercial Bank of China Co., Ltd
Beijing Chaoyang Sub-branch and Bank of Communications
Co., Ltd. Sanyuan Bridge Branch on an unsecured basis;
The credit loans included RMB200,000,000 borrowed by
the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Trading that granted by
China Everbright Bank Beijing Branch on an unsecured
basis.

As at 31 December 2016, the credit loans included
RMB50,000,000 and RMB50,000,000 respectively granted
by Mizuho Bank (China), Ltd Beijing Branch, Industrial,
Commercial Bank of China Co., Ltd Beijing Chaoyang Sub-
branch on an unsecured basis; The credit loans included
RMB149,000,000 borrowed by the Company’s subsidiary
Chaopi Trading that granted by China Everbright Bank

Beijing Branch on an unsecured basis.

19. Notes payable

N At BEHRREEERE)

18 ~ BHIfERK (&)

3 R20174 128318  EAERTER
BIBT(FE)ARAFTIERSTT  F
BT RITRM AR AR RAB 1T
RZBRITBROER R R =TB T
MARE DRI R EHERARE
50,000,0007¢ + A E#100,000,0007C
& AR#100,000,0007T © BABES
ERAAEEZRREHER  FREK
PAEFBHARITROERAFILRS
TAARREZ FRABISPBEEERNE
HAfE # AR #200,000,0007T © B ARE
ZEERAMAEBERIBHIER -

W2016F12A318  EAMERT AR
BBT(RE)ARRARALERDITRF
B TR RITIRMD BR A A REAB X
TRAARR D AERNEHERAR
#50,000,0007T } A & % 50,000,000
7T BARBZEERAAEBEZRKIR
HER EREBERPEPE N KRT
BROBRARILERDITARRAZF
ARAREEERNEHERARE
149,000,0007t * BARABZEEREK
EEERIRHER -

19 - ENZEE

2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—E—+F NS
Category 1HH +=-—HA=+—H +=ZRA=+—H
Trade acceptances EEAGIES - -
Bank acceptances RITHERIESE 264,839,684 598,656,860
Total &t 264,839,684 598,656,860

As at 31 December 2017, security deposit for the issuance
of bank acceptances above amounted to RMB122,714,742
(31 December 2016: RMB207,259,165).

All of the bank acceptances of the Group will be due within

one year.

R2017%F 128318 - AFMAE LR
TERAEZENRESERRARKE
122,714,74270(2016F 124318 + A
R#207,259,1657T) °

AEBHRITALEZH B FZA
2H -
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
20. Accounts payable

Aging of accounts payable based on date of pick-up:

0 - FERIRR

R ARRER I E A HIEE AR DT

N AHPBHRREAEERE)

2017.12.31 2016.12.31

—E—+tF —E—RF
ltem T8 B +=-HA=+—H +—A=+—H
Within 1 year 1 AR 1,051,560,123 1,2083,278,502
1-2 years 1524 9,033,806 10,459,241
2-3 years 2E3F 2,809,359 6,307,175
Over 3 years 3FME 7,212,795 4,185,386
Total AFr 1,070,616,083 1,224,230,304

The majority of accounts payable aging over one year

consist of the final payments for suppliers.

RECEBIFNRNERREEREMNHE

JERMERRER

21. Advance from customers 21 > Fa g
2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—E—tF —EREF
ltem THH +=—A=+—H +=-A=+—8
Procurements received in advance TEWER 379,071,193 465,966,914
Total &5t 379,071,193 465,966,914

As at 31 December 2017, and 31 December 2016, the
advance from customers consisted of procurements
received in advance, among which there were no significant

advance from customers aged more than one year.
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHREETE (&)

(Continued)
22. Payroll payable 22 ~ FE{FHR T % Ep
(1) Details of payroll payable (1) EFBIHMTR
For the year ended at 31 December 2017 20175 E
Increase Decrease
2017.1.1  in the period in the period 2017.12.31
ZE—+F “E-tF
Item 5H -A-H REEM AEHY +ZRA=t-H
1. Short-term remuneration 1 BHHH 2,111,358 658,301,856 658,808,100 1,605,114
2. Post-employment benefits-defined 2 + BB — R TR FetE

contribution plans (Note 1) (51) - 71,984,381 71,940,372 44,009
3. Dismissal compensation 3 BHRAER - - - -
4. Other welfare due within one year 4 + —fE R 2| HIR) E A3 7 - - - -
Total EH 2,111,358 730,286,237 730,748,472 1,649,123

For the year ended at 31 December 2016 20165

Increase Decrease
2016.1.1 in the period in the period 2016.12.31
ZERF ZERF
ltem J5H —A—8 TREEM KERY +ZA=1+—H
1. Short-term remuneration 1 EEEEN 1,347,826 645,517,615 644,754,083 2,111,358
2. Post-employment benefits-defined 2 ~ BEBHERT| — R T Hefrst 2l

contribution plans (Note 1) (1) - 74,292,126 74,292,126 -
3. Dismissal compensation 3 BLEREF - - - -
4. Other welfare due within one year 4 « —ERZ|#8 HniEH - - - -
Total A3t 1,347,826 719,809,741 719,046,209 2,111,358
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

N AHPBHRREAEERE)

22. Payroll payable (Continued) 22 ~ ER TS (&)

(2) Short-term remuneration

(2) EEFMH T

For the year ended at 31 December 2017 20176 E
Increase Decrease
2017.1.1 in the period in the period 2017.12.31
“EB-tf “E-tF%
Item H -A-H REEM AERY tZAZ+-8
1) Wages or salaries, bonus, allowance, — + IT%& + 8%  ZEARE:
subsidies - 538,219,467 538,219,467 -
2) Staff welfare - BIERE - 27431605 27,431,605 -
3) Social security = HeRBE - 47,467,806 47,467,806 -
Including: Medical insurance Hi o BERRE - 42,370,134 42,370,134 -
Work injury insurance TERRE - 1,728,261 1,728,261 -
Maternity insurance EERRE - 3,369,411 3,369,411 -
4) Housing funds m-FEAES - 33,252,912 33,252,912 -
5) Labor union expenses and employees’ i+ TEXEABIHELE
education expenses 2,111,358 11,930,066 12,436,310 1,605,114
Total A3t 2,111,358 658,301,856 658,808,100 1,605,114
For the year ended at 31 December 2016 2016FE
Increase Decrease
2016 in the period in the period 20 6 12.31
=7/ \E — 7 -/ \E
ltem BH —R—A REHEM KERD f_ﬂ7$ =
1) Wages or salaries, bonus, alowance, — ~ T& - #4 « 2BEAHES
subsidies - 531,267,364 531,267,364 -
2) Staff welfare i H%‘,%IE?’FIJE - 24998492 24,998,492 -
3) Social security = HERKRE - 45,682,380 45,682,380 -
Including: Medical insurance £h BERRE - 40,986,022 40,986,022 -
Work injury insurance IERBE - 1,452,526 1,452,526 -
Maternity insurance EERBRE - 3,243,832 3,243,832 -
4) Housing funds m-FEAEE - 31412955 31,412,955 -
5) Labor union expenses and employees’ i + TE&EEANBTIHELE
education expenses 1,347,826 12,156,424 11,392,892 2,111,358
Total A&t 1,347,826 645,517,615 644,754,083 2,111,358
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22. Payroll payable (Continued)

(3) Details of defined contribution plan

N At BEHRREEERE)

22 - FENB T HM (&)
(3 REEF:EZT

For the year ended at 31 December 2017 20175 E
Increase Decrease
2017.1.1 in the period in the period 2017.12.31
“B-tF —B-tF
Item 5H -A-H RERM XEHS +=A=+-H
Basic retirement insurance EXBRZRRE - 69,056,508 69,012,499 44,009
Unemployment insurance KERBE - 2,927,873 2,927,873 -
Total At - 71,984,381 71,940,372 44,009
For the year ended at 31 December 2016 20165 &
Increase Decrease
2016.1.1 inthe period in the period 2016.12.31
“E-REF ) \ “E-RE
ltem | —HA—H RELN AERY TZA=t—H
Basic retirement insurance ERXBZRBE - 71,109,628 71,109,628 -
Unemployment insurance KERRE - 3,182,498 3,182,498 -
Total At - 74,292,126 74,292,126 -

Note 1: The Group participated in social security contributions

and the unemployment insurance plan established
by government institutions as required. According to
such plan, the Group contributes 20%, 1% monthly
to such plans based on the employee’s basic salary
each month. Besides above monthly contributions, the
Group will not take responsibility for further liabilities.
Corresponding payment occurred shall be accrued in

current period profit or loss or related assets cost.

In the current year, the Group should contribute
RMB69,056,508 and RMB2,927,873 (2016: RMB71,109,628
and RMB3,182,498) to social security contributions
and the unemployment insurance plan accordingly.
As at 31 December 2017, RMB44,009 is unsettled
retirement insurance in the accounting period and as at
31 December 2016, there are no unsettled retirement
insurance and the unemployment insurance in the

accounting period.

1 AEERRES B BTRIER
UHEEZRE - KRERBRE
RIEZETE - AEEHRIRE
ITERTEM20% 1% T AM
ZEHEHIFER - KR EMEA
BEERI AEBTHEREE
—HRNEH o RSN LR
EREAE BB S A EES
AR o

REBAFES B MEZR
B KEXERBIEBFTER
A K # 69,056,508 T & A B
# 2,027,873 7L(2016 = A
R# 71109628 Tk AR &
3,182,4987L) « 2017 12 A
31BAREE A FER RS U B
R 32 A5 82 2 4R B B F 44,009
JL ° 2016412 A1 H AR B &
FER SRS ER B Em AT FE
EZRBRKERBER -
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VI.

421

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <  &86tB#sREEFTE (&)
(Continued)
23. Taxes payable 23 - EXBE
2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—E—+tF ZE—RF
ltem HH +=A=+—H +=ZA=+—H
Value-added tax 18 F 49,636,894 78,188,338
Business tax EEM - 65,996
Corporate income tax TEMBHR 12,279,259 13,682,516
City construction and maintenance tax W A R R T 1,043,997 930,788
Education surcharge A &K N 452,252 402,169
Others Hifb 2,557,898 1,704,734
Total &5 65,970,300 94,974,541
24. Dividends payable
pay 24 - EARRRF
2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—E—+F AN
ltem 1HR +=ZHA=+—-HB | +t=ZA=+—H
Ordinary shares dividend L@ F (WERR)
(domestic-owned shares) 937,877 781,564
Other minority shareholders’ dividend H A D SR F RS 3,442,500 3,014,625
Total A5t 4,380,377 3,796,189
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < &fBiEHEREETE(Z)
(Continued)

25. Other payables 25 ~ HAhFERF R

(1) Presentation of other payables by category (1) EREMEDREMENL

2017.12.31 2016.12.31

—ZT—+tF —TRF

ltem 1HH +=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
Construction fees payable eI TIERK 40,898,811 58,894,287
Deposit e 59,874,140 50,694,392

Rent received in advance WS 11,692,884 9,049,102
Others H 59,247,748 83,717,167
Total A&t 171,713,583 202,354,948

(2) Significant other payables aging over one year (2) BREREBIFHABEEMEME

oA

As at 31 December 2017, the majority of other R2017%F12A31H - BRIRBIB—

FHEMENREIZAMEAR

#39,124,1137C * TIRHXARKE
RMB39,124,113 and RMB16,671,384 respectively. 16,671,3847T °

payables aging over one year consist of deposit and

construction fees payable with carrying amount of

26. Non-current liabilities due within one year

26 - —FRIHVFRBEE

(1) Bonds payable (1) [EfFEF
2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—E—+tHF :%E_/\i
ltem 15 H +=-—HA=+—H +=ZRA=+—H
Corporate bonds UNGILE 749,068,225 -
Total A&t 749,068,225 -
2017 3 o4 54
IERREEREEERG AR AR
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHzEETE (&)

(Continued)
(2) Changes in the bonds payable (2) FETEFAIE 6% 5

31 December 2017 2017%12A31H

Term of Issue Issue in
Bonds Par value Issue date the bond amount 201711 the period

—E—+tF
EHATE EfE B#1TEH BEHHR BT —HB—8 LT
Corporate bonds 750,000,000 2013.8.13 5 years 750,000,000 747,573,030 -
ARfE 5%
Total 750,000,000 750,000,000 747,573,030 -
At
Accrued interest Bond discount/ Paid during
Bonds for the period ~ premium amortization the period 2017.12.31
—E-tf

BHAE REE RS RITEEE AEEE +=BA=+-8
Corporate bonds 41,100,000 1,495,195 - 749,068,225
ARE
Total 41,100,000 1,495,195 - 749,068,225
At
Pursuant to the “Approval on Issuance of Corporate LR EFEe(RZELRARE
Bonds of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited” P EERERNDERATRMEST
(Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2013] No. 791) issued by the BEHEMALE) (BESFFA][2013]791
CSRC, on 15 August 2013, the Company issued the S - R2013F8 A 158 + A
corporate bonds aggregated to RMB750,000,000 NATEREFRREARAEITAR
with a term of maturity of 5 years, embedded with the M7SETHERARFANSE =
option to increase the coupon rate by the issuer and FRETALAZEFREERER
putable option by the investor at the end of the third HWEELCBERENAGES -
year. The corporate bonds were jointly secured by ZAREFRIERTHEREREGE
Beijing Chaoyang District National Capital Operating $%§%§@¢‘/D(—*E\EFE7E%U
Management Center, a state-owned enterprise, bearing ) RBEFESETRFER
coupon rate at 5.48% per annum. The issuance E % 55.48% ° Eﬂiﬁ?%%)\ﬁ
expenses of RMB6,923,208 had been included in #6,923,208TTE At AERIES ©

bonds payable.
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < &fBiEHEREETE(Z)
(Continued)

26. Non-current liabilities due within one year (Continueqd) 26 - —FREIPHFRBERE)

(2) Changes in the bonds payable (Continued) (2) EEFHEHEE(E)

Based on “Corporate bond prospectus in 2013”,
issuers has the right to rise the coupon rate for the last
2 years in the end of third year during bond duration
and the adjustment range lies between 0 and 100
basis point (contains this number) where 1 basis point
is 0.01%. Investors have rights to sell parts of bonds
or all of bonds they hold back to the issuers on the
third interest payment date, alternatively, they may give
up putable option and continue to hold bonds. The
third annual interest payment date is the repurchase
date and issuers should follow relevant business rules
of Shanghai Stock Exchange and bond registration

orgnizations to complete repurchase.

On 3 July 2016, the Company announced they would
not adjust current bond coupon rate and they would
repurchase bonds. On 7 July 2016, the Company
announced bonds repurchase declaration situation that
according to China Securities Depository and Clearing
Company Limited (CSDCC) Shanghai branch statistic,
there was no effective repurchase declaration and the
amount of repurchase was RMB Nil during this bond
repurchase declaration term (4 July 2016 to 6 July
2016).

RIBC2013FERAIESEEHH
E)FHEBHNTE - BOTABERTE
EARESFFEMAENEIFR £
ARNEHFB2ENZEFIE -
FAEBEROEZ100EER(ER
2 - HAR{EEZR0.01% &
EREEEESIENEREESE
BENEHSITIAREFEEAS
BEELEITA  IAHERESE
BERBEEMEEREE - AHE
FEIEFRFEENEBANABE
AR - BT ABERR EZAA
BHEECRBRBAESRRTKE
ERMIE -

201647 A3 H A~ A& h A HifE
HSEEMETARRAEGELLDE
NE o R2016F7 A7TH QR
AHELFBERBFBERAE - R

HEEAFEREEAREEAR
EEaRAE A ES SRR
FE o AAEEEABHELREE
HIREAN(20166F7 4B E7 A6
B)EUBERRHEEATTF - O
ESBATTT -
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < 8B HREETE(Z)
(Continued)

27. Other current liabilities

27 - HttR@EaE

2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—E—tF —E—RF
[tem 15 H +=A=+—H +=—A=+—8
Short- term financing bond (Note 1) ISEEE G R) - 813,171,750
Accrued expenses TEIRE A 51,719,648 40,799,206
Deferred income due within one year 1F N E R E W = 11,181,895 11,311,689
Total a5t 62,901,543 865,282,645
(1) Accrued expenses (1) BAEEH
2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—E—+tF —TRF
ltem 1HE +=ZA=+—-H | t=ZHA=1+—H
Accrued interest expenses RN EER 19,798,114 19,123,876
Accrued rent expenses EiRREH 19,894,093 15,466,362
Accrued audit expenses TEIRERTE 1,226,415 1,226,415
Others Hih 10,801,026 4,082,553
Total At 51,719,648 40,799,206
(2) Deferred income due with one year 2) 1FERBERIEL Kz
Notes 2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—E—+5F —E—REF
ltem EH B 5 +=ZA=+—-B8 | +=ZA=+—H
Asset-related government grants 1FREHMEEEME  Note 2
due within one year 8 M BUTT 47 B 2 9,917,952 7,876,098
Considerations allocated to the DECRAEEIES B  Note 3
award credits EYE 3 1,263,943 3,435,591
Total A=t 11,181,895 11,311,689
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

27. Other current liabilities (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

As at 2 February 2016, according to the agreement ‘non-
financial corporate debt financing instruments of the inter-
bank bond market underwriting agreement’ signed with the
main underwriter of Bank of Beijing Co., Ltd., the Company
issued the first short-term financing bond in 2016 with par
value of RMB300,000,000, a term of maturity of 366 days,
value date at 3 February 2016, due date at 3 February
2017, interest rate of 3.43% and financial charges of
RMB1,050,000 and the charges had been recognized into
short-term financing bond. As at 3 February 2017, such

bonds payable and interest payable had been cleared.

On 15 August 2016, according to the agreement ‘non-
financial corporate debt financing instruments of the inter-
bank bond market underwriting agreement’ signed with the
main underwriter of Bank of Beijing Co., Ltd., the Company
issued the second short-term financing bond in 2016
with par value of RMB300,000,000, a term of maturity of
365 days, value date at 16 August 2016, due date at 16
August 2017 and interest rate of 2.94%. The Company
had collected all of this short-term financing bond fund on
16 August 2017.

As at 18 August 2016, according to the agreement ‘non-
financial corporate debt financing instruments of the inter-
bank bond market underwriting agreement’ signed with the
main underwriter of Bank of Beijing Co., Ltd., the Company
issued the third short-term financing bond in 2016 with par
value of RMB200,000,000, a term of maturity of 365 days,
value date at 19 August 2016, due date at 19 August 2017
and interest rate of 2.98%. The Company had collected all

of this short-term financing bond fund on 19 August 2017.

Asset-related government grants due within one year
consisted of deferred income due within one year
generated from special funds received in 2005, 2013,
2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 by the Group and would be
recognized as revenue in the next year, and details were
referred to Note (VI) 30.

B FS R I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)

N At BEHRREEERE)

27 - HttRB & & (&)

A

C 20162 A28  BIEARQ B HEE K

SHPTAL FERAT R B R A R #R AT HICER
THEEFMESFeREEEERET
BEH#) - RAREITT201656E
E—HE A HF ARESET - HR
366K © #£EH20165F2A38 « Kt
H201742A3H » #17F|%3.43% -
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ENTS

II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

N AHPBHRREAEERE)

27. Other current liabilities (Continued) HiREaEE)

AS: AREINEEERITERES FRHAR
CHRNEBESED —EDENERP
RO NEBYETELREER -

Note 3: The Group offers membership credit cards to customers,
and awards credit reaching certain points can be ®

converted into cash while shopping. As deferred income,

considerations allocated to the award credits will be A AR RENE D B E S B EIERIRER
recognized as revenue when the award credits are o W SRETE S W LR ER AW
converted or cleared in the next year. A e
28. Bonds payable 28 ~ E{IESF
(1) Bonds payable (1) FEFESF
2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—E—+tF ZE—RF
ltem 1HE +=HA=+—H +=—A=+—80
Corporate bonds NElE - 747,573,030
Total &5t - 747,573,030
(2) Changes in the bonds payable (2) [EEFRIEHEE
31 December 2016 2016124310
Term of Issue in
Bonds Par value Issue date the bond  Issue amount 2016 1.1 the period
—= /\E,E
RHEHE EE HITHA EHHR BITEHE —A—H REET
Corporate bonds 750,000,000 2018.8.13 5years 750,000,000 746,158,430 -
RAfE 5%
Total 750,000,000 750,000,000 746,158,430 -
=)
Bond
Accrued discount/
interest for premium Paid during
the period  amortization the period 2016.12.31
- REfE TT-RF
Bonds BEHETHE SRS w TR KFEEE +-A=+—H
Corporate bonds NEE 41,100,000 1,414,600 - 747,573,030
Total A&t 41,100,000 1,414,600 - 747,573,030
Note: Details were referred to Note (VI) 26. Non-current i MERARREAZ RKIEEN26 - —FR

liabilities due within one year.
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHREETE (&)

(Continued)
29. Government grants 29 ~ BB
(1) Details of government grants confirmed at current (1) FENBERBFHE YRR
year P
Related to assets Related to income
SEERR iyl
Deferred Deferred
income ~ Offset the income Non- Offset
due within-~ book value due within operating  costsand  Received
Deferred ~ oneyear  ofassets  Defered  one year QOther income  expenses  or not
liem Amounts  income WHEE  income —ERIE  income 2% e RA
L 28 Eths FEEE fTiE mELy g A REBR ERUE
Government reserve expenses 522,000 - - - - - 522,000 - - Yes
BNGEERAL &
Ease the employment pressure 5,072,039 - - - - - 5,072,089 - - Yes
REREENER i
Energy-saving and emission reduction
technology transformation project 3,140,000 2,198,000 314,000 - - - 628000 - - Yes
EER T UL R
Agricultural Super Matching Project 4011200 2229508 278,688 - - - 1,503,004 - - Yes
BREBARNY %
Convenient service facilties project (Note) 1,199,000 - - - - 1,199,000 - - - Yes
EREBREERBE(D) ?
Logistics standardization pilot project 12,647,900 5,082,542 1,040,588 - - - 6024770 - - Yes
B AR B ?
other 4,180,334 - - - - - 4180334 - - Yes
EHRR ®
Total 30,772,473 10,010,050 1,633,276 - - 1,199,000 17,930,147 - -
4
Note: In 2017, the Company received government grants H ARATR2017EE WAL T H
totaling RMB1,199,000 from Beijing Finance Bureau as AEEVERBEAETARE
a special funding for renovation of Jingkelong Xibahe 1,199,000 7T A 1A I & b2 79 48 /]
Store. The deferred income was recognized upon receipt EHETHERNEBENEEE
of the financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred & o AL B YR B BB
assets were divided by ratio of the initial entry value MERREWZS @ IRRB B BEEBEE
of assets, and deferred income would be amortized in BB EERERE1FETT
the estimated useful life (1 years) of the related assets, By BESEI ANE B
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and fiEE °

subsequent related periods.
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

N AHPBHRREAEERE)

29 - BFHB (&)

29. Government grants (Continued)

422

(2) Details of government grants included in profit or (2) EAZXFEBEIBFHEER
loss for the current year
Included
Related to Included non-operating Offset costs
[tem assets/income other income income and expenses
Eﬁilé?/ A A R
#E1E A Lhéay sl Hplees  BRIMRA DEN - ¢
Government reserve expenses Related to income 522,000 - -
BHEERHL B ZR 1R
Ease the employment pressure Related to income 5,072,039 - -
REESLE B N HERG eyt
Enterprise Purchasing Fresh Food Distribution Related to assets 266,667 - -
Center, Fresh Food Purchasing Center HEERE
and Distribution Center Logistics System
Development and Integration Project
ERBEAERIERP O  EFRERL REEFRL
MR AZSFEESIEE fah
Enterprise environmental protection and energy- Related to assets 1,350,600 - -
saving lamps renovation project B4 EARE
PERRETAEEESUETAE HE
Agricultural Super Matchmaking Pilot Project Related to assets 2,824,505 - -
RBY AN ERIEE MR HEERN
Promote service industry development projects Related to assets 840,706 - -
TERB B RIAE M HEEIRH
Enterprise purchase and construction logistics Related to assets 500,000 - -
sorting equipment A ERRE
PEBRYIRARREHS
Logistics standardization pilot project Related to assets 8,190,876 - -
MR R B IE B A HEERH
Commercial Facilities Upgrade Project Related to assets 815,135 - -
BEREARBUETEER B BREERM
Vegetable Basket Project Construction Project at  Related to assets 407,383 - -
Chaoyang District B4 ERRE
S REEFTIRERIAE A
Energy-saving and emission reduction technology — Related to assets 836,000 - -
transformation project HEEMRRE
ERBE R BRI i IR B #E G
Other Related to income 4,180,334 - -
Hofth Hh8h B 1R
Total 25,806,245 - -
At
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < &fBiEHEREETE(Z)
(Continued)

30. Deferred income 30 ~ EE WS

Increase Decrease
2017.1.1  in the period in the period 2017.12.31 Reasons
—E—+F —E—+fF
Item HE —A—H AFAZm rEHS  +ZA=t-H ERIER
Government grants B RE8 30,426,639 10,010,050 7,085,677 33,351,013
Total Bt 30,426,639 10,010,050 7,085,677 33,351,013
Governments grants includes: BB B

(1)

Deferred income was the government grants totaling
RMB4,000,000 received in 2005 from Beijing
Municipal Development and Reform Commission and
Beijing Chaoyang District Finance Bureau to support
the construction of fresh distribution center, fresh
procurement center and distribution center logistics
system. The deferred income was recognized upon
receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile the
deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial
entry value of assets, and deferred income would be
amortized in the estimated useful life (15 years) of
the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2013, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB3,753,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce as a special funding for
renovation of energy-saving lamps. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by ratio of the initial entry value of assets, and deferred
income would be evenly amortized in the estimated
useful life (5 years) of the related assets, recorded in
the profit and loss in current period and subsequent

related periods.

(1)

AN A 2005 4F [E U B 4b R g
BN EZEGRIERTHEGRERE
B BB R A5 A R #64,000,000
AR ERREEREP
O EERBER O REEF DN
MREFAEESCEANEEE
& o NS B 1E e B Bk B R SR
BRELC W= - RBEHEBEAE
EMEERSGI5FETE
B BHESESAEHRUES
PRI o

KA AER2013F E W E b =
MEEZEGRAKTARKE
3,753,000 A R X 15 1> IR IR Ef
BEEENEEEMNEEES - K
5 B TR U B 5 B IR K s B SRR A
Wi - RBEBEEBEENTE
ERASGOFEEITHY  BHESE
STAEB R A EAEERE -
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHzEETE (&)

(Continued)
30. Deferred income (Continued) 30 EZEWER(E)
(3) In 2014, the Company received government grants (B) ARBR2014FEWR L RTTHE

totaling RMB14,186,700 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance Bureau
as a special funding for agriculture-supermarket
jointing program. The deferred income was recognized
upon receipt of the financial allocations. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by ratio of the initial entry value of assets, and deferred
income would be amortized in the estimated useful
life (11 and 5 years) of the related assets, recorded in
the profit and loss in current period and subsequent

related periods.

(4) In 2014, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB8,820,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance Bureau
and as a special funding for service development
program. The deferred income was recognized upon
receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile the
deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial
entry value of assets, and deferred income would be
amortized in the estimated useful life (11 and 5 years)
of the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

30. Deferred income (Continued)

)

In 2014, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB3,000,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce as a special funding for
renovation of energy-saving lamps. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by ratio of the initial entry value of assets, and deferred
income would be amortized in the estimated useful life (5
years) of the related assets, recorded in the profit and

loss in current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2014, Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company,
received government grants totaling RMB5,000,000
from Beijing Municipal Commission of Commerce as a
special funding for group building sorting equipment.
The deferred income was recognized upon receipt of
the financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (10 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.

In 2015, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB8,310,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce as a special funding
for logistics standardization project. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by ratio of the initial entry value of assets, and deferred
income would be amortized in the estimated useful
life (10 and 5 years) of the related assets, recorded in
the profit and loss in current period and subsequent

related periods.

B FS R I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)

N At BEHRREEERE)

BEEEMERBEMNE
S [ 0 M ) R B IR R RE R
Wik REFIBHEBEEEMER
ERBWoFETHE  BHEDH
AAABHR ARG REEER -

ARFZFARBPHEER2014
FEKIGEATEBZEGRK
# 5 AR #5,000,0007T AR X
ROEEBREYRSBRBENZE
B o NEBE LD %I BB

iy #E SRR E W 2 - IR IR B TR AARE
BEMNBAEASH10FETE
o BEHSBEAZTHIAREA

BEEIRIIE A -

KA AER2015F E W E b =
TREBEEEBRAATARE
8,310,000 7T A 1 X #§ ¥ i 1% %
TRABEANZEEES - A5 E
TE U8 B 3% B IBHR R B SRR A IR

CRBREIEBABEENTEE
Fw10F REFHITHE B
SEA AR RN ABERMIE

Ek

BX HP EHH

N

o

2017@&
ErRERERERRDARA 225



e

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 RaR I o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2017%#E
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RET)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHzEETE (&)

(Continued)
30. Deferred income (Continued) 30 EZEWER(E)
(8) In 2015, the Company received government grants (8) &R A MN20154F E U Bl 4t =

totaling RMB5,865,700 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance Bureau
and as a special funding for upgrading business
facilities program. The deferred income was recognized
upon receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile
the deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial
entry value of assets, and deferred income would
be amortized in the estimated useful life (5 years) of
the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

9) In 2015, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB2,080,000 from Beijing Finance Bureau
as a special funding for renovation of energy-saving
lamps. The deferred income was recognized upon
receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile the
deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial
entry value of assets, and deferred income would be
amortized in the estimated useful life (10 years) of
the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

(10) In 2015, Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company,
received government grants totaling RMB8,730,000
from Beijing Municipal Commission of Commerce as
a special funding for logistics standardization project.
The deferred income was recognized upon receipt of
the financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (10 and 5 years) of the related
assets, recorded in the profit and loss in current period

and subsequent related periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

30. Deferred income (Continued)

(1)

(12)

In 2016, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB3,000,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance
Bureau and as a special funding for Chaoyang district
Cailanzi project. The deferred income was recognized
upon receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile
the deferred assets were divided by the initial entry
value of assets, and deferred income would be evenly
amortized in the estimated useful life (10 and 5 years)
of the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2017, Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company,
received government grants totaling RMB12,647,900
from Beijing Municipal Commission of Commerce as
a special funding for logistics standardization project.
The deferred income was recognized upon receipt
of the financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred
assets were divided by the initial entry value of assets,
and deferred income would be evenly amortized in
the estimated useful life (8 and 5 years) of the related
assets, recorded in the profit and loss in current period

and subsequent related periods.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X ~ &0t EBmREE TR (E)

(Continued)

VL.

30. Deferred income (Continued) 30 EZEWER(E)

(13)

(14)

In 2017, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB3,140,000 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Jingkelong energy-saving emission
reduction technology innovation project. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by the initial entry value of assets, and deferred income
would be evenly amortized in the estimated useful life (8
years) of the related assets, recorded in the profit and

loss in current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2017, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB4,011,200 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance Bureau
and as a special funding for Commercial circulation
development of agricultural ultra-docking project. The
deferred income was recognized upon receipt of the
financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (9 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.
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1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHREETE (&)

(Continued)
31. Other non-current liabilities 31~ HitbERBERS
2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—E—tE —ERE
Item HH +=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
Long-term rent payable RHENAHES 25,241,705 20,555,175
Total &5t 25,241,705 20,555,175
32. Share capital 32 - ]
Changes in the period
K529
Capitalization
Opening ~ New issue Bonus  of surplus Closing
balance of shares issue reserves Others Subtotal balance
Item 1R Qg BAFR Bk DReER it It EXE
For the year ended at 31 December 2017 2017 E
1. State-owned legal person shares 1. BREASR
Chaoyang Auilary ELEl 167,400,808 - - - - — 167,409,808
Subtotal of state-owned legal person shares ~ EIAEASRING 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,400,808
2. Other domestic-owned shares 2 AfphERR
Shares held by domestc non-state owned  SEREEIEE AR
legal person 5,210,428 - - - - - 5210428
Domestic indivicual shareholders FRERARR 57,439,764 - - - - — 57439764
3. Foreign listed shares denominated in AMB 3. 385 FE) AR MANETR 182,160,000 - - - - - 182,160,000
Total shares Rz 412,220,000 - - - - - 412,220,000
For the year ended at 31 December 2016 20165 %
1. State-owned legal person shares 1. BEEARR
Chaoyang Aulary #RaR 167,409,808 - - - - — 167,409,808
Subtotal of state-owned legal person shares BB AR/ 167,409,808 - - - - — 167,409,808
2. Other domestic-owned shares 2 AERR
Shares held by domestic non-state owned ~ ERFEEEAER
legal person 7,294,599 - - - 08417)  (2084171) 5210428
Domestic indlvidual shareholders BEMERARR 55,355,593 - - - 2,084,171 2,084,171 57,439,764
3. Foreign listed shares denominated nAMB 3 3850 EATAARENER 182,160,000 - - - - — 182,160,000
Total sheres Riés 412,220,000 - - - - - 412,220000

2017 &R 2294
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 7~

(Continued)

BB BBREA TR (E)

33 - EXRRTE

33. Capital reserves

For the year ended at 31 December 2017 2017FE
Increase Decrease
2017.1.1 in the period in the period 2017.12.31
ltem EH —E—+F —E—tF
—RA-8 KELM XERY +ZA=t+-H
Capital premium BRARE 609,790,884 - - 609,790,884
Equity transaction with minority HBEREDHRRM
shareholders of subsidiaries (Note1) EZ5(1) (985,373) - 9,492,158 (10,477,531)

Other capital reserves (Note 2) HEfEARE(GE2) 695,493 5,000,000 - 5,695,493

Total Aif 609,501,004 5,000,000 9,492,158 605,008,846

For the year ended at 31 December 2016 20164 E

Increase Decrease
2016.1.1 in the period in the period 2016.12.31
—ERF —ERF
ltem EH —H—H AREE AERY +ZRA=1+—H
Capital premium (Note 3) AR (E (FE3) 609,598,028 192,856 - 609,790,884
Equity transaction with minority B REDHRRR
shareholders of subsidiaries BRS (985,373) - - (985,373)

Other capital reserves HinBEARRE 695,493 - - 695,493

Total A&t 609,308,148 192,856 - 609,501,004

Note 1: In the current year, the decrease of equity transaction with 1 ARFE[EBFRARDHRRBIER S IR
minority shareholders of subsidiaries was RMB9,492,158. $19,492,1587T © /ARAZFRAFF
The reason is that Chaopi Trading as a subsidiary of the BB U E T AR SR ER 2 D&k
Company acquired its subsidiary, Chaopi Huilong, minority H22.25% M - HEKRARNEZHE
shareholders of 22.25% equity interest, which invest cost SN FEE MDA -
is higher than the related net asset of Chaopi Huilong.

Note 2: In the current year, the increase of other capital reserves FE2 ¢ ANE[EH A E ARANFE |18 H1%E5,000,000
was RMB5,000,000, which was State-owned capital TC - BREERBNHBEEEALEETE
management budget funds. According to Chaoguoziwen HE¢ - RIEFABE [2017]595% 304
[2017] No. 59, it is required to include in the capital HE - FFABRQTE
reserve.

Note 3: In 2016 the increase of capital premium was RMB192,856. 513 : 20165 [ BR AR (B 138 hN%192,856 7T

The reason is adding capital to Chaopi Tianhua and its
minority shareholders investment proportion is bigger than
their shares holding proportion and the difference is the
capital premium holding by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 E
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All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)

34. Other comprehensive income

For the year ended at 31 December 2017

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

S

S Bt BEHKRIEEERE)

34

FHitpiRE

=
20175 E

Changes in the period
KERER
Less:
Amount that
is previously
included in
other Attributable
comprehensive to the
income s shargholders  Attributable
transferred to Less: of parent o minority
Amount  profitorloss  Income tax company  shareholder
01711 before tax ~ for the period expense affer tax affertax  2017.12.31
g EE)

CR-HE REAER  AbGCUE B HESER HesE  -R-tf
ltem %A -5-8 HRER  EMEARE  FEGER SMNARE WOBRR T2RS1-H
Other comprehensive income that wil WEBEEEBRNEMGANE
e reclassified o proft or loss
Including: Gains or losses from changes on fair BhalbEeREELARE

valug of avallable-for-sale financial assets R9Es 2675174 6,580,000 - 1,645,000 3940597 994,403 6,616,371
Difierences of foregn curency financial M e vt
statements convert (3,016) 23980 - - 12446 11,53 9430
Totd g5 2672758 6803980 - TR0 39BME 100597 6EXH01
For the year ended at 31 December 2016 2016 E
Changes in the period
KRR
Less:
Amount that
is previously
included in other
comprehensive Attributable
income i fothe  Aftributable
ransferred o Less:  shareolders of to minority
Amount profit or loss Income tax  parent company ~ shareholder
201611 before tax fqrthggp%eiog £4penses after ax atrtax 20161231
8 BIAETA

S AEHER A T /@
fem %R —H—E HETE FERER BREMEE  ERR 1o ﬁ -8
Other comprehensive income that wil b WERENBEBRNERRANE
reclassified to proft or loss
Including: Gains or losses from changes on fair A Ttﬂﬁéﬁpﬂéﬁf LER

value of avalable-for-sale financial assets L 2,098,438 964,000 - 241,000 577,316 145,684 2675,774
The tranation difference of foreign currency NEHERRTEEE
financial statement - (5,810) - - (3,016) (2,794) (3,016)
Total H) 209848 958,190 - 241,000 574,300 142,890 2672758
2017 3 34 4
IRREEREEERGOERARF



XY | Hy
- A toe _
A § I_ )

o A R
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1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHzEETE (&)

(Continued)
35. Surplus reserves 35~ BEBRATE
Opening Increase in Decrease in Closing
balance the period the period balance
Item BH FHNH A F 1N REFD FRE
For the year ended at
31 December 2017 20175 E
Statutory surplus reserve SEERBATE | 142,729,211 5,019,386 — 147,748,597 |
For the year ended at
31 December 2016 20165 E
Statutory surplus reserve EIEBBANE 139,259,934 3,469,277 - 142,729,211
In accordance with Company Law and Company’s Articles WIEARE ARRERWMETE - K
of Association, the Company should appropriate 10% of N EFE10%IREVAE BB ATE
net profit for the year to the statutory surplus reserve, and & o ETRBAEEEANAT M
the Company can cease appropriation when the statutory BARE0%A EHY - AT NEBIRER o

surplus reserve accumulated to more than 50% of the paid

in capital.
Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for the EERBABITRANBEATINEE -
loss, expanding operation or increase the paid in capital. BEAAREERLE SN FEN o
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHREETE (&)

(Continued)
36. Undistributed profits 36 ~ &2 ERE
Proportion of
Amount appropriation
Item EHE S8 RIS mEs
For the year ended at 31 December 2017 2017 E -
Undistributed profits at the beginning of year — F#]K % B 7)) 476,230,980
Add: Net profit attributable to the e REFBREEAR]
shareholders of the parent Fr A & 895 )
company for the year 47,485,004
Less: Appropriation to statutory B IREUETE BB AR
surplus reserve 5,019,386 10%
Ordinary shares’ dividends payable FEA X 5@ AR AR 20,611,000
Undistributed profits at the end of the year FARAD A 498,085,598
For the year ended at 31 December 2016 20165 E :
Undistributed profits at the beginning of year #1442 B A 473,625,451
Add: Net profit attributable to the m: RESHBRE AT
shareholders of the parent B8 & 0% F) B
company for the year 26,685,806
Less: Appropriation to statutory W IRBUETE BB AR
surplus reserve 3,469,277 10%
Ordinary shares’ dividends payable JEA 3B AR AR 20,611,000
Undistributed profits at the end of the year FRRDEFHE 476,230,980
(1) Cash dividend approved and subject to be (1) BREAESEMEFFEHENE S
approved in the annual general meeting BRF
According to the notice of the annual general meeting R20179F58268  BEAREH
on 26 May 2017, a final dividend of RMB0.05 per BRERE - ARAHB20169F
share in respect of year ended 31 December 2016 was ERF AFRARK0.057T © AFF
declared and paid to the shareholders of the Company. R A AR #20,611,0007T ©
The aggregated amount of the final dividend declared
and paid was RMB20,611,000.
2017 Fik 2334
IERREEREEERG AR AR



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

36. Undistributed profits (Continued)

(1) Cash dividend approved and subject to be

approved in the annual general meeting (Continued)

According to the notice of the annual general meeting
on 27 May 2016, a final dividend of RMBO0.05 per
share in respect of year ended 31 December 2015 was
declared and paid to the shareholders of the Company.
The aggregated amount of the final dividend declared

and paid was RMB20,611,000.

On 21 March 2018, the directors of the Company
proposed the payment of a dividend of RMBO0.06
per share to shareholders in respect of year ended
31 December 2017. The proposal of dividend
distribution mentioned above is subject to be approved
by the shareholders at Annual General Meeting of
the Company. This recommendation has not been
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
as a liability. The estimated amount of dividends in

aggregate is RMB24,733,200.

Surplus reserves of subsidiaries

On 31 December 2017, the undistributed profits of the
Group included surplus reserves of subsidies totaling
in the period RMB18,941,023 (31 December 2016:
RMB17, 280,421).
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SO BHRREBTE(E)

36 * RO EREE)
(1) REAEBEHENFTEMENREE

BRF(E)

201655278 » RIEARQFN
REERE  NRFIHE2015%F
BT ABRARK0.057T + &5t
& F A A R#20,611,0007T °

M2018F3H21H + ARFAIKMES

CRBAOE2017TFEERF - K
AR¥0.067T « Z MR F 5 &
FERRANGHA o ZRF R
ERBEI ARG T ERE -
FEE XN RAEERARE
24,733,2007T °

FRACIERWEGAE
20179128318 * NEBASER
FHBRERRETAAAFRR
A AE R AK18,941,023
(20165 12 431 : AR
17,280,4217%) °
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < &fBiEHEREETE(Z)
(Continued)

37 - ERWAMERKAE

37. Operating income and operating costs

(1) Operating income and operating costs (1) EEURARKE
2017 2016
20175 E 20165 E
Income Costs Income Costs
ltem EH WA A WA AR
Principal operating FEEH 10,786,227,182  9,251,355,087 | 10,847,004,705  9,493,825,874
Other operating HibEH% 1,169,510,105 7,822,522 | 1,034,569,272 8,358,946
Total At 11,955,737,287  9,259,177,609 | 11,881,573,977  9,502,184,820

(2) Principal operating income and principal operating (2) FEEHK(H1T¥)
costs (classified by industry segments)
2017 2016
20175 E 2016F
Principal Principal Principal Principal
operating operating operating operating
income costs income costs
ltem T8H FEEBWA FEEBRE FEEBUA FEEBAA
Retail TE 4,518,255,270  3,748,109,906 | 4,470,274,950  3,725,014,979
Wholesale #E 6,227,140,323  5,466,211,783 | 6,330,672,053  5,727,568,739
Others Hit 45,831,589 37,033,398 46,057,702 41,242,156
Total A&t 10,786,227,182  9,251,355,087 | 10,847,004,705  9,493,825,874
The principal operating income mainly consists of FEEBRAZTZAHEERM
selling food, non-staple food, daily consumer goods, BlEqm  AAMER - READA

beverages and wines etc.

FHUSHWA -

2017 &4 2354
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

37. Operating income and operating costs (Continued)

(3) Operating income of the Group’s top five customers

N AHPBHRREAEERE)

37 ~ ERWANMERKA(E)

(3) RAFEEFEFHEXRUAER

For the year ended at 31 December 2017 20176 E
Proportion of the
total operating
Operating income of the
income Group (%)
EAREHEE
ltem EH =ELON WU B L B (%)
Jingdong RE 1,336,538,034 11
Wu-mart VIES 1,060,131,927 9
Vipshop EmE 513,696,007 4
Shanghai Tianyi E-commerce Co., Ltd. FEREE ?W’*ﬁ [[iFN 262,678,965 2
Yonghui Commercial Co., Ltd. KEEEARA 202,071,759 2
Total Gt 3,375,116,692 28
For the year ended at 31 December 2016 2016 E
Proportion of the
total operating
Operating income of the
income Group (%)
HARRHES
Item JEH EERA WA B (%)
Wu-mart VS 1,108,607,820 9
Jingdong AR 1,096,214,052 9
Vipshop EmE 477,309,435 4
Walmart (China) Investment Co., Ltd. KRG (RE)REERAF 231,646,222 2
Jumei International Holdings Limited KEEEBRRHRARAR 228,359,015 2
Total A%t 3,142,136,544 26
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < &fBiEHEREETE(Z)
(Continued)

38 ~ Bl R M n

38. Taxes and surcharges

2017 2016
ltem ] 20175 E 20165 F
Business tax EEER - 13,763,578
Consumption tax HER 1,995,132 1,999,619
City construction and maintenance tax W EERT 25,956,672 24,229,305
Building tax BEH 14,708,188 7,430,639
Land tax TP R 1,006,017 461,956
Viehicle and vessel use tax BMERR 209,260 184,241
Stamp tax ENFERS 7,098,877 4,187,816
Others HAith 7,753 4,643
Total At 50,981,899 52,261,797
Selling expenses 39 - HEEH

2017 2016
ltem BR 20175 E 20166 &
Wages and salaries BIHm 493,581,073 490,826,486
Depreciation and amortization expenses TEREHER 210,246,291 198,523,894
Lease expenses HEEA 240,394,814 235,536,342
Others Hith 1,104,941,014 866,426,837
Total &5t 2,049,163,192 1,791,313,559

. Administrative expenses 40 - EERHA

2017 2016
ltem HH 20175 E 20165 E
Wages and salaries B THH 234,226,604 222,232,071
Depreciation and amortization expenses NER#HER 8,789,754 8,784,886
Others Hith 55,922,641 51,586,894
Total &5t 298,938,999 282,603,851

2017 F 3R 237 4
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VI.

423

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <  &86tB#sREEFTE (&)
(Continued)
41. Financial expenses M~ BEEH
2017 2016
ltemn g 20175 E 2016F &
Interest expenses MEZH 163,151,952 149,076,603
Including: Interest expenses of bank loans to be Hh ERSFREENBITHERD
reimbursed in 5 years FIEXH 112,002,035 92,728,186
Interest expenses of bonds EHFESH 51,149,917 56,348,417
Less: Capitalized interest expenses B FEEA L EE - 22,437
Interest income FIBHA (18,366,855) (16,272,835)
Bank charges RITFEE 18,914,257 13,646,405
Exchange losses (gains) 3 =E (242,201) (157,152)
Total Bt 163,457,153 146,270,584
42. Impairment losses on assets 42 - BEAERX
2017 2016
ltem 5H 20175 E 2016FE
Provision/(Reversal) of bad debt BRIBAHR/(EE) 1,783,983 4,491,103
Written-down of inventories FEREEX - 894,940
Total At 1,783,983 5,386,043
43. Investment income 43 ~ BE W R
2017 2016
ltemn g 20175 E 2016F %
Investment income from financial products BEERRENE 2,415,469 997,767
Investment income from holding available-for-sale Al & B AR A MR A
financial assets during holding period W 110,000 64,000
Total At 2,525,469 1,061,767
44. Gain on disposal of assets 44 - BEEB W
The amount
included in the
current year
non-recurring
2017 2016 gains and losses
E+/\”“¢3W B
ltem R 20175 E 201658 btk
Gain on disposal of non-current assets ERBEERE Wa 161,944 133,548 161,944
Total At 161,944 133,548 161,944
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHREETE (&)

(Continued)

44 - BEREWES(AE)

44. Gain on disposal of assets (Continued)

Note: On 25 December 2017, the Ministry of Finance promulgated

the “Notice of the Ministry of Finance on Revising the Format
of Printing and Distributing the General Enterprise Financial
Statements” (Cai Kuai [2017] No. 30), according to this
document, the new term “gain on disposal of assets” reflects
that gains and losses on disposal of businesses classified as
held for sale (except for financial instruments, long-term equity
investments and investment real estate) or disposal groups
and disposal of fixed assets not classified as held for sale
Construction gains, productive biological assets and intangible
assets arising from the disposal of gains or losses. Debt
restructuring in the disposal of non-current assets arising from
the gains or losses and non-monetary assets exchange gains
or losses are also included in the project. The enterprise shall,
in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Accounting
Standard for Business Enterprises No. 30 — Presentation
of Financial Statements, adjust the comparative data of

comparable periods in accordance with the “Notice”.

45. Other income

(1) Details of other income

ltem EH

Government grants TR B

it

2017512 A258 -+ B Buab M B B
BEAMNMERT IR — R EMBREER
RBEED) (1€ (2017)30%%) » R
HE - M EERENREHE K
MEELEE D AHERFENERDE
E(e@mIA  REREREMZENE
EHERRIN) S B AR ERNEER
BBk - UREBERED RIFER
WETEE TEIR SEUHLED
BERBEFEEMEENEEFISRIE
%k BHEEATEREFRDEEEE
MAGSIBAFEER M EEIRESE
MG RIBROEIEERERR ¥
g R E G ERIE305: — U
WRYIRH)SEIERARTE - ¥ AT L HA RS
ML B BURIRRCBA T -

45 ~ Hlhz

(1) Eflzz 540~

2017
0175 E

25,806,245

The amount

included in the

current year

non-recurring

2016  gains and losses
STABFIFLEN

20165 & btk

- 25,806,245

Total =

25,806,245

- 25,806,245

2017 &4 2394
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHzEETE (&)

(Continued)
45. Other income (Continued) 45 ~ Hfb = (&)
(2) Details of government grants (2) BB
2017 2016
Item HA 2017EE 20165
Government reserve expenses BRREE AR 522,000 -
Ease the employment pressure E O EE 5,072,039 -
Asset-related government grants HEAERBNRNEYATEH
amortization for the current year 16,031,872 -
Other HAbFRL 4,180,334 -
Total At 25,806,245 -
Note: On 10 May 2017, the Ministry of Finance promulgated £ 2017958108 @ BfEREBERTED
the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises BET(REEFERIFE165 — I
No. 16 — Government Grants” (Cai Kuai [2017] No. 15, A8 (B&(2017) 1558 - A
hereinafter referred to as this Code), on 25 December TRTEALER]) - 201712 425
2017, the Ministry of Finance promulgated the “Notice H - BB AR e B I B0 RE A S
of the Ministry of Finance on Revising the Format of IR — MO EMBHREENN
Printing and Distributing the General Enterprise Financial BH) (Bf&€(2017) 30%%) © R
Statements” (Cai Kuai [2017] No. 30), according to this X HRE - TR E A
document, the new term “other income” requests that HE @ ERBEC¥EHEEHME
government grants related to daily business activities BB E) - EERBAESE
should include in other income or offset related costs BEE - 5t ARt UEs SoR R AE
based on the nature of economic business, as for other BRKAER - MAXAREHE
government grants, it should include in non-operating BB HEE) - EEF AL E
income. SN o
In addition, according to relevant provisions of the F4h - BIKE2018F2A7H + B
guidelines after revision about “Interpretation of Issues BEpE R ERBUS BN ERE
Concerning Government Grants Standards” issued by AR AR AR E )P BRI EREET 12
the Ministry of Finance on 7 February 2018, companies RIEOMERARTE - BEEE2017
should adopt future application method to deal with F1 A1 BFERBATHEBIERA R
government grants existing on 1 January 2017, HE AR - ¥7201741 A1
government grants occurred between 1 January 2017 BEXREREITA 2 EHIE K
and the date of the implementation of this Code are AT R B AR R AN AE RN T A EE o
adjusted in accordance with these Guidelines. According FRARTERE  bETHFRAE
to future application method, it is not required for 20165 12 A31HE BRI B K
companies to adjust the closing balance of the relevant A ERB2017TEERE BT
account as at 31 December 2016 and there is no need HHEA LA LR EUE -

to adjust the comparison data during the preparation of

the 2017 annual report.
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < &fBiEHEREETE(Z)
(Continued)

46. Non-operating income

(1)

)

46 ~ EEIMIA

Details of non-operating income (1) EXEIPWABHLT
The amounts
included in
non-recurring
gains and losses
2017 2016 for the year
SABREI LR
Item B 0175 20165 % btk
Total gains from spoilage and obsolescence  FERBHEERBREMGA
of non-current assets 12,006 52,622 12,006
Including: Gains from spoilage and B AR EERBRERNG
obsolescence of fixed assets 12,006 52,622 12,006
Government grants T8 - 31,623,878 -
Others Hith 7,801,857 5,110,897 7,801,857
Total At 7,813,863 36,787,397 7,813,863
Details of government grants (2) BIFHBIBHA
2017 2016
ltem HE 20176 E 2016F %
Compensation for government B REEBREE
reserve expenses - 522,000
Subsidies to ease the employment pressure 4 # gt B 1 #8S - 7,920,146
Amortization of government grants related BEERBOBRT R A FEE
to assets in current year - 7,854,097
Others Hibksa - 16,327,635
Total At - 31,623,878
2017 3 g4 4
IERREEREEERG AR AR
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 7~

(Continued)

- B BRRERERE)

47 ~ EEIHTH

47. Non-operating expenses

Al

The amounts
included in
non-recurring
gains and losses
2017 2016 for the year
AARFHARN
ltem HE 2017EE 20165 % B
Total losses from spoilage and obsolescence  3EREI A ERBRERL S
of non-current assets ) 5,147,245 3,788,605 5,147,245
Including: Losses from spoilage and Hi: AR EERBIRERE
obsolescence of fixed assets 5,147,245 3,788,605 5,147,245
Fine By 395,184 171,319 395,184
Others Hith 14,810,414 1,126,074 14,810,414
Total A3t 20,352,843 5,085,998 20,352,843
48. Income tax expense 48 - FIEHEHR
(1) Details of income tax expense (1) FEHERZ
2017 2016
ltem g 20175 E 016F %
Current income tax expense calculated in BRERERREENE B
accordance with tax laws and relevant Fi5H
requirements 53,288,085 50,581,544
Deferred income tax EEAMEHER 58,578 8,547,788
Total At 53,346,663 59,129,332

Reconciliation between income tax expenses and

accounting profits

&)

B BRI EAARBRE

2017 2016
ltem g 20175 016F %
Accounting profit e 148,189,130 134,450,037
Income tax expense calculated at tax RS EHEREHER

rate of 25% 37,047,283 33,612,509
Effect of subsidiary companies to adapt FREERATHABENYE

different tax rates 180,543 (102,603)
Effect of non-deductible expenses AAEMNER E’JE@ 3,011,983 2,396,148
Effect of non-taxable income ETSBBARNTE (876,625) (756,195)
Effect of using deductible losses of previously — 7i|F mﬁlﬁikﬁﬁ%iﬁilﬁﬁ?%ﬁﬁéé’\]

unrecognized deferred tax assets —HR?DEESTEE’] e (436,259) (4,577)
Effect of deductible temporary difference or ~ RHEREILFTER ééa’ﬂﬁﬁuiﬁ

deductible losses of unrecognized deferred K= EfENBENEE

tax assets 15,016,348 17,681,083
Effect of deductible losses recover of Al HHEE;&ELW%%EEEH&TD &

previously recognized deferred tax assets BENNYE - 6,799,186
Effect of adjusting the previous years’ SHE AR Eﬁlﬂﬁﬁﬁ CodingZ

income tax (596,610) (496,219)
Total 45 53,346,663 59,129,332
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHREETE (&)

(Continued)
49. Net profit 49 ~ FRH
The Group’s net profit is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REERFREDEMBRGEA) AT &
]

(Notes) 2017 2016
ltem EE i3 20175 2016F %
Cost of goods sold BRI ER AR (Vi) 37 9,251,355,087 9,493,825,874
Depreciation of investment properties K& EETE V)9 7,882,294 6,632,616
Depreciation of fixed assets BTBENE (V) 10 119,611,892 120,582,080
Amortization of intangible assets B EESH (Vi) 12 12,613,370 11,197,160
Amortization of leasehold improvements &4 A\EFE EERR X H#H (V) 14 86,800,815 79,453,006
Total of depreciation and amortization 378 B A 226,908,371 217,864,862
Net losses on disposal of non-current  3ERENEEREFIEA (VI) 44,46,47

assets 4,973,295 3,602,435
Net rental income of investment BEHEHERSFRA
properties (15,547,187) (17,803,624)
Staff costs BIFMER (V1) 22 730,286,237 719,809,741
Including: Directors and supervisors’ ~ Hh : 2% - EEf4
emoluments 4,220,724 4,870,637
Other staff costs: Hih 8 TAAK -
Wages or salaries and social I%  HeRiteRERA
security costs 657,343,084 644,159,268
Basic retirement insurance EABERBE 68,722,429 70,779,836
Audit expenses E:HER 3,318,280 2,277,206
50. Calculation process of basic earnings per share and 50 EASRKENRESRWEWHE
diluted earnings per share BiE
While calculating basic earnings per share, net profit S RGNS - BN B
attributable to ordinary shareholders for the current year is B HEF A
as follows:
2017 2016
Itemn JEE 20175 E 20165 E
Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders FENT BRI RN E HFRE
for the current year 47,485,004 26,685,806
Including: Net profit from continuing operations Hi: GERRELEMFNE 47,485,004 26,685,806
While calculating basic earnings per share, the denominator AEERNGRIEER - 2T AEITEIN
is the weighted average number of ordinary shares TBBONET9E - GHEBIEMT
outstanding and its calculation process is as follows:
2017 2016
Item JEE 20175 E 20165
Number of ordinary shares outstanding BIEIN T BRE 412,220,000 412,220,000
2017 5 oy 4
I ERERBEEERNDARAT]
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

50. Calculation process of basic earnings per share and

diluted earnings per share (Continued)

Earnings per share

[tem

Calculated based on net profit and net profit from
continuing operations attributable to shareholders
of the parent company:

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

58

EHBREARABRROFNERE
BREARRRMTELEHH

B
A
RS

- B BRRERERE)

BEE)

TR Wz

2017
2017EE

0.12
N/A &R

50 - EXBRUENHRESRUSENTE

2016
20165

0.06
N/A i

At date of report, the Company had no dilutive potential

ordinary shares.

51. Items in the cash flow statements

HEHRRRP  QARBEEARELNE

il

51 -HEFKRERHEHR

(1) Other cash received relating to operating activities (1) WKIEMBEEL TE AR RS

2017 2016
ltemn g 20175 2016F %
Income of rent AEWA 191,144,255 177,098,967
Income of scrap sales BRI 2,751,285 2,708,765
Income of franchise EERA 2,203,818 1,582,182
Income of government grants B RS A 30,772,473 26,779,378
Recovered deposit Y e e 7,995,591 6,156,422
Others Hith 21,490,150 49,103,439
Total GH 256,357,572 263,429,153

(2) Other cash paid relating to operating activities (2) FTRMELEIBHERNES

2017 2016
ltem EH 20175 E 2016F %
Selling expenses (except rent) HEER(TE1ESE) 781,040,792 786,927,851
Administrative expenses EEER 53,158,889 35,761,225
Manufacturing costs FEER 239,777 3,923,466
Rent YAES 205,873,368 221,035,827
Deposit and margin Y AHERRES 12,608,065 6,737,553
Bank charges BAIFES 18,914,257 13,646,404
Others Hith 4,207,535 5,652,557
Total A&t 1,076,042,683 1,073,584,883
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(Continued)

52. Supplementary information to the cash flow

statement

B FS R I ot

AN

1y
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(1) Supplementary information to the cash flow

statement

52 -RERBRATEH

(1) RERBEXRFHHEH

2017 2016
Supplementary information HRER 20175 201652
1. Reconciliation of net profits and cash flow from 1 BEFEESACLIHELRE
operating activities:
Net profit BRI 94,842,467 75,320,705
Add: Provision for impairment losses on assets RN EEREER 1,783,984 5,386,043
Depreciation of fixed assets ETBENE 119,611,892 120,582,080
Depreciation of investment properties REUEHERE 7,882,294 6,632,616
Amortization of intangible assets B EESHE 12,613,370 11,197,160
Amortization of long-term prepaid expenses REEEBHEE 86,800,815 79,453,006
Net Losses on disposal of fixed assets, intangible REBTEE  BEVEENEMR
assets and other long-term assets HEENZEE 4,973,295 3,602,435
Financial expenses(including exchange losses BRER(ZELES)
(gains) 163,457,153 132,624,180
Losses arising from investments RERB% (2,525,469) (1,061,767)
Amortization of government grants related to BEERENNF RS
assets (6,455,437) (6,433,436)
Increase in deferred tax liabilities ELFEHAEMNEM 1,540,327 85,056
Decrease in deferred tax assets EREREENHD (581) 8,708,732
Decrease (Increase) in inventories BENHD LM (65,525,323) (150,358,474)
Decrease in operating receivables MM EIIER KD 844,958,175 265,593,484
Increase in operating payables W ERTRR RN (625,004,717 37,778,151
Net cash flows from operating activities MESTBEL MRS m 58 638,952,245 589,104,971
2. Net changes in cash and cash equivalents: 2 BeRBLEEMFEYER
Closing balance of cash BEMERBE 929,508,884 613,131,273
Less: Opening balance of cash W BeRENRE 613,131,273 574,168,439
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents BeRBELSEMFEMORL ) B 316,377,611 38,962,834
L ‘ 2017 F8 oy 5 4
I RRBREFEEERNERA A



&
bl Lo
Eelata

ity MG L Do

|* gﬁ

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R M ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2017%#E
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RET)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHzEETE (&)

424

(Continued)
52. Supplementary information to the cash flow EHERERBTERE)
statement (Continued)
(2) Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries (2) FEFEZNHIEREFRENREZFEH
2017 2016
ltemn E8 20175 E 016F %
Cash and cash equivalents paid for enterprise ~ RNEZEEHPEAHRAELNNHE S
merger in current year FEEEEY 64,020,502 -
Including: Beijing Lianchao Company Limited. i : b RE#HREEER AR 64,020,502 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents held by B BERTARBAENRERESSE
subsidiaries on the purchase day B 1,726,616 -
Including: Beijing Lianchao Company Limited. He R EEEER AR 1,726,616 -
Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries SFRAIZNNRLFE 62,293,886 -
(3) Cash and cash equivalents 8) BH2RE2ZEYHER
2017.12.31 2016.12.31
- S 3 —ERE
IHE +=A=t-8 +-A=+—8
Cash Be
Including: Cash on hand H o EERS 17,831,167 18,003,274
Bank deposits on demand ATRER AN S AR ITE R 911,677,716 594,227,999
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents R4 RIE&HEME 929,508,884 613,131,273
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < &fBiEHEREETE(Z)
(Continued)

53. Net current assets

3 -FRBEE

2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—E—tfF —ERF
ltem EH +=ZA=+-H +-A=+—~H
Current assets MEBEE 5,266,654,564 6,011,224,528
Less: Current liabilities W ORBAR 5,486,420,553 5,463,543,200
Net current assets FRBEE (219,765,989) 547,681,328
54. Total assets less current liabilities BEERREBERS
2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—E—+F —“T—REF
ltem EH +=ZA=+-AH +-A=+—AH
Total assets BERE 7,700,251,772 8,382,448,085
Less: Current liabilities wREaR 5,486,420,553 5,463,543,200
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDERE 2,213,831,219 2,918,904,885

55.

Assets that ownership or usufruct is restricted

55 - B RHERARZIRFNEE

Carrying amount at

Item 31 December 2017 Restriction reasons

EHE FRIREERE ZRERH

Cash and bank balances 122,714,742 Bank acceptance margin deposits
that are restricted

EXES f’Eﬁ'jng?%REmE’ﬂ% FeFRm

1) PR 1

Cash and bank balances 15,979,702 The credit margin deposits that
are restricted

BE¥ED ERERFRRIESFRMZ IR

Accounts receivable 428,485,860 Bank loans are obtained through
factoring arrangement that are
restricted

JEU R K ILAEL@%E@&EFE SIRTTER

= B BR
Total 567,180,304
A%

2017 &R 2474
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < 80t RBEA TR (&)

(Continued)
56. Foreign currency monetary items 56 - SMNEEMMIER
2017.12.31 2016.12.31
ZE2-tF+tZA=1-H ZE-R"EtZA=t—H
Closing Closing
balance Closing balance Closing
in foreign Exchange balance in foreign Exchange balance
currency rate in RMB currency rate in RMB
8 N
Item JHE IEERE FEEX  AR¥HE IR EEER  ARESE
Cash and cash balances E%&% 9,797,927 7,059,548
Including: USD Het L 295,047 6.5342 1,927,894 564,948 6.5657 3,709,293
EUR BT 981,815 7.8023 7,660,415 446,685 7.3068 3,263,835
HKD BT 38,141 0.8359 31,882 101,337 0.8366 84,781
GBP it 193 8.7792 1,693 193 8.4922 1,639
NZD Giigil] 38,000 4.6327 176,043 - - -
VII. CHANGES IN THE CONSOLIDATION SCOPE + A EENEE
1. Business combinations involving enterprises not 1 EE—EETOES0t
under common control
(1) Business combinations involving enterprises not (1) FEBERIEE—1ZH FLESGF

under common control in current year

Income of ~ Net profit of
the acquiree  the acquiree
between between
acquisition  acquisition
dateandthe  date and the

Proportion  Acquisition end of the end of the
ofequity  method year year
interest ~ of equiy BER £l
Acquisition date Acquisition cost  acquired (%) interest Recognition basis of the BER BER
Acquiree ofequityinterest ~ of equity interest ~~ REHE  RERE  Acquisiondate  acaquisition date LBV hEER
BREAER REnERE REREaK b B3 LL BERNERRE HRA WEHE
Beiing Lianchao Company Limted 30 September 2017 RMB244,020,000 8  Cash 30 September 2017 Equty interest purchasing 1,799,649 128,724
(the “Lianchao Limited') N17E9A30R AUAET BEEE  017F9R%08 contract n force, fuly paic and
IREREEERLT the acquire under control
(BRI RERERRENUR TR
;ﬁ";«‘lﬁ HREREE T
4

4 248 ANNUAL REPORT 2017
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED



$ B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R M ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)

1y

VIl. CHANGES IN THE CONSOLIDATION SCOPE (Continued) +t ~ &ft&iEMNE#E (&)

1. Business combinations involving enterprises not 1 FR—EHTEESHE)

under common control (Continued)

(1) Business combinations involving enterprises not (1) FKFEBRERFRE—7ZH T LFEEGE
under common control in current year (Continued) (%)
Achieve business combinations progressively and DHELR L EA G A EARFREHE
obtain proportion of equity interest acquired in the HIERI 5 A

current year

Acquisition cost Proportion of equity
Acquisition date of equity interest of equity interest interest acquired (%) Acquisition method
BERERY HEC TN BERA(%) BBAR
2015.7.22 24,935,200 15 Cash
BeEE
2017.9.30 244,020,502 85 Cash
ReBE
(2) Cost of combination and goodwill (2) BHALRBEE
Lianchao Limited
ltems L] BN
Cost of combination B O
- Cash -Be 268,955,702
Total Cril%Nan) 268,965,702
Less: The fair value of identifiable net assets acquired i - EVGM RIS AFEE L L BENE
in the business combination 268,955,702
The amount that the fair value of identifiable net assets F2 /AR NARGH A EZZEEL A BE
acquired less goodwill/the combination cost NENEE -

2017 &4 2494
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VIl. CHANGES IN THE CONSOLIDATION SCOPE (Continued) +t - &ff&iEMEE (&)

1. Business combinations involving enterprises not 1 FR—BEHTEESHE)

under common control (Continued)

(3) Identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquire at (3) HWEBEIREEATHIEE
the acquisition date b=}
Lianchao Limited
BEAR
Fair values at the Carry amount at
acquisition date the acquisition date
ltem EH BEAAAER BEAREER
Assets: BE:
Cash and bank balances EEEe 1,726,616 1,726,616
Accounts receivable FEMR 30,192,326 30,192,326
Other current assets HiRaEE 208,955 208,955
Fixed assets EF8E 6,110 6,110
Investment properties REEEHME 237,334,719 132,621,439
Liabilities: BafE:
Taxes payable EXRE 513,023 513,023
Net assets FARE 268,955,702 164,242,422
Net assets acquired BEMFEE 268,955,702 164,242,422
2. Other reasons of changes in the consolidation scope 2 HtFEENWEHEESE
Beijing Jingkelong Fresh Convenience Store Company REFHMRFAT » HEF - b7ZRE
Limited and Beijing Chaopi Huansheng international BEAEENEFREEAFBARFL
Trading Company Limited, two subsidiaries are established BT RN BEEREERE S EAERA
respectively by investment of the Company and the FHEFATIERANEERDER AT
Company’s subsidiary Beijing Chaopi Trading Company BB - BRBERZEMEFN - £F
Limited and details were referred to Note (VIIl) Equity in NaFRERD °
subsidiaries.

4 250 ANNUAL REPORT 2017
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED



© i ’ X

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 #RaR I o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)

VIIl. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES N EHMEERIER
Equity in subsidiaries EFARHRHNER
(1) Components of the Company (1) TEEFHEL

Place of Nature of Registered
Subsidiary Type incorporation business Capital
FARER FAEH b EHHE ARER
Beijing Jingkelong (Langfang) Co., Ltd. (Jingkelong Langfang) Limited company Langfang, PRC Retall 80,000,000
SERRERE (B ARAR (U TR REEES]) ERERAT Bl 2EX
Beijing Jingkelong Supermarket Chain Co., Ltd. (Jingkelong Tongzhou) Limited company Beijing, PRC Retall 29,000,000
IRREEETEEERAA A THR REREM]) BRELLA IR TEX
Beiing Xinyang Tongli Commercial Facilties Co., Ltd. (Xinyang Tongl) Limited company Beiing, PRC Manufacture 10,000,000
IRRERNEEREERARDATERIMEEN]) BERERAT IR BiEx
Beijing Jingkelong Shouchao Commercial Co., Ltd. (Shoulian Supermarket) Limited company Beijjing, PRC Retall 398,453,439
FRREEEREEERAA (A THR SR ) BRELLRA IR TEX
Beiing Jingkelong Haotian Hotel Management Co., Ltd. (Haotian Hotel) Limited company Beijing, PRC Hospitality 5,000,000
IRREEZREEEEARARATHRE ZREE]) ARAR IR BREREE
Beijing Jingkelong Vocational Training School(Training School) Institutional organization  Beiing, PRC Training 500,000
IRTAGRREERESRENERA THRIHIER) EXEA IR sl
Beijing Lianchao Company Limited (the “Lianchao Limited”) Limited company Beijing, PRC Retall 10,000,000
IREBEEARLAATERBRRAA]) BRAT IR TEX
Beiing Jingkelong Fresh convenience store Company Limited Limited company Beijing, PRC Retall 10,000,000
IRREREEEHEARE AN TERESHENE)) ERERAT IR 25X
Beijing Chaopi Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Trading) Limited company Beijing, PRC Wholesale 500,000,000
IRERAERNARAR A TERIARAE]) ROERRA IR s 3
Beijing Chaopi Shuanglong Alcohol Sales Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Shuanglong)* Limited company Beijing, PRC Wholesale 110,160,000
SRTAH SRR HERRECARN A TR B LR ) BERERAT IR ks 3
Beijing Chaopi Huaging Beverage Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Huaging)* Limited company Beijing, PRC Wholesale 80,000,000
IRAREEHEARAT (A THR B EE]) EREMRAT IR ks 3
Beiiing Chaopi Flavourings, Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Flavouring)* Limited company Beijing, PRC Wholesale 50,000,000
R ARG AREERE (A TR ARG ) EREMRAT IR ke 3
Beiiing Chaopi Jinglong Ol Sales Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Oil Sales)* Limited company Beijing, PRC Wholesale 36,000,000
FRAYRERREEARAR (A TR PR ) BEREMRAT IR e 3
Shijiazhuang Chaopi Xinlong Trading Co., Ltd.* Limited company Shijiazhuang, PRC Wholesale 5,000,000
AR BEREERAT ERERAT e paz
Qingdao Chaopi Jinlong Trading Co., Ltd.” Limited company Qingdao, PRC Wholesale 5,000,000
ERINEEREERAT BERERAT £5 paz
Beiling Chaopi Zhongde Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Zhongde)* Limited company Beijing, PRC Wholesale 50,000,000
IRAYPEHEARAT (A TR BHAE]) BREERA IR paz

2017 &4 251 4
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) N-EHMERPHERSE)
Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) EFRARIPHER(E)
(1) Components of the Company (Continued) (1) TEEFHEHL(E)

Place of Nature of Registered
Subsidiary Type incorporation business Capital
TREER FATER it £BUE EMER
Beiing Chaopi Huilong Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Huilong)* Limited company Beiling, PRC Wholesale 24,000,000
IRAHEREEERARUA T ERIAHER]) EREMRA IR HE%
Talyuan Chaopi Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Talyuan)* Limited company Talyuan, PRC Wholesale 15,000,000
KRR EEERAAUAT SR AHAR]) BRERRA KR HE%
Tangshan Chaopi Trading Co., Ltd." Limited company Tangshan, PRC Wholesale 5,000,000
ELSEHAERER AR BREMALA 1l BEz
Tianjin Chaopi Trading Co., Ltd.* Limited company Tianjin, PRC Wholesale 15,000,000
AEOHEEARAR BREMALAF Py BEx
Chaopi Yull Trading Co., Ltd.”* Limited company Beiling, PRC Wholesale 24,000,000
FRERRREEARAR AT RIS BRERRA IR HE%
Chaopi Fangsheng Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Fangsheng)™* Limited company Beiing, PRC Wholesale 20,000,000
IRERAEEEARARA T ERI AR A E]) BREMRA IR R3S
Jinan Chaopi Linda Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Jinan)* Limited company Jinan, PRC Wholesale 26,000,000
ERamEREARAR A T HRI S ER]) BRERRA il R3S
Beiing Chaopi Shenglong Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Shenglong)* Limited company Beiing, PRC Wholesale 20,000,000
GRAREEAEARAR (TR AR EE ) ERELAF IR BEx
Beiing Chaopi Tianhua Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Tianhua)* Limited company Beiling, PRC Wholesale 20,000,000
IRERREREARAR A T ERI AR RE]) BREMRA IR R3S
Datong Chaopi Beichen Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Datong)* Limited company Datong, PRC Wholesale 26,000,000
AR REEARAR A T SRISAHAR ) BREMRA G &%
Datong Chaopi Ant Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Ant)™ Limited company Datong, PRC Retall 5,000,000
ARAHEEREARARUA T HRISARES]) BRERRA G TER
Tangshan Chaopi Baishun Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Baishun)* Limited company Tangshan, PRC Wholesale 30,000,000
BB BIEEEERARATERE AR BRERAA Ell &%
Beiiing Chaopi Maolisheng Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Maolisheng)* Limited company Beiling, PRC Wholesale 75,000,000
IREBEAAAEERAE A TR AR D BREMRA IR &%
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) N~ FEHMERPHOERSE)
Equity in subsidiaries (Continueqd) EFARHRHNERE)
(1) Components of the Company (Continued) (1) EEFLEL(E)

Place of Nature of Registered

Subsidiary Type incorporation business Capital

TREER FATER it EBUE ERER

Hong Kong Chaopi Asia Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Hong Kong)™ Limited company Hong Kong, PRC Wholesale HKD10,000

BADMENERRAUAT R AR B BREFRA B ik 3 710,000

Beiing Qumeiba Information Technology Company Limited (Qumeiba)* Limited company Beiiing, PRC Wholesale 1,000,000
FREFRESHEERAR AT SR A EXE]) BREERA bl mEz

Beiing Chaopi Shengshi Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Shengshi)* Limited company Beiling, PRC Wholesale 25,000,000
EREsEtEEERAF A T ER FaEt ) BREFAA IR i

Beiing Chaopi Zhaoyang E-commerce Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Zhaoyang)* Limited company Beiing, PRC Wholesale 20,000,000
R EHRG EEEFERERAR (M THREABE]) BREFAF IR BEx

Beiing Chaopi Xinyishangzhen Food Co., Ltd. (Xinyishanghen)* Limited company Beiiing, PRC Wholesale 40,000,000
HRBRHHL RBERAR A TR EE ) BREERA IR i3

Beiing Shangzhen Food Co., Ltd. (Shangzhen Food)™ Limited company Beiiing, PRC Wholesale 5,000,000
IREYRRAR LA TERE MY RG] BREERA bl Mg

Chaopi Maolisheng Hong Kong Co., Ltd. (Maolisheng Hong Kong) ** Limited company Hong Kong, PRC Wholesale HKD10,000

FHBEFAERERAR AT S EARAA ) ARAT & ik 3 710,000

Beiing Chaopi Tianshi Information Technology Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Tianshi* Limited company Beiiing, PRC Wholesale 20,000,000
FRBRREEERRERLF A THEIBHRE]) BRAR IR HEx

Chaopi International Trade (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Intemational Trade) *  Limited company Shanghai, PRC Wholesale 9,800,000
AHERES( L8 ERAAUTERAHERES ) ARAT 9 i3

Beiing Chaopi Jiushengmingpin Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Jiusheng) * Limited company Beiiing, PRC Wholesale 30,000,000
FRBHRELREEERAF A T HR FE]) BRAR IR BEx

Beiing Chaopi Huansheng international Trading Company Limited Limited company Beiiing, PRC Wholesale 15,000,000
(Chaopi Huansheng) * BRAA IR i

TR RRERRERAR AT HRIARE])
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II/

VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) N EHMERPHNER(E)

EFRARHNERE)

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

Al

(1) Components of the Company (Continued) (1) BEEFHEKL(E)
Proportion ~ Proportion  Whether
of ownership of voting  Consolidated

Subsidiary Scope of business interests (%)~ power (%) ornot Notes

ThA%R feem FRLA) h) s EE

Bejing Jingkelong (Langang) Co,, Ltd. {ingkelong Langfang) Retall of general merchandise 100 100 Yes

RREE (B ERA A TR REERS) $ERE PR Ao HERE &

Beiing Jingkelong Supermarket Chain Co, Ltd. Retal of general merchandise 100 100 Yes

(Jingkelong Tongzhou) i
FERERETEERRAA M THRIREEEN]) REFE BRRR AR HRRE b2

Bejing Xinyang Tongi Commercial Facilites Co,, Lid. Production of plastic packing materals and installation and 55.66 5506 Yes

(Kinyang Tongl) maintenance of commercial equipment

FRAERNEERERR AT TERITEEN]) II%E: GE  HEEREN EHRRELS)RRALE 2

Beiing Jingkelong Shouchao Commercial Co, Lid. Retall of general merchandise 100 100 Yes

(Shoulian Supermarkef)

FRREEARERRRAA M T ERIERER ) $ERYE HRER R0 HERE 2

Beijng Jingkelong Haotian Hotel Management Co,, Lid. Hotel management, food and beverage, and leasing 100 100 Yes Note 4

Haotian Hotel

FRREREREREEERAA (N TERIZRER ) BEER EHEE LEEERR b2 i

Bejing Jingkelong Vocationl Training School Training School Training of shop assistant 100 100 Yes

FETABEREERE R IBRUI TRRNEIER]) B2E5 £

Bejing Lianchao Company Limited (Lianchao Linfed) Sales of dally necessties, Wujjiaodian, such as needle textles 100 100 Yes New established during the

current period Note 10

FRBEEFERAT I THRBELT]) HERRR DERE AR t REFEHO

Beiing Jingkelong Fresh convenience store Company Limited Wholesale o food 100 100 No New established during the
(Jingkelong Fresh) current period Note 11
FRREEAEEHESRELA R THR EEE) #ERm ) RERE

Bejing Chaopi Tracing Co,, Ltd. (ChgopiTrading) Wholele of generel merchandise 798 7985 Yes

FREHARRNERAR T ER SR AL ) #EAE  ARER Ao HEnE t

Bejing Chaopi Shuanglong Alconol Sales Co,, Lid. Wholesale of beverages LAl 5900 Yes

(Chaopi Shuanglong|”

KA ERERRERRA A N TR By 2R ) HAERAR 2

Bejing Chaopi Huading Beverage Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Huaging) Wholesale of drinks and food 466 5343 Yes

FRBEREERRL A TR B EE ) Haen SEERIREERTNEARD) #

Bejing Chaopi Fiavourings, Co., Lid. (Chaopi Fiavourng Wholesale of edible o and food 203 5263 Yes

IR AR REREALE N P ER AR ) fakaen BRn RRR B0n  aRE(RIEEET 2

ERR)
Bejing Chaopi Jinglong Ol Sales Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Ol Seles)* Wholesale of edible of and warehousing 4330 523 Yes
A RE R EERAA A PR SRRl ERfaAR  BAZRRERRH ?

4 ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

Equity in subsidiaries (Continueqd) EFARHRHNERE)

(1) Components of the Company (Continued) (1) DELEFHEL(E)

Proportion ~ Proportion  Whether
of ownership ~ of voting  Consolidated

Subsidiary Scope of business interests (%)~ power (%) ornot Notes

RrE RA
FRA%R feqm B RELB(%) thi) efEx R
Shijazhueng Chaopi Xinlong Trading Co,, Ltd.* Wholesale of daily necessities, food, hardware & electric materil 7980 100 Yes
REHEANEERERRLT #EORRY AR DERBE(RBEZEFTAEARN) ?
Qingdao Chaopi Jinlong Trading Co., Ltd." Wholesale of daily necessities, food, hardware & electric materil 7980 100 Yes
SERRERELRAT HRARRY Am DEREE(RREZETHEARN) ?
Befing Chaopi Znongde Tracing Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Znongae]* WWholesale of consumer sanitary products , 7985 100 Ves
KRR EEEARAT (A TR ERE ) HR0RR R GEe  TERERERENARRH ?
Befing Chaopi Hulong Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Huilong]* Wholesale of alcoholic beverages 7980 100 Yes New established during the

current period Note 8
FREHEREEERAA (AT HRIGHER ) YRERS ? RERES
Taiyuan Chaopi Tracing Co, Lid. (Chaopi Taiyuan)" Wholesale of general merchandise 7985 100 Yes
KR ARAA A THRIFHAR ) HERORAD BRRY DERE NERL REMRRER ?
ENERRH

Tangshan Chaapi Trading Co, Ltd.* Wholesale of general merchandise 798 100 Ves
B EERRAT HARRRE AR DEREE(REGEEFTHERRN) £
Tianjin Chaopi Trading Co, Ltd.* Wholesale of general merchandise 798 100 Yes
RERYEERRLT YARRRE A DEREE(RHGEEFTHERRN) 5
Chaop! Yull Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Yul)™ Wholesale of general merchandise 3031 70 Yes
FrREHHEEERAR A T ER H A HERRAS AEERE ?
Chaopi Fangsheng Trading Co., Ltd. (Fangsheng)™ Wholesale of general merchandise 5590 70 Yes Note 1
FRB AR ARAR (AT HRIAY AR )" HEBRRY RHAR  DEREERRH FE il
Jinan Chaopi Linda Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Jinan)* WWholesale of general merchandise 5190 65 Yes
EREMmEEEERLA (T ER A HERRRE AR ?
Befing Chaopi Shenglong Tracing Co., Lid. (Chaopi Shenglong)* ~ Wholesale of package senvice, packed food and storage senvice i 59 Yes
FrREHEEEEERAA (A TR e #EReRAD  ARRE  AERR ?
Befing Chaopi Tianhua Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Tianhug)* WWholesale of package senvice, packed food and storage senvice 266 5343 Yes Note 7
FREHREEEERAA (AT AR AR ) HERRRAD ARRE  AEER ? i
Datong Chaopi Beichen Trading Co., Lid. (Chaopi Datong)’ WWholesale of package senvice, packed food and storage senvce 5590 10 Yes
KRS REEERAT (A T ERI AR HERRRAD  ARRE  AEER ?

2017 &4
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

(1) Components of the Company (Continueq)

Subsidiary
iRk

Datong Chaopi Ant Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Ant)™
AR EERERRAT AT ERI B ER )

Tangshan Chaopi Baishun Trading Co., Lid. (Chaopi Baishun)"

BRI A B ERRAR () TERI AN

Befing Chaopi Maolisheng Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Maolisheng)*

FREHAAA R AR DA (A BRI AT )

Hong Kong Chaopi Asia Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Hong Kong)™

FRaMONERAR (A T ERI AR

Bejing Qumeiba Information Technology Company Limited
(Qumeiba)”
IREEREEHRERAA I TERI B 20 )

Beiing Chaopi Shengshi Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Shengshi*
FRENAtERERAT N TER Bt )

Bejing Chaopi Znaoyang E-commerce Co., Ld.

(Cheopi Zhaoyang"
KRR FERER AT TR SRR

Bemng Chaopi X\ny\shangzhen Food Co., Ltd. (Xinyishanghen]*

KRB Y RRRRAT N T BRI LAY
Beiing Shangzhen Food Co,, Ltd. (Shangzhen Food)™

FREYRRERAT I TER HYRA )

o sk

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM
B %5 R M ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2017%#E
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RET)

BT

Scope of business

2]

£4E

Wholesale of package senvice, packed food and storage senvice
SERE R0 BPER EGERE

Wholesale of package senvice, packed food and storage senvice
HERRR BRERR LREE INSEREERES

Wholesale of general merchandise

HERRR S8R BE N8RE LIEZR(T2RRIE
n%

Merchanaise tracing
[y

Wholesale of cosmetics
{ehasEs

Wholesale of cosmetics

{ehmitssE
Wholesale of general merchandise

HEARR S8R BE - DERE LIER(PERLE

DD)

Wholesale of food, packed foqd and dairy product
BERD #EEARAR AE0E

Wholesale of nuts products (beking class), candied frit, and frut
products (cried fruit products)
FEDSARRIRHRANE) 25  KREROKRTER)E

Proportion
of ownership
interests (%)

Rt Bl0)

5.90

5.90

a9

a9

Proportion
of voting
power (%)
RAE R
bl(%)
100

10

65

65

65

60

N EEMBERTNERE)
DNERHER(E)
(1) EFEEEAEL(E)

Whether
Consolidated

or not
v

Aﬁiﬁ%

Yes

8
&

Yes

Yes

#Ho

Notes

it

Note 2
i

ENTS
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

EFRRRNERE)

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

(1) Components of the Company (Continued) (1) EEFLEL(E)
Proportion  Proportion  Whether
of ownership of voting  Consolidated
Subsidiary Scope of business interests (%)~ power (%) or not Notes
RAE RA

FAA%R ffesm FRELH(%) A AdER R
Chaopi Maalisheng Hong Kong Co,, Lid. Import and export trade, cosmefics, food, medical devices, 5190 100 Yes

(Maolisneng Hong Kong)' * ) design, warehousing, electronics ‘
PHSAARRERAR(A TERIZARAA ) ELng% (hm &% BEEH & 2R 5720 ?
Befing Chaopi Tianshi Information Technology Co,, Ltd. Wholesale of cosmetics, food and general merchandise 7980 100 Yes Note 3

(Chaopi Tianshi*
FRBRREANEAR AR TER AR BElAR 8RR REE % i3
Chaop International Trade (Shanghaj Co., Lid. (Goods and technology import and export business and food 7985 100 Ves Notg 5

(Chaopi Interational Traclg) * circulation
SHEREA( 8RRV TERIBHERES ) USENRRIMELNZR  RaRAS 2 i
Befing Chaopi Jiushengmingpin Tracing Co, Lid. Wholesale of general merchandise 7985 100 Yes Note 6

(Chaopi Jusheng)* ) \
FrREy A AnEEARAR (N T ER S HERn e B% 1ERD BRRR ® itb
Befing Chaopi Huansheng interational Trading Company Wholesale, retai food, health food import and export goods; import 4072 5 Yes New established during the

Limited (Chaopi Huansheng) and export agents current period Note 9
KRB REERE R ARAT (N TER AR #5 BERR RERD: EMELD: RBEXDE ? RERERS
Note: * Chaopi Trading holds more than 50% of the equity i R E AR BN B A B IA50% M

ok

interest of those companies which are deemed to be the
subsidiaries. As the Company holds 79.85% of Chaopi
Trading, the holding percentage is different with the voting

rights percentage.

Chaopi Trading’s subsidiary holds more than 50% of the
equity interest of those companies which are deemed to be
the subsidiaries. As the Company holds 79.85% of Chaopi
Trading, the holding percentage is different with the voting

rights percentage.

The details of the movement in registered capital of
subsidiaries and the proportion changes of ownership
interests and of voting power held by the Company in

subsidiaries during the accounting period are as follows:

ke

& WWRTEAPUEIEZFAA -
BRARREEFAHILEE79.85%
RS - BN RIRIBEA N B R
B2 SRR IR (] B R R L ]
E °

FZEATHANEE L FRAEABG
50% M - WHREAPHEEZ
FRAZFATF - ARARRIEERA
AR ET79.85% M as - AR ARE
WAL B A % E AR
I B3R RAE L BITR -

ARSI - FAAMERERLR
ARHTF A AHRRIRHLFIRE
R

& M

[
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) N~ EHMERPERE)
Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) EFARHPHNERE)
(1) Components of the Company (Continued) (1) TEEFHEA(E)

Note 1: On 15 September 2015, Chaopi Trading’s subsidiary 511 R2015F 9150 Bt E F A A
Chaopi Zhongde and other equity holders contributed MRS REMIEE T EF QA
additional registered capital amounted to RMB8,000,000 FRSERFRLABMEEARE
into Chaopi Fangsheng in proportion to their existing 8,000,0007T * B EZA - WAL &N
holdings. As at that date, the registered capital of & AN AR 12,000,0007Tig 0=
Chaopi Fangsheng increased from RMB12,000,000 AR #20,000,0007T ° #E&E% - BHHL
to RMB20,000,000. Upon completion of the capital MEZHEAHES0.00%MER  BIAR
increase, the Chaopi Trading directly held 80.00% equity AEBBTIEE NS SREEREE T
interest in Chaopi Fangsheng, and indirectly held by the #E77 5563.88% K m © 2016511 A
Company through Chaopi Trading and Chaopi Zhongde 18H AR B A TR A E10% K
as to 63.88%. On 18 November 2016, Chaopi Zhongde BREBZREERARTRE - SHEER
disposed of 10% equity interest in Chaopi Fangsheng AL 5 B A 48354 F116,000,0007C R E
to an independent third party natural person Wei Zifeng, 14,000,000t * MR iEEZE % - FAHLH
decreasing its direct equity in Chaopi Fangsheng from SEEBEBETO%MEZ  BIARA
RMB16,000,000 to RMB14,000,000. As at that date, the MBI Y AR R SR E R A
Chaopi Zhongde directly held 70% equity interest in Chaopi 75 B%55.90%H) e ©
Fangsheng, and indirectly held by the Company through
Chaopi Trading and Chaopi Zhongde as to 55.90%.

Note 2: On 10 August 2015, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi 2 R2015F8 108 » AR A F A A

Trading and other equity holders contributed additional
registered capital amounted to RMB25,000,000 into
Chaopi Maolishengin proportion to their existing holdings
with incompletion of RMB1,750,000 by an independent
third party natural person Du Jianxin. As at that date, the
registered capital of Chaopi Maolisheng increased from
RMB50,000,000 to RMB75,000,000. Upon completion
of the capital increase, the Chaopi Trading directly held
65.00% equity interest in Chaopi Maolisheng, and indirectly
held by the Company through Chaopi Trading as to
51.90%. As at 18 July 2016, all of additional registered
capital amounts has completed.

258 ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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P8 R EAMIRE F YT AR
A& IR REFAR tWIJUJD&éAEM
25,000,0007T * HH - TEAA
Hﬁ%ﬁi%%ﬁr‘nﬁﬂmooom*é R
B BEZE - BHEA AR
& 7K i A R #50,000,000 T3 i1 & A
R#75,000,0007T ° & & - FHiLpy
BINE A H65.00% 8= « BIAR
ARBBEAIL S B MR A R FA
51.90% Mz o M20165F7A18H -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

(1) Components of the Company (Continued)

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

On 30 December 2015, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi
Trading, established Chaopi Tianshi as a wholly-owned
subsidiary, with registered capital of RMB20,000,000.
Chaopi Tianshi was indirectly held by the Company as to
79.85%. Chaopi Tianshi has obtained business license with
NO. 110000002088659. As at 29 January 2016, Chaopi
Trading has fully paid.

On 27 August 2015, the Company’s subsidiary Shoulian
Supermarket, established Haotian Hotel as a wholly-owned
subsidiary, with registered capital of RMB5,000,000.
Haotian Hotel was indirectly held by the Company as to
100.00%. Haotian Hotel has obtained business license with
NO. 110115019767912. As at 29 February 2016,Haotian
Hotel has fully paid.

On 19 February 2016, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi
Trading, established Chaopi International Trading as
a wholly-owned subsidiary, with registered capital of
RMB5,000,000. The Company indirectly hold 79.85%
equity of Chaopi International Trading through Chaopi
Trading. Chaopi International Trading has obtained
business license with NO. 91310000MA1K383D0. As at 5
July 2016, registered capital of RMB5,000,000 of Chaopi
International Trading has been fully paid by Chaopi Trading.
The capital increase of Chaopi International Trading on
27 February 2018, please refer to Note (XIIl) Significant
Subsequent Events after Balance Sheet Date 1. Alteration

of subsidiaries’ equities.

B FS R I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)

N EEMEEPHOESE)

EFRRHHERE)

(1) BFEBLEL(FE)

73

2015412308 + ARRZFATA
PHHEREKIZETFRRBIEX
B - HiEff & AR & A R #20,000,000
JT e AAFEBSAIE B E AR
REF79.85% MRS o BB R B S
110000002088659%% T 7 & 3 $h 88 -
HZE2016%F1 H290 - AL RE AL
& 7520,000,0007T * EEHAMREER
BT o

D R2015F8 A27H  ARFZTFAF

EMBTERAEAKIZEFLARZKRB
JE - B & AR R AR 5,000,000
T o ARFBBEMBETEEREEZX
JBE100.00% 89 © 2REEDBG
1101150197679125 TR & £ 48 -
HZE201652H298 « 2XAE M
& 7%5,000,0007T + BB EEET R
Bt o

D R2016F2 A19H » ARAFZFAF

B EBIRER N 2B T A RSB
Z5  HiftEARm ARKS5,000,000
T AR RIEBHM A BEZE R
BIFRE 579.85% )z - BARLBIFR B
5 B B 13 91310000MA1K383D0 5k T
FEEHRE - HZ2016F7A5H © 5
HBIFR E 5 1) it & 45,000,0007T -
EHBAIEE R REMN - R2018F2A
CTHHBBERESHBEEFR FR
ME+= EEEERA%EE 1
FRAEEEIE -
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

4 260

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

(1) Components of the Company (Continueq)

Note 6:

Note 7:

Note 8:

On 12 August 2016, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi
Trading, established Chaopi Jiusheng as a wholly-owned
subsidiary, with registered capital of RMB30,000,000. The
Company indirectly hold 79.85% equity of Chaopi Jiusheng
through Chaopi Trading. Chaopi Jiusheng has obtained
business license with NO. 91110105MAQ07KEC70. On 16
December 2016 and 15 February 2017, Chaopi Trading
invested totalling registered capital of RMB12,000,000 to

Chaopi Jiusheng and its residue capital has not been paid.

On 28 July 2016, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi
Trading and other equity holders contributed additional
registered capital amounted to RMB5,343,000 and
RMB4,657,000 respectively into Chaopi Tianhua. As at
that date, the registered capital of Chaopi Tianhua has
increased to RMB20,000,000. Upon completion of the
capital increase, the Chaopi Trading directly held 53.43%
equity interest in Chaopi Tianhua, and indirectly held by the
Company through Chaopi Trading as to 42.66%.

On 16 February 2017, according to ‘About Beijing Chaopi
Huilong Trading Company Limited natural person’s transfer
of equity’ (JKLBZ[2016]N0.49), Chaopi Trading purchased
22.25% equity of Chaopi Huilong hold by three natural
people, who are Zhang Shangzhu, Zhang Xixi and Liudong.
After equity acquisition Chaopi Trading directly hold 100%
equity of Chaopi Huilong, that is, the Company indirectly
hold 79.85% equity of Chaopi Huilong through Chaopi
Trading.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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N EEAEEPHES(E)

EFRARHNERE)

(1) EFEEEHEL(E)

516 :

57

8 -

201658 A12H « N ARZFRA]
BHHEREKIZE TRRAPAMRK
B Hi & AR AR 30,000,000
T AARBRAHUHNERERAT
HIARET79.85% MR © BHHLREA B
891110105MAQO7KECT70%% T/ & %
R - 2016412 A16H k201742
A158 B EEMHEBRRLTE
12,000,0007C © FerH EHAREE
AR o

72016457 A28H + ANAF ZF AR
B8 REAIRE F 5 BIA TR R
REB I E AR S,343,0007T & A
R4,657,0007T - HE#ZA - HiX
() 3 it & 438 = A R # 20,000,000
TC o WEE  BHUEENEEREAA
53.43% Mt - AR R RIE AR
BREERB AT REL2.66%H R

201742168 - HHtEm E kB
REIE R EREEARAAER
ANEREEE—F) (REEMHF2016]49
)X RERMH - RAAKZR
=R BAANKRRFEHEIE22.25%
Bt o RREUREE - BNt B EER
BE100.00%M % - AR RAIBH
HPE R ER AALIEMRT79.85%

5 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

(1) Components of the Company (Continued)

Note 9:

Note 10:

Note 11:

On 14 July 2017, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi
Trading, established Chaopi Huansheng as a subsidiary
held by 51%, with registered capital of RMB15,000,000.
The Company indirectly hold 40.72% equity of
Chaopi Huansheng through Chaopi Trading. Chaopi
Huansheng has obtained business license with NO.
911101056MAOOG8A42P. As at 31 August 2017, Chaopi
Trading invested registered capital of RMB7,650,000 to
Chaopi Huansheng and its residue capital has been paid

by other shareholders.

On 8 August 2017, the Company and Beijing Lianchao
Co., Ltd have signed “Property Transaction Contract”,
and on 30 September 2017, the Company acquired 85%
equity interest in Lianchao Limited, which was established
at 22 July 2015 by the Company and Shoulian Group, the
Company held 15% equity interest. After the acquisition,
the Company held Lianchao Limited as a wholly-owned
subsidiary, with registered capital of RMB10,000,000.
Lianchao Limited was indirectly held by the Company as to
100.00%.

On 27 July 2017, the Company established Jingkelong
Fresh as a wholly-owned subsidiary, with registered
capital of RMB10,000,000. Jingkelong Fresh has obtained
business license with NO. 911101056MAOOGK4B4J. As at
the reporting date, Jingkelong Fresh has not been paid.
Jingkelong Fresh was indirectly held by the Company as to
100.00%.

B FS R I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)

N~ EHEM T P A (F)

EFRRHHERE)

(1) BFEBLEL(FE)

79

10

Al

R2017F7A148 - ARBIZ FAEEH
HEHERER L FARIGFIIRR - 15
BELBIABE1% - HEMERAARE
15,000,0007T ° RNAB@BHAMEE
R A BB AR 40.72% IS - B
#L3R B B EL591110105MA00GEA42P
FEImEEHRRB - R2017F8A
31 AHEBERNASLERTE
7,650,0007T © FgrHEREC B E MR
WREHLN -

ARAREI REHEAEEEER AR
201758 ABHEKERRZZER)
WH2017F9A30H - W EEE B A A
85% R fE (Bt BB 2 7] K201547 A 22
FHEHEERAQARRERY - K
ARHEEHBRT15%E) - AR
AU TR E - BB ARIKARR
A2ETAR HEMEARBARYE
10,000,0007T © AN A 8] H # ¥ 5 5 i
AF]100.00%H) % ©

M201747A27H  RRFKUEE
FRAIEMEFRE  HaMEABA
R #10,000,0007T ° 4 & | 5 B B
891110105MAOOGK4B4 8k T 7 & %
R  HEARER  £HEMNED
# fff & 410,000,000 7T i# AR B o 2
NEEEHB EBHERE100.00%H) 1

m °
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) N EHMERPHNER(E)

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) EFARHPHNERE)

(2) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries:

(2) EENHZ2EFRAAFEREIBMHEE
Hmr

Profits and losses attributing  Dividends to minority

426

to minority interests interests Minority interests
BRNY
RRMbE(EX) mOEREAERA DURRER
Proportion
of minority
interests (%) 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017.12.31 2016.12.31
SERR ZE-tE “ERE
Name of subsidiaries ThR%R BRIEA%) | 2017FE | 20165F | 2017FE | 20165% | TZA=-8 | TZA=T-A
Chaopi Trading and its subsidiaries ~ SHtAERET AR 20.15 (Note)
20.15(:8) | 47,102,222 | 48,365,542 | 53,892,964 | 50,534,850 474,138,830 467,159,114
Note: The proportion of ownership interests and voting of the i TREDERRE AR F E R A
minority shareholders of subsidiaries are of equal. PIFER -
Significant assets and liabilities: FTEBEAE
2017.12.31 2016. 12 31
—EB—+F —E—RF
ltem 1HE +=ZA=+—-H | tZH=1+—H
Current assets MENEE 4,439,907,689 5,080,900,859
Non-current assets EREBEE 250,112,693 215,660,571
Current liabilities nEBE 3,409,012,805 | 4,010,388,651
Non-current liabilities FERBBE 225,343,080 214,970,329
Financial performance and net cash flow: TERNREREFRE
2017.12.31 2016. 12 31
—E—+tF —E—RF
ltem HE +=ZA=+—-H | +tZA=+—H
Operating income B A 7,574,793,123 7,593,955,262
Operating costs and other expenses BERARER 7,490,112,046 7,382,587,072

Net profit and total comprehensive income

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financial activities

FFE R ERE W8
LTRSS FRE
KEERHRSFRE
EEEHRSFNRE

r

6 55,045,146 57,538,126
302,862,356 313,850,603
26,546,208 (113,478,461)
(257,383,917) 46,130,883
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s financial instruments mainly comprise cash and
bank balances, accounts receivable, other receivables, short-
term investments, available-for-sale financial assets, other non-
current assets, other non-current assets due within one year,
accounts payable, other payables, bonds payable, notes payable,
short-term borrowings, long-term borrowings due within one year
and long-term borrowings. Details of the financial instruments
are set out in Note (VI). The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the risk management policies on how to mitigate
these risks are detailed as below. These risk exposures are
managed and monitored by the management to ensure that such

risks are within a limited range.

1. Risk management objectives and policies

The Group engages in risk management with the aim of
achieving an appropriate balance between risks and returns,
where the negative effects of risks against the operating
results of the Group are minimized, in order to maximize the
interests of shareholders and other stakeholders. Based on
such objective of risk management, the fundamental strategy
of risk management of the Group is to ascertain and analyze
various risks exposures, establish appropriate risk tolerance
thresholds, carry out risk management procedures and
monitor these risks in a timely and reliable manner, thus to

confine risk exposures within a prescribed scope.

o~ EBER T BAEREMNRR

FEBENTIESMTIABEERES - B

o HER - EEIRE - AIHbES
BMEE BMERDEE - —FRIHNE
IR EE - BAKRR  EMLEMAR -
ES - BNRE - EHEX - —FAIH
MEHERARERERSE - SEERTAN
AABRFRMENEEER - HELER
TARMNAR  UARKREERREELLR
B P ERER B L E IR R A T Al - AR E
B B 55 L R i O HE 1T IR AN BR T DARE
R Lt B Bz B E R E VSR 2 A

(—) BAREEBEENRE

REBNZERERH B IZRIERBR A
Wik 2 MBS EE 878 - RRER
Hig ¥ Er B 2R R RIEK
CERFERFIESEAE o ERZER

BEBR  AEEREREENERRKE
2 FETE A0 20 A P TED o 0 5 AR L

EE R R R ASEGTNETRREE
IR SEE R ERRETEE - #
RpiEHERENBEZA -

2017 Eiﬁ
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

1. Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.1 Market risk

1.1.1Exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss resulting
from changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
All of the Group’s transaction are denominated
in its functional currency RMB, except for Beijing
Chaopi Trading’s subsidiary Chaopi Maolisheng
Hong Kong Company Limited which incorporated
in Hong Kong, PRC and used EUR as the
Functional currency. As at 31 December 2017,
the total assets and total liability of Chaopi
Maolisheng Hong Kong amount to approximately
EUR5,5681,968 and EURS5,724,377 denominated
in foreign currency. The management does not
expect that a change in foreign exchange rate will
have a significant impact on the Group’s gross

profit and shareholders’ equity.

1.1.2Interest rate risk — risk of changes in cash flows

The risk of changes in fair value from financial
instruments as a result of interest rate change
mainly relates to fixed interest securities (see Note
(Vl) 28 Bonds payable). The Group’s policy has
not taken any action to eliminate fair value risk

from fixed interest securities.
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RAIPHEE 2 FRRES
ERFEEBEM - UEUT
BEEACEN  HiFA
AIFMBERSHEUARE AE
BRAAIHE © A20174512 A 31
B BBXANAEELBAN
B &% 5 /25,581,968Ek
TLH5,724,377ET © AEE
ERERREXZH T Y
7N 55 18 1) FI) P 4R % K M TR A
REAEAVE -
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

1. Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.1 Market risk (Continued)

1.1.2Interest rate risk — risk of changes in cash flows

(Continued)

The risk of changes in cash flows from financial
instruments as a result of interest rate change
mainly relates to floating-rate bank loans (see
Note (VI), 18 Short-term borrowings). It is the
Group’s policy to maintain floating interest rate of
these loans in order to eliminate fair value risk due

to interest rate change.

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis is based on
the assumption that a change in market interest
rates would have an impact on interest income or

expense of floating-rate financial instruments.

The management believes that the Group’s
exposure to interest rate risk in bank deposits
is not significant, therefore it did not disclose
the sensitivity analysis of bank deposit interest
rate. On the basis of the above assumption
and supposing that other parameters remain
constant(Without regard to the influence of
capitalized interest), an 1% increase/(decrease) of
interest rate would lead to a (decrease)/increase
of RMB27,162,104 and RMB20,714,460 (before
taxation) in current profit or loss and shareholders’

equity in 2017 and 2016 respectively.

o EERT BMEERNEEE)

(—) BpEEBEMBEE)
1 mEmEE)

@) FEm-ZHeRnEZEER
(%)
REB AN E 85| SR
TARSREZHNER T
REFHNRRITER(FR
MiFE7S 18R HEFR)BRE -
AE B R BR 2 RITE LS
REVFE BN - DOBRR A X
PN RIABERR o

AEBEEEERANEEFA
A HE RT3 F K E R I
TEXR - B RE N KE
HIRITFE RO F RGNS
T o R2017 4 E R 20164
EEFBREOERE £
L ETENERT(TE
BIEFERENMBOEE)
M, CRD)1%E &
HiiRE RIS MBI AT
BHRIRORD) SHEMAR
27,162,104 7L & A R ¥
20,714,4607T °

\
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

1.

Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.2 Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016,
the largest credit risk exposure related to a potential
financial loss mainly derived from the failure in
performance of contractual obligations by counterparty,
which would result in a loss in financial assets, and
the guarantees provided by the Group, including: the
carrying amount of financial assets recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet. The carrying amounts
of the financial assets, which are recorded at fair
value, represent the current risk exposure but not the
maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future

as a result of the change in fair values.

To reduce credit risk, the Group trades only with
recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the
Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, balances of accounts
receivable are monitored on an ongoing basis to
ensure that the Group’s exposure to bad debt is not

significant.
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
1. Risk management objectives and policies (Continued) (—)BREBEEZNBEE)
1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 2 SHAERBGE)

In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at each balance sheet

date to ensure that adequate impairment losses

o - AEBEREBEEERBR
BEZES - ERBEUERD KT
S DARER BE S OK B U A SRR E

are made for irrecoverable amounts. Therefore, the RADEIERER - Bt - &
management believes that the Group’s exposure EERERRASEAENER

to credit risk has been effectively monitored and BBRELSHERER - XEEH
managed. The Group has adopted necessary policies RATVENBRERMEREF,Y
to ensure that all customers have a good credit BEERIHEARLE - R2017F

record. At 31 December 2017, except for the amounts
included in account receivables top five (Note (VI) 3)
and individual significant long-term receivables, the
Group has no other significant concentration of credit

risk.

The Group’s working capital is deposited at banks

with higher credit ratings, and hence the credit risk in BEmRT URnBESHNiER
working capital is insignificant. BB EIE -
2017 5 2674
IR REEREERERG AR AR

12 A31 BRRMEEN ~ 3P EMNE
BAIRREBERERREEERNE
HEKHN  REBEAMEKR
ERERRER

AEEWRBE 7 WEERBFR
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT hBEeRmIAMBENREE)

(Continued)
1. Risk management objectives and policies (Continued) (—)BAREBEEENREE)
1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 2 SHERE)
Maturity analysis of the financial assets overdue but EEABRACAHERRENS
unimpaired: REERNEBRITOT

31 December 2017

2017512831H

Overdue but unimpaired
S ARE
Within 1 Over 3
month 1-3 months months Total
BEHIEAR WE1-3BF BH3EAUL =5
Accounts receivable FEUUER K 126,891,299 44,970,743 115,146,921 287,008,963
31 December 2016 2016%12H31H
Overdue but unimpaired
B@BRRE
Within 1 Over 3
month 1-3 months months Total
BEEAR @E1-3EA @ESEAMUE G
Accounts receivable FEUTBR X 138,718,207 98,664,281 175,172,715 412,555,203

On 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016,
the accounts receivable that were past due but
not impaired related to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Other receivables that were past due but not
impaired related to other amounts payable to the
Group as a prevailing party in litigations. Based on past
experience, the Group believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality

and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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o EERT BMEERNEEE)

IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
1. Risk management objectives and policies (Continued) (—)BREBEEZNBEE)

1.3 Liquidity risk 3 mEEE

In-managing liquidity risk, the Group maintains and
monitors cash and cash equivalents that are adequate
in the opinion of the management, to meet the needs
of the Group’s operations and mitigate the impact from
cash flow fluctuations. The management monitors the
utilization of bank loans and ensures compliance with
loan covenants. Meanwhile, the Group adopts banking

instruments to meet short-term funding needs.

The Group manages its risk to deficiency of funds
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool
considers both the maturity of its financial instruments
and the projected cash flows from the Group’s

operations.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s net current
liabilities amounted to RMB1,0683,155,437 (31 December
2016: RMB219,481,060). The Company uses bank
loans and bonds as its major sources of funding. As
at 31 December 2017, the Company had unutilized
bank loan facilities of RMB830 million. Based on the
Company’s unutilized bank loan facilities, profitability
and cash flow forecast within the next 12 months,
the management believes that the Company will have
adequate funds in the future for timely repayment of
the existing debts and maintaining its normal business

activities.

EBERBDERE  AERRFE
EBEERRAINRE MRS EEY
WHEETERE  UnerEE
REFE URERSARERD
MEg  AEEEEEHRTE
REYE R BRI T BRI BRI T
fERBE - R - AEERAR
TIENKBREHMNESTL -

AEBERBERABUFETAE
BEcERRAR  -ZTARZE
HeBITAMIHE  EEAR
SEELELNAGRERE ©

2017412 A318 « AR FF
e B E A ARK1,063,155,437
7L(2016F 12 A81H: AR
219,481,0607T) ° AR Al ERTT
ERREFIEREEZESHR -
E1E2017HF12A31H - AA A
RAEANRITEREEAARE
8.3018 7T ° ERARAMAE AN
MRITEREE - BFENUR
AFI2EARBREFKEFEA -
REBERERLRKAESEH
HE e RRERRABBUERK
NAEEBELES -
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT f

(Continued)

1. Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following is the maturity analysis for financial
liabilities held by the Group which is based on

undiscounted remaining contractual obligations:

31 December 2017

-EERMT AMEENERE)

(—) BREEBEMBEE)

3 mEmEE(E)

AEERAERAERARITRRR
EREHHIIHBROFTOT

2017%12A31H

Within 3 months Over

1 month 1-3 months to 1 year 1-2 years 2 years Total

1EA 5 123f8A AE1E 1525 25N &%

Bank loans (including interest) FITER(BFE) 411,931,566 445,116,049 1,922,197,541 - - 2,779,245,156

Notes payable R 17,590,669 86,859,054 160,389,961 - - 264,839,684

Accounts payable @m% 1,025,533,160 45,082,923 - - - 1,070,616,083

Bonds payable (including interest) ~ EfEH(EHE) - - 775,223,014 - - 775,223,014
Other payables (excluding rent

recelved in advance) EthERF(TEERES) 59,534,625 - 100,772,951 - - 160,307,576

Total Ast 1,514,590,020 577,058,026  2,958,583,467 - - 5,050,231,513

31 December 2016 2016128318
Within 3 months Over

1 month 1-3 months to 1 year 1-2 years 2 years Total

HEAMA 1238  SEAEIE 122F 2EHE ait

Bank loans (including interest) FTEFR(EFE) 150,228,063 398,152,479 1,502,886,867 - - 2,051,267,409

Notes payable EREE 201,880,030 205,969,596 190,807,234 - - 598,656,860

Accounts payable FERER 1,188,94593¢ 35,284,369 - - - 1,224,230,303

Bonds payable (including interest)  FEfE%(5F8) - - 41,100,000  775223,014 - 816,323,014
Other payables (excluding rent

received in advance) HivEAZ(TETERAES) 83,717,167 - 109,588,678 - - 193,305,845

Total A% 1624,771,194 630,406,444 1,844,382,779 775,223,014 - 4,883,783,431
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DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE

T 2REENKE

The available-for-sale financial assets(Note (VI) 8 (Note 1)), fair A EemERE (MR 821 UER
value of which determined in accordance with quoted market BEMREAMS EHNREEAAAEBERS
price of investee’s stock, are classified as Level 1, known as RARBEFENFIER @ BRBEEELE
quoted price (unadjusted) of similar assets and liabilities in active BEERTS L (CREAR)MRE -

market.

The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial RNEBERERA @ MBEHREFPIRBHKR
assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized costs in the TEMCREERSRBENREEEERR

financial statements approximate their fair values.

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS

1. Parent of the Company

Name of the Place of Legal Nature of

parent company  Type incorporation  representative  business

BREER bxER it EARR RBIME

Chaoyang Auxiiary State-owned  Beiing Mr.Wang Weilin - Sales of food and
oll products

LLER ERAEH ARA IR HERRIERRR

HEEERBENAAEE -

- BRI RERIS

1 ARENFRFAFER

Proportion of
the entity's  Proportion of
ownership  the entity’s
interests  voting power  The ultimate
Registered ~ held by the  held by the  controlling
capital  parent (%)  parent (%)  party of the

(10thousand ~BAFHAL BAFAY  Company Uniform social
yuan) EMBRUA AEEHTE  FEE credit code
imEL(ER) (%) LB EAEHA H-neRRRE
21,306.10 40.61 40.61 Chaoyang ~ 9111000010163706X9
Auxiliary
BIDEEY

2. Subsidiaries of the Company

Please refer to Note (VIIl) Equity in subsidiaries.

3. Related party transaction

3.1 Related party’s lease transaction

Lessor Leasee Type of lease
et =iy RHPE
Chaoyang Auxiliary The Company Rental expenses
#ABER YN BeXi

2 FEEWFRARER
FHRMEN - EFAFPEER -

3 BABXZEN
(1) BHEEER

Pricing basis of related
party transaction Notes 2017 Amount 2016 Amount
BB STERE Hii WITEESE | 2016FEH

Price negotiated Note 1 1,346,240 1,326,345
RER RENER 1

2017 &3} 2714
I RRBEEHEEERNERAA]
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XI. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3. Related party transaction (Continued)

3.1 Related party’s lease transaction (Continued)

Note 1:

2792 ANNUAL REPORT 2017

On 30 April 2004, the Company and its subsidiary
Chaopi Trading leased several properties in Beijing
from Chaoyang Auxiliary, pursuant with annual rent
incremental on every five years for a term from 1
January 2004 to 31 December 2023. From 2006
to 2009, the Group entered into lease contracts or
supplemental agreements on several properties. As at
30 June 2011, the annual rents under the contracts
with Chaoyang Auxiliary were RMB7,344,499 and
RMB920,853 respectively for the Company and its
subsidiary Chaopi Trading. On 30 June 2011, except
for the properties used by 10 stores of the Company
(including 5 properties still owned by Chaoyang
Auxiliary and 5 properties for which lease agreements
were terminated), the State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of Beijing Chaoyang
District (“SASAC Chaoyang”) approved the transfer of
the land and properties used by the Company from
Chaoyang Auxiliary to Beijing Hongchao Weiye SOE
Management Company Limited (“Hongchao Weiye”).
The Company continued to lease the properties
owned by Chaoyang Auxiliary for its 5 stores at
annual rent of RMB162,758 with incremental once
every five years. On 18 June 2012, the Company
entered into a property lease supplemental
agreement with Chaoyang Auxiliary, pursuant to
which the annual rent for the aforesaid five properties
were adjusted to RMB1,111,933 effecting from 1 July
2012 with incremental by 3% every five years; and
1 additional property was leased at annual rent of
RMB214,412 with incremental by 3% every five years
for a term from 1 July 2012 to 31 December 2023.
The rental expenses payable to Chaoyang Auxiliary
for the year ended at 31 December 2017 and for
the year ended at 31 December 2016 were both
recognized at RMB1,346,240 and RMB1,326,345.

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

t- BEA R B

3

B ZER

(1)

X5 (&)

BEHEERER (&)
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RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Related party transaction (Continued)

3.1 Related party’s lease transaction (Continued)

On 1 July 2011, the Company and its subsidiary
Chaopi Trading entered into lease contracts
respectively with Hongchao Weiye to renew the leasing
of properties under the original contractual terms
at annual rent of RMB7,344,499 and RMB920,853
respectively effecting from 1 July 2011.

On 1 July 2012, the Company and its subsidiary
Chaopi Trading entered into supplemental agreements
to the aforesaid lease contracts respectively with
Hongchao Weiye, pursuant to which the annual rents
for such properties were adjusted to RMB26,997,108
and RMB2,808,259 respectively effecting from the

same day with incremental by 3% every five years.
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- B REBXS(2)

3 BBMXEER(E)

(1)

EHHEER (&)

R2011E7 818 - KRR RAR
Bz FARHILREE 5 5L
BERITTHESR RRAM
KR EEREERFE - 52011
FTAIBEFREDAAARKE
7,344,4997T F: A R #920,8537T °

MR2012F7H1H - ARAIRAR
Bl FRAEEASE B HRoLFEER
FBEEESR D BIEET THTH
# o AmARLLAEEMESFH
DRI R ARE26,997,1087T
R AR#2,808,2507T © IR
#3% o
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XI.

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3.

Related party transaction (Continued)

3.1 Related party’s lease transaction (Continued)

On 18 December 2013, the Company entered into
supplemental agreements to the aforesaid lease
contracts with Hongchao Weiye. Considering the
Company paid relevant construction fees on the rebuild
project of certain of the properties in previous years
and the renovation project conducted by the Company
on behalf of Hongchao Weiye, Hongchao Weiye will
compensate the Company for the cost of construction
costs and related taxes paid (“agent construction fees”)
on property renovation project and re-build project of
RMB86,742,211, including RMB41,265,838 recorded
in other receivables and RMB45,476,373 recorded in
long-term receivables. Meanwhile, agent construction
fees receivables of RMB22,197,108 recorded in other
receivables will immediately offset the rent payable to
Hongchao Weiye at the end of 2013 as agreed by both
parties. From the 1 January 2014 to 31 December
2023, the fees on the rebuild project of certain
properties in previous years and the renovation project
conducted by the Company on behalf of Hongchao
Weiye will offset the rent to the Hongchao Weiye at

end of every year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

XI. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3. Related party transaction (Continued)

3.1

3.2

B FS R I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)

- B S REER S ()

3 BBMXEER(E)

Related party’s lease transaction (Continued) (1) BBHEHEEEL(E)
On 25 November 2014, the Company entered into 2014911 5258 « ANEEHE,
supplemental agreements again to terminate the HEFER LAAEERBAEE
two supplemental agreements assigned on 1 July FetweE - 4R 1E L2012 7 A1H
2012 and 18 December 2013 respectively. From 1 }2013F12 A18H 7 BIE ] HIMR
July 2014 to 31 December 2023, the annual rents DETEHE - B2014F7A18E
of such properties were adjusted to revert to the 2023F12A31H & FilifHEYE
amount in the agreements on 1 July 2011, which FREWER2011F7 A1B %]
were RMB7,344,499 and RMB920,853 respectively MEEARSE DRI AAR
with incremental by 3% every five years. Meanwhile, #7,344,4997T &k A R #6920,853
for the rest of agent construction fee amounted to TL O BRFEE3% o R &Y
RMBS58,164,490 on 30 June 2014, Hongchao Weiye L REIIEFN2014566 A30H
won'’t take the responsibility of paying the funds # %8 A R#58,164,4907T * 5h%H
back when the original agreement and supplemental EXEREERZELEAH RS
agreements are executed efficiently. The aforesaid rest BB RENITE IR T S EAEER
of agent construction fee is undertaken and amortized B THMRBIBRKEER
by the Company. B EAEFIGTAE M AT
i o
Compensation for key management personnel (2) BIREEASHKH
2017 2016

Iltem THA#HE 20175 E 20165 Z
Compensation for key management: RAsEIE A S| -

Short-term employee benefits EHEEER 5,278,583 6,166,652

Post-employment benefits RIRIER R 466,890 482,563
Total A&t 5,745,473 6,649,215

Key management members are personnel having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the Group, including
directors, supervisors and other personnel to exercise
similar functions. Emolument paid to key management
includes wages or salaries, bonus, allowance,

subsidies.

MREEASHEAEMNELBRE

AB - BREF BEFRHEMIT
EHEUBRBENAR - X4
MREEABNHMEEEAT
B B RBAMM -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2017%#E
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RET)

1y

XI. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND - BB AINBEBRS(E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3. Related party transaction (Continued) 3 BHRBER(E)
3.2 Compensation for key management personnel (2) BREZEASHH (&)
(Continued)
According to the requirements of Company Ordinance BIERBHRAMES LTRARE
of Hong Kong and the Listing Rules of The Stock BRBHRE - FREZREEM
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, emoluments of 20T

directors and supervisors for the year are as follows:

(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) B TTEEZ
The fees paid to independent non-executive FEANZNBIIIFNTES
directors during the year were as follows: LN
RMB’000
ARETTT
2017 2016
Independent non-executive directors Y& JEHTTE S 20175 E 20164 fE
Onward Choi £8E 155 155
Chen Liping PRz 42 42
Wang Liping FAF 42 42
Total CEl 239 239
There were no other emoluments payable to the R2017F E M2016FEEH
independent non-executive directors during 2016 HEN e TR LIERITE
and 2017. % -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)

XIl. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND T- BB AIRBEBIZ (&)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

BB ZER(E)

3. Related party transaction (Continued) 3

3.2 Compensation for key management personnel (2) BEREZEASHM (E)

(Continued)

b) BITEFE HFHTEF E

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors,

supervisors and the chief executive FRABIEEE
RMB’000
ARBTT
Salaries, Post-
allowances Performance employment
and benefits related benefits
Fees in kind bonuses *  contributions Total
e
XA 1:]
2017 20175 E Be  RENER EyRe BHREFMER B
Executive directors: HTESE:
Li Jianwen THEY - 453 100 51 604
Shang Yongtian &K HE - 453 100 51 604
Li Chunyan THEH - 309 176 51 536
Liu Yuejin 2R - 257 516 46 819
Subtotal INat - 1,472 892 199 2,563
Non-executive directors: JEHITES :
Li Shunxiang =B - - . _ _
Wang Weilin TEM - - - - -
Subtotal et - - - - -
Supervisors: Bx:
Liu Wenyu 2 H) - 309 176 51 536
Wang Hong (Note 1) T (1) - 229 192 46 467
Yao Jie /873 - 125 108 28 261
Niu Hongyan AT - 60 - 10 70
Li Chunyi &% - 14 - 1 15
Chen Zhong BRég 35 - - - 35
Cheng Xianghong R 18 - - - 18
Fu Yanjun N3 18 - - : 18
Subtotal it 71 737 476 136 1420
Total Bt 7 2,209 1,368 335 3,983
L ) 2017 5 2774
IR RREREEEROBRAR]
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II/

XI. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND - BB AINBEBRS(E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3. Related party transaction (Continued) 3 BHRBER(E)
3.2 Compensation for key management personnel (2) FRREENSHH(E)
(Continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors, (b) BiTERH - HFHTEF - E
supervisors and the chief executive (Continued) AT ()
RMB’000
ARBFT
Salaries, Post-
allowances  Performance  employment
and benefits in related benefits
Fees kind bonuses®  contributions Total
e
®Be - 2HR
2016 2016F 5 e EMEF BuEe  RIRENER Bme
Executive directors: Hi7ESE:
Li Jianwen FEX - 747 288 47 1,082
Shang Yongtian SR - 747 198 47 992
Li Chunyan TE - 467 172 47 686
Liu Yugjin 2R - 271 8 47 326
Subtotal Nt - 2,232 666 188 3,086
Non-executive directors: JEHITEE ¢
Li Shunxiang FE - - - - -
Wang Weilin FEMH - - - - -
Subtotal Nk - - - - -
Supervisors: BEEE
Liu Wenyu ke - 467 173 47 687
Wang Hong FiT - 303 86 47 436
Yao Jie 83 - 225 81 a7 353
Yang Baoqun BEE - - _ - _
Chen Zhong Rz 35 - - - 35
Cheng Xianghong 2mA 35 - - - 35
Subtotal et 70 995 340 14 1,546
Total Bt 70 3,227 1,006 329 4,632
Note 1: On 25 August 2017, as resolved by the board 1 R201748A25R » REARFEEE
of directors, Miss. Wang Hong was designed AiE o TOXTREEEAKENE R
as the deputy general manager. KR -
* Performance related bonuses of these * ZEEENAREEBABNENRSR
executives and supervisors are related to the BRIEAR E—FHOFBREED -

profit of the Group of last year.
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XI.

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3.

Related party transaction (Continued) 3

3.2 Compensation for key management personnel

(Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors,

(c)

supervisors and the chief executive (Continued)

In 2017 and 2016, there was no arrangement
under which a director or a supervisor waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration, and no
remuneration was paid by the Group to a director
or a supervisor as bonuses or unemployment

compensations for their entry to the Group.

Five highest paid employees

Details of the remuneration of the five highest paid

- B REBXS(2)

BB ZER(E)

(2) BEREZEASHM (E)

b) BITEFE HFHTEF E

(c)

F R AAARTE (48 )

R2017FE M2016FE - &
EREEMERENXRE N
B2IMME  mMEBETES

e TES  BEF - UE
AINBERBE R INEEE R

BN R A TIERRE -

TR F e IE 8 9 B2
AEEARN AuEEHER

employees during the year are as follows: FMEFES T

RMB’000

ARETT

2017* 2016

[tem Rz 2017 E* 20165

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind o #e  EEREVET 6,187 4,552

Performance related bonuses Eusie 5,306 3,426

Post-employment benefits contributions RIKEFIER 106 124

Total Azt 11,599 8,102
2017 5 2794
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Xl. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND

428

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3. Related party transaction (Continued)

3.2 Compensation for key management personnel

(Continued)

(c) Five highest paid employees (Continued)

t- BBAIRBBXS(E)

3 BBMXAEER(E)

(2) BREZEASHH (&)

) DfrREHBAIER B2

(&)
The number of employees whose remuneration FMAR TS =EMEEB
fell within the following bands is as follows: =

2017 2016

2017EE* 2016F %
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 %1,500,00078 7T 1 3
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001%2,000,000/ 1T - -
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 22,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 £3,000,0007% 75 3 1
Total At 5 5

*

In 2017, the five highest paid employees during
the year included one director, and details of

whose remuneration are set out above in (b).

4. Receivables and payables of related parties

The Group had no receivables or payables balance with
related parties on 31 December 2017 and 31 December

2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R M ot

XI. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5. Related party commitments

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 E

All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)

The Company had signed a lease contract with Chaoyang

Auxiliary for operation and storage.

The anticipated future rent by the Group:

- B REEXS ()

BARE T3 AR

ARAREHAB AR

R TEEHEA

2 A

[ - ARPIEREE -

AEBFEARAREENNEES A

ltem IHH 2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—ZT—tF —E-RF
+=ZA=+—-RB| +=-—A=+—8H
Within 1 year 1A 1,366,135 1,326,345
1-2 years 1-24F 1,366,135 1,366,135
2-3 years 2-34F 1,366,135 1,366,135
Over 3 years 3FEM E 4,179,777 5,545,912
Total A&t 8,278,182 9,604,527
XIl. COMMITMENTS T2 RERIEEE
1. Significant commitments v BAAHER
(1) Capital commitments (1) BFFEE
[tem IHH 2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—ZT—tF —E-RF
t=A=+—-RB| t=ZA=t—H
Acquisition of fixed assets BEETEE
Authorized but not contracted BEREEREY 310,499,380 279,896,941
Contracted but not provided BERYEREE 200,071,641 231,312,902
Total AEF 510,571,021 511,209,843
2017 F 3R 2814
IR R EBEEEEERNDBRAR
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II/

XIl. COMMITMENTS (Continued) T EARERREBE(E)

1. Significant commitments (Continued) 1 EXRABBEE)
(2) Operating lease commitments (2) KEHERFE

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the M2017%12 A31H K2016F12 A

428

Group had the following commitments in respect of 318 REEHINEFTH AT
non-cancellable operating leases: HEEEHEESOBERNT ¢
As the lessee ERAMEA
[tem T B 2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—E—+F —ERE
+=A=+—-8| +=ZA=1+—H
Minimum lease payments under TAHEGE A L E &K
non-cancellable operating leases: TEFRE
1st year subsequent to the balance BEABERAKEIF
sheet date 227,412,307 235,498,282
2nd year subsequent to the balance BEABRAKELF
sheet date 224,393,810 234,920,108
3rd year subsequent to the balance BAEBFBRAKEIF
sheet date 206,656,679 231,281,678
Subsequent periods AR 1,115,758,402 1,338,902,664
Total &5t 1,774,221,198 2,040,602,732
As the lessor EREHEA
ltem I8 H 2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—ZE—+F —E—RF
+=A=+-8| +t=ZA=+—H
Minimum lease receivables under T HEHE EHERNHR
non-cancellable operating leases: HEWHEE -
1st year subsequent to the balance BEABRAKEIF
sheet date 114,579,378 94,015,682
2nd year subsequent to the balance AEABRAKEF
sheet date 90,306,002 77,213,900
3rd year subsequent to the balance EEBBERARBEIF
sheet date 69,505,614 55,578,935
Subsequent periods EFE 146,727,781 146,757,120
Total &=t 421,118,775 373,565,637
2. Contingencies 2. BABRE
As at 31 December 2017, no material contingencies should BE2017F12A318  ARAIERZ

be disclosed by the Company.
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XIIl. SIGNIFICANTE SUBSEQUENT EVENTSAFTER
BALANCE SHEET DATE

1.

Alteration of subsidiaries’ equities

On 27 February 2018, a subsidiary of the Company Chaopi
Trading contributed additional RMB4,800,000 into Chaopi
International Trading. The registered capital of Chaopi
International Trading increased to RMB9,800,000. Upon
completion of the capital increase, the Chaopi Trading
directly held 100% equity interest in Chaopi International
Trading, and indirectly held by the Company through Chaopi
Trading as to 79.85%.

Other significant non-adjusting event after balance

sheet date

Except for the issues disclosed in Note (VI) 36, no other
significant non-adjusting event should be disclosed by
the Group by the end of the approval date of the financial

statements.

Tt BEERBERARSEHE

FARIEESE

720182 A27H + ANRAFZF AR
HEE R ERE S EBINREARE
4,800,0007T ° FA#LEIR B S KM &
38 29,800,0007T © B HEAIEE R
AT - WE% - PREBNEEES
HA00% Mz - BN BB imEA R
BREEHREHIEEREE 579.85%M 1

o

Bk

HiEBNEERERARIARSEE

B bl 238 N B REN - B6PTINEE F I8
Sh - BEAMBWMRLMMER - NEEE
HiAERBENEERERARER -
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XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS

428

Assets at fair value

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the

Group, using the assets at fair value, subscribed the

tH HEREE

1>

UAREBEFENEE

A2017 912 531 A 20164 12 A 31
A AEENAABEABENEER/N

available-for-sale equity investment of Shanxi Xinghuacun for NEIZ FAEIEARE ERERN LA EIE
subsidiary Chaopi Trading: WA ERREIR A
Change in Change in
fair value in fair value in
2016.1.1 current year 2016.12.31  current year 2017.12.31
—ERE Kﬁ@ﬁ AL KEQR —E-tf
Item HE —fA—8 BEZE [+t=A=+-A EE2® +-A=t-A
The available-for-sale equity it HERERE
investment 3,854,000 964,000 4,818,000 6,580,000 11,398,000.00
Segment reporting 2 DE®E
For the purpose of management, the Group classified the HRERBN - NEERERERMRE
operations into three segments according to the product Bl EBEL - AEEBWT = @R
and service: HHE
(@) The retailing segment mainly engages in the distribution @ ZTEE

of food, untagged food, daily necessities, drinks and

cigarettes, hardware and household appliances;

The wholesaling segment mainly engages in the
wholesale supply of daily consumer products, including
food, untagged food, beverages, drinks, cigarettes and

daily necessities;

The “others” segment comprises, principally, selling
plastic packing products, hotel services and school

training services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

2.

Segment reporting (Continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately aiming at making decisions about

resources allocation and performance assessment.

The segment report information is disclosed according to
the accounting policies and measurement standard adopted
by each segment when reporting to the board of directors
and these principles of measurement should be consistently
with the accounting policy and measurement standard of

this financial statement.

All the assets and liabilities have been allocated to
respective segment, no unallocated asset and liability which

are centrally managed by the Group.

The transfer pricing of inter-segment is based on the market

price as well as the actual transaction price.

II/

RIS B e

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIzBA5) » £EEE B RET)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2017FE

All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RET)

XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

tH HttEREIEH(E)

2. Segment reporting (Continued) 2~ pHBW/EE
For the year ended at 31 December 2017 2017 E
Inter-segment
Retailing Wholesaling Others offset Total
Item BH 2E B S ABEREER &it
Operating income BEIA - - - - -
External revenue Q?\\i%qﬂ)\ 4,899,147,579 7,007,674,044 48,915,664 - 11,955,737,287
Inter-segment revenue ABWERHRA 40,701,384 467,010,744 24,424,037 (532,136,165 -
Total a nJr 4,939,848,963 7,474,684,788 73,339,701 (532,136,165) 11,955,737,287
Total profit pilpERCEY 55,201,621 91,148,465 1,839,044 - 148,189,130
Income tax expense FEHER 9,485,763 43,303,699 557,201 - 53,346,663
Net profit gy 45,715,858 47,844,766 1,281,843 - 94,842,467
Total assets BEEE 3,667,045597  4,649,454,159 331,511,514 (948659.498)  7,700,251,772
Total liabilities BELHE 2,866,874,865 3,590,729,726 39,680,430 (948,659,498) 5,548,625,523
Supplementary information: BRES:
Depreciation and amortization RENZEHER
expenses 195,808,460 27,159,055 3,940,855 - 226,908,370
Impairment losses on assets AENEEX 65,421 1,718,562 - - 1,783,983
Capital expenditures BAET 66,521,418 36,329,328 244,131,038 - 347,481,784
For the year ended at 31 December 2016 2016 E
Inter-segment
Retailing Wholesaling Others offset Total
Item A TE Bt Hik AHEREER Aif
Operating income EJON - - - - -
External revenue AR IMA 4,833,089,937 6,999,128,102 49,355,938 - 11,881,573,977
Inter-segment revenue AHERHMA 36,856,385 495,624,561 17,316,647 (549,797 593) -
Total &) .ﬁ' 4,869,946,322 7,494,752,663 66,672,585 (549,797,599) 11,881,673977
Total profit ﬂ}fﬂ%@%ﬁ 30,275,275 104,210,053 (35,291 - 134,450,037
Income tax expense TEHER 12,876,651 46,177,768 74,913 - 59,129,332
Net profit %‘n‘ﬂﬁﬁ 17,398,624 58,032,285 (110,204) - 75,320,705
Total assets AEBE 4,061,335,697 5,245,576,088 51,257,299 (975,720,998) 8,382,448,085
Total liabilities ﬁ%%@?ﬁ 3,061,195,078 4,173,820,376 5,684,933 (976,530,413) 6,264,169,969
Supplementary information: WrlES
Depreciation and amortization Tﬁﬁﬂl%&ﬁ%ﬁ
expenses 194,546,282 23,266,073 52,507 - 217,864,862
Impairment losses on assets BERNEEX 836,331 4.549,712 - - 5,386,043
Capital expenditures LUNS 94,673,255 29,156,924 61,347 - 123,801,526

The Group’s businesses principally comprise retail and

wholesale in Beijing, the People’s Republic of China. The

majority identifiable assets are all located in Beijing.
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XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

2.

Segment reporting (Continued)
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tH HtEREIH(E

2 HEEE(E)

Main customers of the Group are as follows: AEBMEERFPERNOT
2017 2016
[tem ERS 20174 20164
Proportion Proportion
of the total of the total
operating operating
Operating income of the Operating  income of the
income Group (%) Income Group (%)
IHEEEE =
EERA  WALBH(%) =E S ON WA EE1(%)
Customer 1 2P 1,336,538,034 11 11,108,607,820 9
Transaction and balance between the Group and

Shoulian Group

3 FAEEHEBEE XS NG

(1) Major transaction between the Group and Shoulian (1) FEFASHEFBHETEIZHNT
Group
Notes 2017 2016
ltem BHH Ed 20175 20164
Interest income FEUA Note 1
Gl 2,763,236 3,601,551
Interest income from borrowings &£ FEF S U A Note 2
2 8,160,315 9,162,203
Lease expenses HEEMA Note 3
13 4,134,088 4,134,088
Borrowings BRFENR Note 4
T4 (73,500,000) 60,100,000
Margin HeRED Note 5
5 (50,000,000) 50,000,000
Note 1: Interest income is derived from accounts receivable. 1 A B A B REUERKF B HA o

Note 2:

The interest expenses charged on the balance of
accounts receivable and lending due from Shoulian
were determined with reference to loan interest rate

stipulated by bank for the same period.

Interest income from borrowing is derived from
interest expenses charged on the borrowing of
Shoulian with reference to loan interest rate stipulated

by bank for the same period.

AEE2ERITEBERF R
R I ) B KR SR BR BR R ERUR

B o

T

H2: B2 HENEBRAREEERZE
RITRBEFA A BB R
RESNESHERRLRAE -

2017 &3} 2874
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XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

4 288

3. Transaction and balance between the Group and

Shoulian Group (Continued)

(1) Major transaction between the Group and Shoulian

Group (Continued)

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

On 1 January 2009, the Company leased a property
and land located at Kaifang Road, Huairou District,
Beijing (“Huairou Hypermarket”) from Shoulian with
annual rent of RMB3,000,000 for a term from 1
January 2009 to 31 December 2028.

On 1 January 2009, Shoulian Supermarket leased
a property and land located at Xihongmen Road,
Daxing District, Beijing from Shoulian Group with
annual rent of RMB1,134,088 for a term from
1 January 2009 to 31 December 2028. On 24
December 2010, Shoulian Supermarket was acquired
by the Company and the lease contract remained

valid.

For the year ended at 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2016, the recognized lease expenses
added up RMB4,134,088.

On 31 December 2017, the borrowing provided
by Shoulian Supermarket and Lianchao Limited,
which lends to Shoulian Group amounted to
RMB135,600,000, repayable on 31 December 2020
as agreed upon. The interest expenses charged on
the borrowing due from Shoulian referred to bank

loan interest rate during the same period.

On 4 February 2016 the Company paid margin of
RMB50,000,000 to Shoulian Group for purchasing
its 85% equity interest of Beijing Lianchao Co., Ltd.
according to the framework agreement and the
amount was paid to the Company for the acquisition
of Lianchao Company’s equity interest in the equity

investment at 30 September 2017.

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

tH HttEREIEH(E)

3-

(1)

A3

Gl

FEBEEEREE XS RGRE

FEEEEHEMYETEZZMT
(%)

#2009F1A1H - AR B B
SEBAAM AL T TIERERK
BOREERTH (AT EREIEL
REIS ) - HEHE2009%1 A
1A E2028F12A31H + ARF
< A AR3,000,0007T °

M2009F1A1H @ BEBHmAE
Bt £ B A8 A b s i A L& PR AL P
HERIEE R TH - FEEHI 52009
F1A1AZE2028%12A318 -
SRFHES/AR1,134,088
JC ° 20106128248 « HE
BHEAQRNE  ZHEEER

R2017EE K20165EE - A&
ERZNHASEALEAAR
#4,134,0887T ©

2017128318 - BH B

™ KB R A R 1) B o @R 4R
MESHFERBRBEBRARE
135,600,0007T * & J7 4 7F %
H/®2020%612A31H « ~&H
S2ERIT R EE TR R ¥ e B
SERUE SFEREIRA B8
A -

M2016F2 A48 - RABIMRIE
ERBHEREEEERS AR
BHEAMBEANILLAHBHES
PR A F185% % 1 89 7] £V 1R 78 &
50,000,000 7T * #Z K IER 2017
9 A 30 B AT AL B U B B R
DRIREIE X TR REREE
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XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

3. Transaction and balance between the Group and 3 AEEHEBHEBZXZ RGHE(E)
Shoulian Group (Continued)

(2) Accounts receivable and accounts payable between

(2) A 5[E5EE BE B AW RS

the Group and Shoulian Group HUT
Item IEH 2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—E—+tE —E—RF
t=RA=+—-RA| t=A=+—H
Accounts receivable (Note (V1) 3) JEYBR R (BIEES ~ 3) - 80,000,000
Other receivables (Note (VI) 5) H R (BN ~ 5) - 100,000,000
Long-term receivables (Note(Vl) 17)  EHIfEW R (Fisr< ~ 17) 135,600,000 159,100,000
Prepaid rents* EfAe 18,000,000 21,000,000

The amounts are associated with one-off prepaid rents ) AEFNHRARERERIAE

for 15 years by the Group to Shoulian Group under the
lease contract of Huairou Hypermarket. That prepaid
rents are disclosed in long-term prepaid expenses
and other current assets as at the relevant balance
sheet dates. Details are referred to Note 3 of the major

transactions between the Group and Shoulian Group.

LHEEARYEBER R
M16FNEERSEH - AR
NEeEREARESEERR
RERMGHEERALAMRYE
EF - 2R Ll AR EE T
SEMETERHZES -

XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL T RARMBHRRETEEEEE

STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

1. Accounts receivable

(1) 31 December 2017

1 BWERR

(1) 2017F12H31H

Presentation of accounts receivable by category FEMR AR AR ) JR B R
Category <)l 2017.12.31
“B-tE+ZA=1-R
Net book
Carrying amount Bad debt provision value
RESE BERER REEE
Amount Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%)
Ex £ 4(%) SF  FHRIA(%)
Receivables that are individually EESBEAV BB
signfficant and for which bad debt ~ EIREEHEFE
provision is assessed individually - - - - -
Receivables for which bad debt REREREHASHR
provision is assessed by EREBNEYTER
groups according to credit risk
characteristics 91,547,790 100 - - 91,547,790
Recelvables that are not individually EESBAENBEET
significant but for which the REREBNEWGA
bad debt provision is assessed
individually - - - - -
Total At 91,547,790 100 - - 91,547,790
2017 5 2894
ERREERERERNBRAR
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

1.  Accounts receivable (Continued)

(1) 31 December 2017 (Continued)

Presentation of accounts receivable according to aging

Tt DA BRRETERBER(E)

1

FE W AR R

R (&)

(1) 2017%12531H(4#&)
FE W BR SR E A I A 3R A i R R 9

analysis on the basis of the date when revenue is BRERIOT -
recognized:
2017.12.31
—F-tFt=A=1+—H
Carrying Proportion Bad debt Net book
amount (%) provision value
Aging BR#R &8 b 51 (%) RERERE RHEEER
Within 1 year 1F AR 91,547,790 100 - 91,547,790
1-2 years 1224 - - - .
2-3 years 2E3F - - - -
3-4 years 3E4F - - - _
4-5 years 4555 - - - -
Over 5 years 5F LA L - - - -
Total A& 91,547,790 100 - 91,547,790
Accounts receivable of related parties: FENSREES T O RIBIA T
Relationship Proportion
between of the total
other related accounts

parties and the

receivable of the

Company Amount Company (%)
1l FE U BR X
Company name BNERE =N | R S£E  HEEBEHE(%)
Jingkelong Langfang RER Subsidiary
FAF 54,681,118 60
Shouchao Group BHBEE Subsidiary
FRA] 7,516,348 8
Jingkelong Tongzhou REREBM Subsidiary
FRA] 5,549,203 6
Total A5t 67,746,669 74

4 290 ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

1. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(1) 31 December 2017 (Continued)

Aging analysis method is used to a portfolio of bad

tE AEHMBERRETERBER(E)

1 BRERM(E)

(1) 20174125318 (%)
HAET - RERSIERER

debt provision JE B FEULAR R
2017.12.31
—E2—tF+=-A=+—H

Accounts Bad debt Provision

receivable provision ratio (%)
Aging AR PR X HIREE  FHREEHI(%)
Within 1 year 1E AR 91,547,790 - 0
1-2 years 1224 - - 3
2-3 years 2&E3F - - 10
3-4 years 3E4F - - 25
4-5 years 4E55F - - 50
Over 5 years 5F A E - - 100
Total A&t 91,547,790 -

(2) 31 December 2016

(2) 2016F12531H

Presentation of accounts receivable by category: e AR R D FEIREE
2016.12.31
“E-NE+ZA=T-H
Carrying amount Bad debt provision Net book value
REH#E SRERE REEE
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%)
Category 5 tHE L5 %) tHE L4 %)
Receivables that are individually EESBEAVERIR
significant and for which bad debt EREENERTE
provision is assessed individually - - - - -
Receivables for which bad debt RERRERHASHE
provision is assessed by RREENEKTE
groups according to credit risk
characteristics 264,277,638 99 - - 264,277,638
Receivables that are not individualy ~ EIESEAEAAE B
significant but for which the RERERNEWE
bad debt provision is assessed
individually 1,753,906 1 1,753,906 100 -
Total At 266,031,544 100 1,753,906 264,277,638
L ) 2017 3 pgq 4
I RREEREEERGERAQAF]
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL T ARMBHRRETEEETR(E)

STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

1 BRERM(E)

1.  Accounts receivable (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2016 (Continued) (2) 2016%12531H(4%&)

& YR SR E R A RE R B i E 1Y

Presentation of accounts receivable according to aging

429

analysis on the basis of the date when revenue is BRERIOT -
recognized:
2016.12.31
—E-ARF+=ZA=1+—A”

Carrying Proportion Bad debt Net book

amount (%) provision value
Aging ARER 58 LE151(%) IR BREEE
Within 1 year 1FEAR 184,277,638 69 - 184,277,638
1-2 years 1224 - - - -
2-3 years 2FE3F - - - -
3-4 years 3E4F - - - -
4-5 years 4555 1,753,906 1 1,753,906 -
Over 5 years 5F A E 80,000,000 30 - 80,000,000
Total &t 266,031,544 100 1,753,906 264,277,638
Accounts receivable of related parties: FEYRBAESE 7 B FRIE A0 T

Relationship Proportion of the

between other
related parties and
the Company

total accounts
receivable of the
Company (%)

1 FEU R K

Amount

Company name BULTE iERAN/NE]] 2R B LBZER L (%)
Jingkelong Langfang R Subsidiary
SR E] 87,218,175 33
Shouchao Group EiREE Subsidiary
N F R E] 61,981,839 23
Jingkelong Tongzhou @M Subsidiary
F R E] 13,694,332 5
Total a5t 162,894,346 61

Receivables that are not individually significant but for

FREBGENENEEEARE

which the bad debt provision is assessed individually: BREFHR RSN

Content of accounts Bad debt

receivable Amount provision _ Rate(%) Reason

JEWEE AR BREEARE ZHREH MR BI(%)  EMH

Liu Liangguo 1,753,906 1,753,906 100 Controversial debts which
N are unlikely to recover

2556 B A R

ERNEEIE RPN

2 ANNUAL REPORT 2017
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
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tE AEHMBERRETERBER(E)

1. Accounts receivable (Continued) 1 EWERR(E)
(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of (3) BRRTGTEHEEFMFARGHEH TS
accounts receivable FEW IR 18R
31 December 2017 2017612H31H
Proportion of
the amount
to the total Closing
Relationship with accounts balance of bad
the Group Amount  Aging receivable (%) debt provision
EEWIRR SRR
Name of entity e HRNFHE 8 £R aEHH (%) ERGH
Jingkelong Langfang REERY Subsidiary 54,681,118  Within 1 year 60 -
TRA] 1EHR
Shouchao Group BHEE Subsidiary 7,516,348 Within 1 year 8 -
FRE 1E5R
Jingkelong Tongzhou REERN Subsidiary 5,549,203 Within 1 year 6 -
FRA 1EHUR
Beijng Chaoyang District ~ t R &G E Independent third party |~ 4,892,481  Within 1 year 5 -
Detention Center BT BuE=H 1EHR
Beijing Tongda Asset FRBELEEE  Independent third party | 1,718,002 Within 1 year 2 -
Management Group =N BUE=H 1E5 R
Corporation
Total At 74,357,152 81 -
31 December 2016 20165128311
Proportion of
the amount
to the total Closing
Relationship with accounts  balance of bad
the Group Amount  Aging receivable (%)  debt provision
) BRI ERER
Name of entity EhEE HANFBE ¢E ER BRI (%) FREE
Jingkelong Langfang REERS Subsidiary 87,218,175  Within 1 year 33 -
FARw 1ELA
Shoulian Group BHEE Independent third party 80,000,000  Over 5 years 30 -
BUE=] 5L F
Shouchao Group BREE Subsidiary 61,981,839 Within 1 year 23 -
FR7F 1EA
Jingkelong Tongzhou REEEN Subsidiary 13,694,332 Within 1 year 5 -
FARA 1ELA
Beijng Tongda Asset LRBEEEEE  Independent third party 5,738,302 Within 1 year 2 -
Management Group LN BuE=] BN
Corporation
Total ast 248,632,648 9 -
2017 5 2934
IRREREEEEROERAR
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II/

XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Tt DA BRRETERBER(E)

2. Other receivables 2 v HEEWR
(1) 31 December 2017 (1) 2017%12H31H
Presentation of other receivables by category: HAup U o FE I EE -
2017.12.31
“E-tE+ZA=1-H
Net book
Carrying amount Bad debt provision value
RESE BREE REEE
Amount Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%)
Category BHl 8 £ (%) 8 FRLA(%)
Other receivables that are individually EESBEAVEREIE
significant and for which bad debt BREENE R
provision is assessed individually 5,312,250 1 4,224,750 80 1,087,500
Other receivables for which bad debt BRERERREHASTE
provision is assessed by groups BRERNEMERT
according to credit risk characteristics 557,936,656 99 - - 557,936,656
Other receivables that are not individually EBESEFEAEES
significant but for which the bad debt ~ FHEEREEN A
provision is assessed individually e - - - - -
Total A 563,248,906 100 4,224,750 559,024,156
Presentation of other receivables according to aging b e ERBE R ID T ¢
analysis:
2017.12.31
—E2—tF+=-A=+—H
Carrying Proportion Bad debt Net book
amount (%) provision value
Aging IR -} EE A5 (%) HRES REEE
Within 1 year 1FEUAR 557,936,656 99 - 557,936,656
1-2 years 1224 - - -
2-3 years 2F3F - - -
3-4 years 3E4F - - -
4-5 years 4E5%F - - -
Over 5 years 5% A F 5,312,250 4,224,750 1,087,500
Total A&t 563,248,906 100 4,224,750 559,024,156

4 204 ANNUAL REPORT 2017
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL T ARMBHRREEEBIR(E)
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2. Other receivables (Continued) 2 HiEWRE)
(1) 31 December 2017 (Continued) (1) 20174125318 (%)

Other receivables that are individually significant and for FREFESHEEAWEBHRER

which the bad debt provision is assessed individually: R H AL FEUGR

Content of other Carrying Bad debt

receivables amount provision Rate(%) Reason

HitEWRAR IR ERER HREE FHREA(%) EA

Beijing Guanyuan Full bad debt provision for the

Wholesale Market part unrecovered, according
Company Limited 5,312,250 4,224,750 80 to the agreement
It REEEmtEmS RIBL S 3 - WARREBS 5
BRAF] RIERERE
Aging analysis method is used to a portfolio of bad Hew - BRERDESIRER
debt provision ZEAE Y B At FE YR
2017.12.31
—E-tH+=-A=+—H
Other Bad debt Provision
receivables provision ratio (%)

Aging IR H {th FE LK HIRERE  FHREESGI(%)

Within 1 year 1F AR 557,936,656 - 0

1-2 years 122%F - - 3

2-3 years 2E3F - - 10

3-4 years 3E4F - - 25

4-5 years 4E5F - - 50

Over 5 years 5F A+ - - 100

Total Bt 557,936,656 -

Other receivables of related parties H Y Ea s T eI R RN T
Relationship between Proportion of the total
other related parties other receivables of
and the Company Amount the Company (%)

1y EL 4th FE IR BR X

Company name B A NN 2R ES ot | 4 2B 1Y EE B (%)

Chaopi Trading Bt E Subsidiary 500,000,000 89
FATA]

Jingkelong Tongzhou  REE®EM  Subsidiary 24,678,595 4
FRA]

Training School Bl 2R Subsidiary 150,000 -
FAH]

Total At 524,828,595 93

2017 5 2954
I RREEREEERGERAQAF]
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2.

Other receivables (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2016

Presentation of other receivables by category:

2 HttEWRE)

(2) 2016%F12H31H
Hin U R o 5%

Tt DA BRRETERBER(E)

(S

2016.12.31
I REtZA=TH
Net book
Carrying amount Bad debt provision value
REHE BRER REEE
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%)
Category 5 Ea| L f5(%) 8 FHEHAI%)
Other receivables that are individually BHESEEATEB R
significant and for which bad debt EREERME RN
provision is assessed individually 5,762,250 1 4,224,750 73 1,537,500
Other receivables for which bad debt RIERRRFEAAE
provision is assessed by groups EREENE BN
according to credit risk characteristics 714,611,157 99 - - 714,611,157
Other receivables that are not individually EESELEAEEE
significant but for which the bad debt SHREREENEMD
provision is assessed individually W - - - - -
Total At 720,373,407 100 4,224,750 716,148,657
Presentation of other receivables according to aging Hub el RBR B 0 -
analysis:
2016.12.31
—E-RE+ZRA=+—H
Carrying Proportion Bad debt Net book
amount (%) provision value
Aging BRHR Gk EE1(%) ERREH fREEE
Within 1 year 1FELAA 665,749,195 92 - 665,749,195
1-2 years 1226 48,861,962 7 - 48,861,962
2-3 years 25 3%F - - - -
3-4 years 3&E4F - - - -
4-5 years 4555 - - - -
Over 5 years 5F LA E 5,762,250 1 4,224,750 1,637,500
Total A&T 720,373,407 100 4,224,750 716,148,657

6 ANNUAL REPORT 2017
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2. Other receivables (Continued) 2 HiEWRE)
(2) 31 December 2016 (Continued) (2) 2016%F12H31H (%)

Other receivables that are individually significant and for FREFESHEEAWEBHRER

which the bad debt provision is assessed individually: R H AL FEUGR

Content of other Carrying Bad debt

receivables amount provision Rate(%) Reason

H YRR BRTE BARE EReHE STIRLLOI(%) IR

Beijing Guanyuan Full bad debt provision for the
Wholesale Market part unrecovered, according to
Company Limited 5,762,250 4,224,750 73 the agreement

IERE BRI

REET W - SRS

LERATA IRIZREE
Reversals in the current year: AFEOFERWOT ¢

Accumulated

Basis of recognizing bad debt

Content of other Reversal the previously provision prior Amount of
receivables reasons bad debt provision to reversals reversals
[0 AT 25T
HEE R AR B AR AIEER
H it e kA A EOHRE BB IR EBLER ERleHE
Beijing Bailitongda Fully recovered Controversial debts which
E-commerce Company are unlikely to recover
Limited 1,171,772 1,171,772
ERBEMBEEREAR 22F%KE BEHRAHRRFETFE
NC] i Y [l AT B 1R
L ) 2017 5 2974
ERREERERERNBRAR
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

ti RAAMBRREERBER(E

2. Other receivables (Continued) 2~ HEWRE)

(2) 31 December 2016 (Continued) (2) 2016%12F31H (%)

H b UL RS T HOFRIRLA T

Other receivables of related parties:

Relationship between Proportion of the total

other related parties other receivables of

and the Company Amount the Company (%)

i Bt & W BR X

Company name BluEE NN R ot 48 ZA /9 B 45 (%)

Chaopi Trading Bt Subsidiary 500,000,000 69
FRA]

Shoulian Supermarket &EHEET Subsidiary 45,000,000 6
TR

Jingkelong Tongzhou  REMEM  Subsidiary 25,369,109 4
FRA]

Total &5 570,369,109 79

(3) HEMAMES TAMBERL

(3) Presentation of other receivables by nature

Nature of other receivables HAth E W RS 2017.12.31 2016.12.31
—E—+F —ERF

+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H

Receivables of promotional activities ~— FEUT{E 54 & FF 32,011,998 42 159,592
Receivables of related parties FEUS BEEE 5 5 524,828,595 570,369,109
Others Hih 2,183,563 103,619,956
Total &5 559,024,156 716,148,657

IS} ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2. Other receivables (Continued)

(4) Top five entities with the largest balances of other

receivables

31 December 2017

tE AAMBRRETERBER(E)

Htb YR (&)

(4) BRAGEENFRGHEIEELN

Hfth Bk 18R
20175F12A31H

Proportion of

the amount to  Closing balance

Nature of other Closing the total other of bad debt

receivables balance  Aging receivables (%) provision

RN BRER

Company name Bl g% FEME EXEE KR BEHLLH(%) ERBE

Chaopi Trading AHAEE Receivables of subsidiary 500,000,000  Within 1 year 89 -
borrowing 150/

FRAAMER

Jingkelong Tongzhou REERN Current account 24,678,595  Within 3 years 4 -
AR REDL

Befjing Guanyuan Wholesale ~ JkREEB®#tE  Receivables of prepaid rent 5,312,250  Over 5 years 1 4,204,750
Market Company Limited TEARAH i SENLE

Beijjng KFC Ltd. JHREEEBBRAE  Current account 182,289 Within 1 year - -
R 1R

Training School SEIER Recelvables of subsidiary 150,000  Within 1 year - -
borrowing 1E0R

TFRAER
Total &t 530,323,134 94 4,224.750
L ) 2017 5 2994
ERREERERERNBRAR



la

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

II/

B FS R I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2017%#E
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RET)

XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2. Other receivables (Continued) 2

(4) Top five entities with the largest balances of other

receivables (Continued)

31 December 2016

Nature of other

Tt DA BRRETERBER(E)

H B RK (2)

@) BRESBENEFRGENEEY
B ERFER(E)
2016612H31H

Proportion of

the amount to~ Closing balance
the total other of bad debt

receivables Closing balance  Aging receivables (%) provision
{RERM SRER
Company name B4 FENE ERe®E R 2 %) FRHE
Chaopi Trading Fmg Receivables of sbsiciary 500,000,000 Within 1 year 69 -
borrowing TENR
FRAAER
Shoulian Supermarket el Recelvables of subsidiary 45000000 1-2 years 6 -
borrowing 13F
FRAER
Jingkelong Tongzhou REEEN Current account 25,369,109 Within 2 year 4 -
ERH 2R
Bejing Guanyuan Wholesale L& & IﬁﬁuﬂttéfE Recelvables of prepaid rent 5,762,250 Over 5 years 1 4,004,750
Market Company Limited THEERAE e 5ELE
Shoulian Group BEHEE Borrowing and margin 100,000,000 Within 1 year 14 -
ERRRES 1ELAA
Total fit 676,131,359 94 4,004,750
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL TR AR EBRREIEEEFE(E)
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

3. Long-term equity investment 3 REIRERE
31 December 2017 20179F12H31H
Initial
Accounting investment Change in
methods cost 2017.1.1 the year 2017.12.31
—E—tE “E-tf
Investee HREEN BEF DR ERE -B-H EH#® +-A=+-H
Long-term equity investment ¥ F/A &K £
in subsidiaries R
Jingkelong Langfang REERLY cost method 8,000,000 83,980,000 - 83,980,000
A
Chaopi Trading PAHBE cost method 55,733,000 436,505,594 - 436,505,594
AR
Xinyang Tongli TREE 7 cost method 832,500 5,565,775 - 5,565,775
A
Shoulian Supermarket B cost method 121,160,000 422,484,500 - 422,484,500
A
Jingkelong Tongzhou REE AN cost method 29,000,000 29,000,000 - 29,000,000
AR
Training School EIIER cost method 500,000 500,000 - 500,000
A
Lianchao Limited iy UNG cost method 268,955,702 - 268,955,702 268,955,702
BAE
Total At 978,035,869 268,955,702  1,246,991,571
Description of
the difference Provision for
Proportion ~ Proportion of ~ between the  Provision for impairment of
of ownership  voting power former and the impairment of  assets in the Cash dividend
interests (%) (%) latter assets year in the year
ERREEM
BRI HIE
ERREEN ARREEN  RRELA REHR
Investee BREEMN BRIEAI) FRELH(%) F-HHHS REER HEEE KERSLA
Long-term equity investment in -~ 4T AR R
subsidiaries iR
Jingkelong Langfang REERY 100 100 - - - -
Chaopi Trading HEE 79.85 79.85 - - - 19,962,950
Xinyang Tongi REEn 55.66 55.66 - - - 278,289
Shoulian Supermarket BRRT 100 100 - - - -
Jingkelong Tongzhou TEEEM 100 100 - - - -
Training School E 28 100 100 - - - -
Lianchao Limited NS 100 100 - - - -
Total At - - - 20,241,239
2017 F 3 )4 4
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL T ARMBHRRETEEETR(E)
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

3. Long-term equity investment (Continued) 3 RHEREREE)
31 December 2016 2016%12H31H
Initial
Accounting investment Change in
methods cost 2016.1.1 the year 2016.12.31
) - - ZE R - R
Investee WA B %ER % MR EKAE —A—H BRE® +-A=1t—8
Long-term equity investment ¥+ A1 R
in subsidiaries R
Jingkelong Langfang RERBS cost method 8,000,000 83,980,000 - 83,980,000
RARE
Chaopi Trading HHEE cost method 55,733,000 436,505,594 - 436,505,594
BAE
Xinyang Tongli kb8 ) cost method 832,500 5,565,775 - 5,565,775
FAE
Shoulian Supermarket BHET cost method 121,160,000 422,484,500 - 422,484,500
A
Jingkelong Tongzhou REEBM cost method 29,000,000 29,000,000 - 29,000,000
A
Training School BIIER cost method 500,000 500,000 - 500,000
A
Total A&t 978,035,869 - 978,035,869
Description of
the difference Provision for
Proportion  Proportion of ~ between the  Provision for - impairment of
of ownership  voting power ~ former and impairment of  assets in the Cash dividend
interests (%) (%) the latter assets year in the year
o ERREEAL
 ERBASH  BBLAE -
O EmREBG  RREMH RORMERS  AFHEEE
Investee WA Eh FERREL1(%) (%) T—EEHEA AEERE Bl KERSH
Long-term equity investment i &R
in subsidiaries WERE
Jingkelong Langfang REERLY 100 100 - - - -
Chaopi Trading HitpmE 79.85 79.85 - - - 19,962,950
Xinyang Tongli GED 55.66 55.66 - - - 278,289
Shoulian Supermarket i) 100 100 - - - -
Jingkelong Tongzhou REREBM 100 100 - - - =
Training School IR 100 100 - - - -
Total At - - - 20,241,239
On 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, no #2017 12 A31H & 20164 12 A 31
restriction appeared on the capability of transferring fund BARARFENRBRERE ZHWINE
from investee to the Company. BAUMARNTEBZESNENRZIR
il e
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL T ARMBHRRETEEETR(E)
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

4. Operating income and operating cost 4~ EEWA - EERK
2017 2016
ltem pE= 20175 E 20165 €
Income Costs Income Costs
'ON % WA B AR
Principal operating EXE 30 4,102,355,605 3,486,101,917 | 4,073,502,986 3,459,443,154
Other operating H{th £ 75 345,787,316 11,240,117 306,078,480 6,590,320
Total &t 4,448,142,921  3,497,342,034 | 4,379,581,466 3,466,033,474
The Company’s business principally comprises retailing, so ARBEEEBEFERTEES - MUK
the top five customers are not disclosed. WRITARER ©
The principal operating mainly engages in the distribution of TEEBUATERBEERD BB
food, untagged food, daily necessities, beverage and wine. m - ARAEER  SRFBESESHK
Ao
5. Investment income 5 REWH
2017 2016
Item A 20175 E 2016%F &
Long-term equity investment income B A ERZ B ) R Bk i
accounted by using the cost method 2B W= 20,241,239 20,241,239
Investment gain from buying financial products I 81 2 @& & U A 2,227,512 873,023
Total A5t 22,468,751 21,114,262
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, no R2017F12 831 H &20164F 12 A 31
significant restriction appeared on the Company’s remittance B AAFIHIEEREELQAAEEE KR
of investment income. e
XVI. APPROVAL FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENT A BB EHR 2 E
The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the RAFTHABTREHFMBHRENR2018FE3 A
financial statements of the Company were approved by the board IHER AN ESeH & -

of directors on 21 March 2018.

2017 &3} 3034
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and equity UTABBEASERBEREANREREZEE - &
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the E BERRAZEHE:
Company’s annual reports, is set out below:
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—+tF ZER-RF —T-RF T —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETT ARETT AREFT ARBEFT
Results E¥
Revenue TEEBKWA 10,786,227 10,847,005 10,572,672 10,007,135 9,629,191
Profit before tax b FEE 148,189 134,450 118,379 132,503 143,485
Income tax expense FTSHER (53,347) (69,129) (41,033) (43,641) (43,169)
Net profit R 94,842 75,321 72,346 88,862 100,316
Attributable to shareholders HEREATE
of the parents FTA & RFFIE 47,485 26,686 24,865 41,330 57,056
Minority interests PEBRREBR 47,357 48,635 47,481 47,532 43,260
94,842 75,321 72,346 88,862 100,316
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—tF TE-RF “E—hF —E—MmF —E—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT  ARETT AREFIT ARETT ARETR
Assets, Liabilities and Equity &% - BERRA

Non-current assets FRBEE 2,433,597 2371224 2,485,217 2475179 2,482,067
Current assets REEE 5,266,655 6,011,224 5,885,554 4,766,324 4,667,991
Current liabilities mEaE (5,486,421)  (5,463,543)  (5,458,025)  (4,261,812)  (4,064,904)
Net current assets/(liabilities) mébﬁ%/ &)
| (219,766) 547,681 427,529 504,512 603,087

Total assets less current liabilities #E&BERTEEE 2,213,831 2,918,905 2,912,746 2,979,691 3,085,154
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (62,205) (800,627) (803,232) (884,626)  (1,008,803)
Net assets FERE 2,151,626 2,118,278 2,109,514 2,095,065 2,076,351
Equity attributable to shareholders @R &2 A

of the parents PR i s 1,669,689 1,643,354 1,636,512 1,653,680 1,654,780
Minority interests DR FE 481,937 474,924 473,002 441,385 421,571
Total equity EELEN 2,151,626 2,118,278 2,109,514 2,095,065 2,076,351

Note: The data of 2013 to 2017 is prepared in accordance with Accounting  iF : 2013-2017EEHEE - AR E e ENR

Standard for Business Enterprise. Bl oo

4 304 ANNUAL REPORT 2017
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

Al



mnlles el gy z
ITRFEEE
BUWSEFARMRBEIRLD G
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED




	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	集團架構
	董事長報告
	管理層討論及分析
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	監事會報告
	董事、監事及高級管理層簡介
	環境、社會及管治報告
	審計報告
	合併資產負債表
	公司資產負債表
	合併利潤表
	公司利潤表
	合併現金流量表
	公司現金流量表
	合併股東權益變動表
	公司股東權益變動表
	財務報表附註
	財務資料概要
	封底



